
Agenda compiled by: 
Guy Close 
Governance Services 
Tel: 24 74356 

 
 

Principal Scrutiny Advisor: 
Sandra Newbould 
Tel: 24 74792 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

SCRUTINY BOARD (CHILDREN AND FAMILIES) 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds, LS1 1UR on 

Thursday, 25th July, 2013 at 9.45 am 
 

(A pre-meeting will take place for ALL Members of the Board at 9.15 a.m.) 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
J Akhtar - Hyde Park and Woodhouse; 

J Chapman (Chair) - Weetwood; 

J Elliott - Morley South; 

C Gruen - Bramley and Stanningley; 

A Lamb - Wetherby; 

P Latty - Guiseley and Rawdon; 

K Mitchell - Temple Newsam; 

M Rafique - Chapel Allerton; 

K Renshaw - Ardsley and Robin Hood; 

A Sobel - Moortown; 

B Urry - Roundhay; 

 
Co-opted Members (Voting) 

Mr E A Britten - Church Representative (Catholic) 
Mr A Graham - Church Representative (Church of England) 
Ms A Craven - Parent Governor Representative (Primary) 
Ms J Ward - Parent Governor Representative (Secondary) 

 
Co-opted Members (Non-Voting) 

Ms C Foote - Teacher Representative 
Ms C Raftery - Teacher Representative 
Ms S Hutchinson - Early Years Representative 
Ms J Morris-Boam - Young Lives Leeds (0-13 age group) 
Ms T Kayani - Young Lives Leeds (13-19 age group) 

 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(* In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting). 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows: 

 
 No exempt items have been identified on 

this agenda. 
 

 



Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

 
C 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES 
 
To receive any apologies for absence and 
notification of substitutes. 
 

 

6   
 

  MINUTES - 28TH JUNE 2013 
 
To confirm as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting held on 28th June 2013. 
 

1 - 6 

7   
 

  REQUEST FOR SCRUTINY - TRANSPORT 
CONSULTATION AND THE PROPOSED 
CHANGES TO THE CHILDREN'S SERVICES 
TRANSPORT POLICY 
 
To consider a report from the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development in relation to a public 
request for scrutiny on transport consultation and 
the proposed changes to the Children’s Services 
Transport Policy. 
 
 

7 - 
102 



Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

 
D 

8   
 

  DRAFT LSCB ANNUAL REPORT ON THE 
EFFECTIVENESS OF SAFEGUARDING 
ARRANGEMENTS FOR CHILDREN AND 
YOUNG PEOPLE IN LEEDS (JULY 2013) 
 
To consider a report from the Independent Chair of 
Leeds Safeguarding Children Board and the draft 
Leeds Safeguarding Children Board Annual 
Report. 
 

103 - 
186 

9   
 

  RESPONSE TO SCRUTINY INQUIRY REPORT - 
PRIVATE FOSTERING 
 
To consider a report from the Director of Children’s 
Services providing a comprehensive progress 
report as requested in the recommendations 
detailed in the Scrutiny Board’s Inquiry report into 
Private Fostering. 
 

187 - 
218 

10   
 

  DIRECTOR'S RESPONSE - SCRUTINY INQUIRY 
INTO INCREASING THE NUMBER OF YOUNG 
PEOPLE IN EMPLOYMENT, EDUCATION OR 
TRAINING 
 
To consider a report from the Director of Children’s 
Services outlining the formal response to the 
recommendations of the Children and Families 
Scrutiny Board inquiry into increasing the number 
of young people in employment, education or 
training. 
 

219 - 
226 

11   
 

  FINANCIAL HEALTH MONITORING 
CHILDREN'S SERVICES- BUDGET UPDATE 
QUARTER 1 2013/14 AND OUTTURN 
SUMMARY FOR 2012/13 
 
To consider a report from the Head of Scrutiny and 
Member Development in relation to the Quarter 1 
budget information for 2013/14 and the Outturn 
summary for 2012/13. 
 

227 - 
232 

12   
 

  WORK SCHEDULE 
 
To consider the Board’s work schedule for the 
forthcoming municipal year. 
 

233 - 
254 



Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

 
E 

13   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Thursday, 19th September 2013 at 9.45am in the 
Civic Hall, Leeds (Pre-meeting for Board Members 
at 9.15am) 
 

 

 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	���
�������������
���������

�

��������	
���
	�����
���	��
	���������	
	

���
���	����	�����	����	
�

��������	
�

�

	����
����������	��	�����������

� �

	����
����� ���
����!�"����������"�
�	��
#�$�����!�$��������%��	���	��&�%���������
%�'���(
���&�'�	���)��	��*�+����

�
�������
	���
���	������ �	
%�� �#�*�����	�,���
����'������	�������-����
���.�
%��#�"������,���
����'������	�������-��
����
�� 	���	�.�
%�����/����,�!���	��"
���	
��'������	�������-0��
	����.	
�

�	 �!"#	�"#$%		
	

������)����	
�����������1�
�

�	 
#&'!(!")*+	*,	
)%&'*%!-'#	�#&.+)!(/	�+"#(#%"%		
	

������)����	
����������
	��
�������
���������
	������	�������1�
�

�	 �0*'*1)#%	,*(	�-%#+&#	!+2	�*"),)&!")*+	*,	�.-%")"."#%		
	

#�
�
������
������	���)�����
������������

	����
�����#2������	��#�0
����
�	���
3
�����%��������%��#������	��%����4

����%����'���������
%����&���	���%����%
����3*
����	��%��0�5
����	�
	1��6
��������
	��������	�
���������������

	����
��!�"�������)����
��
�����
����
���

	����
����#2�����
�	���

	����
����%��6���	��
���

	����
��#�0
���1��
�

3	 �)+."#%	�	�4"5	�0()'	����	��(2)+!(/	!+2	�!''�)+	$##")+1%�		
	

�������
�,������������	
����
�����������	��������
	������#����������
-7���	�����	������3�	.��������
����������
���������
��1��
�

4	 �*�*0"#2	�#$-#(%		
	

����5����
��0��
��	���	��%�����������
���	���
�������������
���
	�����

���
	������������)�������������������
�	���	��
���
3
��������������
�����
0��
��	��*
���1�
�
0�	����!�	���
)��!��	������0��
��	��#�������������	�����������
����	��
����
	�����
�%������8�(
�������	���
���	��1�
�
9	����������	����
	�����*
����)�����������������)
�	
��	���
	���������	�
����������
������ �����:�����'������	��������	�����������*
����)������(
�����
�
��
���
	�����������������	
��	���
	1��9��)������
����
���	�������������
*
����
	����

2��������)�
���
3
�����������������
�����*
�����	����������
	�
�
���������;<����
	�������������
����	������	��������	��������	����
	1�

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	���
�������������
���������

�

�
9	�������
	������
��
)�	��	
��	���
	���
������
�
����
��	���
3
�������������
�������	���������=�
�

3� ��
����
�� 	���	����
������������	�������,�%��#�"������
3� '
��	�����
������
������������	�������,�%�� �#�*�����	�

�
�)
�����	���
���	
���������	��������)�����
���	�����	��
��=�
�

3� #��	��������	�-�������.�,��><�?<�����,��@<�?<�����
3� ���(
���	��/����-���
	����.�,���<�;<���,���<�;<����1�

�
�������
�,��
�

-�.�����������
	��	���
���������
����������������	��	
����
-�.�������	�������
	��
���������
�
����
��	���
3
������������������
��
)�	��

������
�	�������	
	3�
��	���
3
��������������
�����0��
��	��*
����
�
������<�;=�
�

3� %����4

���,���������'������	�������
3� %����'�������,���������'������	�������
3� %��0�5
����	�
	�,� �����:�����'������	���������������
	��������
	�
��

�)
�	
��	���
	��
3� %����&���	��,�:

	��$�����$�����-��3�?�������

�.�
3� %����%
����3*
���,�:

	��$�����$�����-�3���������

�.�

�
-�.��������������)�
���
3
��������������������������
�����)
�2�

��
��������
������<�;��	����������
	��
���������;<����
	�����������1��
�

6	 �&(.")+/	
*!(2	�#($%	*,	�#,#(#+&#		
	

����5����
��0��
��	���	��%�����������
���	���
�������������
���
	�����
0��
��	��*
�����������
��'�����	��1��
�
#���	�����
��������
���)����������
���
�������������	��	��4��������0��
��	��
*
����
	������������	8����
���*
���1��
�
0�	����!�	���
)��!��	������0��
��	��#�������������	�����������
����	��
����
	�����
�%������8�(
�������	���
���	��1�
�
�������
�,��
��

�.� ����������
	��	���
��0��
��	��*
����-�������	��	��4�������.�������
��
������	������	
����

�.� ����������
	��	���
������0��
��	��*
����-�������	��	��4�������.����
���

	������������	8����
���*
�������	
���1�

�
�
�
�

Page 2



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	���
�������������
���������

�

7	 �*.(&#%	*,	8*(9	!+2	!(#!%	*,	0()*()"/	,*(	"5#	�&(.")+/	
*!(2		
	

����5����
��0��
��	���	��%�����������
���	���
�������������
���
	�
�
��	������

�����
��)
�2��
������0��
��	��*
���1�
�
�����
��
)�	���	�
�����
	�)�������	�����
��������
��=�
	

3� �������	��	��:

	��!�
���8��!��	�����3�������'������������
3� *�����

	����!��	�����3����@�
3� ���� �����������%�������0
���������<���#	�������'��
���
3�  A��
�����*
����%�	
����
�������	�������
	�?���%��������
3� ������
��0��
��	��9	(
������	��0������	���'�����	���
��������	��	��

4�������1�
	
0�	����!�	���
)��!��	������0��
��	��#�������������	�����������
����	��
����
	�����
�%������8�(
�������	���
���	��1�
�
�����
��
)�	���������	��������)�����	�����	��	����	������
	�����
�%������8�
(
�������	���
���	��=�
�

3� �

	����
����*��2��� A��
�����*
����%������-�������	��	��4�������.�
3� 6�����'�������
	��������
��
���������	8��0�������1�

	
�����������	����������*
����%��������
�������	��	�
���	�������
	��
�������
)	�
�����������

�����
��)
�2��
������0��
��	��*
���1�
�
9	��
������������
��
)�	���

�����
��)
�2�)�����
���
�)�����
���
	��������
	=�
�

•� �����
���	���	��9������	����
	�
������:

���7������
��$����1�

•� �����
���	����	����
��	������	
�����
��:

	��!�
����)�
�)�����
��
������2�
�����
��	��6  ���
��
)�	������0��
��	��*
������	(
���1�

•� "
���	��	����(
�����	���
���������������
��!��������	��0��
	�����
 �
����
	�����	
	����	���	������

����-#������������������

������1.�

•� 0
����������0������,��
����������	����
	������)1�

•� '����)�
�������������	8����
���*
�����	����
���	���)��������*
���8��
������
��'�����	��1�

•� ����!���
���	����	��#��

	���������
����
������������
���	�������
��������<���0��
��	��*
�����	���
��
)�	����������3�	������	��
	�����
�����#���������1�

•� �����
���	��
������$�����
������
��&�	�����������1�

•� *�����6����3��
���
�
���
	������	��	��
������������	�����������	��
���	�����������
���
	���	1�

•� 9	�������
	�
��0 6�:

	��!�
�����	�
�4
������ �
����
	��
���
�
�
	���	��������	������	�����������	����	����	������)������)���
��
����������1�

•� �������	��	��:

	��!�
���8��B
�����	��9	��
�	������������)�����
�������������2�
���	��
�	����	��
�����������	�����2�
��2	
)��������

��
����+6��
	��	��
	�
������'������
�����������1�

Page 3



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	���
�������������
���������

�

•� /������������
��������
��������

2�	�����4����0��

��%�����-40%.����
��2��
��
��40%��	�$�����)������
)�	���
	���������1�

•� C�
����	��0��

��8��	������������	����
������0��

��9���
����	��
������
��	�
����������	�)����	
�������
)	��
���
����2�
����������
	��	�
������
����
	�������1�

•� *
����	��������� �����������%�������0
��������	��������
	���	�	��
�����	������
�����������	�����
	������
��������	���
�D�����
��
����	��
�	����

��1�

�
����!��	������0��
��	��#��������	�
�����%����������������*
����)

���
�����������
����
	������
�������������
���������	����������������*
����
�����	�1��!���
���	������
�����	�����
���	����
	�����2�	�����
����)

���
���
���������
�����	�
������		
���)
�2���
������1��
�
����*
����)�������	���������������)����)

��������3�
�����
����
	��������
���

��

������������	���������	�A�������	���	��
�������$�����0����
����	��
�������	8��*
����)

�����������	��	���������������		
������
���)���������
�����������
�������������
��0��
��	��)
�21��
�����
�������
�,��
�

-�.�����������
	��	���
���������
����	������	���������	
����
-�.��������	
�����
��������
������
�������
�������������
������*
���8��

)
�2������
����
�������
����
��	��%
	�������:����-%�	
���?����
�
������.�

-�.�������
��
������������	��
�����������
������0��
��	��*
����-�������	8��
�	��4�������.���	��
	D
	���
	�)����
����������
����)�
���	(
����������
��
������	����
���
���(
�	������
�����������0��
��	��*
���1�

�
-�

	����
����"�
�	���������������	�������1�������������
	��
��
	�
�������
����1.�
�

�	 �������	:.!("#(	3	�#(,*($!+&#	�#0*("		
	

�������
��������� A��
������	��������
��
���������	��0���������
����������
���
����
�������	������(
������;�����
���	��������������	���
�����0��
��	��
*
���1�
�
�����
��
)�	���	�
�����
	�)�������	�����
��������
��=�
�
3� !���
���	���'��
�����
�������������!��
�����!��	��
3� �������	8��0��������������
�����!��
��������	��9	�����
���
3� �������	��	��:

	��!�
���8��!���
���	���+�����1��
�
�����
��
)�	���������	��������)�����	�����	��	����	������
	�����
�%������8�
(
�������	���
���	��=�
�
3� 6�����'�������
	��������
��
���������	8��0��������
3� !�����0�
������5����
��!���
���	����	��9���
����	��-�������	8��

0�������.1�

Page 4



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	���
�������������
���������

�

�
����2���������
������
���
	�)���=�
�

•� ���������	�����
���������	8���
���������)�����������

��
������������
7�����1���
	���	�)����A������������������	�����
���������	�
�
	�����	���������
������;�(
������1������������	
����
	�
���������
�
��	��
��������	����������������������	�����������������	�������
��������������������������������� �������	����	�������!�������������
�	��������!��������������""#�$	!�������		��	���������$�����$	!������
��
�����������	���	��
�������������%�����
	�
��������	��&'�

•� �����	��������	����

������	����
��	�������
�
�	�����
�1��

•� �
	���	��������	�������
�����	���	��
�	���������������	��	���

	��
��
���������	������	��������������	����������	���
)����

�����)����
���������
�������������1�

•� 0�����#���������1�
�
�������
�,�
�

-�.�����������
	��	���
���������
����	������	���������	
���1�
-�.����������*
����	
��������(
������;�����
���	����	�
�����
	��	������

���
���)������������	������������1�
-�.������*
����%��������
	��������������)�����
�
	�����2���
���������
��	��

)
�2��
��
��
�������
����	��
���������
��	�������)������������
�����
����
���	���
���������	8��0�������1�

�
;	 <*(9	�&5#2.'#		
	

#����
���)����
���������������5����
��0��
��	���	��%�����������
���	��
)������������������0��
��	��*
���8��)
�2���
��������
�������
���	���
	�������
����1�
�
����������0��
��	��*
����-�������	��	��4�������.�)
�2������
����
������<���;�
)�������	�����
��������
��1�
�
0�	����!�	���
)��!��	������0��
��	��#�������������	�����������
����	��
����
	�����
�%������8�(
�������	���
���	��1�
�
6�����'�������
	��������
��
���������	8��0�������������	�������������	���	��
����
	�����
�%�������(
����
	���	���
���	��1�
�
�������
�,�
�

-�.�����������
	��	���
���������
����	������	���������	
���1�
-�.�������
�������
	�
�����
	����
	�����2�	�)������������
����������
��	��


���	�#
�
���0��
��	��*
���������	�1�
-�.�������
�������
	�
�����
	����
	�����2�	�)��������0��
��	��*
����

�������	���������
�����
�������
��
)�	���
��������	��������
��0��
��	���	��
�
����
�����������������
����
�����������������
������
�����	�
��
������
�	�
�����*
���8��)
�2������
����
�������
��	������=�
�

Page 5



��������	
�����
��������
����������������	���
�
���������
	���
�������������
���������

�

•� !���	������������������	�������	�������
	�
��0 6�:

	��!�
����
�	�
����	����������
����
	�

•� �������	��	��:

	��!�
���8��B
�����	��9	��
�	����

•� 4����0��

��%������

•� C�
����	�8�0��

����

•� *
����	�1�
��
-�

	����
��%�'���(
����������������	�������1���	

	��
��	������
���
	�
�������
����1.�
�

��	 
!"#	!+2	�)$#	*,	�#="	�##")+1		
	

��
�������������
�����������?1;�����	�����������5�����$�����
-!��������	���
��*
����%����������?1����.�
�
�
-���������	���
	��
���������1����.�
�
�
�

Page 6



 

 

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) 

Date: 25th July 2013 

Subject: Request for Scrutiny – Transport consultation and the proposed changes 
to the Children’s Services Transport Policy 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes    No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): Hyde Park and Woodhouse 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

 

 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 A request for scrutiny has been received from Mr Tom Casey concerning transport 

consultation and the proposed changes to the Children’s Services transport policy.  
 
1.2 The reasons stated for his request is detailed in appendix A of this report.  
 
1.3      A copy of the Executive Board report which was considered at its meeting on 17th 

July 2013 is attached for reference as appendix B .  
 

2.0      City Development Department 
 
2.1 The Chief Officer (Strategy, Commissioning and Performance) has been invited to 

respond to this request and at the meeting on the 25th of July 2013.   
 
3.0     Options for Investigations and Inquiries 

 
3.1 The decision whether or not to further investigate matters raised by a request for 

scrutiny is the sole responsibility of the Scrutiny Board. As such, any decision in this 
regard is final and there is no right of appeal. 

 
3.2  When considering the request for Scrutiny, the Scrutiny Board (Children and 

Families) may wish to consider: 

 Report author:  S Pentelow 

Tel:  24 74792 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



 

 

               

• If further information is required before considering whether further scrutiny 
should be undertaken 

• If a similar or related issue is already being examined by Scrutiny or has 
been considered by Scrutiny recently. 

• If the matter raised is of sufficient significance and has the potential for 
scrutiny to produce realistic recommendations that could be implemented 
and lead to tangible improvements. 

• The impact on the Board’s current workload 

• The time available to undertake further scrutiny  and  

• The level of resources required to carry out further scrutiny. 

• Whether an Inquiry should be undertaken 

• How the proposed request meets the inquiry selection criteria 
 

4.0 Recommendations 
 
4.1      The Scrutiny Board is asked to: 

 
(i) Consider the request for Scrutiny from Mr Tom Casey  
(ii) Consider the response of the Chief Officer (Strategy, Commissioning and 

Performance) to the issues raised. 
(iii) Determine if the Scrutiny Board (Children and Families ) wishes to undertake 

further scrutiny of this matter. 
 
5.0 Background Papers 
 

None1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include 
published works.  
 

Page 8



Appendix A 

Scrutiny Consideration Part 1 - Consultation & Consequences 

The consultation process - General Points 

• money had been removed from the budget approved in Feb 2013, before the council went to consultation 

• the council state (in documents pre-dating the consultation, consultation documents and consultation report) 

that “all elements” of discretionary funding were consulted on. This is not true. 

• Timing of the consultation – created a lot of uncertainty and stress for families who close to the end of the 

academic year do not know what is happening in September. 

• possible bias in the consultation in the wording of the documents 

• families of SEN students leaving a special school this month have been told that they will have to transport 

their children to college themselves for at least the whole of September because the consultation delay 

meant that transport contracts were not organised in time. They will apparently be reimbursed, but this is 

not a burden that such vulnerable families need at such a difficult time for them. It is envisaged that some 

families will then reach a financial crisis point due to cash flow in September and October as they have 

further cost implications as they access other service essential services. 

• The scrutiny panel are asked to consider whether the consultation report sufficiently reflects the content of 

responses to the consultation and consider the minutes of meetings with stakeholders referred to in the 

report and whether the report accurately reflects these meeting. 

Key stakeholders excluded.   

• The review of discretionary school transport funding affected 7,376 pupils but only 1,190 of adult responses 

to the consultation questionnaire stated that they would be affected by the proposed changes in some way.  

When compared to the numbers affected and considering that 2,000+ signatures were collected for the 

petition on one aspect of discretionary transport it would appear that although interest in the issues is high 

access to the consultation process was inhibited. 

• Families affected by the proposed changes were not informed by Council (or Metro, until after the 

consultation closed) that a review of school transport provision was taking place.  Reliance on school 

notification systems proved to be inadequate as many affected families did not become aware of the 

consultation until either very late in the process or after it had closed.  As all families currently in receipt of 

assistance received notification from Metro that the consultation had taken place after the process had 

closed it should have been possible for Metro to have contacted these families at the outset of the process 

instead. 

Barriers to access.   

• Hard copies of questionnaire were not easily accessible e.g. by download from council webpages.  Such 

provision would have made it possible for schools/individuals to distribute hard copies to interested parties 

rather than rely on individuals having access to internet facilities or making their own enquiries with the 

Council by email/telephone. Consultation questionnaire and accompanying documents focused on savings 

to be made by reductions in funding of discretionary school transport.  

Lack of data.   

• Inadequate information was provided for respondents to form an opinion as to whether spending on 

statutory transport was being adequately controlled or used in the most efficient/cost effective manner. 

Areas excluded from consultation.   

• No review was made of provision of discretionary transport to single-sex schools or for traveller children.  

No data was presented to respondents in respect of spending in these areas of discretionary school transport. 

• No mention was made in the consultation documents of provision in the current policy for free transport on 

the basis of non-belief to the nearest non-faith school. No data was provided as to spending on this area of 

discretionary transport. 

Page 9



Bias.   

• The exclusion from consideration/lack of information regarding provision of transport assistance on the 

basis of non-belief could lead to bias in responses as it appears from the documents that provision is made 

on the basis of faith but not on the basis of non-belief (which would be discriminatory).   

• Statements such as “free non-statutory travel for children attending faith schools, could be viewed as being 

discriminatory” are leading statements without evidence as well as inaccurate.  There never has been free 

travel provided for all children attending faith schools, only those who reside more than the statutory safe 

walking distance from their nearest faith school have been eligible for assistance in order to travel to that 

school in recognition of the small number of faith schools serving a large metropolitan area. 

• “those holding a desire for a faith school education” on the grounds of their faith are not afforded greater 

choice than the majority.  In practice, they are limited in their choice of school – usually to one faith school 

for which their child (ren) would be eligible under the admission criteria/catchment area.  Failure to gain a 

place at their preferred faith school would invariably mean they do not have access to another faith school 

as all faith schools have clearly defined catchment areas and most are oversubscribed.  If they have 

indicated a preference for a faith based education on the grounds of their faith they will have placed the faith 

school as their first preference and this will have a negative impact on their likelihood of admission to their 

second and subsequent mainstream preferences especially if there is a shortage of places. 

Closed process.   

• The consultation documents and questionnaire repeatedly stated that “no change” was not an option.  This 

makes the process closed and implies that decisions have already been made at some level by Children’s 

Services as to what to cut and how by much. 

Insufficient/misleading information.  

• Consultation documents provided insufficient information for respondents to have a clear understanding of 

the implications of the proposed cuts. 

• Of our four immediate neighbouring LA’s, two have removed the subsidy for faith school transport and two 

retained it.  In the case of those who have removed the subsidy it has been removed for new entrants to 

schools but retained for all current participants until they leave that school.  No mention was made in the 

consultation documents to comparisons with other Core Cities. 

Issues of equality and diversity: 

• Proposals will reduce the diversity of schools across the city (both faith and non-faith) 

• Proposals will reduce parental choice for all 

• Some families will not be able to exercise their preference for faith based education for financial reasons 

• Recommended policy will create an unfair situation where some faiths/ideologies are treated differently to 

other. 

• The consultation recommendation is unfair in respect of not including all community groups for funding 

consideration equally.  It has been pointed out that the removing for some groups should be due to a 

lifestyle choice, however funding will still remain in place for: 

a) Romanian traveller groups  

b) parents who have refused a place at a faith school on grounds of non-belief 

c) for parents who have requested a single sex school on the grounds of faith 

• No Equality Impact Assessment was carried out prior to the consultation and therefore this information was 

not available to respondents to assess when considering the proposed cuts in funding. 

Traffic and Environment: 

• Increased congestion 

• Unsafe routes for children 

• Spaces on buses are not guaranteed – services are being changed to a more commercial system – some 

services have already been withdrawn  

• Current public bus services cannot cope with the possible increased demand 

• Increased CO2 emissions 

• Possible future implications for planning, development and the economy in the city 

Page 10



• Consultation lacked a Highways impact assessment the despite requests for this during the consultation 

meetings 

• No assessment was made of environmental impact prior to the consultation and has not been carried out to 

date although Children’s Services admit there is a genuine risk of parents opting to transport their children 

by car rather than pay for a school bus. 

Economic issues: 

• Projected savings are not realistic as there will be unforeseen consequences which will cost the council 

money such as increased subsidy to Metro as more people take up the concessionary fare pass 

• An assessment of consequential costs has not been provided as part of the consultation process.  It is 

unrealistic that that there are no consequential costs to the council for implementing a new policy. 

• Leeds students not receiving funding will be required to pay an estimated £640 per year.  Why is this figure 

for Leeds nearly double the £380 amount that another council was looking to charge for providing the same 

service?  Has the department responsible achieved best procurement value for money and standards? 

Accessibility  

• Many families wishing to access a faith based education do not have a faith high school within 3 miles of 

their home address.  Should they wish to avail themselves of their right of access to a faith based 

education on the grounds of their faith (a right protected by the Education Act 2006) they must travel 

beyond the statutory safe walking distance in order to do so.   

Education Quality for Leeds Students: 

• In the full council meeting on 1
st
 July 2013The Lord Mayor of Leeds addressed the chamber to remind the 

councillors that there are approximately 10,000 pupils attending underperforming schools.  Implementation 

of the proposal will result in students moving from well performing schools to underperforming schools. 

 

Scrutiny Consideration Part 2 - Report to Executive 17 July 2013 and 

Draft School Transport Policy 
 

Inadequate response to concerns raised. 

• Issues raised by respondents to the consultation have not been adequately addressed by outlining proposals 

to mitigate against these.  The concerns are merely “noted” as genuine risks. 

False identification of respondents/response.   

• The petition is described as having been submitted on behalf of/by “a faith group”.  This is factually 

incorrect.  

• The petition has been included within the statistical analysis as a single response rather than as representing 

the views of over 1,400 individuals.  This amounts to manipulation of the statistics in relation to the 

responses received. 

Litigation risks.   

• “Providing only statutory services would reduce the risk of the Council being faced with future legal 

challenges with regard to faith transport as it is currently provided in Leeds.”  Scrutiny should ask to see the 

evidence (e.g. Legal Counsel’s Opinion) that there exists such a continuing risk in light of Court of Appeal 

Judgments which appear to minimise the future/ongoing risk of legal challenge in this regard. 

• Why does the Council believe that the current policy exposes them to a risk of claims of discrimination 

when statutory free home/school transport for low income families who express a preference for a faith 

education (Extended Rights Provisions of Education Act 2006) is not deemed to be discriminatory?  

Page 11



Discriminatory policy.   

• The draft policy retains provision for free transport on the basis of non-belief where the nearest qualifying 

school is a faith school and where the nearest qualifying non-faith school is beyond the statutory walking 

distance whilst removing similar provision for families who express a preference for education at a faith 

school.  

• The draft policy retains provision for free transport for children who need to travel beyond the statutory 

walking distance from their home to attend the nearest qualifying single-sex school on the basis of their 

parent’s religion or belief whilst removing similar provision for families who express a preference for 

education at a mixed-sex school on the basis of their religion or belief.   

DfE Guidance 5 July 2013.   

• Recent amends to DfE guidance and the intention of DfE to bring forward review of guidance to Autumn 

2013. It would be prudent to defer removing the current policy and provision in respect of faith school 

transport until this new guidance has been published. 

Disproportionate effects.   

• 2600 pupils will be affected by the proposed changes to faith school transport.  Current spending on 

discretionary faith school transport accounts for 7% of total annual spending on pupil transport assistance 

(excludes Looked After Children and Metro subsidy).  Removal of discretionary faith school transport 

assistance will negatively impact 21% of children currently receiving transport assistance.   

• Over the 3 year implementation period the total amount paid by the parents of these children to transport 

their children to school by bus will be in the region of £1,140,000 (between £1,126,320 and 1,170,520 

depending on how individual families choose to pay – per journey, weekly to monthly) against a total 

saving to the Council budget of £860,000.  

Page 12



�

��
�

����������	
�����������

������������
����

����������������
���������

	��������
������� �!�

��"#�����$����%������
���������������������
����������������
�
��&�������
���

������������
�����������������
���

��������	
	�������
�����������

�������� ������ ���
�

�
�������������������

����������

����������	���	���	
���

�������	��������	����	��������
���	
������
	��� ���	
���

������ ���
�

����������	�	
����	 	!���

��"���#���� ������ ���
�

$
����������
����
���	���
�
	����	���
���%�����	�

����	
��� ������ ���
�

�
�������������������
���

����	
��&�
�������'�������!����

������	%����!����

��%%�������%�
��
�������

�(� )�����"	���"
���	��������������
���������
���
�	���
����������
����
���������	
�	� �
���������� ���*#�+(�������	�	
��)����������	��
�	��������
�	�����
��������	������	����	��
����

���

��	�����	
�����
����������
����
�����	
�	� ����������,	��	� ��
������������


��
,	� �����	�������������	 ������
�	������

�-��������
��	�����
����+���	��������
���

��
���
��� �-��������
��	�����
����+����

��
���
��� ��

�����������,	���������������


�����	���������	
����������./���������	���
���	�����������
�������������

�������	��
�
�������������(��
�

0(� 1�����������������
����
�	������
�	������������	�������	������������������,�	���
����
������
���	��������������
�	���(��
�

2(� ���3�!������04�2�����/%����	���5
���� ��������	��	
���
��
������
���������������

�����
���	�����

�
������	�����6��������
���!���	������	�������
��
��	����	������	��,�����������
��
����

��������������	�����	
����������������
����!��,	�����,��
���


���!	�	���
��
�����
 �
����(�
�

7(� 1�	�����
����������������
���
���

������
�������	
���������8������	��	
���
�
	����������������
�������	
���
���	����!��
,�!������
�	� �����������������
��
��������������
����
�	����)�����"�	�����6��.���	����1�����
���&
�	�����������	%���(�

�

���������������������������������������� ����
�
���������	
�����
���������������������
���	��������	�������
�������
�����	�������������
����
��������
��
�������


�
����
���
�

�'��
�������
����9�����:���
��

1�����00�72+2*�

Appendix B

'��
�������
����9�����:���
��

Page 13



�

0�
�

����%%�����
����

1���/%����	���5
����	����8����
��

•� �
��������%�����

������
�������	
��
������ ����
��������������
����
����

��
������
����
�	���

•� �
�����������	
	��� ��������

�8��������������( (�"
��� ��&�	��	������;���
��
�	���
����������������

����������
�,
�8�,	�������)��
������	����������	
��

�������,�
�
�	���
����������%���,
����������	��	��
������������	��

•� �
��������� ���	���	���	
��������	�8����� ����������	
���

���	�����
���

•� �
�����������	���

������	�	
����!�	�����
��!����
�

���
�	��� �
���,	��	� �����
����
�	����
�����	������������
�	�	
��

•� ����
������������������,����
��<)�����"�	�����6��.���	����1�����
���&
�	��6�=�
������	%��������

•� ����
����������
�������	
���
���	����!��
,(�
�

1���

��
,	� �
��	
����������
��������

������
����!������/%����	���5
�����
�
��������������
�
���

1���/%����	���5
����	����8����
�����
�����
��������������
����	� �

�����������
�����
�	�	
��
,�����	��	����
���
��
��
(�1�	��,
������8��������

��
,	� �	��	�	����������������

�����(�
1�����	���
�	�����	
���
���8������	����	�������� ����
��
,�������
�������	����������
�	����
,	��
�����
��������������������,���������
��	������	�	�
��,	����

����������	��(�.
���

�����
��
�
�������� ����,�	���,
�����
��	�����
����������"
���	�6��������
���
!�	 ��	
����,
����
	��������

•� 	���
���	� ��
���	���������������������	�	� �
��
����	�	���

•� ������	� ��,���������
��	!�������������������
���	����
�	�	
��

���%	��,	�����������
�
���!���
�����������
����!�	��������
���

•� 	���
���	� ���,	�������������	������
�����
���
�	�	� �������
�������	����

•� �����
�	� ����
���
��%	!�������
����	�����������	��,	����������>�������

	
�����
����������
�
���'�������(���)�
�%�������
���*�����&��
�
��������	
���
���	�����
��������
��	
������/%����	���5
����	����8����
��

•� � ���������������
�
������
�	�	
���

�������,�"�	������?�3��	�	���5	�����
����!��
8�������������	�,���������	���	���	
�����8���	��
����
����	������	����������	
��

���
��,��
�	��(�

•� � �����
�������	��	���������	������
	����	���������������>��������
����	 	!���

��������
���
����
�����
����!���%��������
�
� ��	�������
��������������
��	� �

����	��
,��
��	�������
����

��
���
��� �(�

•� � �����
�����
���������
�
����������������	�����

�������
����
,��������������
����
�
��	�����
�!����#�
�������,	�����������
��	��������

�	���������������������	�	� ��
�����	��
������
�!���
����

	�	���������
����

���	�������	�,��������	���������
��

�����
	�������	���������
����%������������
�����
�	�	
��
����������%���,������
����(�

•� � ���������

����
����
����+#�@�./�������������������������	� ����

�>�
��� ��
�	�����	� ���
��������
�������	��.�����!���04�2��������������


���,
��������	��	��
������

����
�������������	��������04�2>�7�(�

Appendix B

Page 14



�

2�
�

•� � ����
����
��
���������

��
,	� �������	���������������!��"�	�����6��.���	�����
,�����	��	����������
���
��	!���

�������������
���������
�������
������	����	��>�
�� �
����
���
����

�>�
��� �������������
�	�	
��

�����%	�
���	�	����	������
������
����
��#
�

���	�����������
��	����,���

�������
��	� �������	��>�
�� �����
�����������
�	���
,
������
�	���������
���	���������#�������!�� ����
,����������
���

�
������
����	
�(��

•� � �����������	��!�� �����
����!����
�	����
���������#�������!��	��
����
�
��
.�����!���04�A��!����������	��
����������������������	�	
�������	
��
�
��.�����!���
04�7�

�������%	��	� ����	�	����(������	����� ��	��	����
�
�������������!�� ����
����
����
��!���!�������������%	����

�����
�B*�444�����������

��������,������#
�����������	������
���������
�	���	������
�����!�����	��
	 ���������������
�
����
�����	�	
��������� ��������,
����
	����������
�!���
��	����������� �����!��
/%����	���5
���(�

•� � ���������
�����������	����,
�8���
������8�����������	� �04�2>�7�	��
������
������
��
���	����������	
���������������!�	����
!������	 	!	�	�����	���	�(����,
����!����,	���

��
/%����	���5
�����
�

�����������
����������� ����
���	�������

������
�	��������	��
��� ��,	��
�������	���������	� ����	������������
���	���������
����������(�C��	��
/%����	���5
��������
����������

������	���������

�������,��
�	���,
��������	�����	��
	�����������������	!���	���������������
�	��(�

•� � �������������
��������
�
�������
�����
��	�����
�!�������
�����������
�����!��8�
�
�/%����	���5
����,	��������������������	�(�1�����
�
�����
��������!����	�	�	�����
!�� ����-�����	��	���	
���������������	� ��	�������� 	
��

�+�,�-%�	��04�7>�*��	�	� �
�������	������
�+�%�	��04�*>�+�����+�,�%�	��04�+>�A�,
����!�����	���!���� �	����
������������������

�+�,(%(��

•� � �����
����������������������


���

���%	��	� ����������������,�.�����!���
���������

����
�����������(�1�	��,	������
,��������������������	� ��
���8������������
���
����!���
��������	�����	
��,	�������	������������������� 	�����������
�������
���
����	!���,���

�	��������	� �������
�
�������� ��(�

•� � ���������	���������������������	�	� �,
�����
��	�����
�!�����	��!������	� ������
�	����	�����	� ���������
������	�������

���������
����!�	��������
������
��������
�
�8��	������	��

��!�������
��������
�	��(�

	
�����
����������
�
���'���
�
�����������

��������	
���
���	�����
��������
��	
������/%����	���5
����	����8����
��

•� � �����
���
�	����	�����	
�����������
���

����
��������,
�����������	��2������ ����
04�*��

��������
�����������������	�	� ��44D�����
��(��

•� � ���������
�
������.�����!���04�*������	�����	
�����������
�����
�	�����
�����
������
!��	��

����	 	
��
��!��	�
��,
����!��,	�����,�(��

•� � ���������
�
������E��
!���04�2���,�����	�������,�
��
��
���������������	��������


�������,��
�	���

���
��������
�	�������
����,	���
����!����	 	!����
��������
������
�������������	���
����������#�
#����!��	�(�1����,
����!�����	�����
�
!��	�����
�� �
&���
�6��&�
�
"�����

������
�������
���������
#
���������(�

�

Appendix B

Page 15



�

7�
�

�

	
�����
����������
�
���'�������(�%�
������%�
�%�������
���*�����&��

��������	
���
���	�����
��������
��	
������/%����	���5
����	����8����
��

•� � �����
��
��	�����
�
�����
����+���	���������	�����	
�����������
���

����
�������
�,
�����������	��2������ ����04�*��

�����������,�
����
��
���	�������
���
���,
������
�
�����

������������	�������04�2>�7(��

•� � �����������,�����	������
�
������E��
!���04�2�,
����!�����
���������
�
!��	����
.��
���6��&�
�
"�����

������
�������
���������
#
����
����������	��
������
��������
��
�� ���������	�����
�	�	
��������	��
����������(��

•� � ���������
�
������.�����!���04�*������
����+��	�����	
�������	��������
����
������
���,
����!��,	�����,�(��

	
�����
����������
�
���'������
������������
����

��������	
���
���	�����
��������
��	
������/%����	���5
����	����8����
��

•� � �����
���
�	����	�����	
�����������
���

����
��������,
�����������	��2������ ����
04�*��

��������
�����������������	�	� ��44D�����
��(��

•� � ���������
�
������.�����!���04�*������	�����	
�����
����������
�����
�	�����	
�	��	��
�
������������������	
�	� ����

���,
����!��,	�����,�(��

•� � ���������
�
������E��
!���04�2���,�����	�������,�
��
��
���������������	��������


�������,��
�	���

���
��������
�	�������
����,	���
����!����	 	!����
��������
������
�������������	���
����������#�
#����!��	�(�1����,
����!�����	�����
�
!��	�����
�� �
&���
�6��&�
�
"�����

������
�������
���������
#
����
���������(�

����������������/%����	���5
����	��!�	� ���8����
����	���,�������
���
���
���
������

�����
��������������
��������	�����	
�������	�����6��������
�����
����!������ ���
��,	�����,������
�
�,�����%����(�

Appendix B

Page 16



�

*�
�

.�����������

���������

�(�� 1�������
���

���	�����
���	���
�������������
���
����
�
���������������!�	���
�������	
��

��������������������
����
�	��(�

�(0� 1
���8�����
�������	
����
�!��	��������	������,��
�	�������

������/%����	���5
����
�
�����
���������,����
���
�	����������	%���(�

�,� ���/&������
����%��
���

0(�� "���������
�	�	
������������	!���	��������������"�	�����6��.���	����1�����
���&
�	���
���������	
�����
���������������������
���	��������	�������
�������
�����	������������
�
����
��������
��
�������
�����
���
�(�1�	���
�	���,�����
������

��
,	� �����/�����	
��?�
�������	
�������044+��
��
����������,�������
�����������

���%��������	 �����
�
����
�
����
����

��������(�

0(0� �����
���,�����!�	������
�/%����	���5
����	��3�!������04�2��������	� �����	��	
���
�
�
������
������
��������
�	�	
��

�������
���	��)�����

����	�����������
�� ���
���(�1�	��
	������������
�
�����
����	�,��������������

�!
���������
����������������	�����	
�����
��
�	�	
�(�������
���
�
�����%��
�	� ��
,�����"
���	���	 ���,
�8�!������,	���8���
���������	��
������
�	���
���
���������
�	�	
��	������
���

�)����6���!	�	
���
�!����"�	���
3�	������"	��(����
�������	��	��������	�	�������
�����

�,������
�
���������	������!
����
,�
��������
�	����	 ����
���	� ���	

��������	��
������
�	���
�����������	���

���������	������
����������	��������������
���(�

0(2� ���,��������������
�
������
������������,�	����<�
����� �6�,����
�����
��	
�������
����
�	���,�������������������8	� ���,�����	��
���	���,����

����	���	� ������
����
��	�����6��������
���


�����
��F���������������������
�	����
�����	�����	
�����!��	�(�

0(7� 1����
��������
�	���	������	�����
���8��������������������� ��������
������������
�����������

���	������������

��,�
�����

�������
������

��� ��	(�(�� ���*��
��+(�1���
,�����	��	���������8���	����	���
,��	���������������
�	�������	����� �����	����� ���
����

	%��� �
 ����	���������
,�	��
���!��	��������	��������	���������������� 	����	
�(�1���
����
%	�������
F�������
������
�	�����,	�����	�������	��+(,!�%���������%������
�����
!
�����	������������./����
�	�	
�(�1�	���
����
��	�������������
F������	���������
�������	��04�2>�7�

�����
%	�������+�� /�

��./����
�	�	
�(����	�����	�	�����������
,	��
������	������� ��������	���������������,	����
��	����	��
�����������-��
����	�����
�	�	� �
�
����������������
F������������

�+�(,(!%��
�����
%	�������+�-%����������(�

0(*� 1����	�����	
������������������������	�������������
���

����

�� ������	������

���������,�
��%�����������
��������
����������
�	������

���0�+44�
���������#�B4(G���

�� �
����+���	�����������

��
���
��� ���7�07*�#�B�(2+���
�� �
����+�./�����

��
���
��� ���2*4�#�B0(+��������
�� �������������������

�������	���
���������������,	��	���*��	�����,�������������

����
��!��


�����������������������

����G��#�B�*48��
�

1������	�����	
���������������
���+0,1�%���������%�	���
���(�
�

0(+� ;
�����	 �!
��	� ��
��������
�	�	�����������	��	������	 �!
�����������������,	�����,��
�����	�����	
��������������

�!
���
�	��������
����+���	��������������
��(�;����
�����
�
��������
�	�	������	
��������������
��
����
��
������	��������
�����

������ 
	� �

Appendix B

Page 17



�

+�
�

�
�������	
�������
� ��������F
�	���

�����"
���"	�	�����	�������	���
������������

�
�	�����	
�������
�	�	
���������	%�0�(�

�
0(A� �����������

����

�����	��	
��������
��������
�	�������������	
	��������
�������
��	!	�	���

�
���!�	���	�

����	
���
�������������0���.�����!���	������<������
������!
����
,���������
�����%���������	�����

�����
�������(���������

���	����������
�	��������	�����������	���

�
����������
�������� �������	�����	� ��!����
�������	������
��<
���������������������

�������
6-�<
�������������
������	����������
�����	�������	�
�����������6�����<
���
����������
����������	
����
�������
������������
���	�������������	�����������������
�����
��������������������	�����
��������������
��������
���������������������6��1���.��

��
��

����	
���/� ������'� ����	
���044G�(��

�
0(G� .���	
��*4@�$�

�����/�����	
��������@@+����������������
���
��������
�	�	����,����

�%���	�	� ����	���������
����	
�����
�������� �����
����
� ���
�������	� �������,	���

���
�������

�����	����	����
�!��������������������	���������

��
������ �
�����

�����������H��
���	 	
��
��!��	�
��������	�����	�	����
!�	 ��	
���
�������� �����
�����,	���

�������
��

�
�	%���

���� ��(�.���	
��@�

�����/�����	
������
������������ ��������	��
!�	 ��	
��!��
��	�����	� �������
��������
�	�	���I������������������
��
���������������	�����
��
������������

��������	�
�������		�����	����
��
����������
����������������������
����	����
�����
��
����
����������	�������������������������
����I�

�
0(@� �������!���
��	������������
��!���������

�����
�	���
��������� ����
�������������

������
����
�	���,	��
�����
�����
�	�������
���	����	������.��

����

����	
��'� ����	
���
044G��,���������������

��	�

��	� ���������

���������� �������

�������	� �����
���	��	
��

����	����	����
������

����������������	��
��(�1���	�

����	
����!�	�����	������
���������!

8�����.����	� ����
���������

��	��)�����=��� �	���

���������������������
04�2��
�04�7���������	������	���
����	
���
�����������
�������	
�������<
���
�������
�����	
�
��������	
�
��	�����
�
�����
���
�
��� 6���� 
���
���
����������<�������
����������
�
	�������
��
�������	
���	�������	
���
�
�������

��������
���������������
��
�������
������
����	�����
�
�����
���������	��������	�� ���	����
���	�����������������	
�
���
��������	���
������������6(��

�
0(�4�1����!
�����
�������	���	��������������,
����!������
��	
���
����� �����
�������	
�����

���� ��������	������

��������������	
�����
	��(�1���,	�����,���

�
���	� �	��
.�����!���04�2�,
����!���������	������� �������

��
���������
�������������!����
��������������	����� ������������!�����
��
����	���	
��,	����

�������������(�1���

	�����������������	
��
��<
�������

��������
��6�������������<���
����	������������
��������
�	�����
�������
��
���������������
�	��
�����
��������
�
�����
�����
��	���������� 
���
��
�
����������	��,
����!�����	�,���<���
������
����	��������������� ���	�������	����6(�

�
0(���1�����	�����
�����
%	�������+�,!%���������%��%����	�����	������������
��	� �

����
%	�������A*4��

8����
������	������	�������	��(�;����

���	������
���	���
������!��
�����
���	�6��������
�������
��	!	�	�	���������
��
�����������(�1�����	��
��%	!	�	����
�
,������	���
,���	������
����
����!����
�	���(�����
������
���

������
�������
�	�����
,	���������
����
����

��-��
����������� ������-���
���!���8��������	��������	�	�	��(�1���
����
�	���	���������������	�����,
�8	� ��
,���������
��	� ����������

8����
������	������
����
��	!����
��������	�������������!�����
��������

��	�8���!	�	�����������(�

�
0(�0�3	�������	��������

��
�����%����	��������������
�	����������������������	��;���
��+!,�%�

��������%�����
��	� �������
�	�	
��

������
�����	
��������
#
����

����	����������
�
�� ���
����� ���*#�G(�"����������
�� ���
������ �����#�G��������
�����

������
���	�	�����	
���
����

�����
�
��$��B0�������������
�	���0���
�
 �����(�E�����44�444�

Appendix B

Page 18



�

A�
�

�
�� ���
����������	 	!���

������&�
�
"���������

�������F
�����������������	����
��������
���!����������
�	�����������!���
�����
�(�"�����������
,������
����74�444�
�
�� ���
�������������	��!���
	�(��������	 ��	������������!�	� �����������
�	��������
��������8���
����������44D�����
��	!��(�1����
�����
������
�	������������ 	� �����
�
��	��	
�	� ������ �������

����,���������������������	� �

�������������(�

�
0(�2�1����
������
F�������
��������
�	����%����	�����������

����
��������	�����6��������
���	��

����
%	�������+�(,(!%���������%,�1���
��������	��������
���	����	��������	%�+(�

!,�� 2�
��
������

� 9��������
	����

2(�� ����	�	�	������	
��

��,����#�	 ���������
�������	
��
������ ����
������
�	���,�������	��
�������!��������
�����	�������������

�	����������	��,�����!�����������%�������

����

��������,����#�	 �������(�1�	��,���	��
������
���%	�	�������
��
����	���

�����,	�����
�
���	!��	
���
�������
���������
��	!��(�

�
2(0� ����
F���������,�������!�	������
������
�������
�������	
������,�����������

����	
��




	�����
�
��"�	�����6��.���	���(�1�	�����������
����������!��	����������	� ���
�������
����	�����
���
�������� ����������
����%��
�������	
����
����(�

2(2� ���
����	���	
��������,��������
����,	��������	��

������	� ���������8������8�#
�
����������
��	!���,����������,����

������
�������	
����
����(����
��������	�����
�������,�����
�	������������
	�������������
�������	
�����	
��,����%������(�1�	��
��
�	�������	�����
��
����	����
���	����,��������	�����������
�,�,��8��

�����
�
�������	
�����	
�(���"
�������	
��5�	�
	� �������,�������	
	���������������

����	��
����
����������	%�2�(�

2(7� ����%����	������������
���	�	� �!
���������	��
	��	� ��
�
���������������������
�������
�
�������	
����
�����	�����
�������������������	%�*(����	������������������

�����
����
�
�
 �-������
��������%�������������������
�����
���
����
������(�1���
����
1�����
���"
�������	
��������	����
�	���������!��8 �
���������(��

2(*� /%����	���5
����	����8����
��
��������������
�
�����
�	���,	����
��	�����
�������������
��	�����������
�� ���
����,�
�������	 	!��������������%�������������
�����	 	!	�	���
��	���	��

���
,�	��
���
��	�	������� �
 ����	������	���	��,	����
��	�����
�����	����
����
�
���

��������
�����	��

��!�������
��������
�	��(�1�	��	����������
�	�	� �������
���
����

�
���� ���
���	������� �����#�+�
�
������	
�	� ��
,�	��
���
��	�	���
������ �
�����

�
���	 	
��
��!��	�
�!��,����0������*��	����
�
���
��(�1�	������
���	�� ����#
������!��
�������� 
��������(�

&
����+�./��

2(+� 1���
��	
��

���
����+�./��	����������������	� �
���

��44D���!�	�	������
�	�	
��
����
������%���0��
������!��.����04�7����������
����	���
����	
��

��������#�������
����� �������
����	!���,	�������������������
����!������������	����!��04�A(�1�����
,������	 ��������

�����
�����
,���������
� �
��������
�������	
��

�������
��	����	
��

�
�
����������

��	�����	
�����
���	� ���!F�����
�����
�
� ������������(�1�����,������
�
,	�������������
���

���������	���%����	
��

�	���������������������	�	� ���11�(�

�
2(A� 1������������	�����	
���������	���������

����,
����!������	������������

���2������

�����	�	
������� ������,�	�����
���
��������������	�,�������������8���
���
,�	��	��

Appendix B

Page 19



�

G�
�

������������
�	���(����,	������
����
,���������
�	����
���8��	��
����
����������
�	�	
���

�
������,�"�	������?�3��	�	���5	���,�����������(��������	����������	���
����	
��

���
�����#��������
���	!��	
��,
�����	 �	
	��������	�	 �����������������
���(�1�����,���
�
�������
���

����	���������	��	�������	� ������
�������	
�(�

�
2(G� 1�	��
��	
��,
���� �����������	� ��

�����
%	�������+�,�-%�	��04�7>�*�����

�������	�����+�, %�	��04�*>�+(�1�����,
����!�������	������
���

�+�  /�	��04�+>�A�

��
����������
�����	� ����	������	����������
� ����������������
��	������	�������� 	
��

�
+0  /��
��������
���������������
F������������

�+�,(%(�

�
2(@� ����,�����	����!�����
�������������5����
�����,
�������
�!����������	��!�����	� ���

��� ��

��
�����	�8#����
	����
������������!��	�(��
�
2(�4�"
��	�����	
��,��� 	�����
����
�	� ���	 	!	�	���
�
������� ��

��@�
��0��!���	������

�	8��	�

����	��,
�����	��������������������
���,
���������
����
�������.
�	���"�������
��������	���������������
�	�����
��������	�������#������(�1�������
�	�	� ������������
����
���	����������#�������!�� ���

�����
�B*�444�����������	���������
������+#0*�./��
����������!�����
��������	���������������,
����
������	�	 ������	���	�8(�

�
2(���"�	�����6��.���	���������,	���������	��	�����
�
������.���	��	���������	���)����	� �

"��������.�)"���
������ �����!��	�����������������
��	�����������������
�,
�8	� �	��
���������	���
����	��������!��������	���


����������


���!��������(�

3�	���

2(�0������	�	
������!��������	����
�
����
�	��� �
����
���	�	� ���7+4��	 ��������

����	�������
�������������,
�8���(�1����
�������

��������	�	
�������!����	��������	������
�������
������	��

�����"
�������	
�(�1������	�	
��,������

��
,����


����
���������
�������
�
�!���������������	���������	���������

�������
�����
������
����
���	��������
������������
�������������
����������
���

2(�2�1������
��������
��	
���

��
�	���
��!��	�
���������,
������
����������%	��	� ����	�	�����

�
�44D���!�	�	������
�	�	
��

����
�������0��������
�����	��������	�����
�����������������

��

���
�����
���(�"
��	�����	
��,��� 	�����
����
� ������	
��

�����	� �!�����	��	���
��
���
���������������
	����	������������

��
��	����	
��	���

� ����(��

2(�7�1�����
�
����,
����	�������������������������%����	��������	��04�*�����,
���������
�����!���
�����
���,
����!���!����
�,�
�����	�	 ���������������������	�������%�����
����
�
��������
�	��(�

2(�*�1�	��������

�����	� �,
����!��
������
���	����,	�����������$
/� �	������
����
�	�	� �
��

	�	�����
�	���

����� ��(�

2(�+�.
���
�	����
����	�	����������	�����
��������!
����������� ���������
,����������
!�	� �	������������!����������������	���!
���"���
�	������"������

�/� ������	
������
�����������	������������
 �	���������	 �	
	�����
	����	���������� ���
�����!������
����
�	�������������
��	������
�,
�8	� �	�����������	��,	�����������
�	����
����	������
�������,���

�,���(�1,
�
�	����	 �����

���	��:���
 ������������
��%����������,	����
�
,
�8�,	�����������
�	����
�	����������������� ��(�1�	��	��	���	
��,	���!���%��������
�����
)���������
�������	 �!
��	� �����
�	�	���,�������	�������������
�	������

��(�

�

Appendix B

Page 20



�

@�
�

&
����+���	��������

2(�A�1�	��
��	
���

���
����+���	����������������,
������
����������%	��	� ����	�	�����

��44D�
��!�	�	������
�	�	
�����	�������
�� �����
����
�����������������

�>�
��� ��
���
����
�
���(�"
��	�����	
��,��� 	�����
����
� ������	
��

�����	� �!�����	��	���
��
���
���������������
	����	������������

��
��	����	
��	���

� ����(��

2(�G�1�	��
��	
��,
�������������!���
	��

��
�
��	� ��%	��	� ����
�������>��
	�����������
,�
����
����	���
����	
��

��������
#
�����
�����	
������������
����

����� �(��

2(�@�1�����,
����!��
�# 
	� ��	�����	
���,	���;���
��������	���
���������
�����
������	� �
�����
�	� �������
��	�	 ���������
� ��������	�������������8��
���	�� 	���	�����	�	� �

�

�����

����	�����������
�� ���
���(�

2(04�1�������
�	���������,	�������"
��� ��&�	��	�����	��)�����
������ �����!��	�(�1���������
,���
��������
��
����	����
�,
�8�,	�����������
�	����
��������������	��!����
���	
��

��
�
����+��	�����	
���������
������
� �
��������	��(�
�

2(0��;���
��������
�


��������	���
������
�����	
���������
�����	���	���	���	
�����������
���
���������
���������
�
�������
�������	
�������������	�����������	���!���,���


�,���(�;���
�	��
���

���������
�	��6��8��������� 	������������,�	���
� ��	��������
���� �����	���������
����
����

��������
���
��!����
�

�����"
���	��	�����	�	
���
�
���	��,	��������
��	!	�	�	�������������� ������1�����
�������
�	��(�

�
�����������������

��

2(00�1�	�����
��������
��	
�����
�	�	� ������������
����
��
�����������������

���,
����
��
����������%	��	� ����	�	�����

��44D���!�	�	������
�	�	
��

����
��������,
��������
��
���	��������	�����
�����������������

��
���
�����
���(�

2(02�"
��	�����	
��,��� 	�����
����
� ������	
��

�����	� �!�����	��	���
�����
�����������
����
	����	������������

��
��	����	
��	���

� ����(��

2(07�1�����
�
����,
����	�������������������������%����	��������	��04�*�����,
���������
�����!���������%	�
�����
���,
����!���!����
�,�
�����	�	 ���������������������	������
�%�����
����
���������
�	��(�

2(0*�1�	��������

�����	� �,
����!��
������
���	����,	�����������$
/� �	������
����
�	�	� �
��

	�	�����
�	���

����� ��(�

0������������������
�����
����

0,�� ���������
���������&�&�%�����

7(�(�� ����
� �������	����

�����
���,���������������,����������8�������������
�����
�
�������	
����
����(�1�����,�������

��
,���

•� ���
�#�	���<1��8	� �&
	��6��������

������������+4����������,����,�
����
��
��������
���������

•� ���
�#�	���1��8	� �&
	����������

����	�������0A���
�������������

•� ����� ��

�

���� �
����,	�������������	�����������
�� ���
�������������
!��
����744���
���(�

Appendix B

Page 21



�

�4�
�

7(�(0� ���


���,���������������
�������
��������

��������	��)������������	 �!
��	� �
����
�	�	���,�����
�����	�����������������������
���

����	�����

���-� 
����
��-�
��	��	���������
�����8������8��
��������
���������������#��������
������	
	������	� ��
����� ���,	�����������
���

��	�����	� �������
�
����(�����
�����	%���������	� ��,����
���������!��
����744���
���(�1�����	������������	
	����������� �������	� �����

���

�	������

��-�����	� ��,	����������������������������������������

��������
��� ���

��
��	�����������
�� ���
����,	�������	���������	
���������-� 
����
�������	� �-��������
����	� ������
��������	� �(�

7(�(2� ������	��!
%�,������
��������

�����������	
��

������
�������	
�����	
�������	���
����
�	 ���#
������	���
����������,��������	���(�1�������� ���
�
�����������

��	�

����	
��
��������	� ���
�����	
	������	����� ���	� ��
,��
�����
����
�����������(�������
�
	���������	%���������
���������	� ��	�,��
��������
�
�������� ��-���������	������
����
���������(�.
�������	�	���������	������"�	�
�/%����	�������$	����
������
�
����
,	������ ��

����!���-�
������������	������
�����������	�������	���������(�

7(�(7� ������	�	
���
������!
�������

��
,	� �����	� ��,��������	
	������
� ��	������������

�
�
��	���
�# 
	� ������� 	���	�����	
���,	���8�����������(�1�����	���������

•� �����
����"
���	�������
%	�������74����!�����

•� �����������	����

��������	
�����
����&���	������

•� ;���
�

•� �����������	����

�����$	
������

�'	�
������)�����

•� .�)"��.���	��	���������	���)����	� �"�������&�	��	���������

•� ��	���������
��� ����	��	����(�

7(�(*� '��
 �	�	� �������
����������	���,
����������	����
������ ������	
	������	� ������

���
���!��������
����!	�	���,
�8��
��,������
����(������8������8��
������,����
�������������������,
�8��
��	�����	� �����

��������� 
����
�����
��� ����	��	������
������
��� �
�����������������
�	��� �
���(�

7(�(+� 1�����	�����

����

���	�������

�����,
�8��
��,����
������
���
� ������������������
�
���	
���
���
,���������
�	����
����!������
�	���������
���

��������	������

�)�����	����
��
�������


���!���,��(�E���������������������,����	��	���-�

����������������������
���������	� ��,����#

������������� ���	��(�

0,�� ��3���
�������	
����
��*��
��
�������4���&���
���5�	�46�

7(0(�� �����	��������	
���
������
�������	
�����	
���
�����	� ���������	���	������������	� �
�

��,����
�������(��1�	��	��	���������
� ����������
����/$"��	�������������������
����
!���������8��(�������	�	
��,�����������������
	����
���
����
�����	
�����	���
��������

���
���

������
�������	
��,���8�
,���
�����������	�,���%�����������
� ������
���������
����!��
�������8���	��
����
���(�

7(0(0� 1���&�!�	��.���
��/����	���$����
���	����	������	
���7@�

�����/����	�������04�4�
����	����������
��������
�	�	��������J������ ���K��
�����������
���	�	������	���	�	���	
��
�����������������	���

�
��
����	���!��,������
����,�
�����������
�������
���������	��	������������	��!	�	���
�����	 	
�>!��	�
�������

����
���,�
��
��
��!���

��
�%����������
�	� �
���	�	�	�	� ��	�������� �����

�����!����
���,�
������������	
	��
��
����������������	��	�(�J$����� ���K�����!������8���!�������
������������	�	� �����
���	�	
�#��8����
�!���,����

�����
!�	 ��	
���
������������ ���-�����������������
����!��

��
	�������������	����������	�	
��	���
��	������������������������!���%���	����	��
��!�������,	����	 
����������
�����	��(��

Appendix B

Page 22



�

���
�

7(0(2� ��������

�����������	��

�����
	��	� ���,
�
���������	�����	����	�����
���	
������
	��� ���	
���/$"���	������������������,�����������8����������	����7��?�7!�-�
���
��
�
����+�./��������
�������
���
����+���	������������
�	���������(�5
�����
�������
�
��	������������������
�������	
����
��������������%������
�,�	���	���������	���������
 
���

�	�����	� �����,�
�����!���

������!������

��������� ���
���	����	����	�����
��(�
.���	
	��
��	
���,����
���	������8	� �	����������
,�����������<�
����� �6�,����
�����

��	
�������,
����!���
��	�����(�1�����
��������
��

8�������
,������
����	������� ���
�����

���������������	��������	��� �
����	
��������
�������	
���
�	������������������
����
����,�������
���(�

0,!� �����
�����
�
��������
���.�
��
�
���

7(2(�� 1���,	�����,���

������
������

�������������
���	� ���
�	����
�����	�����	
�����!��	��
������������	������
�������
�������	�
������,�����
������

��������
��� �������
�
�����(��3
���%��������
����������������������������

����
���	������	����	�������
�
���

�>�
��� ������������������

������!���
�����	��
���(��
���	����������	�������������
�� ��	���	������
���������	�
������,	���	������������!
����	��	
�������������������
�	����

����)����6������	��!	�	������	���	
��(�

7(2(0� 1�����	�����
��	!	�	�������������� ��	���
�	���,	����	������������	���
�
��	
��������

����
��
�����������,�
�F
	�����
��	��������������������
� ���
���8�������	���	 	!���

��
����
������
���
������ �
�����

��
,�	��
��(������
�
��	
��

�������������������
	��������	��	��
�
��
� �����
�
�	�������	�!����
�,
�8���������

���������	�	
�����
���

�������
���

��
���	����	�����(��1����
���

����	� �

������	����
��������
������������������	���,
����!��	��
������ 	
��

��	����
���������,��8�

������	����
�����	� �,	��	��������
�8��	��(�

7(2(2� .
����
����	�	���
������
���8	����

�)����������
�����,�����������!����!�	��������
��-�
�
�	� �������
�,���������	��������(�1�	��������	����
��������!
������������������� ���


�F
���������	�����������
�� ���
��������������
���8���	������	���������	� �����������
������

����	�����
���������

�	� (�1�	������!������� �����	�	 �������
,���������
� ��
���������	��,
�8	� �,	���;���
(�

7(2(7� ���	��	��
�������������

	�	�����	���	�� 	�����
��
��	��������	�������������� ����	 ���
�����
���������	�	
����������>���������8�(����	�����
�	��
�������
�������������������
�������	���%��
�����
��	�	 ���������	�8�

�	������������

	���������������
� �,	���
���8���
������ 	����������������	�����������

�����
��� �������;���
�����������	����
���	
�������
��
�
� �����%��
���(�

7(2(*� �
�� ���
������������	����������	�������!����	��
��������
� �
��������
�������	
�(����
����	�������������������������� 	��	������	�����

���
���	�����������)������
����
"
���	�(�1������������
���������
��
����	����
��
�����������
�#�	���������������
���8��
�����	��

���� �
���(�.
���

������� �
���������	���������
�� ���
����,	�����
�	��!	�	��(���

��
,��������	
��,	���!�������,	�������)����������������	����

��������	
����
�
����&���	������,�
�������%��������������	������	��������	����	�����6��������
��(�1�	��
,	����	�������
,�,������,
�8���
�����,	���������
�	����������
���

�������
�
����
���� ����
�������������
	��,	������	���������������	��	����(�

0,0� ������������������������%������

7(7(�� 1���
�������04�2>�7�"�	�����6��.���	����!�� ��������� ��	�����������	� ��

�+7%�
���
��������

8����
������	������!�� ���(������	����� ��	������
	����	��������������
F���	
��
	����������������	� ��,	������ ����!�����	�����!���,	����
�����	��� ����
���������	� �
�������!���

��%�����������
�	����������������+!  /�������������	�����

�����

Appendix B

Page 23



�

�0�
�

��
����������

	�	���	����+�  /�(�1�����	������
���	����	����	�����
�����
��	��	� ��������
�����������+7  /��	����������

�������
�	�	
��

��
����
����

��������
���

����	������
�����
�� ���
����,	�������	�������������
� ������������

��������
�!���	�	 �����!��
�

	�	��������	� �����
�������,	����������
���!�� �����+-  /�(�1�����
F������	��
���
��
��
����

�+!,0%���	������
������

����������������������
�������	����,�	�������

������!������"�������.��

���5�� ����������
����	�����
��
����
����������
���	� �	��
��������

��%�����������
�	��������������(�

7(7(0� 1���"�	�����6��.���	����!�� ���

��04�2>�7�	�����������	�	���������	� ��

�+�,7%�	��
�����	
���
��������	�,�

�������������

��
����
����

��������
��(�1���
	����	���
	���	���	
���

��������
�������	
���	����	�����������������
�����������	����������	
��


��������� ����,
���������������	�	
�������������

�+�,(%�	��04�2>�7�,	����	 �	
	�����
���	� ��������
����	��04�7>�*�����04�*>�+(��3
��04�2>�7������+�,(%����	�	
�������������
	��
���
��

�����+!  /�

����������	��	
��
������������
���!�� ���,�	���	����������
���
 �	����	������$	����
����6��
	�������������
�	�	
������,
���������

���	������������
$	����
����6��

�������
�������
����������
�+!,�%(�

7(7(2� ����!���	����
�	�������������	%�+�������	�	� ������
������
F�����������������!�� �����
�%����	�����
����	�����6��������
���

��������%�������������(����
���	���������
����	���
���	� ��������
����!�� ����������������
%������+�%��	
����������,	�����,���

�
�	�����	
�����������
���	������
�����
 ������,	��������
����	� �

��
,��
���������
���
����	����������
�	���(�

7(7(7� ��������	
��	���%����	�����
�����	���,	������	���	������ 	� ������
����	����� ��	���
	������
����	���������
�����������

�,	�����,	� �������	
	�������

�
���	� �
��
	���
���	� ���,�,����

�,
�8	� �����	���
���	� ���,��������������,����

����	���	� �
����������	���(�

7(7(*� 1���������������������	���������
���%	�	����

	�	���	������
�������,�
���

���	�����6��
������
����%����	������
��F������
������������������������	
	�������	�����	
����-�	��
����	�������	����������

�����������
�	�	
��

���

8����
������	�����(�

7(7(+� "��������
�����	
��������
#
�����������

����#�G������
�������������#������!���,	�������
	���
����	
��

�<�����6������
�
 ��!��;���
�	��,	���!���
��	!����
�8�
,�,����������
,�


������	�����������
�� ���
����������(�1�	��,	���	�������	�

���!�������
���������	� �����
�
����	�����������
������ ��������

	�	���	������
� ��,	�����
�����	���
��
����	�	���
!�	� ���������������
�
�����
��(�

7(7(A� �����������������
�
�����������	������	� ���������

��
,�����������	�������� 	
��

�
+�,�%��!�����
������
�	 	������
F������������

�+�(,(!%�-������0��	�������� 	
��

�
+0, %8������2��	�������� 	
��

�+('�%(�1��������	������
��������	� ���
F������� �	����
�����������!�� ���	�������
���	����� ���������
������� ���	���	���	
��������	�8��
���
�	�����,	���	����	����	����������	
����
 ������,	��������
#������

���(�

0,-� 9�&���4%��
���
���:�;���������4����%��
������������4��

7(*(�� 1�����������������
����
�	���,���������!F����

��� ���������� ��	�������	
���
�����
��
�	�	
��

�������
����
�
�	������

���
������ �
����������	��,����	���	�	���
��(�
&�
�	�	� �
����������
�������	����,
����������������	�8�

�����"
���	��!�	� �
�����,	���

�������� ���������� ���,	����� �����
�
�	���������
������	��	��������������
�	����	��)����(�

7(*(0� 1�����,
����!�������	�8�

��� ���������� ��	
���������	����,����,	�����,��	��.�����!���
04�2����	��,
���������
��������
����� �	�������
���	����	������.��

�����

����	
��

Appendix B

Page 24



�

�2�
�

'� ����	
����044G����������	
���$
/.�9�	������
��:
����
�.��

��1�����
����044A�(�
���������	���
����	
��,
�������8��
��	�	 ������	������	�������	�8(�

7(*(2� 1�	�����
���	����!F�����
������	�(�

0,(� �
�/�2���&�%����

7(+(�� ������
��	���	� ����� ����
�������
�������� �������

���������!����
�� ���
�����
����
��	�����	�8�������������������
�!���
��������!�

����
�	� ��
,������
���
	�����������������(��;�8	� �����
��	
��

��������
����!�	��������
������	��!����
��
�� �
��
����,	��������	� ��	

	����	���
���	��!	�	�	���������
���
���	����!�	�������������!��
�������8���
�����	��	�	�����!��	���
������
��	���	� �������������������!	�	�	��������!	�	���


������
�� �����
�(�

7(+(0� 1����	��6��	������	� �!	���������	�����
 �	����������	���	��!�����	����

������ �(�5��
��	���	�	� ������%	��	� ��
�	��������	� �,
����	����������� ����������!����

���	������
�
������
� ���������

��������(����044�������������!	���������,���A�*44-�!��04�2�	��
�����	�����
�����
%	��������4�744(����	������	� ����!���

��������
�� ���
���������
�	 �����
����%�������,�	���,	��������
�����
	����	���	���	���	
���

��
��	��	� ��
����	����
����������	����,	��
������� �(�

7(+(2� 1�����
�	�	
�������������!�	� ��
�����������	������

����
�	� �"�	�����6��?�3��	�	���
5	�������	������
��������
�
�����
���������	 	!	�	����
�
�����
����
����

��./��
������
��(��������������
����������

����,
�������!�����������
�	����
���8��
�������
����


�����	������

�������,��� 	����	
��,�	�����������������	����
����	� ���,�,����

�
���	���	� �!
���������
��������	�����	
�������
�	�	
�(�

7(+(7� 3	���� �	�����������
������!������!�	�����!��������	����� ������5	�����
�
��������
	���
����	
��

�����
���	����!�� ����!��8������!��	��	�	�����/�����	
���:����������
"����&�����
�
��04�7(����
�����������	������ �	������!��
�������	��!��������
����
������
���	���	���	
����
���	����	����	���� 	����	
��,	���������
�!��	��
��
������	��
�����
��,��
�	��(�1�������������
����,	�����,���

����������	�����	
���������
����
��
	���
����	
��

���,����	���������
�����
���������
��������
�����	�����	
���

�����
��
�
������,��� 	����	
��	�������	
���
���������
���	���	
��� ����(�

7(+(*� ������	���

�	����������������
���
���	��!�� ����������	
��	��	���	��!������,���
,�����
������

��	 ���%����	����������	�����,�����������,
������������
�!�������
��	!	�	���

�
�
�!��#
���	� ����	���
����	��������������,	����
����+�./��������
��(�

7(+(+� 1��� �������	���
����	
��

��������#�����������
���	����!�� ������������

�����
�
����
������������	�	
�������������
��	�	 ��������	������

�����������	
��	������
����,�	����
��8�
,��� 	� ���������	����������	�������

�������
����%����	�����#�����	������������������
#�	������������������	������	�����	
����(�

7(+(A� $����
������	L������������

������	�8��	��
�������������
�	����������
�!�����������
�����	������	���

����������

��	����	�������	� �����������,	����
���
������������!���
��	�����������
�� ���
�����,	�������������
��	�	 ��������	������

�����
���������� ���
������� �(��

-,� )�&��
�����
%�����%����*���
�
���
�����������������<���
�
*(�� E���	���!��	��������������
��������!���� 	�����
��
�!����������
������,	��	������

	���������������������	�	� �����(�1�	��	��
������!��	��������	�����	�	
���
��������	� ������

Appendix B

Page 25



�

�7�
�

�
�����
	�����������������	�������	�������� 	
��

�+!  /����

��������#�����������

�
����������������	��������������
�����
�	�	
�-��
��������	���,
�8�,	��������

8����
����
��	�������
�����	
�������

������,
�8�,	�����	���������	� ����	�������	�	
���
��	 �����

��
,	��� �����������	�	
�����
�������	� ��	�������� 	
��

�
����+!%�������
���������������
�����
������	� ��������
���,����	��������	�����
,���������������
��	������
�����������
	����	����������	���������
����!������	����(������	�������� ����
��
���!�� ������
���
����!	�	���������
���������	������,	������
�!������	�����
����!������������	� ���
�
!�����	����(�.
���

���������	
	�����	�	�	�������������	����!��
,(�
�

*(0� 3�
��E��
!���04�2�	��	����
�
�����
�	���
���������,�����	���	�����������	��,	���;���
(�
1���)������������5�������	���	�������������
��	��	
����!��;���
��
����!�����	���	���
����������
����������������
����	�	�����
����������
��	� ��������(�1���������
,�,	��	� �
�
���8������
��2����	��������	��!���	������
	����	���������
�������������

�����
������
������
�������� �������

�����

��������
��� ���

���
�� ���
����,	������	����
�
�
��������	��!	�	��(�1������	���������
��������	������
���8������
��,
�,�������	�������(�
���,
����!�����
�!�������
������	�	
���
�����	���������������������	�	� ���
 �����������
�����	� ���
����
� �������	������������

���
����
���������������������(��

�
*(2� 3�
��.�����!���04�2�	��	������	�����	
��

�"�	�����6��.���	���������
����
��������
�	���

���������&����� ���1�����
�����
��%��
��������	����������,�,���

����	���	� ����
	��� ����������	���

����	������,	�������	���������	�������
� �������(�1�	��,	���	�	�	�����!��
�������8���	�����������	��,	������	�,��
�����!�	��	� ���!��	����������

�������

���
�
���	����	���
,������	���
�
��.�����!���04�7(�1�	��,	��������	�������� 	
��

�+( /�	������

	����
����������	�������

�
�����	
�(�
�

*(7� "�	�����6��.���	������������
�!����,
�8	� �	�����������	��,	�������5/.$��!����	
����
��
�	
������
�	����	

	����	����.�)"�&�	��	�����
����� ����������������
�	�	
��

�	��	�	�����
��%	���
����������������	� ����	�����

�(�����
F����,�������!�	���������	�����	��������
�
�������
�!	���	
��

�	�����������������-�!������������������������!���
�
�������	���
��������
�������
�����������(�1�	��,���� �	��������!��8 �
����

�������	 ���%����������
������%	��������
�������
����
������	�(�E
������42���	������
���
����
����0���
,�����	���
��%	�����
���	����	
	���!���������

�����!�	� ��	 ������>�	 ���	�8����	��������������F
�	���
�����
,��������	� �	�������������
����!�	��������
�����	� ��������
������!�������
����
����
�	��(��
������	����������
��	����	
��

���	������
�������������	���
����	
��

������ ��


����	�	
����������>�����������	�����	�����,
����������
���
F����������������	� ��	������
�� 	
��

�+�  /���������%(�
�

*(*� 1�����
F���������	� ����	�	� �
�
��������	� ���������������	�������


���,	����������#
�����������
���	����!�� ���

���
����+�./������������,
������
�	������	� ��	������
�� 	
��

�+�%�������
��������������(�

�
*(+� $	�����	
������������������8���������,	���;���
������,	������!�������
������������

�
��	����	
��

�	��
����������	����������	
�	��	��
����������#�
#����!��	�(�.
�����( (�
&�������
�;����
���,	���!��
������
�����	�������	����
����
�
��.�����!���04�2������
�	 �	
	����������������
��(��������������	�����	� ���
���������������	� ���	������	���
����
�����
��������!��	���,	���!���
	���	������(�1���
����
����
�
��.�����!���04�2�,	���!��B@(0*�
����,��8���������������	� ���.��

�&����;���
�"�����,�	������!�������	�	�����������
�������������,��8����
���������
�8��	��(�1�	���
��������
����	��	�	������
�����	��
������	�������

�����
%	�������BG�������������F����

���
����
����

��������(�1�����

��
����%����B�(0*�����,��8��������������,	�������	�������������!���
	��

�!�	� ��!����
�����
�������������	��(�1�����,������ �������,	����������������
�	�������
%	�������+�- /�

Appendix B

Page 26



�

�*�
�

���	� �������%��������	�������!���������
����,	���!�����
�# 
	� ����	� ����	�����
�	�������

����������,�
���������	�����
����(�
�

*(A� 3
���������	�	���
�����������������	��������

��

8����
������	������	�����	�	�������
�
 �����������	� ��

�+�,�-%��������������!����
!�����
���
���,	���!������	����	
���	��
���	� �	���
�!������	���(�

(,� �������
����

+(�� 1�	������!�������
����%��
�������	
����
�����,	���,	������ 	� �	���	���	
���

��
��	��������
�� ���
�����������	��
��	�	��(�1���	����������
,�������	�,���%�������������
!����!
�������	
����������
��	�����(�

+(0� 1������
�������	
����
����� ���������������
�	��������

��
,�������
�����

�����	����
���	�,���������
����	����	� ��
������	�,���%��������!��������������	�����������
�� �
��
�����������	���������(�1�����
�
�������� ���������
��	����������
�������!�� ������
�
���%�-������������!	�	�	���

������	�� �
�������������������
�	���
�������
�����������	���


�����	�������	�����(�

+(2� 1�������
�	���!��	�����������
�������	� �

����� ����
��������������
�	���,	������	���	��
�	�	 ��	� ������
����	���	������

�������	���������
���������������	�����(�1�	��	��
����	���������
�,�����
��	���	� ������	�!	�	���

��%	��	� ��������!����
����-����

	��
�
,-�
�������6����
�������

�����
��	��	� �
�	���������	
��
���
������������	� ������
���

�
�%	��	� �����	����!��	���
������
���������������������(��

+(7� �
�� ���
���������������������
��
����	�	������
� �
��������
�������	
����
������
�
��8�����	���	�,��8�
,�(�1�	��,	����
��	��������������� �������	����������(�

+(*� 1����
�������	
����
����� ���������������� 

������
����,	���
����0�044���������
��	�����������
�� ���
����!�	� ��	�������	��
����(�1�	��	���������������������	����������
,	���������
���������

�0+D�!����
����
���������

������!���������� ��(�

+(+� 1�����������F
��!�� ���	���	���	
���	
��
����� ��	���
�	���	��� �����	������	�����

��
04�2>�7������
��
����,	������	� ��!�������	���!���	����	��
	����	���������	��,	������
�������
���� ����

����
���
���!����%����	�����

��������������
��
��(����	�����	�����������	��
��� �������!�����
���
�����	
�� �
,��-�	���������
�����
��������	����������	 ���������
�
����� ���
�������������� �������,
����������
����	��������	���%����	�����
����*�
������
�
��+�(,(!%��
�����
%	�������+�-%(�

+(A� �
��������
�������	
����
���	����	����	�����
�����������
�������	�����	���
�����������	
��9�
���,	���!������!�	������,�	���,	������
����	��������
�����"�	�����6��
1�����5
����
����
 ����(�

�,� ��%%�������$��
�����

A(�� E�����������/%����	���5
����	����8����
�����
��������
�����	��	���������
��
����	�	���

��
�

	�	���	�����
�����
��	�����
�!���%��
����	������������

�������
����%����	����-�
������
������,��������	�����	
����(�&�
 �����������������!����
���	����	������	
��
	���

�
��	�����
���!�����	�����	�	����
,��������
�!�������	����
���������!���

�������,	�����
�
��	������!���������	
������������������ �����
��������������	
��	���
,�����	��������
��
�	����	������
�����(�

Appendix B

Page 27



�

�+�
�

A(0� 1����
�������	
����
�����������
,��������,�	�����������-���	�����������
�� ���
�����
����,	������������������
���������!
��������	�8������
���	� �����,	�����,���

���������
����
����������,������
����	���	�	����8�
,��� �������������������
�	���������������
�
��������%����	�����,���!�
� ����������
���
�������
��%��
�����,�,����

�,
�8	� (�

A(2� ������������
�!�����������!�����	L��!�����
�
��	
��

���
����
���������������	��,	���
	���	��!���	��
�����
������� ����
�����
���������	�����

����������	�����	
�������
�	�	
���
!�����
�������
�	��������������������	
��	������,���������	��������������
������
��������
��
���(��1�����,������
���
	����	�,��������	����
�������
�	���������
���,	�������	���
��������������

�����
��	� ������	�����	���������
��������	�	
��	��
�������

�(�

A(7� 1�����	���

���%������������
� �������
�!�������

������
��	� �������
�
�������������
���	�����

�������
����
,�������./��������
����������
�����
��	�����
�!����������������#
�
�������,	�����������
��	��������

�	���������������������	�	� (�1�������
�����������
����������
,��
���
�
��������������	�
��,	�������5/.$�.�)"(�1�	������
�����������	���
!���%�������

������,	���
������
�
����
���������������	�8����������!��	�(������������
��������!���
	���	��,
��������������������������	����	������������
������ �	�	� ������!���
�	
���8	����	��������
����(�

A(*� ���
������
�!���
����

	�	���������
����

���	����	��	�����
���
�
������������	����	����
���	�,�	���������8���

��������	���������
��

�����	�������	���������
����%������
��
�	�	
���
�����������	 �������	���	��!�	� ���
�	�����
������	 �����	��������������	 ����	����
,�	����8���	� ����������	�,�������
�
������
�	�	
���

�������,�"�	������?�3��	�	���5	��(�

A(+� 1�������	
	��
��	
���!��
,�,�����
��	�������

)���
��&��

A(+(�� ������
��!����
��
������������������	� ������
�������	
��,����������������
�	���
��
�����
����8���������� ����
�����

��������������	�����	
�������
�	�	
���������
���������������,
�8���,��������,����	 ����������(�

A(+(0� ���,��������������
�
������
������

������
�������	
����
,����������������
��������

	����	����
�����	����<�
����� �6�,����
�����
��	
��������
����!���
��	�����(�1�	��

��	
��,
�����
����
�	����������	� ������,
������������������
�	���	�������
�	�	
��


��
��	��	� ��
�
����������
�	��������	��	���

	�	������
��%	!�����������
��	���	����
�
������	��(����,
�������
������������	������	�8�

��� ���������� ��� �	��������
���������
�	���

�
����������
���!�	� ���
�	����
������!��	��

����	 	
��
��!��	�
(�

A(+(7� "�	�����6��.���	����,
�������
�!����
��,	������	 ���	�8����������!�� ���,	���!��

���������	����	�������

�!��	�����

��������������
��
��������
�����
���
���
���!����������

��
���

������%����	����(�1�����
F������	��������	��
���	���������+7,-%������-������(�

=����
�������������

�����
���
����������%%��������������
�����
��,�

>
��
%%��
����<
�
���<�����������
�����
����������
�
������%������%"���� �!�

A(+(*� ��	������	��
��	
��,
���� ��������	����	������
#��������	� ��

�+0,1�%������
,
������������
� �����������	� ���	��,
�����
����8��	��
����
������������� ���

�

���	� ���%�����������
� �
��������
�������	
����
����������,
�����������

�
�����������	��
������	
	��������

����	������
������%����	
��

�
�����-��������
�	�����	
�����
�������	���	� ��
����

	�	���	���
�
��������
�����
�	�	
�(�

Appendix B

Page 28



�

�A�
�

A(+(+� �������!���������	�,�

�"�	�����6��.���	�������
� �
������������������
�����
�	�����
	�����	� �������
������������,���	��	�����	���������
����!�����	�,��(����������������
!�������
������������������������������	���������
����� ������,����
���

�����
������
��������	�����	
���������	��������������������
�	���(�

A(+(A� ���	�	�	����
���������	��!��;���
�

�����	������

�	����	������,	�����,	� �
�	�������
�
����+���	��������������
���������
,��������,�	����	����	�������	� ���
����!��
������������,
����!������
��#�����	������������
�����
�����������
�	���	������
�� 	
��

�����
�+�,�%�	������
	���������

�	����������	
�(�1���������	������
�
���������������	���
����
�����
��!���	�	 ����(�3�������
���	��,
�������
������
������������	� ������������� 
�	�����,	�����
�	��������������

�����
�
�����	��	���	
��

��
����
������,
�����
��!������	���(�������	�	
��������
�����
���� ��
����!�	� �	���
���������
�,������
� �������������������	� ��,
����
����!��
����
%	�������*4D�

����������%����	�����	���2>�7(�1�����
F����������
%	���������
���	� �	��04�2>�7�������

����	��	�������� 	
��

�+-  /����+�%,��1���
�������	� �

�
+0,1�%���
,������,
����!������	����	�������0(�

A(+(G� 1�����,
����!�����	 ���	�8�

��� ���������� ��	
���������	����,����,	�����,��	��
.�����!���04�2����	��,
���������
��������
����� �	�������
���	����	������.��

���
��

����	
��'� ����	
����044G������&���	
���$
/.�9�	������
��:
����
�.��

��
1�����
����044A�(�

A(+(@� .�����
��� �	������
�����	��	
�������	���������1����������� �������������������
�%���	����	��������
��������

�����	��	
���	������

��
,	� �������	������(���	����
�������������
�	
	�����������������
�	�����
�	�	
������
��!�� ���������������
����
���������������������������%�����������	�����
��������

�����

���������,�	��������
���������
�	���,���	��������������������	������ 	�	������%������	
�����������������


��������������
�	���,
�������������������

��04�2>�7(�1�������
�	���	�����
�����	����
�
�,�	����
���������������
����	������

�����(�1�	�������
����8��������������
�����
������
��
���������	����
����(�

=����
�������������

�����
���
����������%%��������������
�����
��,�

A(A� 1���
����
���������	����
��	
���
��	������,��������	
��

�����	� (��

A(G� 1���	������

�����	� �
����������������	��	�����������	������	�����������	%�+(�1�������	
	��
���
��������
��	
���

����������� 
���

���
�	�	
���	��
���	����	��
����	��������%��
����	
�(�

7,� ����%%�����
����

G(�� 1���/%����	���5
����	����8����
��
�

•� �
��������%�����

������
�������	
��
������ ����
��������������
����
����

��
������
����
�	���

•� �
��������� ���	���	���	
��������	�8����� ����������	
���

���	�����
���

•� �
�����������	
	��� ��������

�8��������������( (�"
��� ��&�	��	������;���
��

�	��������������������

����������
�,
�8�,	�������)��
������	����������	
��


�������,��
�	���
����������%���,
����������	��	��
������������	��

•� �
�����������	���

������	�	
����!�	�����
��!����
�

���
�	��� �
���,	��	� �����
����
�	����
�����	������������
�	�	
��

•� ����
�������������������
���
�	���=�<)�����"�	�����6��.���	����1�����
���
&
�	��6��������	%���������

Appendix B

Page 29



�

�G�
�

•� ����
����������
�������	
���
���	����!��
,(�
�
1���

��
,	� �����	
	��
��	
����������
��������

������
����!������/%����	���5
����	��
��������

�����������������������

���	�����6��������
���
���	� ��

�
��������������
�
���

1���/%����	���5
����	����8����
�����
�����
��������������
����	� �

�����������
���
��
�	�	
��,�����	��	����
���
��
��
(�1�	��,
������8��������

��
,	� �	��	�	�����
�����������

�����(�1�����	���
�	�����	
���
���8������	����	�������� ����
��
,�
������
�������	����������
�	����,	��
�����
��������������������,���������
��	�����
�	�	�
��,	����

����������	��(�.
���

�������
�
�������� �����
,������	��������

•� 	���
���	� ��
���	���������������������	�	� �
��
����	�	���

•� ������	� ��,���������
��	!�������������������
���	����
�	�	
��

���%	��,	�����
������
����!���
�����������
����!�	��������
���

•� 	���
���	� ���,	�������������	������
�����
���
�	�	� �������
�������	����

•� �����
�	� ����
���
��%	!�������
����	�����������	��,	����������>�������

	
�����
����������
�
���'�������(���)�
�%�������
���*�����&��
� �

��������	
���
���	�����
��������
��	
������/%����	���5
����	����8����
��

•� � ���������������
�
������
�	�	
���

�������,�"�	������?�3��	�	���5	�����
����
!��8�������������	�,���������	���	���	
�����8���	��
����
����	������
	����������	
��

�����,��
�	��(�

•� � �����
�������	��	���������	������
	����	���������������>��������
����	 	!���

��
������
�������
�����
����!���%��������
�
� ��	�������
��������������
��	� �

�
���	��
,����	�������
����

��
���
��� �(�

•� � �����
�����
���������
�
����������������	�����

�������
����
,������������
��
�����
��	�����
�!����#�
�������,	�����������
��	��������

�	�����������
����������	�	� �������	��
������
�!���
����

	�	���������
����

���	�������	�,�����
���	���������
��

�����	�������	���������
����%������������
�����
�	�	
��
����
������%���,������
����(�

•� � ���������

����
����
����+#�@�./�������������������������	� �
���

�>�
��� ���	�����	� ���
��������
�������	��.�����!���04�2��������������



���,
��������	��	��������

����
�������������	��������04�2>�7�(�

•� � ����
����
��
���������

��
,	� �������	���������������!�������
���	���,�����
	��	����������
���
��	!���

�������������
���������
�������
������	����	��>�
�� �
����
���
����

�>�
��� �������������
�	�	
��

�����%	�
���	�	����	������
������
���
�
��#�

���	�����������
��	����,���

�������
��	� �������	��>�
�� �����
�������
����
�	���,
������
�	���������
���	���������#�������!�� ����
,����������
���


�������
����	
�(��

•� � �����������	��!�� �����
����!����
�	����
���������#�������!��	��
����
�
��
.�����!���04�A��!����������	��
����������������������	�	
�������	
��
�
��
.�����!���04�7�

�������%	��	� ����	�	����(������	����� ��	��	����
�
�������������
!�� ����
��������
��!���!�������������%	����

�����
�B*�444�����������

��

Appendix B

Page 30



�

�@�
�

������,������#�����������	������
���������
�	���	������
�����!�����	��
	 �����
����������
�
���������	�	
��������� ��������,
����
	����������
�!��
�
��	����������� �����!��/%����	���5
���(�

•� � ���������
�����������	����,
�8���
������8�����������	� �04�2>�7�	��
������
�
�����
�����	����������	
���������������!�	����
!������	 	!	�	�����	���	�(����
,
����!����,	���

��/%����	���5
�����
�

�����������
����������� ����
���	��
�����

������
�	��������	����� ��,	��
�������	���������	� ����	������������
�
��	���������
����������(�C��	��/%����	���5
��������
����������

������	��
�������

�������,��
�	���,
��������	�����	��	�����������������	!���	������
���������
�	��(�

•� � �������������
��������
�
�������
�����
��	�����
�!�������
�����������
�����
!��8��
�/%����	���5
����,	��������������������	�(�1�����
�
�����
��������
!����	�	�	�����!�� ����-�����	��	���	
���������������	� ��	�������� 	
��

�
+�,�-%�	��04�7>�*��	�	� ��������	������
�+�%�	��04�*>�+�����+�,�%�	��
04�+>�A�,
����!�����	���!���� �	����������������������

�+�,(%(�

•� � �����
����������������������


���

���%	��	� ����������������,�.�����!���
���������

����
�����������(�1�	��,	������
,��������������������	� ��
���8��
�������������
����!���
��������	�����	
��,	�������	������������������� 	��
���������
�������
�������	!���,���

�	��������	� �������
�
�������� ��(�

•� � ���������	���������������������	�	� �,
�����
��	�����
�!�����	��!������	� �
������	����	�����	� ���������
������	�������

���������
����!�	��������
������
���
������
�8��	������	��

��!�������
��������
�	��(�

	
�����
����������
�
���'���
�
�����������

��������	
���
���	�����
��������
��	
������/%����	���5
����	����8����
��

•� � �����
���
�	����	�����	
�����������
���

����
��������,
�����������	��2����
�� ����04�*��

��������
�����������������	�	� ��44D�����
��(��

•� � ���������
�
������.�����!���04�*������	�����	
�����������
�����
�	�����
�����

������!��	��

����	 	
��
��!��	�
��,
����!��,	�����,�(�

•� � ���������
�
������E��
!���04�2���,�����	�������,�
��
��
�����������
����	��������

�������,��
�	���

���
��������
�	�������
����,	���
����!����	 	!���
�
��������
�������������������	���
����������#�
#����!��	�(�1����,
����!��
���	�����
�
!��	�����
�� �&���
�6��&�
�
"�����

������
�������
���������
#

����
���������(�

	
�����
����������
�
���'�������(�%�
������%�
�%�������
���*�����&��

��������	
���
���	�����
��������
��	
������/%����	���5
����	����8����
��

•� � �����
��
��	�����
�
�����
����+���	���������	�����	
�����������
���

����

��������,
�����������	��2������ ����04�*��

�����������,�
����
��
���	�������

���
���,
�������
�����

������������	�������04�2>�7(�

Appendix B

Page 31



�

04�
�

•� � �����������,�����	������
�
������E��
!���04�2�,
����!�����
���������
�

!��	����.��
���6��&�
�
"�����

������
�������
���������
#
����
����������	��

������
��������
���� ���������	�����
�	�	
��������	��
����������(�

•� � ���������
�
������.�����!���04�*������
����+��	�����	
�������	��������
����
������
���,
����!��,	�����,�(��

	
�����
����������
�
���'������
������������
����

��������	
���
���	�����
��������
��	
������/%����	���5
����	����8����
��

•� � �����
���
�	����	�����	
�����������
���

����
��������,
�����������	��2����
�� ����04�*��

��������
�����������������	�	� ��44D�����
��(��

•� � ���������
�
������.�����!���04�*������	�����	
�����
����������
�����
�	�����	
�
	��	���
������������������	
�	� ����

���,
����!��,	�����,�(�

•� � ���������
�
������E��
!���04�2���,�����	�������,�
��
��
�����������
����	��������

�������,��
�	���

���
��������
�	�������
����,	���
����!����	 	!���
�
��������
�������������������	���
����������#�
#����!��	�(�1����,
����!��
���	�����
�
!��	�����
�� �&���
�6��&�
�
"�����

������
�������
���������
#

���������(�

G(0� ����������������/%����	���5
����	����8����
����	���,�������
���
���
���
������

�����
��������������
��������	�����	
�������	�����6��������
�����
����!������ ���
��,	�����,��
�����
�,�����%����(�

1,� ���/&����������%������

@(�� 1�����
���"
�������	
��&�����M�(2��4@>4*>04�2��

���������������������������������������� ����
0
�1���!��8 �
�����
���������	�����	����	������	
���������	��!����
��
,��
���
�
������"
���	�6��,�!�	�����������
������
���	���
�
	����	���
���%�����	�

����	
�(��1����	���

�!��8 �
�����
���������
����
��	���������!�	�����
,
�8�(�

Appendix B

Page 32



�
�

� �����

�
�

���������	�
�����
�
�������
�����
����	��������������������������
�
������	
���
�������
����

�������������	
�
�����		��������	
���
��
������



�������
���
��������
����	������	��������
����������������������������������������	
�����
��
�����
����

�
���	� �����������
� ������� ��� ����
�  
���  ����
	� !����  ����
	"� ���� #��	
��
���
	������
�������
�
�����
��
���	
�������������
�����	�$��
�
��

����������	��
��������� ����
	%
���	
��������������


����������
�����
������������
����������
������������
����	������		���������������������
���������
	���������
������
�
�������� ���������	�� ��

������
��
�� ���� ��������� ��� ��������
����
�

����
���������
���� ���
�� ������
� !�	
�� ��&��� ��� ����� 	���	� �����
��
"� ���� ���
��  ����
	� ��'� ���
����
� 
��� ����
	$���
�
����������������
�����
�����������
�����
		����������
������		��
����

�

������������
 ����
	� �
� ����������
������
� ���� ����
���� ���� ��
	�� ��� 
�������� ����
��
� ��	��� ����
�����������

��
�
�
��
���	���
���


�	�$����� ����
	���
����
������
��������
�������
��������


��������������
�����
���������
������������������������
����������������	������
�����
��
��
�������


�������
�
�����

�����
���$��
�
(�� ����������� �
��� ���� �
��
� �'���

��� ��� ���� )��������� ��� )������ ����  ����
	� �
		�
����
���� ��� ���

���� ���� ����
��	��� �
����
�����
� ��� 
��
�
���	� ��
	��������� 
������
�
������������������		����

������� ����
	%
���	
��$��
�


������������
����
�����
����
��	����	�����	�
�����������	��
�������	�
����
�
�$�� *��������
������
		��������
����������
	���������������������������		��
���

��
���
�+��
�

!�"��  �
	�����������������������
�������������	� �����
	�
�����������������
��
���������� ����� �����

� ��� ���
�� �����
�� #��	
��
��� 
����	�� ���
�����
�	��������
�����
�����
	��	����	&
���������!������	������
�����������	&
���
�

�����"$��

�
!�"�  �
	�������������������
���������,�����
� !��� ��
	�������� ���-������"�

���� �����	� �������
	�
� �������� ����� ���
�� ���������� ����������

� ���
���
�� �����
�� #��	
��
��� 
����	�� ���
����� �	���� ���� 
�����
�� ���
	��	��
��	&
��������$�

!�"� ����	���� ������!"�#���
	�������������	
����
����	��������������������
�����
��#��	
��
���
����	��
���������
	��	���	���������

���������������

�����������	&
����

������!��������������
	�
�������������
���������"����
�������'
��������.��
	�
������
��������	���������



��
�������
�����
�
����	���������
������	����������������
����	��
��
������
�����������	&
���
�

�����$�/		����������
���������
������������

�����


����
		����
��������
/���
�����.$��

/�����
'���

Page 33



�
�

� �����

!�"�  �
	����� ����� ����� �
����� ���� ������ ���� ���� ���� ���� ���
�	��� ��� �����

����	����	
��������
�����
	
�
�����
������
���������
����'
����	���	����
0��&
��� ��'�  ���
��� ���� ���� �����	� ���� �
	�
� ��� ����� ����� ���
��
���������� ����� �����

� ��� ���
�� �����
�� #��	
��
��� 
����	�� ���
�����
�	��������
�����
�����
	��	����	&
��������$�

�
!�"�  �
	��������������������������,�������������
�	�����������
����	����	
��

������
�����
	
�
����� 
������
������ ���
����'
����	���	����0��&
�����'�
 ���
��������������������#��	
��
���
����	�����������������
	�
����������
����� ����� 

'� �
	�
� ����� ���
�� ���������� ����� �����

� !�
� 	���� �
�
�����������������������������������
�
���	��#��	
��
���
����	
"�

� �
!�"�  �
	�����������������������
�����������	�������	�	�

�����������
	�
������

���
�� ���������� ����� �����

� ��� ���
�� �����
�� #��	
��
��� 
����	� ����
��
	����� ����� �������� �
���� ���� �,� ����
� !��� ��
	�������� ���-���� ��"�
���������	� 	�

�������������
	�
���������
����������������������

����
���
�� �����
�� #��	
��
��� 
����	�� ���
����� ������
��� ��� ���� 
���������
��	&
����

�������������������������������������

�
�������������
	���������
���
����	�� ��� �'������� ��� ��	&� !��������
��� �
� ����

���"� 
��
���
����	��
�����$�

�
�$�� �*��������
������
		��������
����������
	������������������
����	��������

������
�������
��������1
���	
�
��������	
�����������������������������		��
���
��
���
�$��

�
!�"�  �
	��������������������������,�������������
�	�����������
����	����	
��

������
�����
	
�
�����
������
��������'
����0��&
�����'� ���
���
�������
����������������
��#��	
��
�����
���
����	�������
�	���
�������������1
�
��	
�
��������	
������������
����	�

����������������
	�
���������������
������.��
	�
���������
����������������������

$�

!�"� 2��
	����/���
�����.���
	�����������������������
��������
�
�������
�������	������������������
��#��	
��
�����
���
����	�������
�	���
�������
������1
���	
�
��������	
�������������
����	�

����������������
	�
�����
���������������.��
	�
���������
����������������������

$�/		������
����
���������
������������

��	��
���
		����
��������/���
�����.$�

!�"� 2��
	����/���
�����.���
	��������������
��������

'�����
�������
�������	������������������
��#��	
��
�����
���
����	�������
�	���
�������
������1
���	
�
��������	
������������
����	�

������������������
	�
������
���������������.��
	�
���������
����������������������

$�/		������
����
���������
������������

��	��
���
		����
��������/���
�����.$�

!�"� �*��������������������		��������	
����
��
��	��
�����
	���������
�������
����	���������

������������������������#�
������
��������
������	
�������	���	�������
���
���������
		���	������	
�
�	����������	����
������	������
���
������������������������


$�

�$�� *��������
������
		��������
����������
	������������������
����	��������
������
�������
��������1
�������	
�����������������������������		��
�����
���
�+��

�

Page 34



�
�

� �����

!�"� (�� ��
�
� ������ ������
� ��� ��
	����� ������ ���� ���� ��� �
���� ����
� ����
����
��� ��� ���
�� ��
	����1
� ����������� ��� �� ��
��� 
����	� ���� ���
��
� ���
������	
�����������������������
��#��	
��
���
����	�

�����
���
����	�������
�����	� �
		� ��� �������� ��� ���� ��'�� �����
�� #��	
��
��� ������
��� 
����	�
������ ����� 
����	� 

������ ����� �����
	�
�� ���� ��������� ������.��
	�
�
��������
����������������������

$��

�
!�"�� (�� ��
�
� ������ ������
� ��� ��
	����� ����� �������� �
���� ���� �,� ����

����
��� ��� ���
�� ��
	����1
� ����������� ��� �� ��
��� 
����	� ���� ���
��
� ���
������	
�����������������������
��#��	
��
���
����	�

�����
���
����	�������
�����	� �
		� ��� �������� ��� ���� ��'�� �����
�� #��	
��
��� ������
��� 
����	�
�����������
����	� 

������������������
	�
���������������������.��
	�
�
��������
����������������������

$��

�
!�"�  �
	����� ����� �������� �
���� ���� �,�� ���� ���� ���
�	��� ��� ����� 
����	�

���	
��������
�����
	
�
�����
������
��������'
����0��&
�����'� ���
���

�� ����� ������� ���� �����
�� #��	
��
��� ������
��� 
����	� �����
�� ��� ����
������1
�������	
������������
����	�

����������������
	�
���������������
������.��
	�
���������
����������������������

$�

�
�$3� �*��������
������
		��������
����������
	������������������

��	��
�'�
����	����

������


�������
��������1
���	
�
��������	
�����������������������������		��
���
��
���
���

�
!�"�  �
	�����������������������
��������
���������������������
��#��	
��
���



��	��
�'�
����	�������������
����	�

����������������
	�
���������������
������.��
	�
���������
����������������������

$��

�
!�"��  �
	�������������������
���������,������������ ���������
��#��	
��
���



��	��
�'� 
����	� ������ ����� 
����	� 

������ ����� �������
	�
�� ���� ����
�����������.��
	�
���������
����������������������

$�

�
!�"�  �
	����� ����� �������� �
���� ���� �,�� ���� ���� ���
�	��� ��� ����� 
����	�

���	
��������
�����
	
�
�����
������
���������
����'
����	���	����0��&
���
��'� ���
���
�����������������������
��#��	
��
���

��	��
�'�
����	����������

����	� 

������ ����� �����
	�
�� ���� ��������� ����� �.��
	�
� ����� ���
��
��������������������

$�

�
�
�

Page 35



�
�

� ��3��


�������!�$��
����
�����
����
����	�
�����������	��
�������	�����%����
� � ������	��������
�
�$��� ���	�
���%��������
�������������
�����	�&���������	�'�����
�

!�"� ����
�����
��������
		��������
�������������������������
	�����	
�
���	�

�
���������
�����������	&
����

�����������
����	�
�+�

�
!
"�� ��� ��� 
��� 

� ���� 
��4���� ��� �� )��������� ��� )���
�	� 5�����
���	�

6���
7����� �
�
!

"�� �



�������
�������
�����

�
���
�
���
������)��������7�����
�
!


"� ���� ��
	�� 

� ������
��� ���� �����
�� #��	
��
��� 
����	� �
� ������ 
��

����)��������$�
�

!�"� 0����������������#��
�
����������
	��
���	�����������
����	������������
���������
��#��	
��
���
����	������� 
�� ����)�����������



�������
		�
�������
������������'���

�����
�
������������������������
������������
���
�
���	���
�
�
���������������	���	�������
����
������
�#��������������
��#��
�$� ����
�����
�
���	���
�
��
		������	��	�������� ������


���� ����
���
�
���	��
	�����
�������$�

�
��$��  �������������������	��
������
�

!�"�  �
	������������������#��	
��
���
����	������

��
��
������
�����������	&
���
�

�������������
������������������

��
	
�������
	
�������	������������
��	�
����������������
��	�����
�
���!�����'���	�������
�

����
�
���
���


�����"��
��
�������
����������������
����	������'������������	&����
����	��
		�
�������
�����
����



������
�+�

�
!
"� ����� ���� ���� ���� 
��4���� ��� �� )��������� ��� )���
�	� 5�����
���	�

6���
7��
�
!

"� ����� ���� ��	�� ��� ���
	� ����
�	��
� ��� �		� �����
�� ��� ���� ������
���

���
	��	��
��
����	7�
�

!


"� ���
�� ���	
���
��� 

� 
��������� ��� ��
����� 
�������
��� ����� ��
� #��	
�
������
��	������
�
����7�����
�
!
�"� �����������

�����	���������
������
����������
����$��
��

�
!�"� � �
	����� ���� 
������ �� ���������� �

��
	
��� 
���� �
� �� ���&��� 	��� �����


�����
������	�
����������������	����
����	��������
������
�������������
������
	������������
�
��������������
�����
		��������
�����
����



������

�+�

�
!
"� ����� ���� ��	�� ��� ���
	� ����
�	��
� ��� �		� �����
�� ��� ���� ������
���

���
	��	��
��
����	7�

Page 36



�
�

� ��.��

�
!

"� ���
�� ���	
���
��� 

� 
��������� ��� ����
����� ������� ������� ������� ���

������ #��	
�
������
��	� �����
�
����� �
�
��� ����
	
� ��� ���� ����������
�

��
	
�����������	����
��

�	
&�	�����	�
�7��

�
!


"� ����
����	�����
��
���
���������
	
�������
���
�����	������
�����
7�

����
�
!
�"� �����������

�����	���������
������
����������
����$���

�
� /		������������
������������
��	�������
��
		�������
��������������	��

��������	���


�������
�������������������������

��
	
��$�
�
�$�� (����	�����
�����������
�
����

�
 �
	����� ���
�� ������
� ���� �

��	��� ���� ����� �
� �� ��
�	�� ��� ���
�� ����
�
����
����	�� ��� ���������� ���
�� ��
	����� ��� ���� ��	&
��� ������ ��� ���
�� �����
��
#��	
��
��� 
����	� ���� ���	�� ���  �
	����1
� )���
��
� ���� �



�����$� /���
���	
���
��� ��
�� ��� 
��������� ��� �� ��
����� ������� ����� �� ������� ��� ������
#��	
�
������
��	������
�
����$�
�
/



������ ���� 
���	��� ���� ����


��� ��� ��� �
����� ��� ��
��� ���� ���	��
����������
������
	������������4����������
����	�
������������������	&
���������
��� ��� ���

������ 
���$� ��	�� 
�� ����� �'����
���	� �
����
�����
� ���	�� ��

�
�



�������'����������������


��������'
�����
����$�
�
/		������������
����	��������
������������	������	����


���������
�����
�



���������	������
��������
���������������������������1
�
������
�������
�����$�

�
�	����������������		�%���)�
8��
��� ��������3� ����  ����
	� 
�����
� ��� ���	

�� �� ���� 
���
��� ��� ��

� ��	
��� ����

������
��
�����
������������
���
�	�������
���	�����$���

��
		���
��
�������
�������
����


��
� ���� ��	������ �������
��
� !���� 	
�
���
��
"� ��
��� �
		� ��� ���
	��	�� �����
)������������3������		�)56�
������
$���

��
		��	
����&��
��������������������


��
����
���� ���� �
	����� ���� *��
	
�
� /��� ���� ��� ��� �������� 
�� ����� ���� 
��	�������� 
��
���3$�
� �

Page 37



�
�

� ��,��

&*�	�����
����������
�
��������������!�
� �
6�������� 9:�������������������

1�

�����������������������

�������������
	��

���
���		�� ��

��
��
��� ���
�����������������
��
$� �:�������������

�����
�����#��
����
�������������������������
	
������ ����
	���'��
		������������
����������� ��
������ ��� ���

����
��� ��� ���� �	������	� ��		� ��� ������ ��	
��
��
�����$��

�
6������� ����8��������������5�����
���!8�5"�
����
�������9;��	
��
���
����	
1����+�

•� ������
�����������
��������	�������
����	
7�

•� ������
�������������
���
���
�	�
����	
7�

•� ������
���
����
���
�	�
����	
7�

•� ���
	��������	���
�
7�

•� ��
���
�������
����
����	
7����

•� �
���������	������		���
���
�����		���
���������������	��������������
�
���/�����
�
$�

�
*����)����	
����������������������
�;��	
��
���)����	
�

�
<��������
� ��� =�����
�� #��	
��
��� 
����	>� ���� ��� ��� ��&��� �������� ����
�����
�� #��	
��
��� 
����	� �
��� �	���
� ���
	��	�� ����� ����
��
� ������
���
�������
���� ��� ����������
	
��� �������
�������� ���� ��
	���������� 
���
�	�
������
���	�����
������������
	����������$��

�
6������� ����
�����������	&
����

������

������
	�
�������
	�����������������
�����

�����������
	�
�������
	�����������
������������$�(��

����
�����������
���
��� ���� %�����
�� ���
	��	�� ��	&
��� �����%�� ��
��� 

� ���� ����

��
	�� ����

�����
���

��������� ����$� � (�� 

� ���� 
�����
�� �������	������
��� �� ��
	���
��������
����
�����

�����������	&��
��� ���
����	�� 
��������������

��	������������
����
�	����
�������������������
���
���		��
�������

���
����
$���

�����
���������������
		����9���
	��	�1������
��������
	�����	��
����� ��������������
����	���� 
������

�����������������
� 	�����
�
����
��������
�����

����
����	�������
���	��������������
���������
����
��$����

�
6����3� �/

�

����
� ��� ���� ��������
��� 
������ ��� �� ������ �
		� 
���	��� 
����

������
��
������������������
	�7������
���������������
������		����	��������
���� �'

������ ��� ��������
7� ���� ��	���� ���� 
����� ��� �����
�� �����		
���
�	���� ���� ����
7� ���� �������� ��� ���� ���� ������
�	� �

&
� �
���� ���
�
�
������
��������
	���������������
������������	�$�

�
6����.��������� 0���� �

�


��� ���� �

������ �������� �� ��
	�1
� ���������� �����

�����

�������#��	
��
���
����	�����
�������
�����������������
	�
��
		�
�����������������


�������������
�����
	��	����	&
��������$���8

�����
�
��������������������
	�
��
		�������
������	��������������
������
		�����

��	���������������������
���������
���
������	�����������

��	���

�����

�
���	�������

������
�	�$�

�
6����,�� ���� ���
�
�
��� ��� 9��	
�
��1� 
��	���
� ���
�� ��	
�
��
� �
��	�� ������

��� 
��

��

� �������� 
���� �
� ?���1

�� ?����

���  ��

�
��
���� @
���

��� (
	����
A�
�
�� A���

��� <�
�����
��

��� )
&�

�� ���� B����
��
��
$��

Page 38



�
�

� ��C��

8����
���
��
����
���
��
��
������	
�
�������������

�������
�����	
�
���
��� ��	
�
��
� ��	
���� 
���� �
�  ����	
�

�� ��� :����
����

�� �
��
��
 ��

�
��
��$������	
�
���
��������������
�
����
���9��	
�
��1� 

������
����
��
����� �� �	���� 
��������� ���� ��	
��$� ?�	
��� ����
� ���� ��	
�
��
� ���
��
	�
���
��	���	
�������
��	���
�@����

������/���

�$�

�
6����C�� 9?�	
��
1���
���������
��	����	���
������������������
������������������

��� 
���
��� ����� 
�� 

� ���� ���	� ���
��� ���� ��&
��� �� ����
��	��� ���
��� ���

����	$��(����������������
������
��������
��
�����������	
���
������������
�����	����������
��	�����
���
����	��
		�������

�����������&
�������������
����������
��
��
������������������������� ������:����������*����!���
����
����<�#��
��*��������������	
���	�"�������&
�����������
��
����	����
���
��$� � (�� ��

� ��
������ ������


���� �������


����������� ����
����	1
�
������
������������������������
	�� 
��������
����	�����������
���������
�������
��������
�
����	
�
�
	
����������������	$��

�
6����D� �0�����������
� ����� ���
����� 
����	������
����� 
�
� 

��	�� 
�'�
����
��

����� �����	� �
		� ��	�� ��� �������� 
�� 
�� 

� �	���� ����� ��

� 

� ���� �����
�
���
���
���
�������
���������
��$����

����
���
���
���	����������������������
������	����������� ������:����������*����!�������
����<�#��
��*�����
���������	
���	�"$�

�
6����E� �5��
�	������������������
�����������
	��������
��������
���������
���
		�

��� ����

�

��� ������
��� ��� )���
��� �� ��� ��

� ��	
��$� � @�������� �����
����
����������������
�������������
�
��	�
����	�
�+�

�

•� ������
	��

�
���

���������
��	������!-����,"������������
���7��
�

•� ������
���

���		��
���������
�����
�����	���
����������4������	
��
�'��
���
���!-���
�����������
��	�

��"$�

�
�
� �

Page 39



�
�

� ��D��


����
�����	������	�����	�����������������
��������������!�����������	����
�

���	�� &	�����	����'�����

�
 �
	����������������.�
����
�F�
�������
�

�

6����

 �
	���������������.����D�
!<�����
������-����3"�

*��������
�����������������
��#��	
��
���

����	�
��
��

����������������
	�
���	&
���
�

����������������

�
 �
	���������������������
����,�!-���
�C������"�

*��������
�����������������
��#��	
��
���

����	�
��
��

������������������
	�
���	&
���
�

����������������

�
 �
	����������	���
���������
	
�
�!�	
�
�	������
�����
����	����	
�������
	��

�
������
���������
��
��'
����0��&
�����'� ���
�"������D�������
��
��
�����
����	
�
�

*��������
�����������������
��#��	
��
���

����	�
��
��

����������������
	�
���	&
���
�

����������������

 �
	����������	���
���������
	
�
�!�	
�
�	������
�����
����	����	
�������
	��

�
������
���������
��
��'
����0��&
�����'�����
�"����������������,�
!����
�C������"�

*��������
������������������������������
��
#��	
��
���
����	
�
��
��

���������������
�
	�
��������
�����
�����
	��	����	&
���
����������������

'��
	�
��������������
�����
��
����	�����������������
��������
������G�����1
���	
�
��������	
���
��
��

������
����������
	�
��������
�����
�����
	��	��
��	&
����������������������������.��
	�
�
�����

�
 �
	�����	
�
����
��
������
�����������	&
���
�

����������������������	�������	&�
��
���������

����	������
��������
��)���
�	�5�����
���	�
6���
�����

��	��

��
	
���������
	
�������	��
�

�

*��������
�����
�������������������
��
#��	
��
���
����	��
�������
�����������
 ����
	$�

 �
	�����	
�
����
��
������
�����������	&
���
�

����������������������	�������	&�
���
����	�
�����
����	��
����������������
��������
��������
�����������������������������
�

*��������
�����������������
��#��	
��
���

����	��
�������
����������� ����
	$�

Page 40



�
�

� ��E��


�������������		$��������������%��������
��������������������*�����
�

�$�� 6�� ���� ���	
���
��
� ���� 
������� ������ ��

� ��	
����
		� ��� ���

������ ���� ����
������
����������3� ������.����������$�/



�������
��� �����	���
�
��
		����
����
���������������������		��
���
������
����������������,������������E����
����
��������������
����� ��������������
������������������������� �����	�������
����  ����
	1
� ����
��
� ��	
��� ��� �� �

����
������ ��


$� ��

� �������
��� ���
�	
�
�
	
��� �
		� ���� ��� ���� ��� /���
�� ���.� ���� 
���� �'

�
��� ���� #��	
��
���

������
� ����		��� 
�� 
����	� 

'��� ����
� ���� ��� ��		���
� ��� �������� ������
���
��������������)������������������������+�
�
!�"� �������
����	������		�����������	��
�����	�������
������
����	����
�������

���&7�����
�

!�"� #��	
�
��� ���� �



������ ����� ����� ����� 
�� ���
�� �����	
���� ����
� ���

��������� ������
���� ����
�� ��� ���� 
���� 
����	� ��� �������&�� 

'���
�����
���
�
�����	
��������������������
	�
����������
����	�����
�����
������������
�����
	��	����	&
��������7��
�

�
!�"� ������� 
����	� 
�� ������ ��� ����

� �� ����
��	��� ����
�� ��� 
������ ����

����������������
���������
����

'�������������
������������
�����������
��� �����	������ ����� �������
	�
� ��� ����
����	����������
�������� ����
�����
�����
	��	����	&
��������7��
�

�
!�"� ������� ���� �����
�� ������������������ ��		���� ��� �������� ������
��� 
��

����
��������
������
��� 	���	� ������
��� ����������
� ��������
����� ���
��
���
��� ���� 	
��� ����� ����� ������ �
	�
� ����� ����� ��		����� �����
���
�������� ���������
�����
	��	����	&
��� �����$�������'
���� 	���	�
��� �



�������
��� ����
����� ��
�
� 
�� ��
�
� ��� ����������� ��� ��		���
�
���

��� ���� H����� !0-:�5"� ������
��� ����� �
		� ��� 	
�
���� ��� ����
���
���	� �#�
��	���� ��
�� ��� 5�����
��� ����
� ��� ����
�
��� ����� 
�������
�
�����H�����)����	 ���$�

�
�$�� 
��������%����
����������	��
������������	��������+�
�������	������
� �

!�"� 0����� ����

���� !���� ��		��
��� �� ����
	��� �

�

����"� ����  ����
	�
�
		��������������
�����������
�����
���,�!�������."�����
�����
�������
��
������������
���
�
�����
��
���	
������������/���
�����3$�
�

!�"� (�� 

�
��������������������)������������3�������
���
��������

���	
���
�
		�����
�������
	��������
�������������
		�������
	��	��������
���,�)56��

������
�
�

�	����������������		�%���)�
8��
��� ��������3� ����  ����
	� 
�����
� ��� ���	

�� �� ���� 
���
��� ��� ��

� ��	
��� ����

������
��
�����
������������
���
�	�������
���	�����$���

��
		���
��
�������
�������
����


��
� ���� ��	������ �������
��
� !���� 	
�
���
��
"� ��
��� �
		� ��� ���
	��	�� �����
)������������3������		�)56�
������
$���

��
		��	
����&��
��������������������


��
����
���� ���� �
	����� ���� *��
	
�
� /��� ���� ��� ��� �������� 
�� ����� ���� 
��	�������� 
��
���3$� �

Page 41



�
�

� ������


�������,�$� 

������������
����	�
���%����
�����������
�����������
�����������	�-���.��� ���
����	�
��/�
�
3$�� ������4��
������	��&�����������
	������
		����������	���	�
����	������
��	��	�������

���	��������

�
����
�
����
�������
	�G����������
��1
�	����������	�����������

�
�'����������	�
�������������������

'����������
��$����

�����	�
�����
	�G������
���
��� �������

� 	���	� ���
	
�
�
����
	��
��
�	� ��	��
��
�
�
��
��� ���
������
�����
����
�
�����
��	���	����
�
�
�
$�

�
3$�� �����
�������

���	
��� 

� ����
���	

��
���	�������	�'
�	������
����������������
�

����� ����� ���� ����
� ��� 	��&��� ������ ��
	������ ��� ��
���� ����� ����
�����
�����������
� ���� ����
����

��� ���� ��� ���� 
��� ���� ��
	�� ������ ����� ������
��
	����������

�������
���������������
��
����	��������������������
	�$��

�
3$�� ����������	��&�����������
	�������
�����
����	��������	�������		�������
�������

���
����	������������������������

���������	&
������
��������	
������
������������
�
�����������1
���������
�����$�:�


�	���'����
��
������

����	�������
���������
�
�����������������������
	�����
���	���������������
����
��������
����	
$�*�
����
������ �		������
� 
��	���� ��� �		����
��� ���� ����
����$� /��
�
���	� �
����
�	�
�



�����������������
��������������
�������
�
�����
���'��

������

$�

�
3$3� ���� 	���	� ������
��� ��
� �� ��
���

�
	
��� ��� �������� �������
���� 
������������


&
		
� ���� 	��&��� ������ ��
	����� ���� ������ ����	�� ���� �
		� ��� 
��������� ����
����������� ��� �
�� 
����������� �����	� ��� 
����	�� 
��	��
��� ���	
�� ����
������
�
��		������������C����������
��

��

�

����
�
�������������������
�$��

�
3$.� ��'

� ���� ��
����� �
��� ���
�	�
� �
		� ��	�� ��� �
��� ���� 	��&��� ������ ��
	����1
�


����	G���������
�����
���'����
���	��
����
�����
��������		����������
��
������
������'�	����$�

�
3$,� 0��������
	���
�
��������
�	��&�������������

�
��4�������������������
��
������

	���	� ������
��� ��
� �� ����
������ ��� ����
�
��� �� ��
	�1
� ����������� ��� ���
��
��
�
��	�
����	������� ��

� 

� 4�����������������
�
�	� ��� ������
	���������
��
����

���
	
��� ���� ����
��
��$�@�������� ��
	����� 
���	�� ����
���� ��� �� 
����	� 	���	� ���
���
���	��������������������������������������
��
�������		��
�������������������
	��������� �	�������$� 5'����
��
� ��� ��

� �'������
��� ���	�� ��� ���� ����� ���
����
��� ����
��
��� ���� ���
�� 
�� ����� ,� ��� ��
����� 
����	�� ��� ������ ����	��
�������&
����'��
���
���
�		���
�
�
������
����������$�

�
3$C� /		� ����
������



������ ���� 	��&�����������
	������
		���� ���
���������� ����	���

��


��������
�
�������

'������	��
������	
$��
�

�

Page 42



�
�

� ������


�������#�0�����
�������������	�
�
.$�� :�����
� ����� ���� �
���� ��� �����	� 
�� 
������� �
��� ���� ��
�� ��� ����� ��� 
����	�

����
����� 

� ����
��$����� ����
	��
		� 
�� ��

� ������������� �������
�
�	���
������



�����������8��������������5�����
���
��H�����������
����	
������	��$�

�
.$�� (��������	�
��������

���
��������������
�����
	�����������	���
����������������	�

��	�
�����
����������������������
�����	��
�
�
�
������������������	���
�����	����
������ 

� �� �
���� ��� ����	�
��� ��� ���� ����	� I���������� �����
���$� (�� ��
����	�
����� ���

���
� �������


������ ���� 
����������� ����	� ������ �	��������
���	
��	���������
��������	�
������������	��������4��
�
�	����
��$�

�
.$�� :�����
�����������
����������		����������


��������+�

•� ��������
����������������
���������

•� ���
����
	�1
��	
�
�
	
���

•� �����

���������
��������

•� ����
�������������������
�

.$3� )��������+�����<��
���
�

!�"� *�		��
�������
��������	����������

���
��������
�����������
����	������	���
�
���
���������
�������&
������
� �����&������
�������#��
���
&
������������
������
�������


��$�
�

!�"� 0
��
��������&
������
��������
����������������1
���
�������#��
����
��
������
����
�
		����
���������
�
��	����


�������
���������������������
	�����
�������������

���
������+�


$� ���������������������


����������7�


$� ���� ���� ���
�����
� ���������� !
��	��
��� ���� 
�������� ��		����� �$�$�

<����)������I?���
��	
��
"7�



$� 
�������
��� ������ ������ ����������
� ���G��� �����
�
� ����� �����

���
�	�����
������������������

7�

�$� �����������
���������

�����7�
�$� �������
���	�������������


���������������
�
$� 
�������
����������
��	��
������
���������!
���������
���"$�

�
.$.� )��������+�����/����	�

�
!�"� :������ ��
� ��� ���&
��� ���
� ����� ����
��� ��� ���� 	���	� ������
��1
� 
����� ����

���


��������&������
�������#��
������
��	������������������
��������$�
�

!�"� 0
��
�� 3�����&
��� ���
� ��� 
����������� �����	� ����	� ���

���
���
����� ����
�����	������
�����
��
������������������������
���
������
��
�������
	�����
�����
��������
���
������+�

�

$� ���������������������


����������7�


$� ���� ���� ���
�����
����������� !
��	��
��� ����
�������� ��		������$�$�

<����)������I?"7�



$� 
�������
��� ������ ������ ����������
� ���G��� �����
�
� ����� �����

���
�	�����
������������������

7�

Page 43



�
�

� ������


�$� �����������
���������

�����7�
�$� �������
���	�������������


����������7�
�
$� 
�������
��� ������ �
��	��
��� ��� ���� ����	�I���������������
����

!
�����	��"7�
�

$� ���� 
����������� �����	� ����	�������
� 
���	�� ��� 
����������� ���

���������

�������������
�
���	���'���
������������
��������	�����

�
���
����� �������� ����
��� ���� ����
� ��� ������
� ���� ���� 	���	�
������
������������������
��������#�
������
���������	
����
��7�

�


$� ����	�I���������������
����F�(�� 

�������������������
���������
��

������

��	���	�������
�
�
�
���	����&��
���	���������������

����
����
��� ����	�
��� ��� ���� ����	� I���������� �����
����� ���� ��	�� 
��
����	�
����
� ���

���� ����� ������ ��
� �� ��
	���� ��� ����	�� �
��� ����
���������	���	�
����
����������������������
�����	��
�
�
�
��������������
�����	���
�����	��$�(����������	�
��������

���
��������


����������

����������� ����	� ��� ��� �	����� ��� ���	
�� 	��� ������
�� ����
����	�
������������	������4��
�
�	����
��$�

�
.$,� )����� �� �����	
� �
		� �����		�� ��� ���

������ ��� �� ����	� ��� 
��
���  ����
	�

���
�
�	
� ���� ���� ������������ �
��� ���� ���
�

����
��� ��� ����������� ��� ����
����
������������������������
���
���	�������
��������
�
��	����


��!
"$��/����	�
����
�����������������
	
�����������������
����������#��
��������+��
�
5�����
�������
�����!/����	
"���
 �������
���J�)������
��(���
�������
*	�������0�
����
H���
���@��
����
����H���
��� ��������
����
��
�)��D8�$��

Page 44



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

s
c

h
o

o
l/

c
o

ll
e

g
e

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 b

y
 o

th
e

r 
L

o
c

a
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s

 –
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 

N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri

n
g

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

F
a

it
h

S
c

h
o

o
l

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
o

s
t 

1
6

 
M

a
in

s
tr

e
a

m
 

S
c

h
o

o
l 

o
r 

C
o

ll
e

g
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
P

o
s

t
1

6
 S

E
N

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
ra

d
fo

rd
P

o
s
t 

1
6

 p
h

a
s
e

d
 o

u
t 

fr
o

m
 

2
0

1
2

M
e

tr
o

 c
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 f

a
re

 o
n

ly
 

1
6

+
 f

u
ll 

o
ff

e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 

C
a

ld
e

rd
a

le
F

ro
m

 S
e

p
t 

2
0

1
4

 p
h

a
s
e

d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

n
e

w
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

M
e

tr
o

 c
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 f

a
re

 o
n

ly
 

U
p

 t
o

 a
g

e
 1

9
, 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

K
in

g
s
to

n
 u

p
o

n
 

H
u

ll
F

ro
m

 S
e

p
t 

2
0

1
4

 p
h

a
s
e

d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

n
e

w
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

B
u

rs
a

ry
 o

n
ly

. 
L

o
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a

s
 l
im

it
e

d
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 

c
a

n
n

o
t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 o

th
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

. 
S

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.

S
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
o

 a
g

e
 2

5
 

K
ir

k
le

e
s

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 

M
e

tr
o

 c
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 f

a
re

 o
n

ly
;

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 
£

1
.3

6
 p

e
r 

d
a

y
 

L
a

n
c
a

s
h

ir
e
 

F
re

e
 t

ra
v
e

l 
fo

r 
a

w
a

rd
s
 b

e
fo

re
 

S
e

p
t 

2
0

1
1

; 
fr

o
m

 S
e

p
t 

2
0

1
1

 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£

3
8

0
p

a
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

N
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 w
h

a
ts

o
e

v
e

r 

S
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
o

 a
g

e
 2

5
. 

 
P

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

ta
x
i/
m

in
ib

u
s
/e

s
c
o

rt
 

W
a

k
e

fi
e

ld
 

F
ro

m
 S

e
p

t 
2

0
1

3
 p

h
a

s
e

d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

n
e

w
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

M
e

tr
o

 c
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 f

a
re

 o
n

ly
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

; 
e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t 
to

 S
c
h

o
o

l 
P

lu
s
 M

e
tr

o
C

a
rd

 

N
o

rt
h

 Y
o

rk
s
h

ir
e

 
F

ro
m

 S
e

p
t 

2
0

1
2

 p
h

a
s
e

d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

n
e

w
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£

3
5

0
 p

a
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 
1

6
+

 f
u

ll 
o

ff
e

r 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 

N
o

rt
h

L
in

c
o

ln
s
h
ir

e
 

P
h

a
s
e

d
 o

u
t 
fr

o
m

 c
.2

0
0

8

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£

3
0

p
a

 r
e
q

u
ir

e
d

 
to

w
a

rd
s
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

p
a

s
s
 t

o
 n

e
a

re
s
t 

s
ix

th
 f

o
rm

 o
r 

c
o

lle
g

e
, 

a
s
 p

e
r 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
£

3
0

p
a

 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
. 

 F
u

ll 
o

ff
e

r 
to

 
2

5

C
it
y
 o

f 
Y

o
rk

 
F

ro
m

 S
e

p
t 

2
0

1
3

 p
h

a
s
e

d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

n
e

w
 a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

M
e

a
n

s
 t

e
s
te

d
 

S
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

Page 45



C
o

re
 C

it
ie

s

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

F
a

it
h

S
c

h
o

o
l

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
o

s
t 

1
6

 
M

a
in

s
tr

e
a

m
 

S
c

h
o

o
l/

C
o

ll
e

g
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
P

o
s

t
1

6
S

E
N

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

F
ro

m
 S

e
p

t 
2

0
1

3
 p

h
a

s
e

d
 

o
u

t 
fo

r 
n

e
w

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

C
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 f

a
re

 o
n

ly
 

U
p

 t
o

 a
g

e
 1

9
. 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 -
 £

6
0

0
 p

a
; 

£
3

0
0

 f
o

r 
lo

w
 

in
c
o

m
e

B
ri
s
to

l
F

ro
m

 S
e

p
t 

2
0

1
2

 p
h

a
s
e

d
 

o
u

t 
fo

r 
n

e
w

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 o

n
 c

a
s
e

 b
y
 c

a
s
e

 
b

a
s
is

U
p

 t
o

 a
g

e
 1

9
 f

o
r 

m
a

x
 3

 y
e

a
rs

. 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 p

o
s
s
ib

ly
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 &
 

D
L

A
 t

a
k
e

n
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 

L
iv

e
rp

o
o

l
N

o
 p

la
n

s
 t

o
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
 

W
it
h

d
ra

w
n

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1

2
 

1
6

+
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

M
a

n
c
h

e
s
te

r
N

o
 p

la
n

s
 t

o
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
 

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
U

p
 t

o
 a

g
e

 1
9

. 
B

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

N
e

w
c
a

s
tl
e

F
ro

m
 S

e
p

t 
2

0
1

4
 p

h
a

s
e

d
 

o
u

t 
fo

r 
n

e
w

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

C
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 f

a
re

s
 o

n
ly

 
S

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
  
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

o
n

ly
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

ts
 i
n

 
th

e
 N

e
w

c
a

s
tl
e

 a
re

a
. 

N
o

tt
in

g
h

a
m

P
ri

m
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 o

n
ly

. 
S

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
w

it
h

d
ra

w
n

 f
ro

m
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

C
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 f

a
re

s
 o

n
ly

 
S

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

S
h

e
ff

ie
ld

 
P

h
a

s
e

d
 o

u
t 
b

y
 S

e
p

t 
2

0
1

5
 

M
e

a
n

s
 t

e
s
te

d
 

U
p

 t
o

 a
g

e
 2

5
. 

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

S
ta

ti
s

ti
c

a
l 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rs

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

F
a

it
h

S
c

h
o

o
l

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
o

s
t 

1
6

 
M

a
in

s
tr

e
a

m
 

S
c

h
o

o
l/

C
o

ll
e

g
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
P

o
s

t
1

6
S

E
N

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

B
o

lt
o

n
F

ro
m

 S
e

p
t 

2
0

1
2

 p
h

a
s
e

d
 

o
u

t 
fo

r 
n

e
w

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

C
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 f

a
re

 o
n

ly
 

U
p

 t
o

 a
g

e
 2

5
. 

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

C
a

ld
e

rd
a

le
 

S
e

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 –
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

D
a

rl
in

g
to

n
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 n

o
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

F
la

t 
ra

te
 g

ra
n

t 
o

f 
£

1
8

0
 t

o
 

a
ll 

f/
t 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 
U

p
 t

o
 a

g
e

 2
4

. 
B

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

Page 46



D
e

rb
y

P
h

a
s
e

d
 o

u
t 
“s

o
m

e
 t

im
e

 
a

g
o

”,
 b

e
fo

re
 2

0
1

1
C

o
n

c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 f

a
re

 o
n

ly
 

U
p

 t
o

 a
g

e
 2

5
. 

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

K
ir

k
le

e
s
 

S
e

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 -
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n
g

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 

M
ilt

o
n

 K
e

y
n

e
s
 

F
ro

m
 S

e
p

t 
2

0
1

2
 p

h
a

s
e

d
 

o
u

t 
fo

r 
n

e
w

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

C
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 f

a
re

 o
n

ly
 

U
p

 t
o

 a
g

e
 2

5
. 

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

 
re

q
u

ir
e

d

N
o

rt
h

 T
y
n

e
s
id

e
 

N
o

 p
la

n
s
 t

o
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
 

C
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 f

a
re

 o
n

ly
 

U
p

 t
o

 a
g

e
 2

5
. 

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
. 
 

S
t 

H
e

le
n

s
 

N
o

 p
la

n
s
 t

o
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
 

C
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 f

a
re

 o
n

ly
 

U
p

 t
o

 a
g

e
 2

5
. 

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

S
to

c
k
to

n
-o

n
-T

e
e

s
 

N
o

 p
la

n
s
 t

o
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
 

C
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a

ry
 f

a
re

 o
n

ly
 

U
p

 t
o

 a
g

e
 2

5
. 

B
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

N
o
te
s:

1
. 

A
 ‘

 ‘
s
ig

n
if
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
a

n
 o

ff
e

r 
is

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 o
f 

d
is

c
re

ti
o

n
a

ry
 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 d
e

liv
e

ry
. 

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
ll 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 b

u
t 

h
a

v
e

 s
im

ila
r 

fe
a

tu
re

s

2
. 

A
 ‘

’ 
s
ig

n
if
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 e

it
h

e
r 

b
e

e
n

 c
o
m

p
le

te
ly

 w
it
h

d
ra

w
n

 o
r 

is
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
b

e
in

g
 p

h
a

s
e

d
 o

u
t 
o

v
e

r 
a

 p
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
ti
m

e
. 

T
h

is
 

d
if
fe

rs
 b

y
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
:

 
3

 o
u

t 
o

f 
5

 o
f 
o

u
r 

n
e

ig
h

b
o
u

ri
n

g
 a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 w
it
h

d
ra

w
n

 n
o

n
-s

ta
tu

to
ry

 f
re

e
 t

ra
v
e

l 
to

 f
a

it
h

 s
c
h

o
o
ls

 (
“f

a
it
h

 t
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
”)

 
4

 o
u

t 
o

f 
6

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
re

 C
it
ie

s
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

ta
in

e
d

 f
a

it
h

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
A

ll 
b

u
t 

o
n

e
 o

f 
o

u
r 

s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rs
 h

a
v
e

 w
it
h

d
ra

w
n

 f
a

it
h

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 

 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 o

f 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
a

ll 
c
o

m
p

a
ra

to
rs

 t
h

a
t 

p
o

s
t 

1
6

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 i
s
 l
im

it
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 b
a

s
ic

 a
v
a

ila
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

a
n

y
 w

id
e

r 

c
o

n
c
e

s
s
io

n
a
ry

 f
a

re
 s

c
h

e
m

e
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 e

it
h

e
r 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 a

ll 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
r 

ju
s
t 

th
o

s
e

 i
n

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 

 
A

ll 
1

6
 –

 1
9

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 m
a

y
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 b

u
rs

a
ry

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 a
d

m
in

is
te

re
d

 l
o
c
a

lly
 b

y
 t

h
e

ir
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
o

r 
c
o
lle

g
e
 

 
N

o
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 h

a
s
 w

it
h

d
ra

w
n

 p
o

s
t 

1
6

 S
E

N
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 b
u

t 
a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
n
u

m
b

e
r 

re
q

u
e

s
t 

a
 f

ix
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
 r

a
n

g
in

g
 f

ro
m

 £
3

0
 t

o
 £

6
0

0
p

a
 

 
M

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
a

ra
to

rs
 f

u
n

d
 S

E
N

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 u
p

 t
o

 a
g

e
 2

5
  

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



� �

���������	�
�


�������
������������������
�
����������������������
���������������
����
���
��������������������
�������
�������������
��
����
�

�����������������
�
����
��������	
����
�����������	����
���	��
�	��������
	�	��
����	������
������������������
����	��
�
�������	�
����������	��
����	�	���
������������
��
��
��
���������	����	�	���������������������
�����������������������	������
���	�	��
����	����
��������������	��
���������������
	�	��
����	�
��������
������������
��
��
��
����������
���	������
��	���������
�
����������	�������	��
��
��������	��������������������������	���	����������
���������	��
�������
	�
�����������
�����
����
�����������������������	���

����
�����������	��
	���������
�
�����
	�	��������	�	���	��
����
����	�������� ���	�
��	����
������	������������������	�	��	����������
��	��	������	���������	����������
����������	����������
����
	���
���������	������������		���
��
�	�������	��	��
��������
����������������
��
��	����
���������	�������
�	�	������
����
���������
	�
���	���������������������������	��
��
������	��
����	������
	�
�������������������
������	�	��	�	������
������������	����������������
�����������	��	����	����������
����������
���
���!��"#���	����$�������������	��
�
��	��������������
���	�	��
���
�������
�����������
�
��		�
���
�����	�
��	����������
����
���
	��
���������������%�
�		�%&&��������
�������������&������
	�&�'(()*&������+,(���
����	+,(�����+,(-����	
+,(()(,�.�����
�

�������� ��������
������ !�
���
�����	��������	�	������
	�
���������
����
�
����������������
�	������������	��
����������
��������
��	��	�	��
����	������������������	����	�	��
���
���
	�
���	���������
�������	����
���������������
���	��	������

�	��������	����
	�
���	����������	��������
	�����������
�	�����
�
������
�������/
�����
��!����
�	��
���	��
���
�
������
�	������	�����	��
�	��������������
!��	��
����	��#��
��	�����	�	��������
	������0����
�����	�����	��
����������
	�
���������
���	�	��
��������������	�����
���	��
��������������������
���������	��	����������
����
	������	����������
�����������
�	�����	����	�������	����	����	�	��
������������������������
	�	�����	�
�	��
����������	���������������	������������
���1
�
���	���������
�	����#	�
	�	��������
���	��
��	��
����������������
�����
������2�����
������
����������	��������
�����������	��������	����������������
�	�����	�������������������������
�����������	�������
����
��
�

���
���� ������� ����
����!�
"���
�������3�	����	
���������	
�	�����������
����
	�������������
�����2�����
�	��	������	��
�����������������������������
�������
��
�����������������������	��
������	��
����	�
��������
	�����
�����	���������������	�����������	��
����	������2������������	����	������	�	���
	����
��������"����	��
���4�����5�"46���
�
��������	
����
�������������������

�
��������
������	������������������	��
���2�������
�
����� ����#���������	��������
���������
����	����	����
����
������������	�������������������	�
����
����������
���	�����
���	�����	���
�����	��*�������	������	������	�����
����������	�	���
���	�����������
����	���	�	�	��
��
��������	��
��
��������	��
����	�	������������������������
�����
	�
��
��#��������"#$�������������
�����
�

%�� �����&������������
7��
����������������
��
��
�	��
���
���������	��������	�������2����	
������������	��
����	�����
����
��
����������	�	���	������	�������������	����
��	�������	�������
�����������
	����������
��	����
������
����	���������
��
��
��
����������
����������	��	��������
��
����	�
��	�����

��������������	���	��
���
��
��������������������
�������	���������	��
��������%�
�

Page 49



� ,

§� ��
��
�������
!����
�������	����	�	��	���������
������
����������	�����������	���
��	
0�

§� 
��
�������
�����
��
����	�����

�
���
�������
�0��
§� ������������������)�8�(�
����������������
�����
��
�����	0��
§� �����	�8��������/
��	������!����������
�������	��	���
��������������	����	��
�

������
	����	��������	���	���	��������������
���
�	�������������
�0�
�

•� ����
����	�
��
��
��������!���������	�������������
�������������	��
����	��
�������
��
	�
���	���������	�������������	
����	����������	�������������������
�	���7��	�����
�����

�
'� � ����
�������
����
��
� �����
����������������������(����������
�!�
���������	����
������
����	������
���������	
�����������	�����	
�	�������	�����
����	�
��	���
����������������	��
������

����
����	��	��������
	������
����	��	�	��
���
���
����������	��
�
��
����	�������
�	�����	�����������	���	
����������	��������	
�����
�����%�9�	��0��������0�
��������0����������	�1
������������
�
����
	����5�1���6��
��:���	������������
�
���������
��
	�������������������������	�����
�	�������
�����	�	����
������������
��	������
������
	��	�������������
��
�����;��
�	�<��	�	����������		�
���������������������1
�����	��
����
�����
���	�������������
���	��:���	������������
��3���	�����������������	������������	�������
���	��	���������������������
	��
�	��������������������	���������������
�
����
����	�
��
��
��������!���������	����������������#������
�������������	��
����	���������
�������
��
��
��
����������
���������
	�
���	���������	���������	
����	��	�
�	����������	����������
�

(��
��������������
������	������
�	���	������	�3���
��#��������
�����������	������	�	��������
	���������
�	�������

��������������������������
	����������
	���������
����	��������������
�����5�	�	�	��
6���	�
������������������	��
��������
	���
�0�	��������
�
�������
	������������	��
��
��
�����
�	������
	���������������
������������	��������	���	��������������������������������
��������
	���
���
���������
	����<��	���	�	����	�	�	��
��#��
��	�������"$)	*���
��	����#��
��	�����
�
������	��
��
���������#���	��
�"+),#���3����	����"*)	��������
	��
����������	����������
!��
	��
����	��
��"	)#���
���
������
��
�����8����������9�	������������������
��������8�;��
������
	���������	��
��������������
	����	�	����

�����#��
��	�����
�	��������
����"#$)$	���
�

-
���������
��
��������
�����������
��
7�����
��������
	�	���
���	��	%�

•� �������
��
����	���������������	������������
��������	��
����	����
�	�������
����	���������
����������
���0�

•� 	��������������
	�
������#���	��
�#./0...�
��
����������
�������5��������=��;6�����
���������������������
������
��
�����8���������0�

•� �������������
������
��
���������������������	�������������
��
��
��
����������
�������
���������
������	���������	��
���
�����
��	������
���#	������0�

•� ��������	
����
���������
	�
���
	����	���"	)#������������
�
����	��9�	��!�����	����
�������
����
������
��
������0�

•� 	���������
	�
��
�����������#���	��
�+.0...�
��
����������
�������	��	�������

������
�
����	�7����������1	�������������	��	�	��������
����
	��������
	�
�����	����������
�

����	���������	���������������
�
��
��	����������	������
���	�	���
������	����
	�
��
��
���	8�����	���
���0�

•� 1
����
��
	������������
�
��51��6���������
	�
����
��
	���������
������������������
��������	��	������
	�
���������������
���	��
��
�����������	���"4��1	���������
���	��
������
����������������
�	������
�����	��	����������
����
��
	�
����	��
���
�������2����	
�
����������������������
����������
���������
	���	���
��������
���������
!����
����
���
�
������
����
�
0�

•� �	���
�����������
��
�����������������
���������
����	�#������
���
�	������������
���������������������
��#��
�������
����������������
����
	��
�������	�������������

Page 50



� .

	��
����	������������	��	�������������/	����������
!��>
��
��
�������
����������
����
	�
���
���	��������%�?�����	
�����
��	����	������������������

�����	�����	���������
����
	�
�����������������������	���	�����@0�

•� ���������
��
��������������������
����
��
	�	���������
�	������������	
����������
��
	��	�������������
��
����	����
������	����
���������
�����������������	�
������������
�����0�

•� �
�*.#*1#	�5	����	�6������#���	��
�"#*23��������
���������	�����
�
�	����
��
��
��
�
��
�	�������	�����������
�	��
������
��4.��������
��
�	����������	�
�	��
����	0�

•� �
���	��
������
�����������������
	�
����
����������	���#	�
��	������������	�������
��	��������������
���	���"40����������	����������
���
���������
��
�
����*����������
�
	��
��	��
�	�����������������������������	���������
����������
��
��������
��	���2����	
�
������	��������������
	�
������	��
�	������������	������	���	���	��	�������������������	����
"2..3�
�	��
�*.#	1#+��

�

����������
��������
�
��������!�
�����������������������
�0�	���������	��
������������������
��8��
�,(((�	����

�������	����	��
����A�)((���	����
���������(�B((�����
�����
������
���9�����������
��������
��	����������
��
����������
��	������	����������
���	��������8������������
�����������
�����
	�
������	������	�
�(�
�������4����	�����������������
���	��	��
�������	��������������
�
�����������	�������
	��
�����		����
������������
�	����
���������������
�	�
�
��
�����
����������
��5��������
1��6���
������
	�
��	����
	�
������	������������
�����������
��	����	��
���
���	��
������������
��
�������
�

���
���
��������������
��
����������!�
•� ����������	����������
�������������������	����#��	�
��������	��
��
������	��
����	�	��	����

�����
	�
��������	������������������"
��
������������	��
��
�	�����������������CB�'���
����
��������
��
���
����
��

����
����������
	���������4�����
��������������	��
�
�����������	���
���
����	��	����
��������
�������	��
��
��
����0�

•� ���������������������	��
��
������	��
����	��
�
�	������������
���2�����
�
�������
������
�������������
���	������	�
	��������
������������	�������
	��#��
��	���0�

•� ������������	��	�	�������������������
	�
��������
��������	��
��
������	��
����	��
	���	�����
�������������������������������#����������� ����#��������,�
�����������������	��	��
�
���������	��C,�;'���
�
�������
��C��;,���
�
����,0�

•� ������������
���	�����
�����������������������������
	��	�	�	��
���������
�� ���
�#�������������������	����	��
�����������	��1
����
��
	������������
�
���
�������	��
������������
�
����������������
�����������
�����
���	��
���������������������
����
��0�

•� ���������������������
	������������
���	�����	�	���
	������������"����	��
���4���������
����		��������������	�������	�������
�����
����
	��	��	��
����	�	�������
�������	��
��������
�����������
�	�����
����������	�������
��������	�����	����	�������������	��
����	�����
�
���������
����
�����������
�
���������������	���	��	��
����	��
�
�#���	��
���
�	������	����	������	������
���
���
�
����
��	�����������	��
�
�������
��

�

'� ����5������������� �!�
•� ������
���	�	��
��������
������,A	�� ������
�	��,B	��3�����,(�.0�
�

•� 7��������
���������������������������	�������
���
���
���
��������
��	��������
�����
����������������&������	��
����	��

�

•� 7�����
��������������������
�������
�	����������
����	��
�	������
�%�
�

�� 7�����
�����������2���	�	��	��
������
���
���	D�������������
�
�� 7�����
�������������������
�	�������
	�	��
����
����	��
���	������
��
��(��.�

,BA�))'.�����
����	�
��	�%�

Page 51



� B

�
�

�������
!��������������
����	�
�(	�����������	�
9�����
�:�����
��(�9�����
���
	���
�������
��,�;E��

�

•� 1��
����������������������������
�����������������
������������	�������	�������

���
���	�
������
��	�����
���	�	��
��������	��	����	��
�������	�	�����������������
����
���������	������
��(��.�,BA�))'.����������	��
������
���
���	D�������������

�

���
�����������
���
���������
�
���������������!�
•� 3�	���	�����
���	�	��
���������
������������
������������������������
���������	�

��������������������
!��������������������������0�

•� 3

��������
�������
����	��	��������
	������
�������	��
���2�������
�������������
�
	���"#���	����$��������������	��
�����������	����	������������	��	����������
����
��	��
�0�

•� ��������	��
�����������������
���������
��
�������
������������	�����������
	������	����
����
��
����	�
����������
�����	�������������	�
������
��	���	����2����
������	�������
�
�����	�
	�	��	�
��������	����������	�
���	��
�0�

•� �����������	�	��	����������
���
������������#,
��6����*.#	��

Page 52



� )

�

�
�
�
����������������������
�������
�7�
�������
������������������ �
�

8�������
����������

���
�
����
�����"�

9���������
�����������
�����

������
��

9��
�	�����
��������5)8�*6�

,�)B�� B�,(.� •� ������
��������
�����	����������
��
�����
�

�����
�������
�	��
�����������<��	���
�
��������
����	�����CAA(���
��.&�B�

•� �����
������������	������������
��
���
�	���
���������
����

�"4�5)�8�*6� .�A;�� *)(�
�

����
�
���
�
�
�
����

�
$)	*��

�
+0/2	�

�

:�����
��������������
�������
�7� �������������
����������
���������
�
�

8�������
����������

���
�
����
�����"�

9���������
�����������
�����

������
��

�������
�����
�������	���		�
��
����������
�	���
������������	��
�

;((�� ,�*((� •� ���������
�
���2��������������	
����
����	��
��
��	��
����	�	�����	������������������������
�
�����
�����

•� ))��������
����������
	�
��
�������	���������	������
	����	������F�����
��������0�	��������
����
�		�
��	����������	������:�������������
���
��
����������"
���
����������
�������

•� ��������	������		�
����#��������
	��������
����������	�����	������������
���
�����	����
	�����
�����	����	���������

•� 9��	��������
���������
����������	����	����
��
��
������
��	��
����	�	�����	�����������
���
������	��
��
�������

•�  �������������������2�����
�
�������
���������
�
	�	����	�������	��
����	�	�������	����������
�����
������
�	���������	����
��

����
����

•� ��������������
�����������
����	��������������
��
	�
���	����������	����������	�������
��������

F��	��*�	��
����	�
	�����
�	�����
���������
��
���������

��.*�� B�,B)� •� �������������
�	���2�������������	
����
����	��
���	�	������	���������	��������&��������
	��
����	�����
��
��������������	�����������*�

•� ��������
	�
���������	��������	����������		�
��
	���
�����	�������������������	��	��������	���
������������
�	��
�	��
�����������
�	���������
5������	��	���������	��
�	��������������
6�

•� >���
���������
����������	����	�������
�	������
�����	��
����	�����������	��	������������������	����
���������
��
���������

•� >������������	������	���
	���������
����	�����
�	�������
�G�
��,(�.�

•� ��������������
�����������
����	��������������
��
	�
���	����������	����������	�������
��������

F��	��*�	��
����	�
����
��
���������
��	����������
"����	��
���
4�����5�"46�

,�*�� .)(� •� �������
��
��
��
�����������	�����	�	���
	����
�"4���	�
�2�����
�������
����	��
����	�

•� ���������
	������
��
���������������������
��
����	��
����	�����
��
���������������*����	��
	����������,)�

Page 53



� *

8�������
����������

���
�
����
�����"�

9���������
�����������
�����

������
��

� •� ����	�����	�������������
���	�#�������
������
�	����	�����������
	��������
	�	��	����	�����������
	��������&��������	�����������
�������
�	����
����������������
���

•� E�������	�����	���������!�������������#�

���������������
������	���		�
�����������	�
��������
�	�����	�	��������	�������
�������
��
	�����
����������������
����<���
�
�	���������
	��
��	�����������
��������
���	�
��
������	���

����	�����������
������	���������
��������	���
���	�

•� ����	��
����	���
�������������������
�	��������
����������������	��������	�
��
��������
���������
	�#������������
��	������	������������������
����	�������2����
������	���������	�

•� >�	�
�������
	�����	�������
�	��
����	���	������
�	������������������	����	�#������	�����������������
��
���������	�
	����	��	�	��
���
�	����	�����
�	�����������
�	���������

•� �������	�����������
��	�#��������	��
����	��
���
����
������������	���
	���
���������C�)�	��C�)(�
������
�����
��
���
�	��������!��
�����

•� 9��	���������	����	������
	�
���	������������
�����	��
����	���������������
��
�����������	��
�"4������		�
������
�
���������������������
�
��	�������
	����������	������������������

•� ��������������	�������
�����������
����	����
������������
	�
������������������	��������
	�
������	��
��
���������
��
���

��	����
��	��
�	�����
���	��
��������������
�������

�

 ����	������	����
�������	��	����
�	�
	���
�����	�
���������	��
�������
�
�

�)(���
�

�;�� •� ����	�������������
�����	�������������������	�
�����������	��
�.����������	��������!�������
��������

•� 1
�	������������	�
����	��������
	������
�
������������	������	��������������	�������
	!��
���������	����	��
�	���
�����	����������	��
���������	���
����������������������������	����
��	��
��������
��������	�
���

•� 1��	��������
��������
����	����������
�������
�	����2�����
����������	��
����	����	��
�
����	��
�
������		�
��
��	�����
�����	���������
���	�����
�����	��
�.����������
�

•� ������<���	
�����������
������
	�
������	���������
�
$��������������������>	��
�F��
���:�
�
���
�
���������
�����
���
�4��	��"��	������������
�������	�����	��������	���

•� 1��	���������
������������������
�	�2�����
�����
�����	��
����	��
�����	��
�������		�
��
��	�����

�����	���������
���	����������	��
�.�������
���
��
�

Page 54



� A

8�������
����������

���
�
����
�����"�

9���������
�����������
�����

������
��

�
����
�
�����
������
�������

�
+),#��

�
40	4$�

�
�

����
�
���
�
�
�
����

�
$)	*��

�
+0/2	�

�

8�
��������������
�������
�������
�
���
��

##)*	�� #*0**,� ������	�	��������������
��
��������
�������

�
1
�����	��
�	��	���������	���������	����	������
�����������#��
��	�����
��������
!��	��
����	0�
��������	�������������	��
��
���

8�������
����������

���
�
����
�����"�

9���������
���������
���������

������
��

������
�����
���3�����
���
���������

*)	�� 42.� 9�������	����������	�������������
�	������
���!��
�	�	�	��
������
������	����������������	������
	��
�����������������#�����	
������������
�����	����
������	��������������������1	����������������	�����
	��
����	�	���������0���
	��	�����
����
	�0�����	�
��������
������������	���	�����������������
	�
�
��	����
������
��	�������������	�
���������������	���
�������
�	��	�������
����
��
	�
��������
������	
��
��

���0�

;�
��0���������

�����
��������
�

	)#�� +.0...� �������
��������
������
��
�����8���������
��
��
��������������8�;�������
	�
�
��
��������������	��
��
�����	�������
��	��	��
����	����������	��1E�5C,6��
>�����((�(((�
��
�����������������������
�����������
<���
�
������	��������������������	��
�	�����	����	
�
�
��	������������	����������������
����	��9�	���	��
��������	�����������������������������
�������	������	�
�����
���
��	������������
�
������
����
	������

���	�
������
��	�����

�
�������������	�����

<�����8�
��� #$)$	�� 91�� F���������#���	��
�CAA(�����<��	�������	��
������	��
�
��.&�B�

�
����������������������	������	����	��
�������	�%�
�

��������=��8�������
����
�

�	�	�	��
����
�	�������������

5��8�*6

�)+

�	�	�	��
��"4�5)�8�*6

,,+

E�����	��
��
�F��	��*��"4

�*+

E�����	��
��
�
�	�	���
�����	�

�������

�+

�3�

�B+

9�	�����
������
��
������

�'+

�	�	�	��
����
�	�������������

5)�8��6�

(+

E�����	��
��
� ��	�

)+

E�����	��
��
�F��	��*�

���
�	����

;+

Page 55



� ;

:�����
�����
�

/3��������	�������
���
�����	!�
�

��
�
�	��������	�����������		�
��	���������������������
�	���
�������	���
����������	��	����	��	�����
�����
�

/3��������	��������!��
�

	�������
��	�������	���������������������������
������	��
���

����������
���������������
�

/3��������
���!� ����
���	�
	����������������	��	������������	���������
������
�

/�������
�����2�����
!�
�

	�����������	���������
����������
	�	����	�������	������

/��
������
��
!� 	�������
��������������������������	������������	
����
����
��
	����	�
����
�
�	��	������	������

�
��	���������
�

/��
���	�	��
!��
��

�����������
�������
�����
���	��
�	�������������	�����������
�
������	����������<��	����������
�

/E�����	��
��
!�
�

	�������
������	��
��
�����
!	������	������
����������	��
��
	��	�	�����	����	
���
��������	��������
�	�
�

/"#���	����$����!� 	�������	������
��������
8����
�����
����	������
����
�

/ ��	��������!�
�

�
�����	�����
�������	���������
	�
����
����G���������	���������
����������"
���
���������
�

/1
����
��
	��������
����
�
�!�
�

	�����
�������������	�
���������
�	�������	����	������	���������
������������
�	�����������
������
��

/�������3�	��������!�
�

����������������
�	�����������	�����������	����	
�

/H�����
�
�������
����!�
�

	�����������
����
������
����
�	������������	��
����	�

/���������	�1
��������
����
�
����
	����
5�1���6!�
�

�������������������
���	�����������������	��
���
����

/�	�	���
	������������
"����	��
���4���!�
�

	�����������	���
���������
	�	��	������
���	������������	�����
���
�����!����������	��
�������
��������	����������������
�����	�������
	����������������	��
��
���

�����	��
���������	�
�

/�	�	�	��
!� ����	��
��
��������	������
�����
�

/����������!� 	�������
��
�	�����
��	����
�	�������������
�

/I
��������������
!� ����
�
��
�������
�����
	�	����	��	��������������������	��
������
�
����8	���������	��
��
�������������	��
�����
�

�

Page 56



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� �

���	������
�	����������
��

�����
����
���	��	����������	�
��
�������
�
����
� �

�	���
!��
������������
���
���	���������
���	 
��� 
������
��
�����
�	��������
"�	�������� 
�������

��
�����	������
��	����#����	���	�������	�
�����	�

���
�������

�����
	��������	��
"�	������
�� 
�������
��
�����	������
��	��������	
��	��
���
��#�
�
�����!���$�

•� 
	���
���
���������������
���������
��
	�������������������	
��	��
���
���

•� ��������
�
����
�
��
���
�����������
�	��
���
������

������!���������
����
�����
�!���
�	��
���
���

•� ���������
���
�	����
!�
%��	�	�������
�
�	��

������������	����
	��
��
�

�����������	
������
�&��'
� �

�
 �������
����	
�����	
�����	���'��	�
��
�
�� 
���
��




���
������	
(
����)�����




�������
������	
��*�+,+-�



����
��
���
���������
����������
��������
���
�����������
������
����������	


�+���.	�����+�

�

��
�����	�
��
��
�
 
����
����!���
�������
�&��'
� �

����	�����������
��	������	�
���

•� /�����,�'�0���	�������



��������	$�







��������
 !�����



















�������
 
"�������
















#����






















































































































$�
������
������
�������




�
�
%�

&������
��
���
����������
����$����

'���
 #�����������
 (���
��
����������
����


����
�������
�����
�������
��
��������

����������


(
����)������� 1

������������
��� '
� �

��
	��

���	��)������ 1

������������
��� .	�	�
���!��
� �

�

2	
�	
���	 ����� 1

������������
��� /��3

���	�	�
��

4� �5�
6�	��� 1

������������
��� )
	���!��
� �

�

���

�7�%� 1

������������
��� '
���������
��8��
�!���	�

��!!�

��

5	����9��
�� 1

������������
��� �����
%��

���	�
	��
	��

�
�
�
�
�
�

)������*
+�


�
�"�	�������� 
����������
�����	���
���
��	��������	
�����
���
���

�

*
 *
 


Page 57



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� �

,�

�������
��
���������
�������
�������
��
��������
����
-��
��������	���
�

��������!������
�����
��&������
��������	�������7
���	������+��
����������	����	��
�����
�%

��� 
�5�	�������� 
����	���	�
��!������
�
������	����������
�
���
�����	�����������
�#�
�������
���
��
�����
�	������!���
�
������	�

��	�
���
�������
�� 	���!���
����
�
����	���

�
�
�������������
�
���
���1

���������
�&��'
� �

����	�����������
��	���	��
��	�� 
�
�	����!��
�� 
�����
���
�����	���������� �����#��������
��
 �
��!�
��
�����	����
�����
��	�������
%�
������
������3�������
�
����	���
�
�
����	����
�
����	��	
6����
��
�
�����	��

!!�
�
�
�
��	����	 �����
������
��	�
�	
�������
��
� �

�	��	�����
#�

��
�
������	������
�������
�
������:���7
���	���	���
���
������*������������+#�7���!����
��
��!���	�����������3

�
���
�������	�������
%�
������
����
	�
��

����
���%�,��!���
�
�%

��� 
�5�	����
�����;�������	�����5��
!�����	�
�<#�

������
 �
����
������������
�!�	!!

��
����������������	���������	��������	��������	��	��
��!��
��
�	����!����6����	�
�	��
	����
��������
�
��
��	���
�����
�
��	���	����!���
�!���	�
��	��
���!�������
��	��	���
�����
�&����	������������� ��
�#�

��
�
�	�
�����
 
���
���
����������!�����	������
�
����	���
�
�
�������������
�
���
���
����
�#���
�
�	�
��
��
�
��
�������
�	 	��	��������!����=��	�������!�

����
�����
�������	 
��
���!	�����
�����>�������,��	�����
	����	�����������
��������
���
�
��������,�;������	�
��-<�
���
�����
����?
���
�
���	�������!����������
���
��������

�	��
��
	����	���

���;'�0<�
	���!�

���	 
�����	��
�������	�����������
��
	�
���;�������-����
�<���!���
�
���������	

�	����
�
�
	�
����
����#���
�
�	�
���
���������
�����
�������	��������
� �

��;��������!�
	���
!��	�
�	���
���<����
����
�
���
�����������	 
�	��
�	�������	����������� ��
#���
�
�	�
�
���
�
�
�
�����!���	��������
� �

����� ��
��!������6
��	!�
��
�����
��;���������
�
���
���
����
�<���	��	�
�	�������
�
����	���	�����
�
�	�
�	���������
����

����!��
�����
 �
�
��!���

!!�
�
�
�
�#�

��
�������	�	�����	�
���
����!����
����	������
�
����	���
�
�
������
�
����	��
������������!����%

��� 
�5�	������
�����
���������	 ���������

�������	��
���	����	���	���

��
���	���
� �

��!�������
���
	�
�������

�#�'��������
�����
����

6�����
�� 
�	���

���
������
�
����	���
�
�
������
�
�	�
����
���	���	 ������!�������.+�/��#����
�
����	���
��	���������� ��
��!���������,�'�0�����
����
"�	�
����
.%�0�����
�
������	�����������
��
��	����
���������	 	��	��
���
���
�����
��	�
�������	�	���!���� ���������'
��
��
�����+>�

�
�
�����!���	�����������
���� ������� 
�����
�	����
���
������
���
�����	�������
��� �����#�

������"�	��������	
�����
���
���
�����
������
�
����	�����	�������!���������,�;������	�
�
�-<����
�����
����?
���
�
���	�������!����������
���
��������

�	��
��
	����	���

��#�����
�	���

���
�	�	�
��!������
����
�����
�
����	���
�
�
�����!���
���	�����������
����
����
��
���

�!�
��

����!���
�����
�������
�
�	�������	��
�����
�	������!����� ���	����

�����
�
"���
�#�

�

+�
�����
��
���
���������
����������
��������
���
�����������
������
����������
�
;
����
�
�=�*	#��!�����	�
�	��
������	����	�
��������
�������	��	���*�#��!�����	�
�	��
������
	��
� �

��!��
��������
 
��<�

�

+��

���������
������
��
����



;��
	�
���
6���
�	�������	�
���%��
���<�

�
��
� ������	�����
�
�����3

�� 
��������
��
��
�












�



Page 58



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� +

�
��
� ������	�����
�
�����3

�� 
��������
��
��	�����
������������
����	�

�
�

�

�
����

�!�
��

��������������
����	�
��������
�������	��
�

�

!�����
�������
������	



��
��
 �
��!�
��
�����	�����
��
�������	�����������
������3�������
�
����	���
�
�
�����

�

+��
��������
���������
�����

��
	�
���
6���
�	�������	�
���%��
����

�
��
�����
��
� �

��
;��
��������
� �

���� ������	���
������
��<�
�












�

�
����

�!�
��	����!���
��
� �

��
;��
��������
� �

���� ���������
������
������	���

�!�
��

������!�
��
��
� �

<�

�

�
/��
�������!�	��
� �

�
;���
����	
�������	��<�
;��
	�
��

�
"�	�����	����	�

�������
��
�
��<�

�

!�����
�������
������	

�
������	�

������� ��
�����"�	��!������
	��
���������
���������������
���������
������
����
�
����?
���
�
�3����
��#�
�

�

1�
"���
�������
2
-���
��
-�
�������
3��-

.	6
�	����
��
�
��!�	�����!���	���������������
����������
	�������������	��
���
��#�������

�������
���
$���
 �����
������	�������� �� 
�
�����
�
	�
����
������!�����
�

������
��� 
����
"�	����������������	���
�����
�?���	!!�!

��	
6#��
�
;�����������������
��� 
�����
"�	�������� 
�������
��
�����	������
��	������
�	�
����!���	����<




�������
���������
������


��
��
 �
���!���
�����
���	���� �� 
�����6����	��	��
��	�� 
�����
 ��
���
�������!��
�� 
���
���
����
���
�
!!�
�
�
��	����
��� 	��
��!���
��
� �

����
���������
�����
��&����	�������
�����	�����#�
�
����	���
��	�����
��
 �
���	��
%	���
��
������
��	!!���	����������
����
���	��
%�������
���
�
����	�������
�
���
�	���!���!���������
���
�� 
����� 	��
�	���
"���	��
��
� �

�����
1

����
���
���#���
��	��
��
������� ��
���
�	�����!���
�'�0���	��������
� �

����	���	 
�
�

���
 �
�
�#�
�
�
�
�
�




*




*








Page 59



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� *

�
����
��
���������
 ����
���
����
.
 '�����
��


������
���
����


���
�
����	�����	�������!����������
���
������
'�

�	�����
	����	��0

���;'�0<�������,��
	���
�

�#,��� +-��

�
���
�
����	���'�0���	�������!����������
���
�������,��
	���
�

•� ������
��	����������
���
������	���	�
�
����!�'�0��!�
��"�	��!��!���!���
����	�������

•� ��
�
���
�������
�����1

���	������� ��
��!���
����	�������!����������
���
�� 
���,�
��������
�	�
��!��-#�

•� '��
���
�������������
����	��	%�����������������
�����
��	��	�
���������	�������	6
���
���

���������
����?
���
�
���
��
� 
��	����
��	����
��	����
	�
�	����	�

�

•� ��
����
���
�����	�
����&�����
�
����
%��

���	�
������	���	 
����	��
�����

�	�����
��� ����������

����
����	���
��	���

����	���������� �� 
��	���
������
��3����
�����
�
�������	�����
��
�����
�������
	���!�
����
���
���
��

�������� ��
�	��
�
��������
��
��
�
	�
����
�
���#�

•� ��
���	��������	��	�����
���� ��
�������
�!�����!�	������	����������
��!�
���� �� 
��
���� ���	���	%�������
���
	�����
�
�����	�
���
������
��!�������
��
"���������
	�
��
�������#�

•� �!�
��	��	�
����	����
���������	�����������������������
���� ��
�������	��	%��!�����
���

����#�������	���
�������	��������	����
��
	���	6
���
������
��
�����
������
����#�

•� ��
�
�����!���� �������	%���	�
����	����������	��	�����	�����
������
����	��
��!����
@�-����@�-���
���	���
�
�����������
�
����&���

��#�

•� .������
	��	��������
��
������
�����	6
����
�!�

���	�������	 	��	��
�!����������
���
�
�����'�0�����	��
����
	�����#�'��
��	6
�
�	��
��	�����
�	�������!���������
	 	��	��
� 	��
�#�



4�����������
$����������

�
��
�
��
	����	����� ���������
�
�����
����	��
���	�
��!�
���������������
�����
	��	�
	�	���
�� �� 
��	6���������3����
�������������
����
���!���
�
���#���
��
������	�����
���	��
���������
�
�
��������
������� ���	���

���	���������
���
����������	��
�
	�
�	����
	������

� �����
���!�����
�#�
�
�!�	���
�	��
���
�
��	�
������
�
���
�����	�����������
������������� �� 
��������
���
�
	�
���,=�-��
	��������'�

�	�����
	����	��0

���;'�0<�	�����
���!	����
��!����	
�������
�
����
�
���#��


$����������
������
����������
�
���
�
��
�����	 
����	������;���<
�	���


������

���������

�����1

��#���������	��
� �

�
��	��
���
��������6������	�����������������
���
������'�0#��������
����
������
������� ���	��

�����
������
	������������	 
��	�����
�
��
�����	����
��
	�#������"�	������
� �

��	��
��� 
�� 
��������	��	���
!!�
�
���������������� ����
�����
�&��
��!��
�

�	����	 ����
���
�#����
	���
������
��������
���
��� 
�	�	��!����������	��	%��
 
����	������
��������

���
�
�	����

��
�	��
������
������
���	����������
���
���������
��
����!�	�A��	 
��
�����&#�����������������
 
�������	��
�!���	����������
���
������'�0#��
�
���������
������
���
	�
�	���� 	���	�������

���� 
��!�����
�����������!���
����
�
��
���
��	 
����	�������
	��;���<#�

Page 60



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� -

������������
!������������������	
���
����������
�����
��
��������
����������	�
	���������������������������
����������������	������	
�� ��������������������
���!
"�����
���������#$�
�
��
������
	��������	���	����	��������
���!�����6
����	6
����
���	�����
��	���������
��
�
���	��
�����
������
	�
�������
���

6���
��� �
��#���
���	���	���������
�������
�
4��

�	�����!��
�

��
	���������6�	��
	�����
������
	������������
����
����6�����
����
�
�	%�����
��	�
�
����!��	�
����	���
	�
���	���
�����
��	����������
���
#�
�
��
���	���� �� 
��
���	
�����	���6
����	6
����
�����
��	��)
	���
	
�
����'�

�	�����
��
���� 
�1
	�������
���
�;'�1�<�/���
��	��>���

�
��.
��
��>����

�	��1
	��>�)
	����!�
'
� �

��	��� �����	����

����������#���
���
�
����

�
�������
�
������	������
��	�
�	���
	�6
�����
���
�����
��
� 
������	����
�
���	�
�����
	�
	�
���!���	����������
���
�
����6����
� �

���
���	����
���
������������
����

����	!!

�
�����	���
�	��
�������
�
����
����
�������
���
����

���
�����!����
�
����	����
� �

�#�
�
��
���� 
���	��	����������
�����	���1���
�����

��	�����
�
���B
�&���	�
�����	���	
��
�
�����
��!�����
���
������	�������
����

����	!!

�
��������
������	��
��	��	�	�

��
 �
������#�
�
���
��
	�
���
��	�
��	���
��������
����
���
��	�
�����!���
�
���
�����	�����������
��	���
	����
!�����	�
�����
���	�������
�����	

���	�����
���� 
�#���
����
!����	������ 
��

�	��!�
����	��	��
 �
���!���
�!�����
� �

��	���


��	���������
�����������	6
��
� �

�
����� 
�
����	����	6
��	 �����	���
!!�
�
�
�
�#��
�
��
��	���
�
�
����!���
�
������	������	�������
�!�����!�	���� 
���	����	�	��
�������	�

�����
��	����������
���
� 
�����#�5�����
�
�	 	��	��
�
�

�����
	�������	��	��	���
���#�
�
���
���
�������!�
������	�������
���
�������
��

�������	��
��	�

�	���

������!���
��

�!�
���������	�����
��
��5	�
���

����	�������;�5�<����6�����	���	��
�	�������%�
!������

��
������
	����#�
�
��
�
������	������� ��
����
�������������!�����
��
�����������	������!����	���	�6
��
������	�	���!����
�
����	����
� �

�������
��
���
�������!�
%���������� ������#���
�
�
���������
�
�
�
	�����	����������������
��������	�����5��
!�����	�
��;	��
���%�+<��������	��

�
	��!������
�����
����	��	������������������
���
��!���
�����
�	����������
��%

��� 
�
5�	��#�
�
�!�
��
������	�����
���
�������
��	�	��	��	�	���
��	���	����
�����
��	���
���
����
�	 
��

����
�����	�
�������	�
������	������
�����	�����
��	��	����	�
���!��������	�����	���
	� 
��
����	
���	������#�
�
5�������
&���������


�
��
�	�����
������	�������� 
����
���
��	��
"�	�����������������

����#���
�
��
�
�
���	�
��
!�����
�
������	������
����#���
�!�����
����	����	�	������
	���
�!���������

�����:��!���
�

������	�����	��
���%#�
�
��
��
�����
����
"�	��������!�������	���

��
���	�
�������
������	������!�1

��#������
�	�	��	���	6
��!������
�1

������
� 	����#���
�1

������
� 	��������	��
����
���	��
��� ��
���	�	�	�����!���	�����	�����
��������
��	����
���	���
�����1

��#�
�

Page 61



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� ,

7������
�	�	�������!���
�	�������� 
�����
	���
��

����	����
��
�����
��&��
����
�������!��
�
�
!�

�
����	���!���
�
����	��	�����
#��
�
��
��
�����������!�������!���
��
�����
�����	��	����
���	�	��
������
��	6
����!���
�
���&��
�����	����#�
�
��
�
��
�
��C*��
�����
������	���	�����
���	��	�
���������������
����������
���!	�������	��
�	��	����	������#���������
�����
�
������
�	�������
��
�
��	������!��
� �

���
��#�
�

)��
�����
���
����
��
��������
���
���������
�����������

!�����
�������
������	


�
0��

)�����
��������	
0��





�

0�

6����
�����������
2
����
���
��������
������
��
������
-��
���
����
��3���
��

��
��������
��
����������



�










7��


































'�

�
!�����
�������
������	


�
��!����
�������
�
������	�����
%
�
��
��	���	6
����	

>��������
���
��
���
����

���
�����!�
!�

����
�
����	������ �����#����
���%�-���� ��
��	��
%

��� 
�����	����!���
�	�	�������!�
��
�
������	�����
%
�
��
#�����������
��
���!����
���
�	��
����!���	����������� ��
�������
�
���
���	���
�	�� 
����	
���!�����
�
��������
��

���
��
��
�	��
�������
�
���
�������
��
	�����
�������
�������	����#�2
�����
���
�
��


� 
��!����	����
��	��
��!��	���
��	���>�
���
�	!!

�
�������
�
�	��
��	������
������#�
�
������	��� 
��������	�������
�����
��	����������
���
��	���
��	�
�����

���������
�

������	����#���,����
�����
����	���
�
����
�	�������� 
�#���
�
�����
��	���������
�
���
&����� 
���	��
����
�
������:���
�����
������*��!���
�
��
�
��������
�����
�#���
!����
��*���������
���
�	��
��
��
������	������
����������
���
�
������
�!�����!�!�
���
���������	�
�����

������	�����!���	������
������#���
�
���
���
����

�!�
�!	�����������,�
�	�����
	��	���'�0��

�����#���
�
��
�
��
�������
������	���
���
�
��������
	��
�
	
�
��������
��	���	����� 
�����#�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

*
 


Page 62



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� :

��
�	�������� 
��	�6
����
�"�
������AD��
���
� �

����

����	!!

������E&�5
�������	�
��
	6������!������
���
��
�����
�#�

��

�

�

F2
�����
����
�������� ��
����
���	����
��
�����
����G�������������	�����G�

'���

$���������	�������'�� 
��

���
����
���
��	���
��	������!�
�����
��	����������
���
�	��	��
��	�� 
� 
�������!���
�
��� 
���	���	�
�	 	��	��
�	���������
����������
�����!��
������
����
��
#�#�5�

B
�	���
(
�
�	����.#������!���	����!���	������
�������	��	�������	���
���������
�H���������
���
	�����!���	������	����	�
�����	�"��B�����
�!���	�#�
�
������
�����
	�
��!���	����
������
������
	�������!!�
����
����
���!���	������	���
������
�
	���
	
�
����
���
�
�����
��	���	����
� �

��
	���	���	�6
����	����
��
	�
	�
���
�
��!���	������
�	����������
�
������	����#�����	��
� ��	�
����	����
��������
������
	�
������
�����
��	�
��
������������
����
���
���	����
������
	�
��
��	�
�������
����
� �

�
��
��#��
�
��
�
������	������

�������	 
�	��������������!����
���
���� ��

���
���
���
�������

��

����	��	��	��
��	�� 
����
����
�������
���� 
�#�
�
�����
�'�1����
���	!!��
�����	����������
�������������������	�
�������	��$���	�������

����
�������
�
������	�������� 
��������
������

����
������� ���	���

��#��
�
/�	��
�����6������������������	�������
���������	�������	���

������6���	

������
�'�����
'�1����� �������	���	����
�1

������������
�
������	���	�������
#���
�
��
�
���	��
��

	�
!��������
����
�!����
��	�
�
��������
�
������	��������

��#�(�����	
�� ���
��	���	�
!����
�� 
�������!���
���� 
����
�
��
 
���
�����
	����
���
��� �
��#������!

��	
6��	��
	�	���
��	�����
���
�������
�
������	������
����#�
�
(������������������!���
���� 
���
�
�
�
���	�
�������	���
���
����������	 
�����
������
	��	������ ���	�#�
�
��
����
�
	�
��!�����
�
������	������
�
�
%�
��
������	%����
���
�����
���!��
�����
����
	������6������	

�������
��	��
�������	��#�
�

�� �������!�2
�����
��
G��!�
�
�����
���F�

��	�������!���
�����
������
����
�
���	��
���	��
����������
��	�����!�
!	��������
��
!�� :C�� *I#�,G�

/�����,���	�����������	�����
	��
�
������	���
���
�
�� +��� �I#-�G�

/�����,���	�������!���������
�
���
������'�

�	�����
	����	��
0

���;'�0<� �C�� ��#+�G�

7�

���	 
�����	��
��������
�����
������
��
	�
���	�������	�
��
����� ���� �+#C*G�

��	������	!!

�
�����	����
� �

� *��� �-#C-G�

)�����
��������	
0��





Page 63



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� C

�

8�

6��
���
��
��������
��
����
��������9



��
	�
���
6�	����
�
 	���	��������!�
	���
"�	�����
�	�	
�
�����
�����	6
����
���	����	���
���
��	��	����������������	�
��������
����
� �

����!��
������



5�������
���������������


































)��

















































������






























����������








































4�����
������������


















(���































(�������
























































































































��
:�����




















��*


;����
��
������<




















��*���
�����������























#����

=
$�����



















;���
�*�����
J��	���	�
�	���
� ����	���
���������
��	�
��	����	�
���������
�	��
�	����
��
��
����
������
�����
���
���	����
	��������!	������	
6��������
��
	���������6������
 
�<



!�����
�������	

�

���3���������









































��������
�����

































5��������



















�����
>�����






















!�������









































&������

























���������
































#����
������
�������




!��������
���������









































:����
�����������

































�������
��
��������
���
��������






























$����������










































��������
����






























���
�������������





























������












































�����������
���
�����������









































����






















































������������
���
�����������























��������
��������
��
���
���������
�������
��������
��
��������




*











*








*





*


*





*
 


*


*


*


*


*


*


*






 *
*


*


Page 64



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� I

!�����
�������

�
D�������
�������
����	�� 
�
�	��
�������
�!����
������������
��	���7	����
��5�����
�����
��
	����������
���
������	�������	���

����	���


� 
�	��
����	������
��������	��������	��
�	�
���

��
�	��	��	������
� �

�����
���� ��
�������
�
���
��#�������
������	6
�!����
	

������!���
������	���	���������
������	���

���

���
��
��!�����
�
���
���'�0�
��� ���������1

��#�'��3

������%

��� 
�5�	���	���� 	�������������
��
 
���
��������
�
�
�	��������	�!���	��������	�����
��������
�	�����
����
������%

��� 
�5�	���!���	���� 	��
�������+�������#���
�
������	�����!��������������������
�
���
���	�������������!������
�!��	��
�

���
��	�����#�



�

?�

!�������
���
��������
������



����6�	�������	������	�
�	��
������;�
��
<����
�!	
��!���������!���	��������
����
���	��
������ 
�	����
�	�� 
����	
�����
"�	�����
�	�	
�
�����
�����	6
����
���	�����
�
!!

���!���
�
�	���
��


?��
!�������
������	




��
��
 �
���!���
�
���
��&��
���
�����	�����������
���	���	��
����
�!��������������� 
����	
�$�
�

•� �����
�
	�
�������
�
��
�����	 
����	������;���<������
�
���	�
����
�
��
�

��
������
��
�!=	� �
	
��	���������
��!��
�

�	����
�!=
��

�#������
�
	�
��������
����
��	 
���������
�
��
�����
������
�
�	�
����
��	 ����#�)��
 
��������	
6����
��
��
��	�������������	�������������!������
�����
���������'�0#�

•� �!���
��

���
��	����������	�
�����
����	���
������
��?
�	��
�����	���� 
�����
�
��	���������
����������
�	��
��	�
�������	�3���������
��
�����!���
��
������
��	���
�	��
�
��
���������
��	

��������#�

•� ��
�
��������
�������
����	 �����!�����
�����
���	��������!���!�����������

���	��
���
	�����
�	�����������	���	���
��
���	���
� �

�#������������
�
	�
�	�����������������
�
�	��
���
����

���������
����������

������
��	
������	�6
����� �����������	��
	��
��
��
�����
�	������!����� ���	���

��#�

•� ��
�
������	��������

����	���	��
��	�	�
�
����!���
�
������!���	������������
����
��
�����
#�

•� ��
����

����	��	����������	�
���
��	������� 	�� 
���
	��!���	����	�
���	��
��!�
�
� �

�����
��
������
���� ��
������

������ ���	���

��#�

•� ��
�
��	���

��	����
�
	�
�����	���
���������6����	���	��	���

�	������!���
�!����
�����
�!���� ������������������#�

)�����

��������	
0��



�

?��
'�������
������	


��
�
������	�����
%

��� 
�����	���;	��
���%�-<���� ��
��	�������	���
�	����!���
�
���
���	���
�	�� 
����	
���	���	��������	����#�'��
��!���
�
�	�
����������
�������
�
����	����
���#�����
�	��
�������
�
���
�����	�����������
��!���������,�'�0���	�������

��������
���	�����
����������
�!����������
�	�� 
�
���
"�
�

������
���

������
�

�����
�
�$�


'�������
������
��
��������


•� ��	�������!���'�0�����
����
	���
� 
�����������
�����
�
�����������
�
����
%�������
�

����!���
��������
����#�

•� ��
�
�
������
����
���	���������
	����
����
��!���!	����
���	 ��������	�	�

�������!!�	���

Page 65



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� ��

��
6�������
����������
���!
�����6��	��
�����
����
	�
��
�����
��	����!!
�
����
������	���
���
����	
��
	������
�#�

•� �
�
��	��������
���	�������	���

������
��������
���
��

��������
�	���!	����	����#�
������	���
���

��	����!���
�����
��
�	��
�#��

•� '��
�!	����
���	���
���!��
�

�������
���
���

��!��
����?��� ������!���!��	�
�	��
�
	����#�

•� 7	����
���	��!

����
���

�����
����
���� �������
	�
��������
��	��
����	����� ������
���
����������	�������	�
�!�����
���
����&����

�	���
���

��#�

•� ��
��������
������	�������
�	��
����!����
����
���
��
	������!���
��
	�����	!!����
��	������#�

�
'�������
������
��
������� ��������


•� �!���������
�
����	���
�
�
������������	����!
�
������
���������'�0��	��
����
����
	��
���!����
��
��
	����#������
�����	!!

����
� �	��������!���
���� ������	���
����
�#�

•� ���
��	�

�	���������
��0���������
	�������������
��������	������;0���<�J��	���
�
���	
�
��������!��������
���
������'�0��������
���	 
�	


������!�

���	������#��

•� ��
��
����	����
�����
�	��
��!��
�����?��� �������	�
������	��
��
���������
�����

	��	!!������	�������
����#�

•� '	!
���
��

����	����

�!�
����
���	���
��	��
����
������
�
	�
����	!!�
�	��������!!�	���
��
6�������
�#�
�

'�������
������
��
���
�������


•� ��
�
� 
����� �
� 	� �
���	����	�� ���	
�� �!� 
�	��
�� ��� ��
� ��	������� ����
�� �
�
� ����

	�
!�����
%��	��
��������������
�	!!

�
��	���
���	�������
����
��
��������#�

•� ����
�	��
��
������
��

�����
����	��
����
�
���
��&��	�������
�	�
�����!��
�����
���#�
������
��	����������
���
��	 
��	�����	��	!!���	��
���	�������	���!

������	!
����
�����
���	��������
�
�������	��������
�#�

•� .��
� 
��
�
���	���
������
���	���!��	�
���?
	�
����

��
������	���������
���
�����
�#�
�����
������
	�����	����
�
	�
����
���
������	����
�
����	��������
�����
��&����

��
����
�
�#�

•� ��
�
��	���
�	����
�
	�
������
�����
���!���	�������	��
	��#�

)�����

��������	


�!���
��
 �
���
���������
�	��
�������
�
���
�����	�����������
��!���������,�'�0��	��
�

���
��
�����
�	
�������
�����	���
�����������	�
���
��
�	�� 
����	
��#���
��	�
�	����
�
!�

�
�����������
��
�	������	��
���%�-$�


'�������
������
��
��������


•� ���
���������������	�����	��
��
������
	��������	�
���������
��

�
�����	���

�	��
�������
�����
��	�
�
�
	����
%��	��
�����	����
���	���	


�����
��	�#���

•� 7	����
��������

������
��� 
������������

��
!��
���	���������� ���������	�
��
�����
�
��������	�
���
����	
�#���

•� ��!���	�����
%��	��������
�
�����������
���
��	�!���!�

���	�������������

������
�
	 	��	��
�	���!	����
��������	 
�����
��� 
����
�����!����
����	����#����

•� ��
��
� �

��
	���!!�

��������
������
����
��	��������
��
���
������	���
���
�
��

�����!������	�������������������	��
��!������� ���	��
	�
�#�

•� ��	�������
����	
�
�������� ��
�	��
� �

������
������
�����
�	 	��	��
�!���!	����
�>�
��
�
!��
��	�
��������������	 
������	���������
�������
�����
��	������������������	�
�
	����������
	�����
=��!
���
����
�#�

•� ���	��
	�����

����
�����	���������!������
���
��������
��
�	��
������
����
���
��
��
�����������	�	������
�
����	������ �������	�
�������
����������!�
%

�����	��

Page 66



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� ��

�	������#�
�
'�������
������
��
������� ��������


•� .���������
����	
��	�������
��
�	��
���	 
����0����	���	��
��	�

#


•� ��	�������
����	
�
�������� ��
�	��
� �

������
������
�����
�	 	��	��
���
�
!��
�
�	�
��������������	 
������	���������
�������
�����
�����	����
�
	�
������	!!�
�	���

���
������������
������	�#�

�
'�������
������
��
���
�������


•� '��
���
���
� 
�	�
��	��	��
	����	6
����	

����������
�
������	����#�����	��
��
���	�
�����������	

����
!!

�� 
���
������
	�
���
��

��������	�
�����%

��� 
�
5�	��#�


•� ��=���������6������.
������������ 
���
��!!
���!�
�����!��
�������	���������
�������
��� 
����	������	���
��

�����	���!	�
�#�


•� ��	�������
����	
�
�������� ��
�	��
� �

������
������
�����
�	 	��	��
���
�
!��
�
�	�
��������������	 
������	���������
�������
�����
�����	����
�
	�
������	!!�
�	���

���
������������
��������
�#�

�

/�

6���
����
��������
�������
������
���
��������
�������������
���-���
���

������ �����������
����������9�

�





































7��

















































'�


�
!�����
�������
������	
0���	����
	��


�

)�����
��������	
0��


�

�

�@�

����
����
��������
�����
������ �����������
����
���������
�������
-���
����

�����
;����
��
��������
��������������
-��3�����<9


�




























7��

















































'�



�
!�����
�������
������	

�
�����
�
	�
��!��������
���
������'�0������������
���	�������������������������
�������������
�������
�������
� �����
������
�
��������#��

)�����
��������	
0��


�

�

���

�����
����
��������
��
���������
��
����������
���
�����
��
���
�*�����
��

�������9


�



















7��

















































'�



!�����
�������
������	


)�����
��������	

0��




 


*
 



 *


Page 67



� �
�
�
�

� �
%

�

5

�
�

�
��

��
�


�
��

�
��

��
�
�


�
�

�
�

�
��

�

�

�
�


�
�

��
�

��
��

�
�


�
�

��
�

�

�

��
�



;�
�
�


��
�	
���
�
�
�
��
	


��
�
�
�
�!
��
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�


�
�
�


�
��
�


�

��
�


��
��
�


�


	
�

�
��
�


	
�
�
�

�
�	
�
�
��
�


�
��
!�
�	
��


	
�
��


��
�
�
�!
�
��


	


�
�	


��
�
�
<�

� )
�

��
�

�





�

��
�

�
�
�

��



&
�

�
�

�
��






�
�

�

�

�
��

�
�




�
��

�

-

��
�


�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�



;7
�
���


�
�
�
�
��
	
��
�
�
��
�	
�
�

	
 
	
��	
�
�

<�

�
�
���


��
�
� 


�
�;
	
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
H
/
�

 


��
��
�
<�

/
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
!�


�
�
�
�
��
	
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

��
�
�
�

�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
	
��
�
�
��





��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

"
�


�
��

D
�
�6
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
H
/
�

�
5
�
�D

�
�6
�
�
�
�
��

�

�
:
��
�7


�
��
	
��
�=
�
:
��
�.

	
�

�
�

� �
K
�
�
0
�
�
�
��
�
��
*
��
��
�
��
��
�

7
�
���
�
�
	
��
�
��
��
�
�!




�
�
	


6
��
�
�

	
�
�


�
�
��
�
�

�
��
	
��
��

�
	


�#
�

(


��
�
�)
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�

�
�
�
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
��
	
�

�
�
�

��


��
�


�
�	
��
�
�
�
�
��
!�



�
�
�
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
!�
��


�
�
�

�

�
!�
��


��




��
��
�
�
��

	
�


��
�
�

%




�

�
�
	
��
#�

� �

�
!�


��
9
�
��
�

%




��
�
	
��
#�
1
�6


��
��
�
�

�	
6


��
�	




��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
+
�

�
���
�
�
�
�
�
��


�
�
�

��
��
�
�'
�
0
�	
�
�
�

��


��
�!
	
�
���


�
��
�
�
��
��


�	
�
	
�

�

�
!�
	
�
�
�	
�
�
��
 


�
�

�
	
�
�


�
#�

(


��
�
�)
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
�
 


�
��
	
�
�
��


 


��
�
�

��
�


�


�
�


�
��
�
�	
 


��
�
�	
��
��
�
�

�
�


�

�	
�
�
��
�
��
	
�

�

� �

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�6
#�
7
�
���
�
��
	
�

�
�
�

�
�	
�
�


�
�!
�
��
��
���
�
�
�#
��


	
�
��
�
�

�


��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�


�!
�
��
�

#�

�
�
��
�


�

	
�


��
�
��
�


��
�
�
�


��
��
!�

�
��
�


�
��
��
�	
 


���
�
�
�

��
�


�


�
�


�
��
�
#�
�

�
��	
�
�)
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 68



�

� �+�

�,�
4����������
�-�������
���
��������

'�	�
��
�
������	��	���� 
����
�	
������	������
��
��!������
�
"�	�������� 
�������

��
�����	������
��	��������	
��	��
���
��


0	�
� 9�������
� �	�
�

'	�	��'��
�	���
�

���
!��!!�

����'��	�
����
/
�!���	�

�	���
��������������

�
C���9�������+�

�
�

�+�

&���������
��������
���
���������
����������
��������
���
�����������

�������

;��
	�
���
6<


�
����������������	����!�'
� �

�/�	�������
�!���	�

������������
�
��
����������������������	����!�/��3

�������������
�
������������������L��	�
��
�����������
�	��

��	������ ��
�������
�	�������	�
���	���
������������������/�
	�
���

�!�����
����	���
�
�������������
���������������������
��;��
	�
���

�!�<�
�

�
�

�1�
!���������� 


������"�	�������� 
����������
�����	������
��	��������	
��	��
���
��������	
��	��

 ��
�

���	����
��
�	������
"�	�����	����� 
�������	���

���� 
�#�
�
�!���������	
��	��
���
����
�	�
������
A��
���������
����������5*�������
:������
����
�����������	������������
#����������
���������	�
������������
�
�	��
�����
������	�
�(� 
��	�

�	���������
��������
��	������������
��
�
 	����
����#���
�
��
�����!����
�������"�	�����	����� 
����������
�����	������
��	��������	
��
	��
���
��&����������
��
������
"�	�����
	�M�

��#�� #�6#�7����

����6

�����
������
�����������
�6
������!��
�;���������������
�<#�



����
���������
���������
 


�!��
�	�
�����	�N
���

�����
J
����
����
��

���������
4���������




C���9�������+


�������
���

������J
����
����
��
5�������
����

;������������B�����������3<�







*











Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� �

���	������
�	����������
��

�����
����
���	��	����������	�
��
�������
�
����
� �

�	���
!��
������������
���
���	���������
���	 
��� 
������
��
�����
�	��������
"�	�������� 
�������

��
�����	������
��	����#����	���	�������	�
�����	�

���
�������

�����
	��������	��
"�	������
�� 
�������
��
�����	������
��	��������	
��	��
���
��#�
�
�����!���$�

•� 
	���
���
���������������
���������
��
	�������������������	
��	��
���
���

•� ��������
�
����
�
��
���
�����������
�	��
���
������

������!���������
����
�����
�!���
�	��
���
���

•� ���������
���
�	����
!�
%��	�	�������
�
�	��

������������	����
	��
��
�

�����������	
������
�&��'
� �

�
 �������
����	
�����	
�����	���'��	�
��
�
�� 
���
��




���
������	
(
����)�����




�������
������	
��*�+,+-�



����
��
���
���������
����������
��������
���
�����������
������
����������	


�+���.	�����+�

�

��
�����	�
��
��
�
 
����
����!���
�������
�&��'
� �

����	�����������
��	������	�
���

•� ������
������
����
����	��
���	��
����������
��	�����!�!	����

•� /�����,���	�����������	�����
	���
������	���
���
�
��

•� 0�

���	 
�����	��
�������	�����������
��
	�
���	�������	�
��
�����



��������	$�















��������
 !�����
















�������
 
"�������
























#����






















































































































$�
������
������
�������




�
�
%�

&������
��
���
����������
����$����

'���
 #�����������
 (���
��
����������
����


����
�������
�����
�������
��
��������

����������


(
����)������� 1

������������
��� '
� �

�1
	��

���	��)������ 1

������������
��� .	�	�
���!�'
� �

�

2	
�	
���	 ����� 1

������������
��� /��3

��.	�	�
��

4� �5�
6�	��� 1

������������
��� )
	���!�'
� �

�

���

�0�%� 1

������������
��� '�

�	�����

� � �

�
�
�

)������*
+�

�

�"�	�������� 
����������
�����	���
���
��	��������	
�����
���
���

�

*
 *
 


Page 71



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� �

,�

�������
��
���������
�������
�������
��
��������
����
-��
��������	���
�

��������!������
�����
��&������
��������	�������0
���	������+��
����������	����	��
�����
�%

��� 
�5�	�������� 
����	���	�
��!������
�
������	����������
�
���
�����	�����������
�#�
�������
���
��
�����
�	������!���
�
������	�

��	�
���
�������
�� 	���!���
����
�
����	���

�
�
�������������
�
���
���1

���������
�&��'
� �

����	�����������
��	���	��
��	�� 
�
�	����!��
�� 
�����
���
�����	���������� �����#��������
��
 �
��!�
��
�����	����
�����
��	�������
%�
������
������3�������
�
����	���
�
�
����	����
�
����	��	
6����
��
�
�����	��

!!�
�
�
�
��	����	 �����
������
��	�
�	
�������
��
� �

�	��	�����
#�

��
�
������	������
�������
�
������7���0
���	���	���
���
������*������������+#�0���!����
��
��!���	�����������3

�
���
�������	�������
%�
������
����
	�
��

����
���%�,��!���
�
�%

��� 
�5�	����
�����8�������	�����5��
!�����	�
�9#�

������
 �
����
������	!!

��
����������������	���������	��������	��������	��	��
��!��
���	���
�!����6����	�
��
��������
�
��
��	���
�����
�
��	���	����!���
�!���	�
��	�����!�������
�
�	��	���
�����
�&����	������������� ��
�#�

��
�
�	�
�����
 
���
���
����������!�����	������
�
����	���
�
�
�������������
�
���
���
����
�#���
�
�	�
��
��
�
��
�������
�	 	��	��������!����:��	�������!�

����
�����
�������	 
��
���!	�����
�����;�������,��	�����
	����	�����������
��������
���
�
��������,�8������	�
��-9�
���
�����
����<
���
�
���	�������!����������
���
��������

�	��
��
	����	���

���8'�=9�
	���!�

���	 
�����	��
�������	�����������
��
	�
���8�������-����
�9���!���
�
���������	

�	����
�
�
	�
����
����#���
�
�	�
���
���������
�����
�������	��������
� �

��8��������!�
	���
!��	�
�	���
���9����
����
�
���
�����������	 
�	��
�	�������	����������� ��
#���
�
�	�
�
���
�
�
�
�����!���	��������
� �

����� ��
��!������6
��	!�
��
�����
��8���������
�
���
���
����
�9���	��	�
�	�������
�
����	���	�����
�
�	�
�	���������
����

����!��
�����
 �
�
��!���

!!�
�
�
�
�#�

��
�������	�	�����	�
���
����!����
����	����!���
�
����
�
����	���
�
�
������
�
����	��
������������!����%

��� 
�5�	������
�����
���������	 ���������

�������	��
���	����	���	���

��
���	���
� �

��!�������
���
	�
�������

�#�'��������
�����
����

6�����
�� 
�	����!�
��
�
�
���
������
�
����	���
�
�
������
�
�	�
����
���	���	 ������!�������.+�/��#��!������
	������!	�����
�������	�������	����������.0�1���/�����,��	�����
	����	�������.��,2��
	�����	 
�����������
��
	�
����
�����.0��3��
��
��
�	���
�������	���������� ��
��!��������
�,�'�=���	 
�����
��
"�	�
����
.%�2��
��
�
������	�����������
����	����
���������	 	��	��
�
��
���
�����
��	�
�������	�	���!���� ���������'
��
��
�����+;�
�
�
�����!���	���������
��
���� ������� 
�����
�	����
���
������
���
�����	���������� �����#�

����	���

���

��
�����
����
�
�	��
�	�	�
�
"�	�������� 
�������
��
�����	������
��	�����
8����9����	
��	��
���
���!������
�
����	�����	�������!���������,�8������	�
��-9����
����
�
����<
���
�
���	�������!����������
���
��������

�	��
��
	����	���

���8'�=9#������	��
�

���
�	�	�
��!������
����
�����
�
����	���
�
�
�����!���
���	�����������
����
������
�
��

�!�
��

����!���
�����
������
�
�	�������	��
�����
�	������!����� ���	����

������
�
"���
�#�

�

+�
�����
��
���
���������
����������
��������
���
�����������
������
����������
�
8
����
�
�:�*	#��!�����	�
�	��
������	����	�
��������
�������	��	���*�#��!�����	�
�	��
������
	��
� �

��!��
��������
 
��9�

�
�
�
�
�

Page 72



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� +

+��

���������
������
��
����



8��
	�
���
6���
�	�������	�
���%��
���9�

�
��
� ������	�����
�
�����3

�� 
��������
��
��
�












�

�
��
� ������	�����
�
�����3

�� 
��������
��
��	�����
������������
����	�

�
�

�

�
����

�!�
��

��������������
����	�
��������
�������	��
�

�

!�����
�������
������	



��
��
 �
��!�
��
�����	�����
��
�������	�����������
������3�������
�
����	���
�
�
�����
�

�

+��
��������
���������
�����

��
	�
���
6���
�	�������	�
���%��
����

�
��
�����
��
� �

��
8��
��������
� �

���� ������	���
������
��9�
�












�

�
����

�!�
��	����!���
��
� �

��
8��
��������
� �

���� ���������
������
������	���

�!�
��

������!�
��
��
� �

9�

�

�
/��
�������!�	��
� �

�
8���
����	
�������	��9�
8��
	�
��

�
"�	�����	����	�

�������
��
�
��9�

�

!�����
�������
������	

�
������	�

������� ��
�����"�	��!������
	��
���������
���������������
���������
������
����
�
����<
���
�
�3����
��#�

�

3�
"���
�������
4
-���
��
-�
�������
5��-

.	6
�	����
��
�
��!�	�����!���	���������������
����������
	�������������	��
���
��#�������

�������
���
$���
 �����
������	�������� �� 
�
�����
�
	�
����
������!�����
�

������
��� 
����
"�	����������������	���
�����
�<���	!!�!

��	
6#��
8�����������������
��� 
�����
"�	�������� 
�������
��
�����	������
��	������
�	�
����!���	����9




�������
6���
��
������ �������
���������
!�����


��
��
 �
���!���
�����
���	����� �� 
�����6����	��	��
��	�� 
�����
 ��
���
�������!��
�� 
���
���
����
���
�
!!�
�
�
��	����
��� 	��
��!���
��
� �

����
���������
�����
��&����	�������
�����	������
�
����	���
��	�����
��
 �
���	��
%	���
��
������
��	!!���	����������
����
���	��
%�������
���
�
����	�������
�
���
�	���!���!���������
���
�� 
����� 	��
�	���
"���	��
��
� �

�����
1

����
���
���#����
��	��
���	��!���������� ��
���
�	�����!���
����
�
����	�����	�������
�
� �

����	���	 
��

���
 �
�
�#�







*




*








Page 73



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� *




����
��
�������������
���������
 ����
���
����

.


'�����
��

������
���
����


������
������
����
����	��
���	��
����������
�
�	�����!�!	����

>��6� ��,���

/�����,���	�����������	�����
	���
������	���

���
�
��

�#+,�� *��*-�

0�

���	 
�����	��
�������	�����������
��
	�
���
	�������	�
��
�����

�-�6��
�

�>��

�
������
������
����
����	��
���	��
����������
��	�����!�!	����

•� ��
��	��������
"���
��1

������������
�������	 
��
�	�������	�
���&���
!
�
�

��!���	�
!	���:�	�
��
��
	�����������������!������	����������!	�����
������!���!	����
�����
"�	��!�����������
��
�

•� --�
�����
��	�
�
���
���������


�����!�!�

���	 
������	�����
�/���	����
�����;���
�
�
�	���
��	��
�����
�!�����	�����
�)�����
������	�����
�����
���!�����	����
��������
1

���

•� '��
��!���
�
�	��
�����%���!!
�
���
���
���
������������
���
�1

��������	���	��������
��
����
	�
���!	�����
�����

•� .�����!������
�������������
	��	��������
���������
��!������	����������!	�����
���������
	����
�
����	����	����



/�����,���	�����������	�����
	���
������	���
���
�
�


•� ��
��	����
�������
"���
�1

������������
�������

����
�
�����!����
����
�
����<
���
�
���	�������!����������
���
�� 
����
�	�
��!��,�

•� ?
�
���
�������� ��
������!�������
�����	��
�����
��
	�
����
��������
���
�
���	���!!
���
��
�
����
�
�����	�������
���	 
�
���
�����!������8��
�
���	��������
���	�����

�
���
��	�	�9�

•� .�����!������
�������������
	��	��������
����������	6
�!�

���	�������	 	��	��
������
���
!	����
��!���������������!��������
���
�
�

0�

���	 
�����	��
�������	�����������
��
	�
���	�������	�
��
����


•� '��
���
���
�	�
���	��
������� ��
�	���	

�	��	��
������������+����
���!���
�
����&��
���
�	���
���

•� �����
�
�
��
����	�

����
���
�
�������
��	������!�

���	 
�����	��
������!���
��	�
��&��

���

��	��
����	����
��
	�
���	�������	�
��
����������	��	 	��	��
���	

����� ��
�����
����������	��
	���	��
�����	�

�

•� �!���
�����
���	��
�	��
����
�
�����
��������������"�	��!��!���!�

���	������������������!�
��
���
�
�	��
��������
����
	�
����
�����	�������	�����
���	��+����
��	�	��

•� ��
��	3�������!�
�����
��
���
�����	!!

�
���� 
����5�	����
������
����
����
��/���

�
)
���&���	���
�����
���� �������=������	���1

��������
����
�����������	�
	��
��

•� �!�������	��
��
��	�
���������������"�	��!��!���!�

���	����������
�����
���
�
�	��
������
��
����
	�
����
�����	�������	�����
���	��+����
��	�	�#�



7�����������
�����������

�!�	���
�	��
���
�
��	�
������
�
���
�����	�����������
������������� �� 
�
�����
��	���
�������
���
�	�����
���!	����
��!����	
�������
�����
�
���#�'��
����
�
����	���
�
�
�����!�
��
�����
��������
 
���	 
��
���	���
	�������
	�����#��
�
?�����
�	�������!	����
��
	����������
�
�����
��	��
������!	�����
������
��
�!�������
��	���
���
�����	����
���	���
	��	�
	�#���
�
�	�
�!
�
��!	�����
�����������
�
������
�
!��
�	��

Page 74



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� -


�
�
����!���	 
������!�
���


��	���������
������


� 
�	�!	���:�	�
��
��
	����#�
�
"��������
������

�!���
����
�
����	���!�����������
�� 
�����	�
��
����
������
�
�����
��!����������
��
�
!	����
�������������
������
�����
��!�

���	�����������������
���	�������
�
�
������������
�
��	�������/���
�#�0��������������+���
��@
���!	�
��	��
���
�
�!���
��!�������	��:	�
��

�����
��	���	����%��	�
���*���!����

���	���	�
��
�����
�����
��������
��	�����!�

%�
��
���������!���������
��
�!	����
�#�


������������
!������������������	
���
����������
�����
��
��������
����������	�
	���������������������������
����������� ����	������	
��!
��������������������
�����
"�����
���������#$�
�
��
������
	��������	���	����	��������
���!�����6
����	6
����
���	�����
��	���������
��
�
���	��
�����
������
	�
�������
���

6���
��� �
��#���
���	���	���������
�������
�
4��

�	�����!��
�

��
	���������6�	��
	�����
������
	������������
����
����6�����
����
�
�	%�����
��	�
�
����!��	�
����	���
	�
���	���
�����
��	����������
���
#�
�
��
���	���� �� 
��
���	
�����	���6
����	6
����
�����
��	��)
	���
	
�
����'�

�	�����
��
���� 
�1
	�������
���
�8'�1�9�/���
��	������

�
��.
��
�������

�	��1
	����)
	����!�
'
� �

��	��� �����	����

����������#���
���
�
����

�
�������
�
������	������
��	�
�	���
	�6
�����
���
�����
��
� 
������	����
�
���	�
�����
	�
	�
���!���	����������
���
�
����6����
� �

���
���	����
���
������������
����

����	!!

�
�����	���
�	��
�������
�
����
����
�������
���
����

���
�����!����
�
����	����
� �

�#�
�
��
���� 
���	��	����������
�����	���1���
�����

��	�����
�
���@
�&���	�
�����	���	
��
�
�����
��!�����
���
������	�������
����

����	!!

�
��������
������	��
��	��	�	�

��
 �
������#�
�
���
��
	�
���
��	�
��	���
��������
����
���
��	�
�����!���
�
���
�����	�����������
��	���
	����
!�����	�
�����
���	�������
�����	

���	�����
���� 
�#���
����
!����	������ 
��

�	��!�
����	��	��
 �
���!���
�!�����
� �

��	���


��	���������
�����������	6
��
� �

�
����� 
�
����	����	6
��	 �����	���
!!�
�
�
�
�#��
�
��
��	���
�
�
����!���
�
������	������	�������
�!�����!�	���� 
���	����	�	��
�������	�

�����
��	����������
���
� 
�����#�5�����
�
�	 	��	��
�
�

�����
	�������	��	��	���
���#�
�
���
���
�������!�
������	�������
���
�������
��

�������	��
��	�

�	���

������!���
��

�!�
���������	�����
��
��5	�
���

����	�������8�5�9����6�����	���	��
�	�������%�
!������

��
������
	����#�
�
��
�
������	������� ��
����
�������������!�����
��
�����������	������!����	���	�6
��
������	�	���!����
�
����	����
� �

�������
��
���
�������!�
%���������� ������#���
�
�
���������
�
�
�
	�����	����������������
��������	�����5��
!�����	�
��8	��
���%�+9��������	��

�
	��!������
�����
����	��	������������������
���
��!���
�����
�	����������
��%

��� 
�
5�	���
%

�����
���������!�A���
�	��
&#�
�
�!�
��
������	�����
���
�������
��	�	��	��	�	���
��	���	����
�����
��	���
���
����
�	 
��

����
�����	�
�������	�
������	������
�����	�����
��	��	����	�
���!��������	�����	���
	� 
��
����	
���	������#�
�
�

Page 75



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� ,

8�������
����������


��
�	�����
������	�������� 
����
���
��	��
"�	�����������������

����#���
�
��
�
�
���	�
��
!�����
�
������	������
����#���
�!�����
����	����	�	������
	���
�!���������

�����7��!���
�

������	�����	��
���%#�
�
��
��
�����
����
"�	��������!�������	���

��
���	�
�������
������	������!�1

��#������
�	�	��	���	6
��!������
�1

������
� 	����#���
�1

������
� 	��������	��
����
���	��
��� ��
���	�	�	�����!���	�����	�����
��������
��	����
���	���
�����1

��#�
�
0������
�	�	�������!���
�	�������� 
�����
	���
��

����	����
��
�����
��&��
����
�������!��
�
�
!�

�
����	���!���
�
����	��	�����
#��
�
��
��
�����������!�������!���
��
�����
�����	��	����
���	�	��
������
��	6
����!���
�
���&��
�����	����#�
�
��
�
��
�
��>*��
�����
������	���	�����
���	��	�
���������������
����������
���!	�������	��
�	��	����	������#���������
�����
�
������
�	�������
��
�
��	������!��
� �

���
��#�
�

)��
�����
���
����
��
��������
���
���������
�����������

!�����
�������
������	


=��
�
�

)�����
��������	
=��



�

2�

9����
�����������
4
����
���
��������
������
��
������
-��
���
����
��5���
��

��
��������
��
����������



�


















:��


































'�

�
!�����
�������
������	


�
��!����
�������
�
������	�����
%
�
��
��	���	6
����	

;��������
���
��
���
����

���
�����!�
!�

����
�
����	������ �����#����
���%�-���� ��
��	��
%

��� 
�����	����!���
�	�	�������!�
��
�
������	�����
%
�
��
#�����������
��
���!����
���
�	��
����!���	����������� ��
�������
�
���
���	���
�	�� 
����	
���!�����
�
��������
��

���
��
��
�	��
�������
�
���
�������
��
	�����
�������
�������	����#�2
�����
���
�
��


� 
��!����	����
��	��
��!��	���
��	���;�
���
�	!!

�
�������
�
�	��
��	������
������#�
�
������	��� 
��������	�������
�����
��	����������
���
��	���
��	�
�����

���������
�

������	����#���,����
�����
����	���
�
����
�	�������� 
�#���
�
�����
��	���������
�
���
&����� 
���	��
����
�
������7���
�����
������*��!���
�
��
�
��������
�����
�#���
!����
��*���������
���
�	��
��
��
������	������
����������
���
�
������
�!�����!�!�
���
���������	�
�����

������	�����!���	������
������#���
�
���
���
����

�!�
�!	�����������,�
�	�����
	��	���'�=��

�����#���
�
��
�
��
�������
������	���
���
�
��������
	��
�
	
�
��������
��	���	����� 
�����#�
�
��
�	�������� 
��	�6
����
�"�
������A?��
���
� �

����

����	!!

������B���
�!���������
�	��
�������	���
	6������!������
���
��
�����
�#�
�
�
�
�

*
 


Page 76



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� 7

�

�

�

C2
�����
����
�������� ��
����
���	����
��
�����
����D�������������	�����D�

'���

$���������	�������'�� 
��

���
����
���
��	���
��	������!�
�����
��	����������
���
�	��	��
��	�� 
� 
�������!���
�
��� 
���	���	�
�	 	��	��
�	���������
����������
�����!��
������
����
��
#�#�5�

@
�	���
(
�
�	����.#������!���	����!���	������
�������	��	�������	���
���������
�E���������
���
	�����!���	������	����	�
�����	�"��@�����
�!���	�#�
�
������
�����
	�
��!���	����
������
������
	�������!!�
����
����
���!���	������	���
������
�
	���
	
�
����
���
�
�����
��	���	����
� �

��
	���	���	�6
����	����
��
	�
	�
���
�
��!���	������
�	����������
�
������	����#�����	��
� ��	�
����	����
��������
������
	�
������
�����
��	�
��
������������
����
���
���	����
������
	�
��
��	�
�������
����
� �

�
��
��#��
�
��
�
������	�������

�������	 
�	��������������!����
���
���� ��

���
���
���
�������

��

����	��	��	��
��	�� 
����
����
�������
���� 
�#�'������������!���
���� 
���
�
�	����

�
���	�
��	��	������������	���
���
����������	 
�����
������3����	��	������ ���	�#�'��
�
�������8	�!	�����	�
�������9����6���
����������������������
��������
�������	����������
�����
	���	����!���
���
�����������������
�
������	����#���
�!���������
�
��	6
�������	

�����	��
�	����!���
�� 
�	���	�	�����#�
�
��
����
�
	�
��!�����
�
������	������
�
�
%�
��
������	%����
���
�����
���!��
�����
����
	������6������	

�������
��	��
�������	��#�
�

�� �������!�2
�����
��
D��!�
�
�����
���C�

��	�������!���
�����
������
����
�
���	��
���	��
����������
��	�����!�
!	��������
��
!�� 7>�� *F#�,D�

/�����,���	�����������	�����
	��
�
������	���
���
�
�� +��� �F#-�D�

/�����,���	�������!���������
�
���
������'�

�	�����
	����	��
=

���8'�=9� �>�� ��#+�D�

0�

���	 
�����	��
��������
�����
������
��
	�
���	�������	�
��
����� ���� �+#>*D�

��	������	!!

�
�����	����
� �

� *��� �-#>-D�

)�����
��������	
=��





�

;�

9��
���
��
��������
��
����
��������<



��
	�
���
6�	����
�
 	���	��������!�
	���
"�	�����
�	�	
�
�����
�����	6
����
���	����	���
���
��	��	����������������	�
��������
����
� �

����!��
������



8�������
���������������


































)��

















































������






























����������
























*
 *
 


Page 77



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� >


















7�����
������������

























(���































(�������
























































































































��
=�����




















��*


>����
��
������?




















��*���
�����������























#����

@
$�����



















>���
�*�����
G��	���	�
�	���
� ����	���
���������
��	�
��	����	�
���������
�	��
�	����
��
��
����
������
�����
���
���	����
	��������!	������	
6��������
��
	���������6������
 
�?



!�����
�������	



����
�	��
�������
�����
���	��	!!

��!	����
����	�����&��!	����������
���	�������
�
�
���
���
����� ��
����	�������!�������
�!	����
�����������
��
#�������!!
��������
�	���
��
�	��
�#�
�

���5���������








































��������
�����

































8��������



















�����
A�����






















!�������









































&������

























���������
































#����
������
�������




!��������
���������









































=����
�����������

































�������
��
��������
���
��������






























$����������










































��������
����






























���
�������������





























������


















































�����������
���
�����������









































����






















































������������
���
�����������

























��������
��������
��
���
���������
�������
��������
��
��������



!�����
�������

�
��
�(� 
���
��������
�
	�������
�	�
�������
��	����������
���
��������	��������
������
�
���
��
	����������	��������
"���������
�����
������
���������
�
����!���
�	
	�
��
��
	�����
���
����
��������7�!�������+�	�����������
����>���������	��!�������-#

























*








*


*


*






 


*






*


*


*


*


*






 *
*





Page 78



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� F

1�

!�������
���
��������
������



����6�	�������	������	�
�	��
������8�
��
9����
�!	
��!���������!���	��������
����
���	��
������ 
�	����
�	�� 
����	
�����
"�	�����
�	�	
�
�����
�����	6
����
���	�����
�
!!

���!���
�
�	���
��


1��
!�������
������	


��
��
 �
���!���
�
���
��&��
���
�����	�����������
���	���	��
����
�!��������������� 
����	
�$�
�

•� �!�	��

����������	�
�����	6
�
�	��
�������
�����
���������
��
�!	����
��������������

������
�����	 
�	��
%�
��
�����������!�

���	�������	������
���
�������
����
	�����	���
����

������
��8���,9#�

•� �!���
��

���
��	����������	�
�������
���� �������!����
�
����	���
�
�
����� 
����
�
	������	���� 
����	��
����	��	�����
��	�
�������	�	��!����'
������+������������ 
�
��!!�
�
������
�!����	�
�������	�3���������
��
������
��	�������
��	

��������#�

•� ��
�
��������
�������
����	 �����!�����
�����
���	��������!���!�����������

���	��
���
	�����
�	�����������	���	���
��
���	���
� �

�#������������
�
	�
�	�����������������
�
�	��
���
����

���������
����������

������
��	
������	�6
����� �����������	��
	��
��
��
�����
�	������!����� ���	���

�#�

•� �����
�
	�
�������
�
��
�����	 
����	�����������
�
���	�
����
�
��
�

��������
�
�
�!:	� �
	
��	���������
��!��
�

�	����
�!:
��

��!����������
���
������'�=#�8'�=�
��	����������	���
��
�����	��
�	�	�
���������	
��	��
���
��9#�

•� ��
�
������	��������

����	���	��
��	�	�
�
����!���
�
������!���	������������
����
��
�����
#�

•� ��
����

����	��	����������	�
���
��	������� 	�� 
���
	��!���	����	�
���	��
��!�
�
� �

�����
��
������
���� ��
������

������ ���	���

��#�

•� ��
�
��	���

��	����
�
	�
�����	���
���������6����	���	��	���

�	������!���
�!����
�����
�!���� ������������������#�
�

)�����

��������	


/�����
���
�
�����������
���
��	�!���������
��
�!	����
��������	��	��
��!��
��������	�������
�	6
���
���!���	�����	


�����
����	���!	����
��

�

1��
'�������
������	


��
�
������	�����
%

��� 
�����	���8	��
���%�-9���� ��
��	�������	���
�	����!���
�
���
���	���
�	�� 
����	
���	���	��������	����#�'��
��!���
�
�	�
����������
���������	���
�
���#�����
�	��
�������
�
���
�����	�����������
������
��

���!�
���
������
�
����	���
��� ������
��������
���	�����
����������
�!����������
�	�� 
�
���
"�
�

������
���

������
�

�����
�
�$�


'�������
������
��
��������


•� �!�!�

���	�����������������
����� ��
���������������
���	�������
���
��
�!	����
��������
�
����
���6
�������
����	
�
�����!��	�
�	���#��

•� ��
�
�
������
����
���	���������
	����
����
��!���!	����
���	 ��������	�	�

�������!!�	���
��
6�������
����������
���!
�����6��	��
�����
����
	�
��
�����
��	����!!
�
����
������	���
���
����	
��
	������
�#�

•� ��
�
�
������
����
���	���	!
��	����������
��!���
�����
���	�6���������	 
������������
�
��	����
�����������
������
������
��������
���
�
#�

•� �!���	��������	���������
��!�

���
�����
��������
���
�	���!	����
���	�������
�

��
��
���!�����
���

���
!
�
�

���
������
�
�����!���	������#��

Page 79



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� ��

'�������
������
��
������� ��������


•� '
�����
��
	����	����	

���	�������
�	 	��	��
��!�!	����
���

��
����
�	��
��
������
��
����	���	�
���
���������
���	�����������
�#�

•� ���
��	�

�	���������
��=���������
	�������������
��������	������8=���9��	���
�
���	
�
��������!�
�����
��	����������
���
��������
���	 
�	


������!�

���	��������

•� ��
��
����	������������
������
�����
�	��
��!��
������	�
������	��
��
���������
�
����
	��	!!������	�������
���������	 
�	��
%�
��
�����������!�

���	 
�#�

•� '	!
���
��

����	����

�!�
����
���	���
��	��
����
������
�
	�
����	!!�
�	������:�!!�	���
��
6:������
�#�

•� ��
�
����	�
��

�����	��	��	���
����	���
�	!!

�
���!���
��
 �
���
���������
�����
��
�	 ���������
�����	���
� �

������
���	������������	���	�
���
�
!��
��	6��������
��
3����
���	�������
�����!���
��	�#�
�

'�������
������
��
���
�������


•� ��
�
� 
����� �
� 	� �
���	����	�� ���	
�� �!� 	��� 
�	��
�� ��� ��
� ��	������� ����
�� 	�
� ����

	�
!�����
%��	��
��������������
�	!!

�
��	���
���	�������
����
��
���������

•� ����
�	��
��
������
��

�����
����	��
����
�
���
����	�������
�	�
�����!��
�����
���#�
������
��	����������
���
��	 
��	�����	��	!!���	��
���	�������	���!

������	!
����
�����
���	��������
�
�������	��������
�#�

•� .��
� 
��
�
���	���
������
���	���!��	�
���<
	�
����

��
������	���������
���
�����
�#�
�����
������
	�����	����
�
	�
����
���
������	����
�
����	��������
�����
��&����

��
����
�
��

•� ��
�
��	���
�	����
�
	�
������
�����
���!���	�������	��
	��#�

)�����

��������	


�!���
��
 �
���
���������
�	��
�������
�
���
�����	�����������
���	���

���
��
�����
�
	
�������
�����	���
�����������	�
���
��
�	�� 
����	
��#���
��	�
�	�����
!�

�
��������
���
��
�	������	��
���%�-$�


'�������
������
��
��������


•� ���
���������������	�����	��
��
������
	��������	�
���������
��

�
�����	���
�	��
��
�����
�����
��	�
�
�
	����
%��	��
�����	����
���	���	


�����
��	�#���

•� 0	����
��������

������
��� 
������������

��
!��
���	���������� ���������	�
��
������
���
�����	�
���
����	
�#���

•� ��!���	�����
%��	��������
�
�����������
���
��	�!���!�

���	�������������

������
�	 	��	��
�
	���!	����
��������	 
�����
��� 
����
�����!����
����	����#����

•� ��
��
� �

��
	���!!�

��������
������
����
��	��������
��
���
������	���
���
�
��
�����
!������	�������������������	��
��!������� ���	��
	�
�#�

•� �
��
	�
�������
� �

�������
������
�����
�	 	��	��
�!���!	����
�;���
�
!��
��	�
����
�����������	 
������	���������
�������
�����
��	������������������	�
�	����������
	�����
:
��!
���
����
�#��

•� ���	��
	�����

����
�����	���������!������
���
��������
��
�	��
������
����
���
����
�
����������	�	������
�
����	������ �������	�
�������
����������!�
%

�����	���	������#�

�
'�������
������
��
������� ��������


•� �
	������6���������
�5	��
�=

�����	�
���������

������
���!���
���!�	���
�	��
�����
��
�����
�����
���	��
�
	�
�	��	�������	����
����
������	

���!�!	����
�����������
����
�
��
	���
�����#


•� .���������
����	
��	�������
��
�	��
���	 
����=����	���	��
��	�

#


•� �
��
	�
�������
� �

�������
������
�����
�	 	��	��
���
�
!��
��	�
��������������	 
����
��	���������
�������
�����
�����	����
�
	�
������	!!�
�	���
���
������������
������	��	���

Page 80



�

��������	
��	��
���
��������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�
����	�
���
���
������� ��

3����
���������	��
����
�	�����
��	�
#�
�
'�������
$�����
��
���
�������


•� '��
���
���
� 
�	�
��	��	��
	����	6
����	

����������
�
������	����#�����	��
��
���	�
�����������	

����
!!

�� 
���
������
	�
���
��

��������	�
�����%

��� 
�5�	��#�


•� ��:���������6������.
������������ 
���
��!!
���!�
�����!��
�������	���������
���������� 
��
��	������	���
��

�����	���!	�
�#�.
�������
������
�����
���	������	���	�	�������!�

	�	
��������
������
� �

����
�����
����
���
	�
��
!!�
�
�
�
��	����	 ����#


•� �
��
	�
�������
� �

�������
������
�����
�	 	��	��
���
�
!��
��	�
��������������	 
����
��	���������
�������
�����
�����	����
�
	�
������	!!�
�	���
���
������������
������	�#�
�

�

/�

9���
����
��������
�������
������
���
��������
�������������
���-���
���

������ �����������
����������<�

�





































:��

















































'�

�
!�����
�������
������	
=���	����
	��
�
�

)�����
��������	
=��





�

�0�

����
����
��������
�����
������ �����������
����
���������
�������
-���
����

�����
>����
��
��������
��������������
-��5�����?<


�




























:��

















































'�



�
!�����
�������
������	

�
��
��� 
�������	6
�����!���
	���
�������	��
�	��
�
�

)�����
��������	


�
�����
������
�
 ��
�

������������������������
�����<
���
�
�����	��
���	���
�	��
�����
�
����	���
��� 
�����
#���

�

���

�����
����
��������
��
���������
��
����������
���
�����
��
���
�*�����
��

�������<


�



















:��

















































'�



!�����
�������
������	

?������
�
���
�����	�����������
��	�������	��������
�!	����
��	�
��

��	���
�
!�������� 
��
���
��#�
�

)�����
��������	

=��


�


 


*
 


*
 


Page 81



� �
�
�
�

�
%

�

8

�
�

�
��

��
�


�
��

�
��

��
�
�


�
�

�
�

�
��

�

�

�
�


�
�

��
�

��
��

�
�


�
�

��
�

�

�

��
�



8�
�
�


��
�	
���
�
�
�
��
	


��
�
�
�
�!
��
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�


�
�
�


�
��
�


�

��
�


��
��
�


�


	
�

�
��
�


	
�
�
�

�
�	
�
�
��
�


�
��
!�
�	
��


	
�
��


��
�
�
�!
�
��


	


�
�	


��
�
�
9�

� )
�

��
�

�





�

��
�

�
�
�

��



&
�

�
�

�
��






�
�

�

�

�
��

�
�




�
��

�

-

��
�


�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�



80
�
���


�
�
�
�
��
	
��
�
�
��
�	
�
�

	
 
	
��	
�
�

9�

�
�
���


��
�
� 


�
�8
	
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
E
/
�

 


��
��
�
9�

/
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
!�


�
�
�
�
��
	
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��

��
�
�
�

�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
	
��
�
�
��





��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

"
�


�
��

?
�
�6
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
E
/
�

�
5
�
�?

�
�6
�
�
�
�
��

�

�
7
��
�0


�
��
	
��
�:
�
7
��
�.

	
�

�
�

� �
H
�
�
=
�
�
�
��
�
��
*
��
��
�
��
��
�

0
�
���
�
�
	
��
�
��
��
�
�!




�
�
	


6
��
�
�

	
�
�


�
�
��
�
�

�
��
	
��
��

�
	


�#
�

(


��
�
�)
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�

�
�
�
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
��
	
�

�
�
�

��


��
�


�
�	
��
�
�
�
�
��
!�



�
�
�
�
�
�

	
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
!�
��


�
�
�

�

�
!�
��


��




��
��
�
�
��

	
�


��
�
�

%




�

�
�
	
��
#�

� �

�
!�


��
I
�
��
�

%




��
�
	
��
#�
1
�6


��
��
�
�

�	
6


��
�	




��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
+
�

�
���


�
���
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��


�
�
�

�	
�
�
�

��


��
�!
	
�
���


�
��
�
�
��
��


��

	
�


�

	
�
	
�

��
!�
	
�
�
�	
�
�
��
 


�
��



�
	
�
�


�
#�

(


��
�
�)
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
�
���
��
�
��
�


�

�
��




�
	
�
��
	
��
�


��
�
��
#�
�

� �
%
�
��
�

��
�


��


��
	
�
�
�!
��
	
�


�	
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

	
�
��


��
��
 
��


�
��
!�

��


�

��
�
�	
�

�
	
�
�


��
�
��
�


��
�
��

�
#�

� �

�
�
:�
�
��
�
��
	
��
�


��
�
��
��
�
�6
�

��
��
�
�
�
��


�


�
�
�

�
��





��
�
�
�
�



�

#�

/
�
�
��
� 


��
�
�6
��
�
��
	
��
�


��
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�	
��
�
	
�

�
��
�
�

�
�


#�

� �
�
�	
�
���
�
��
�


��


��
	
�
�
��

!�
�
	
�


�	
��
	
�
�
��
�	
�




�

�
�
��
��


�

�
��
 
��


�
��
�
��
��
�


�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�

�




�
#�

�

/
	
�
��
5
�

�
�
	
�
�J
�(



��
�
�)

�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
�
���
��
�
�'


�
�
�
��

�
�
:�
�
��
�
��
	
��
�


��
�
��
��
�
�6
�

/
�
�
��
� 


��
�
�6
��
�
��
	
��
�


��
�
��
�
�

/
	
�
��
5
�

�
�
	
�
�J
�(



��
�
�)
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 82



� �
�
+
�

)
�

��
�

�





�

��
�

�
�
�

��



&
�

�
�

�
��






�
�

�

�

�
��

�
�




	
�
�
�

�
��

�


��
	
��
�


��
�
��
�
#�
�

� �
%
�
��
�

��
�


��


��
�	
�
�
�!
�
�
�
��
�
�



	
�
��


��

	
�


�	
 
	
��	
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
�&�
��
�
�
�


��
��
��
�
�
��

�


�

5
�
��
	
��


�
��
!�
��


�

��
�
�	
�

�
	
�
�


�

��
��
�


��
�
��

�
�

�

��
��
�
�
�
��


�


�
�
�

�
��





��
�
�
�
�



�

#�

�
��
�
�	
��
�
	
�

�
��
�
�

�
�


#�

� �
�
�	
�
���
�
��
�


��


��
	
�
�
�!
��
	
�


�	
��

	
�
�
��
�	
�




�

�
�
��
��


��
��
 
��


�
�

��
��
��
�


�
��
��

�
�
��
��
��




�
#�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�


�

��
�


��
�
�6
��
�
��
��
�
�

.


��
�
�	
��
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�!
�
��
�

�

�
��
�
�
�
	
��
#�
�

� /
��
�
�
�

�

�
���
�!
��


�
�
��
��
�
�
��

�

��
	
�
�
�
�
��
��


�
�




�
�
��
�
	
��
�!
	
�

�
��

�
��
 


��
��
	
��
��
�
�

�

�

�

�
�
:�
�
��
�
��
	
��
�


��
�
��
��
�
�6
�

��
��
�
�
�
��


�


�
�
�

�
��





��
�
�
�
�



�

#�

/
�
�
��
� 


��
�
�6
��
�
��
	
��
�


��
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�	
��
�
	
�

�
��
�
�

�
�


#�

� �

(


��
�
�)
�
�
�
�
�
�J
��
��	
�
�)
�
�
�
�
�
�

�!
�

�
	
�
�


�
�	
�

��

	
�


��
�
��
�


�

��
	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��

�
��
�


��
�
�
	


��



�
�
��
��


��

�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�


�

!�
���
�
��
�
�	
�

	
�
$�

•
�

��


�

	
�


��
�
�=
�
�
�
��

	
��
	
��
�


�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
�
��

	
��


�
�
	
�




�

•
�

��


�

	
�


��
�
��
�
�
�	
�




�
��
!�

�
�
���
��
�
��
�


��
�
��


���
��
�
��
��

�


��

!�

•
�

��


�

	
�


��
�
��


�
	
�
�
�!
�
��

�
�
�

��
�


	
��
�


�
�
�
��
�

�

	
��
�
�
�

�
�

	
�

��
�
�

�
�
�
�

�	
��
�
�
�
�

5
	
�
�

�=




�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�6
��
 


��
	
��
�
�
�


��

�
!�
�


	
��
��
��
�
��


�

 
	
�
��
�
	
��
�


��
#�

.
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

 
	
�
��
�
	
�	
��
�
�
6
��
�
�

!�
��
	
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
��


�

	
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
	
�
�


�
��
�
��
�


�

��
	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��

�
#�

�
��	
�
�)
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 83



�

� �*�

�,�
7����������
�-�������
���
��������

'�	�
��
�
������	��	���� 
����
�	
������	������
��
��!������
�
"�	�������� 
�������

��
�����	������
��	��������	
��	��
���
��


=	�
� I�������
� �	�
�

�
'	�	��'��
�	���

���
!��!!�

����'��	�
����
/
�!���	�

�	���
��������������

�
>���I�������+�

�
�

�+�

&���������
��������
���
���������
����������
��������
���
�����������

�������

8��
	�
���
69


�
����������������������	����!�'
� �

�/�	�������
�!���	�

������������
�
��
����������������������	����!�/��3

�������������
�
������������������K��	�
��
�����������
�	��

��	������ ��
�������
�	�������	�
���	���
������������������/�
	�
���

�!�����
����	���
�
�������������
���������������������
��8��
	�
���

�!�9�
�

�
�

�3�
!���������� 


������"�	�������� 
����������
�����	������
��	��������	
��	��
���
��������	
��	��

 ��
�

���	����
��
�	������
"�	�����	����� 
�������	���

���� 
�#�
�
�!���������	
��	��
���
����
�	�
������
B��
���������
����������8*�������
=������
����
�����������	������������
#����������
���������	�
������������
�
�	��
�����
������	�
�(� 
��	�

�	���������
��������
��	������������
��
�
 	����
����#���
�
��
�����!����
�������"�	�����	����� 
����������
�����	������
��	��������	
��
	��
���
��&����������
��
������
"�	�����
	�L�

��#�� #�6#�0����

����6

�����
������
�����������
�6
������!��
�8���������������
�9#�



����
���������
���������
 


�!��
�	�
�����	�M
���

�����
G
����
����
��

���������
7���������




>���I�������+


�������
���

������G
����
����
��
8�������
����

>������������C�����������5?�







*











Page 84



�

��
�

���������	�


���
��������
�����������������������������

•� ��������		�
��
���������������
���������
����������
������
��������������
����
�������
�����������		����
����
��
�������������������
�������
���������������
����
�������
��
����������

•� ����
����
��������������������������������������������
����������������������������
����������������������
��
�������������������
������������
�
��������
����� ��������������
��

�������
�����������

•� !�������������������
�������
���
�

������������������������������
������
��
���
��������������������������"���������������������
���
� �������#��������������
������������
���
�$
�

���� �������#�����������������������������%&'�(���������������
���
��
����
������
�����)�����������������������������������
���
��

•� ����
����
����������������������������������������������������
��������

�����"����
��
��������������
��
����*�������� �����
��������������%&'�����
������������������������
�
���
������ �������
�+,-�������������������

������������������� ��������
������������
�������
��������������
������������ ������
���
������������������.�����/�����
0���
�
���������1-�(���
�����������

�������
���)��������

•� 2����������������������������
�������������������������
�������������#	�
�����������������������������������������3�������������������

���
3���
������
�����������������������������������������
����������
����������
�������3��������
�

�����������������

����
������������
����
������������������������������

����
4����������	��������
��������	��
���
������
������	����������������������������
�����
��	�����
���������������
�
��	�����������
�����������	������

•� ���������#	�����
������������������"�
�� 5	6�����������
��������������������������#����
������������������������%&'�

����
��
�������������56���
����������
����������
�������������������������
����
��
��������

�� 7	6�����������
��������������������������#����
�����������������������
������������
���
������
�

���������
��
���������������������������86�
��
����������
����������
�����������������������������
��
��������

�� #76�����������
���������������������������������������������������
���
��
����
��
��������������96���
����������
����������
�����������������
������������
��
��������

�� #�6�����������
������������������������
���
�
�����
��
����������������
���
���������������
�������
���
����
����������������������������������
���
��
�����56���
����������
����������
�����������������������������
��

���������

•� ��������#6��������������������������������������
�������������
��������

���������������
�������������������
������"�

�� 7:6�����������
��������������������������#����
������������������������%&'�
����
��
���������������������������:6���
����������
����������
�������
���������������������������
��
��������

�� 9�6�����������
��������������������������#����
�����������������������
������������
���
������
�

���������
��
��������������������������:#6�
��
����������
����������
����������������������������������
��
��������

�� :96�����������
���������������������������������������������������
���
��
����
��
�������������9�6���
����������
����������
�����������������
������������
��
���������

Page 85



�

��
�

�� �86�����������
�����������������������
��������������������������
���
�
���
�������������������������
��
�������������������������:�6���
����������

����������
����������������������������������
��
��������

•� ;����
�������������<��������
���*�����������������
���������
������������
��
�������������
�������������
���
���
��������������
�������������������������

���������������������#�%&'�(����������
�����
����������	6�����������������������)��
2������������������
���������������%&'������������������������
�����
������������
����������

•� %�����������
���������������������������������������������
���
������������������������
��������������������:�6�
������������������������
�����������������<��������
���*�������

������������������
��
��������

•� %���������������
���������������������#���������������������������������������
����������
�����������<��������
���*�������
������������������
��
������(�86�
��������
�)��

•� %���������������
��������������������������������������������������������������������

�����������<��������
���*�������
������������������
��
������(�96���������
�)��

•� ���������������������������������������������������9��#�������
��������%&'�����"�
<����������
���
����
�����������������=�$�
�
������������������

�>����������������
����������
���
*����

��������<�������������������������
���������*����������
�����
��������������������<����������3������������������������*��

•� 0��
�������������������
�������
���������������%&'���
������������
�������
����������
�����������������������������
�������������

����������
��"�

�� ���
��������
����������������������
�� ������
������
������������������
��
�� ��������
�����
�
��������������
�� ������
����3�����������������
���
�
�����

•� ?����������������
��
����*����������������������
��
����������������������%&'���
���
������������
�������
������������
��
����������
��
�����������������
��
����
�
��������

�
3����

������������������
���
�������������������
�
������������

•� 0����
���������������������
��������������������
����������
�������������

������
����
��"��

�� ����������������
�������
� �
�� �����
�
���������������3�����������������
��
�
����
�� ����
����������������
�� ����������
��������

���������
��
�����(��������������������
���
�
�����

>����������������
����������
���
���������
�
��
����������������)�
�� 
�������������
���������
�� 
���������
�������
����������������
�� ����
������������������
�����������
�� ������
������
�������������������������������
��
��������
��
����

•� ���������
������������
���
����������
������������
��
��������������������������������
�
���
��(��6)�����������#���������������%&'�(:�6)�����������������������������

�����
�����3���
������(�����
���������������������)����������������������������������
���
�������������������������
������������������
������������������
����
��������

•� -
������

�
����
�������������
�����������������������3��������������
��
�������������������������������
���
��
����������������0����������������
��

����"�

�� �������
������
����������������������������
�� ��3�����
�����$���������������
��������
�����

Page 86



�

:�
�

�� �������
�������
���
����
��������@�������
�������������������������������
�����������
����

�� ��������

�������������
��������������������(��

����������������)������
��
��
�������������

�� 
���������������
����
���������
���
�
��������
������������������������������
�����
������
��������

�� ����
�����������
������������
�� 
������������
��
��
���������������������������
�������
��
�� ������������
���
�������
�
���������������
��
�����

•� ?�
��������������������������A����������%&'���
������������

����"�
�� �������������
�������������������������
������������������
�� ����
����������2����������������
����������(2��)��
��������������������

�������������������8�
�� ������������������������������������������������
��������������������
�� �������������
��������������������������������������������
�����
��
�����

������������������
����
����������������������
������
�
����������������

�������

Page 87



�

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��


��
�
�


�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��




�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�


�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��




�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��

�
�


�
�
�


�
��

��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�  
�

� !
��




�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
"�

•
�

%
�

�
�

��
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��

��
�


�
��

�
�

��
��
��

�
�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�
�


�
��
�

��
=
�

�


��

�
�

��
�

��
��
�

�
�

�
�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�
�

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�



�

�
�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

��
�
�

��
��

��
��

��
�

�
�

�


�

�
�


�
�

•
�

�
��

�
��

��
�


�
��

��
�
�

�

�

��
�

�
��

��
�


�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

�


�

�
�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�


�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
��
�

��
�

��
�

�
��
��

�
�
�

�

�

��
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

�


�

��
��
�
��

�
�

�
�
�

��
�


�
�


�
��

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
��



�

�
�


��
�
��

��
��

�
��



�

�
�


�
�
��

��
�

��
��

��
�
��

�

�
�

��
��

��
�



�

��

•
�

�
��

�
��

��
�


�
��

A
�

�


�

��
��

�
�

�

�

��
�

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�

��
�
��

��


��
�

��
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

�
��
�

�
�

��
��

�
��
�


�
�
�

*�
�

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�
�

�
(�

�
�



��


�
�

�
�

�
)�

��
�
�

�


��



�
��
��

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

��
�
�

�
��

�
�
�


�
�
�

��
��
�

�
�

��
�
�

��
�

��
�

��
�


�

�

��
�


�
�

�

�
��

�
�

��
�
��

�

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�

��
�
��

�
�

�

�

��
�
�

�
��

��
�
��
��
��

��

•
�

%
�

�
�

��
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��

��

�

�
��

�

�
��
�

�
��

��
�

��
�
��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�
��

�
�
��

�
��

��
�

��
��

�

�
�

�
��
�

�
�
��

��
��

�
��

��
3
�

��
�

��
�

�




�

�
�

��
�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�


�
�
��
��



��

��
��
�

•
�

�
�
�

��
�



�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
�

�
��
�

��
�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�


�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�

��
�
�

��
�

�
�

�
��
�

�
��

��
��
�

�
��

�


��



�
�

��
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�

��

�

�
��
�

��
�
�

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

�
��
��

�
�


�
�

=
�

�
�

�
�

��

•
�

�
�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�
�

��
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
��
�

�
��

�
�


�
��


�
�

��
�

�
�


�
��

�
�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
�
��

�
3
�

��
�



�
�




�

�
�

��
�
��

��
�
��
�

�
�



��
�
��

��
�

�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
�

�
��

�
�
��

��
��

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�


�


�

�
��

��
�

��
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
��
��

��

•
�

�
�
�

��
�



�


�

�
��

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
�
�

�
��

��
�



��

�

�
��

�
��

��
��

�
��

�
��
�

��
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

��


��

��
�

��




�

�
�
��

�
��

��
�


�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�
��

�
��
�

�
�

��
�

��
��

�
�
��
��

�
��

��
�

��
��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
��



�

�
�


�
��

�
�
�


�
�
��

�
��

��
��

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�


�
��

�
�
�

�
�B

�
��

�
��



�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�


�

�

��
�

�
��


�
�
��

�
�

�

�

�
��
�
��

�
�

�

�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
��

•
�

C
�

��
�

��
�

�
�

��
��

��
�

�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��

�
�

�/
�

�
�

�
�D

�
��

�
�
*�

�D
�

�
��



�

��
�

�
�
��

��
�

�
��



�

��
��

�
��
�

�
��

�
=
��

�
��

�
��
�

��
�
�

��
�



�
�

�
��
�
��

�
�

�
��



�

��
�

��


3
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�


�
��

��
��

�
��

�
�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��
�

��
�

�
�

�
��
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
�


�
�

��
�

�

�
��
�

��
��

�
��

�
�
��

�
��

�

�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�


�
�

�
�

�%


�
�

�

D


�
�
��

�
�

3

�

��
�

�
��

�
�
��


�
��

��


�

�
�

��
�

�
��


3
�

��
��

��
�

�
�


�
��

��
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
�

�
�

��
��

�
��
�

��
�

�
��

�
�


�

�

�
��

��
�

E
�

��
��

��
�

�
�


�
�
�

�
�
��

��
�



��
�




�

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
�
��

��
�

�
�

3

�

�
�

�
�

��
�
�

��

�

��
�


3
�

��
��

�
�

��
�
�

��
�

�
�
��

��
�

��
�
�

��
�

�
�


�
��

��
�

��
�

�
�

��
��

��
�

��
��

�
�


�
>�

�
��

�
�
�
��

•
�

C
�

��
�

��
�
�

�.
�

�
�

�
�0

��
�
�0

�
�

�


�
�

�
��

��
�

�3
��

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
��


��
�
�
�

�
��

��
D

�
�
��



�

��
�
��
�

��
��

�
�
�

��
��

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
7

�
��

�
�

�%
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
	

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�
��

��
�
�

�

�
�

��
�

��
�

��
�
�

�
�
��

�
�
�

��
�

Page 88



�

9
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��




�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��

�
�


�
�
�


�
��

��
��
�
��
�
�
�

•
�

2�
��

�
��


�
(�

�
�

�
��



�
�


��
��


�
�


�
�
�

��
�
��





�

�
�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�
)�

��
��

�
�


�
�

��
�

��
�
�

�
��

�
��
�

��

�
�

�
�

��
��

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
��
�



�

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

��
��

��
�

�
�

��
�
��

�
��

��
B
9

	
	

3
��

•
�

C
�

��
�

��

�

�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�%



�
�


�
�F
�
�D

�
�
��

0
�

��
��
�

��
#

��
�

��
5

��
�

�
��

�

�

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
�

��
�



�
��
�

�
��

�
�



�

��
�

�
��
�

�
��

�

�

��
��

��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��
�

��
�
��

�
��
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
�


�
�

��
�

�

�
��
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�

�

�
��

�
�

��
�
��

�
�


�
�

�
�

�%


�

�
�


D

�

�
��

�
�

3

�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
��


�
��

��


�

�
�
��

�
��

�

3
�

��
��

•
�

C
�

��
�

��
��

��
�



�
�

�
��

�
��

��
�

��
�

��
�
��

��
�

��
��

�
�
�

�
��

�4
C

�0
�

��
G�

�
�

�
��



�

��
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�%
�

�
��

�
�
�

��
�

	
�

�
��

�


��

�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��



�
%



�

�

�

��
�


�
��

�
��

�
�C

�0
�

��
�
��
�

�
�

�

�

��
�
��

�


��

�
�
��

��
�

�
�
��
�

#
�

�
��

�
�
�

��
��

�
��
��

�
��

�
�
��

�
�

�

�
��

��
��

�
��
�>
�

�
��

�
�
��

�
�


�


�

�
�

��

•
�

C
�

��
�

��
��

��

�

�
�

��
�
��

��
�
�

�
�


�
�
��

�
��

��
��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�


��

��
��

��
�

��
�
��
��

�
�

�>
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

�
��
�



�
�

��
�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

��
�

�
*�

��
��

�
�


�
�
�

��
�

�
��

�%


�

�

�

�0
�

��
�
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

�
�

	
�
�

$�
9
��



�
�

�
�

�

��

�
�
��

�

•
�

�
��

�

�

��
��

��
�

��
�
�

��
�

�
�

�


��
�
�

�-
�

��
�

��
��
�

�
��

��
��


�
�

�


�



�
�

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
��

=
�


�
��
��

�
�
�

��
�

�
��
��

�
��

�
��
�

��
�
��

��
�1

��
�

H
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
��



�

��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��

�
�


�
�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

�0
�

�
�



�
�

�
��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
�

�
��



�

��
��

�
��

�
��

�
�
�


�
�

�
�

��
�
�

C
�

��
�

��

•
�

2�
��
�
��



3
�
�

�

�

�
�
�

�
��

�
�
��
��

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

�
�



�

�
�
�

A
�

�
�



�

�
��

�
�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�

�

�
��

��
��

�
��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�
�

��
��

3
�
��

�
�
�

��
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�



��
�

�
�



��
�
�


�
��

�
�

�
�
�

�
��

�
�

��
��
��

�
��

�
��

�
��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
��
�
�

��


��

�
�
��



�
�

��
�

�
��

��


�

��
�

�
��

Page 89



�

#
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��




�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��

�
�


�
�
�


�
��

��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��



��

��
�

�
�

��
��

�
�
�

��
�
��

•
�

�
�
�

��
�

�
��

�

�


�
��

�


��

��


�



�

�
��

��
��
�

�
��

�
��
�
�

��
�
��

�
�

��
��

�


�

�
�
�

�
�
��

��
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
�
��

��
�

�
�A

�
�


��
�
��

�
��



�

�
�


�
�

�
��

�
�

��


��

��
�

�
�

��
��

�
�
��

��
�

�
��

��
�



��
�

��
��
��

�
��

��


��

��
�

�
��

��
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�

�
�
�

�
�


�
�

�
��
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
�

=


�

�
��
�

�
�


�
�
�

��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��
�

��
��


�
�
�

�
��
��



��

��
��

�


�

��
�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

3
��

��
�
�


�
�
�

�
�

�


�
�

��
�
�

�

�
3
�

�
��

��
�

��
�

� #
�

� $
��
��
�
�
��
��


�%
��
�
�

%
�
�&
��
�
��
�
��
�
��


�

•
�

C
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
�3

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�
�

�
��

��
�
��

�
�

��
�


�
�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�


�

�
�


�
��

�
�

�
��
�

�
�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

�


�

�
�


�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

�
��

��
�

��


�
�

��
�

�
�

��
��


�


�
��

•
�

E
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

�
�

�
�


�
�


�
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

�

�

��
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�

��
�
��

�(
��
�

�
�

�
�
��


�
)�

�
��

�
��

�
�
�

�
��


�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�3

��
�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

�

•
�

�
�
�

��
�

��
�

��
�
�

��
�
��
�

�3
�
�
�

��
�
�

�

�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

��
��
�
��


�


�
�

(�
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�
�

��


�
�

�

�
�

�
�
�


�


�

�
�

)�
��

��
��

�
�
�
��

�
�

��
��

�


�

��
�

�
�

�
��
�

��
�

�
��

�
�
��

�
��

��



�

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

�


��

��
��

�
�


�

�
�


�
�

��


�



�
�
�

��
�

�%
�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

	
�
:

��
�

�
��

�
%

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

	
�
9

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

��
�



�

�

�
��
�

�
�

��
�
��

�
�
�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�

��
��



��

��
�

�
�

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
�

��
�

�
��
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��

•
�

2�
��

�
�
�


�
�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

=
��

��
�

�
��

��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

��
��

�
�
��

�
�

��
�
��

��
�

�
�



�

�
�
�

��
��

�
��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�

��
�

�
��
�

�
�
�

��
�



��
�

��
�
�

�
��

�
3
�
�

��
�

�



�

�
�

�

��

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
�
�

��


�

�
�


�
��

��


�



�
�
�

�
��

��
�


��

�
��
�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��
��

�
��

��
�
�

��
�

�
�



�"
��

�
��

��
�



��


�

�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
�

�
�


�
�

��
�

�
�


�
�

�
�
�

�
��
�

�
�
��
�

��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��


�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�


�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

��
�
��
�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
��
�
��

��
�

��
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��
��

��
��

��
��
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

��


�

�
��

�
��
�

•
�

D
�

��
�

��
��

�


��

�
��
�

��
��

�
�

��
��

��
�
��

�
�

��
�


�

�
��

�
��

�
��

��
��

��
�

�
�


�

�
�


�
�

�
�

��
�
��

�
�
��

��


�

�
�
��

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

=
�

��
�
�
��

�
�

��
��

��
�



�

��
�

��
�

��


�

�
�


�
��

�
��
��

��
�
��

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��
�

�


��

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
�

�
��
��

�
�

�%
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
	
�

�
��
�

�
�
��

�


��

�
��

�


�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��


�
��

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
�
�

�
��

�

�

�
��

��
�
�


�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�


�
�
�

�
A
�

�

��

��
�
��

�
��
�

�
��

��
�
�

�
�
��

��
A
�

�

��

�
��

�
�

�

�
��
�



�

�
�

��

Page 90



�

7
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��




�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��

�
�


�
�
�


�
��

��
��
�
��
�
�
�

•
�

;
�
�
��

��
�
�

��
��
�
��

�

�

�
��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��
�

��
��

�
�
�


�
��

�
��

�
�C

�
��

�
�

��
�


�
�

�
��
��

�
��
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�
��

�
�
��

�
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
��
��

��
��

��
�
��

�
��

��
�

��
�

��
��

��
�

�
��

�
�
��

��

� '
�

� $
��
��
�
�
��
��


�%
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

•
�

%
�

�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

�
��

��
�

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�


�
�

�
=
�

�
��
�

�


�

��
��
��


�


�
�
��

�
��

��
�
�



�

�
�
��

�
��
�

��
��
��

��
�

��
�


�

�
�


�
��

��

�

�
3
��

�
��

��
�

��
�

��
��



�

�
�

�


�

�
�
��

�
��
��

��
�

�
�
�

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�
�

�
�
�


�
��

�

•
�

-
�
��
�

�
�


�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
��

��
�
��

�
��
�

��
�

��
�
�

��
�
��

�
�

�
�
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

�
�


�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�
��

�
��

�

�

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

��
��
�
��

�

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

��

•
�

I
�

�
�

�
�

��
��
��

��
��
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

�
��

��
�
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
��
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�
��

��
�

��
�

�
�

��
��
�

�
��
�

�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

��
��

��
��
�

��

�



�

��
�

�

�

�
3
��

��
�

��
��

�
��
��

��
��



�

�
�


�


�

�
�
��

�
��
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�

��
��

�
�

��
��


�
�

��


�

�
�
��

�
��

�
��
��

��


�
�

�

�

�
�
��


�
��

�
�

��
�

��
��

�
��

•
�

2�
��

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
�
�

�
��
�

�
��

�


�

�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�



��
�

��
�


�
��
�

�
�





�

�
�
��

�
�

�
�

��
��

��
�

�

�

�
�
�


�
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
�A

�
�


��
�
��

�
��
�



�

�
�

� �

� (
�

� ��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

•
�

�
�

��
�


�
�



�

��
��

�
�
�

�

��
�


�
�



�

�
�
�



��

�
��

�
��

�
�
��

�
�


�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��
�


�
��

�
��
�

��
�



��
�

�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�



�

�

�

��
�

��
��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��
��
�

�
�
�

�
�



�
�

�
��

�
�



�

�
�

�
�


�

�
��

�
�
�


�
��

�
��
�

�


�

��
�

�
��

�
��
�



��
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�


�
��

•
�

0
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�
�

��
�

��
�

3
�
�


�
�

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�
�


�
��

�
�

��
�


�
�

��
�

��
�
��
2�

��
�

��
��

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�
�

�

�

�
��

��
�

�

�

��
�

�
��
�



��

�
�
�

��
�

��
��

3
�

��
�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�


��



�
��

�
��

•
�

�
�
�

��
��
�
��

�
��
�

��
�

��
�
�

��
�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��
�

�

�

�
�
�
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

�
�



�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

��
��

•
�

�
�
�

��
�



�
��

�
�



��

�
��

��
�

�

�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�


��

�
�3

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
�
��



�

�
�

��
��

��
�
�

��
�
��

��
�

3
�
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

��
�



�

�
��

��
�

��
	

�
�

$�
9

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�3

�
�

�

�

�
�
�

��
�

�
��
��

�
�
��

�


��

�
�

��
�
�

�
�

�
��


�
��

��
�

��
�

�
��
�
�

��
��

��
�


�
�
�

��
��

�
��

�


�



�
�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�
�

�
��

��

•
�

�
�

��
��

�


��

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

�


��

�
�
�

��
�
��

�

��

�
��

��
�

�
��
�

��
�

>�
�
��
��

�
��
��

�
�
��

��
�

�
��
�

�
�
��

��
��

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��

�
�

��


�

��
�

�


��
�

•
�

-
�

�
��

�
�

��
�


�
�

�
�
�

�
��

�
A
�

��
�

�
��
�

��
�

�
��
�

��
��

��
�



��
�

��
��

�
�

�

�
�

Page 91



�

5
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��




�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��

�
�


�
�
�


�
��

��
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
��

�
�
�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

��
�

��
�

�
�>
�
�

��
��

�


�

�
�


�
��

�

�

�
�
�

�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�

��
��

�
��

�

��

�
��


�
�

�
��
�
��

��
�

��
�

��
�

�
�


�
��

�


�



�

�
�
��

�
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

�
��
�

�

�


�
��
�

�
�
��

��
�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��
�

�
��

��
3
�
��

� 	
�

� ��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

%
�
��
�)
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

•
�

D
�

��
�

��
��

=
�

��
�
�
�

�
�


�
�


�

��
��

�
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
�
�
��

��
��

�
��
�


�
�
�

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
��
�



�
��

�
�

�
��

�
3
��

�
��

�
��

�


�

�
�


�

�
��

�
�>
�

�
��

�
�
�
 �

�
�

��
�

��
�


�
�

�
�
�

��
��

�


�

�
�


�
��
�


�
�
��
�

�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

��

�
�

�
��

�
��


�


�

�


�

��
��

�
�

�
��

�
�
��

��
�

�

•
�

�
�
�

��
��
�
��

�
��
�

��
�

��
�
�

��
�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
��
�

��
�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
�



�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�3
��

2�
��

�
��

��
�


�
�

�
�
�

�
��

��
��

�


�

�
�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�
��

�


��

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
3
�
�

��
�

�

��

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

�
�
�

�


�

�
�


�
�

�

•
�

2�
��
�
��



3
�
�

�

�

�
�
�

�
��

�
�
��


�

�
��
�

�
�
��

�


�
�

�
��

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�

��
�

�
�

�


�

�
�

��
�
��

��
��

��
�
��



�

�
�


�
��

�%
�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

	
�

�
��

�
�

�
��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
��

�
�


�
�

�
�

�


�

�
�

�

� *
�

� ��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

•
�

-
�


�
�
�

�
�

��
�

��
�


�

�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�

��
�

�
�
��

�


��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

.
�

�
�

�
*�


�

��
�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
��
�

�
��

�
�
�

�

�

��
�

�
�


��

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�

�

�'
&

&
�

�
(�

�
��

��
��

�
�



�

��
�
�

��
�

�

�

�
�

�
�

��
�

��
��

�
��

��
�
)�

�

•
�

2�
��

�
�
��


�
�

��
�

�
�

��
��

�
��

��
�


�
��

�
�



��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�
�



�

��
��



�

�
�
��

�
��

��
��

��
�
�


�
��

��
��

�


�
�

�

�
�

��


�



�
�
�

��

•
�

%
�

�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

�

�
��
�

�
��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�


�

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�


�
��

�
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

�
�

��
��
�

�
��

�
��
�

�
��

�
��

��
��

�

�

�
��



�

�
�
��

�
��
�

��
��

�
��



�

�
�


�
��
��
�

�
�
�

�
�

��
�


�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�
�

�
��

�
�
�



�
�

�
��

��
�



��

�
�

��
�
�
��

�
�
��

•
�

C
�

�
�
�


�
�
�

��
�

�

�

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
�
�


�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�
��


�
��

�
�

��
�
�


�
��

�
�

��
�


�
��

�
�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
��

��


�

�
�


�
�

�
��
��

�
��
�

•
�

J
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�
�

�
��

�
��
�
�

��
��
�

�
�

�
�



�

�

�

�
�


�
��

�
�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
��

�
�
�

��
��

��
�
�


�
��

�
�

�
��

�
��

�

�

�
��

�
��

��
�
�


�
�

�
�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

�
�

��
��

��
�

�

�

��
�
�

��

�

�
�


�
�

��
��



��

�
�
�

�
��
�

�
��

��
�

�
�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
�

�
��
�

��
�

��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�
�

�
�

�


�

��
�

��
��

�


�
�

�
�

��
�


�
�

�

�

=
��

�
�
�

�

��
�


�
��

�
��


�
��

�
��

�
��
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
�
�
�

��

•
�

�
�
�

��
��
�
�

��
�

�

��
�
��

�
�



�

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�
�



�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�
��

�


��
�

��
��

�

�
��

�
�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�



��
�
�

�

�

�
�


�
��

��
�

��
�
�

�
�
�



�

��

•
�

�
�
�

��
3
�



�
�

�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�

�
��
��

��
��

�
��

�
��

��
�
��

��
�

��
��


�
�
�


�
��

��
��

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�



�
��

�
�
��

��
�
�

�
�

��
�

��
��

�
��

�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�


�
�

�
��

��
�
�

�
��

�


�

�
�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�
��

�

�

�
��

Page 92



�

8
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��




�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��

�
�


�
�
�


�
��

��
��
�
��
�
�
�

� +
�

� ��
�
��
�


�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�


�

•
�

D
�

��
�

��
��

�
�
�


�
�

�
�
�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�
�

��
�

��
�

��
�


�
�
�

��
�
��

�
��



�

�
�


�
��
��

�
�
�

��
�

��
�
��

��
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�
�

��
�

�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

��
��

��
�
��

�
�

�
�
��

��
�
�
��

��
��

�
�

�


�

�
��
�

•
�

%
�

�
�

��
��

��
�

�
�

��
�
�

��
�
��

��
��


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

�

�

�
�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�


�

�
��

�
�3

��
�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��



�

�
�


�
��

��
=
��

�
�

�

�

�

��

��
�

�
��

•
�

2�
��
�
��

�
�
�
��


�
��
�

�
��
��

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�


�
�
��

��
�
�

��
��

�
�


�
��

��
�
�

�
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

�
�



��
�
�


�
�


�
��

�
�
�

��
�
�

��
��

�


��

�
��

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

�
�


�
��

�
�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�
�

�
�

��
�



�

�
�

�
�


�


�

��
��

�

�

�

�

�
�

��
�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

�

•
�

�
�

��
��
�
��

�


�

�
��

�
��

�
��

��


�

�


�

��
��

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��
��

��
�

�
�

�0
�

�
�



�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�
��
�
��


�


�
��

�%
�

�
��

��
�

�

�

�
&

�
�



�
��
�

�
��

��
�
�


�
%

��
�
��

�
�
�(

%
&

�
%

)�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�


�
�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�
��

��
�



�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�
��
�

�
��

=
��

��
�

�
�0

�
�
�

��
�

*�
�%

�
��

�

�

�
�

�
��

�
�
�

�
��

�D
�


�

�
��

��
��

�
�
��

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�



��

�
�

�
�


�
�

�

�

�
�

�
��

��
�

��
�
�

�
�

��
�
��

�
��

�
�
�

��
�

�%
&

�
%

��
�

�
��

��
�


�
��
�

�
�
�

��
��

�


��

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
��

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�
�
��

�
��

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
�


�

�
��

•
�

�
�
�

��

�

�
��
�

��
�

�
�

��
��

�
�
�

��
�
�

��
�

�
�
�
��


�
��

��
�

��
<�

�


��



�
�

�
�



�

�
�
�

��
*�
��

�
��

�
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

�
�

��
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�
�

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�


�
�

��
�

�
�
��

�
�

��
�
��

�
�


�
�

�
�
�


��

�
�
��

�
�

�
�
�

>�
��

�

�
��

��
�

�C
�

��
�

��
�

��
�
�
�

�


�

��
�
�

�
�


�
��

��
�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
�

��
�



�

�
��

�
��
�



�
�

��
��

�
��
�

�
��

�


��

��
��

�


��

�
��

�
3
�
�

��
�

��
��





�

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�
�

�


�

��

•
�

�
�
�

��
�

�

�
��

�
�



��

�
��

�
�

�
�


�
�

�
�
�

�
��

�


��

�

�

��
�

��
�

�
�

�

�

�
��

�
�

��
��
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�


�
�
�

��
�

��
��

��
��
�

��
�

3
�

��
�

�

�


�

�
�


�
�
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

��
��

�
�
�


�
�

��
��

�
��

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�
�

�
��

��
�
�

��
�

�
�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

��


�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
3
�

��
�
�

�
��

�
�

�


��
�
�

�>
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

•
�

�
�
�

��
�
��
�

�
��

�
�


�
�
��
�
��

��
�

�
�

��
��

��
�

�

�

�
�
�

��
��
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�
��

�
�

�
��

�
��
�

��
�
�

�
��

=
��

�
��


�
�,
 
" 
�
"�

�
�

��
��
�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�
��
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�



��

��
�

��
��

�
��
�

�
�


��

��
��

�
�



�
��

�
��

��


�

�3
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
��

��
�
�

��

•
�

2�
�


�
�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�
�
�

��
�

��
�
�

��
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��
�

�
��
��

�
�

�

�

�
�



�
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
��
��

��
�

��
�

�3
��

��
�

��
�

��
�
��

�
��

�
�


��
�

��
�

�
��

(C
�

��
�

)�
��

��
��
��

�
��

��
�
�

��
�

�
�



��
�
�

��
�

�
��
��

��
�


�
�
��
��

��
�



�
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
��

Page 93



�

�
	
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��




�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��

�
�


�
�
�


�
��

��
��
�
��
�
�
�

� -
�

� ��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�



��
�


��
�
��
�
�
�
��



�
�
�
�
�

�

•
�

2�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

�

�

�
�


�
��

�
�

�

�
�

�
��

��
��

�


�

��
��

�
��
�

��
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��
�


�

�
�


�
��

��
��

�
A
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�
�

��
��

��
�
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

�

�

�
��

��
�

�
�
��

�
�
�



�

�
�

�
�

��
�
��

��
��

��
�



�
��

��
�

�
��

�
��

�


�

�
�


�
�

�
��
�

�
��

�
�
��

��
��
�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
��

��

�

•
�

2�
��
�
��



3
�
�

�

�

�
�
�

�
��

�
�
��
��

��
�
�

�
��

��
�

�
��

��
��

�
�


��
�
��

�
�

��
��

��
�

�
��

�
�
�

��
�
��

�
��
�

�
��

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��

��
��

�


�

�
�


�
�


�


�

�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�



�

�
�

�
�

�
��


�
�

�
��

�
�

�

��

�
�
��

��
�

�
�
�

�
��
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
�

�
�
��

��
�


�
��

�
��

�
��

�
��
�



��

�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�
�
�

��
��

•
�

�
�
�

��
�

�

��

�
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

3
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

�


��

�
��
�

�
��
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

�

�
�

�
�


�
�

�
�
�

�
��

��
��
�

�

�

�
�

�
��

�
��
�

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�


�
��

��
�

�
�
�
��

�
�

�


�

�
�

�
�

�
��
�

��
�
�

��
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
�



��


�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
�
��

�
�
��
�

�
�

��
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�



��
�

�
�

��
�

�
�
�

�
��
�

��
�


�


�

�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
��

�

�



�


�
�


�

�
�


�
��

•
�

-
�


�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�


�
�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
3
�

�
��

��
��

�
�

�


�

�
�


�
��
�

�
��
�

�
�
��

�
��

��
�



��

�
��

�
��

�
��
�



��

�
�
�
��
�

��
�

��
�

��
�

��
�

�
��
��

��
�
��

�
�

��
�

�



�


�
�


�

�
�


�
�

�
��

��
��
�
��
�

��
��

��
�



�

��
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
��

�


��

�
�
�


�
��

�
�

��
�
�

��
�
��

�
�
��
�

�
�

��
�
�

�
�

�
��
�

��
��

�
��
�

�
�



��
�

�
�

��
��
�

�
��

�
�
��

�
3
�

��
�
�

��
�

�
��

�
��
�

��
�

�


��
�

�
��

� .
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�)
��
��
�
�

�

��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�

•
�

?
�

�
�



��

�
��





�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

��
�

�
�
�

�
��

��
�
�


�
�
��

�
��

��
�

�.
�

�
�

�
*�
�
�

�

�

�
��

�
�



�
�

��
�
��

�0
�

�
�
�E

��
�

�
�


�
�0

��
�
��

•
�

�
�

��
�


�
�



�

��
��
�
��

�
�

�
��

��
�

�
 �

��
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

�

�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��
��

�
�



�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�
�

�

�
�

��
�

��
��

�
�


�
�

��
��

�
��
�

�
��

�
��
�

�
��

�
�


�
�
��

.
�

�
�

�
�

�
�



�
�

��
�
��

�
�

��
��
�
��

0
�

�
�
�E

��
�

�
�


�
�0

��
�
��
�

��
�

�
�K

L
��

2�
��
�
�

�
�


��
�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�

�
3
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
�

�
�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�


��

�
3
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��


�

��
�

�
�
�
�

��
��

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

�
��

��
�
�


�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

•
�

.
�

�
�

�
�


�
�
�

�
��
�
��

�
��

��
�

�

�

�
��
�
�

�
��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�


�
�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�



�

��
�

�
�

�
�


�
�

�

�

��

�

��
�



�

�
��

�


�

�

�

��
�

�
��

�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�


�
��

•
�

�
�
�

�

�

��
�

�
��

�
�


�

�
��
�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

�



��

��
��

�
��
�
�

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�
��

�
��

�
�



�
��

�
��

�

�

�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�

�
�

�
�


�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�


�
�

Page 94



�

�
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��




�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��

�
�


�
�
�


�
��

��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�

�
�

��
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
��
�

�
�


��

�

�

�
�

�
�

��
��
�

�
��

��
�
��

�
�

�

�
�
�

��
��

�
�



�

�
�

��

•
�

2�
��

�
�

�

�

��
�

�
��

�

��

��
�
�

��
�


��
��

��
�

��
��

��
�

��


�
�

�
�
�
�

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

3
�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

A
�

��
�

�

�

��
��

�
��

��
�
�

��
�

�

�

�

�
�



�

��
��

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�
��

�
�
��

�
��

�
��
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

�
�
�


�
��

�
��

�
3
�
�

�
�

��
�


�
�
��

�
��

�

�

�
�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��
�

�
�


�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�


�

��
��

�
��

�
�


�
��

�
�

��
�

��
��

�
��



�
�

•
�

;
�
�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�



�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�



�
��

�
�
�



��
�


��
��

�
�

�
��
��


�
�

�
�

�
��
��

�
�

�
�

��
�

�

�
�



�
�

�
�

��
��

�
��

��
�

��
�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�
��

�
�

�
�
��
��

��
�
�

�


��



�
��
��

��
��
�
��

�
��
�

�
�

�
�
��
�

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�
�
�

��
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

��
�
�

�
��

•
�

-
�
��

�
��

��
��

C
�

��
�

*�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�


�
�

�
��
�

�
�
��

��
��

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
�

.
�

�
�

�
*�
�
�

�
��
��

�
��

�
��

�


�

�
�
��

�0
�

�
�
�E

��
�

�
�


�
�0

��
�
��



�


�

�
�
��

�
��
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
3
�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�
��
��

�
��

��
�

��
��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
�

�


�

�
�


�
�

�


��

��
�
�

�%
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
	
�

�
��
�

�
��

�
�

��


�


�

��
�



�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��



�

�
��

�
��

��
�


�
��

�
��

�

�

�


�

�
�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

��
�

�
�
��
�

�
��

��
�



�
�

�
�
�


�
��

�

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
��

��
�
�


�
�



��

�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�


�
��

��
;

�
�
��

/
�

�3
�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
�
��

��
�
>�

��
�
��

�
��
�

��
�

��
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�


�
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
�

3
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

�
��

��
�

��
��





�

�
�
��


�
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�


�
��
�

/
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
0

�

�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��


�

 
1
�
2
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
)
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

��
�
"�

•
�

/
�

�
�

�
��

�
�
�


�
��

�
�
�

��
�


�
��

�
��
�

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

��
�

��
�


�
��
�
��

��
�
�

�
��
�

�
�



�

�
��

�
��

�
�
��
�
�

��
�
�

��
�
��

�
�
��

��
�

��
�


�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
�

��
��


�
�

•
�

E
��

�
�%

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�
	

�
:
��

�
�


�
�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�7
�

��
��

�
�(

�
�

��
�
��

�
�
�

)�
�
�
�

��
�
��

�
��

8
��

��
�

�%
&

'
��

�


��

�
��

��
�



��

�
�

�
�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
��

�
�

��
��
�

�
��

��
��

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�

�

��
��

��
��

�
�/

�
�

��
�7

��
�
�

��
�

��
�

�%
�

�
��

�
�
�

��
�
	

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�
�

��
�

�
��
�
��

�
��


�
�
��
�

��
�

�
�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�


�


�

�
��

��
��

��
�

��
�

�
�

Page 95



�

�
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��




�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��

�
�


�
�
�


�
��

��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��

��
�

��
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
��
�

�
��
�

•
�

�
�
�

��
��

�
��

�

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�
��

�


��

�
�

�


�

��
�

�
��
�

�
�



��
�
��

��
��

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
�


�


�

�
��

��
��
�

�
�


�


�

�
�

�

�

�
��

�
��
�
��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
��

�
��

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
�

�



�


�
�
��

�
��

�

•
�

�
�
�

�.
�

�
�

�
�0

�


�

�
�

�D
��
�



��

�

�

��
�

�
�

�

�

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
�


�
�

�
�

��
��

�
�3

��
�
��
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

��
��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
��
��

��
�

��
��
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

��
�

�


��
�
��

��
�
�


�
�
�

�
�

�
��

•
�

�
�
�

��
�

�
�<
�
�

�
��



�

��
*�
��



�

�
�


�
�
�
��

�


��

�
�

�

�

�C
�

��
�

��
�
�

��
�

�
��
��

��


��

�

�
��

�
�
�


�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�





�

��
��

�

�

��
�

�
�

��
�

��
�
��
��

��
�



��

�

�
��

�
�3

��
�

��
=
��

�
�

��
�

�
�



�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�
�

��
��
�

�
��
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�

�



�


�
��

�
��

�
��

•
�

�
�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

��
�



�

�

�
��
�

�
�

��
�

��
�

�3
��

��
�

��
�

�
�


�


�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
C

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�

�

��
��

��
�


�
��
�

�

�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�

�

�

�

�

�
��

��
�
��

��
�

��
�

�
��
�

�
��

�
�
��

��
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

��
�

�
��
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
��

��

�  
 
�

��
�%
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�

•
�

/
�

�
�

�
��

�
�
�


�
��

�

�

�
��
�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�
��

�
�

�

�

��
�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

��
��

•
�

%
�

�
�

��
��

�

�

�


�

��
�
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

�


�

��
�


�
��

�
�
�

��
�

��
�


�
�

�

�
�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�

�
*�
��

��
�

��
��

�
��

�
3
�

��
��

��
�

��
��
�
�

�


�

�
��

�


��

�
�

�
��
�

�
�
��

�
�

�
��
�

�
�
�

��
�
�

�
�
�

��
��

��
�

��
�

��
�
��

��

�

�

•
�

2�
��
�
��



3
�
�

�

�

�
�
�

�
��

�
�
��


�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
�

�

�

��
�

>�
�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

��


��

��
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�

�

��
�
�

�

�
��

��
�
��

�
�

��
�
��

�
�

�H
�

��
�



�

�
��

�
�
�
�



��

��
�

��
��
�

��
��

�
�



�
�

�
��

�
��



�

�
�


�
�

��


�


�

�
�

��
�

�
�


�
�

��
�

�

�

��
�

�
��
�

�

�


�
��

��
�

��
�
��

�
�

�
��

�

•
�

!
�

��
��

�
�

��
��

�
��



�
�

�
�

��
�


�
�

�



�


�
�

�
��

�
��
��
�

�
��

��
�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�
��

��
�

�
��

��
�
�


�
��

��
�

��
��

=
��

�
��

�
��
�

��
�

�
��


��
��
��

�
��
��

��
��

�


�

�


�

�
�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�
�

�
��
�

�
�
�>
�

�
��

��
��
�

�
��


�


�

��
��


�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�



��
�

�
�


�
��
�

�
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

�
�


�
�

�
�
�

�
�

��
��
�

�;
�
�
��

/
�

�3
�
�

��
�

��
�
��

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

�


�

��
�

�
�


�
��

�


��


�
�

�
�
�

�

��
�

��
��

�
��

�
�
�

�
��

Page 96



�

�
:
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��




�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��

�
�


�
�
�


�
��

��
��
�
��
�
�
�

� •
�

�
�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

*�
�


�
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�

��
��
�

��
��

�
�


�
�


�

�
�
��

�
�

��
�

��
��

��
�
�
��

�
��
��

�
��

��
��

��
�

�
�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
�

�


��

�
�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
�

�

�

��
��

��
�


�
��
�

�

�
�

��
�
�

�
��
�

��




�

�
�
�

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
��
�
�

��
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�


�
�

�

�
�


�
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
3
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�



�

�
�


�
�
�
�

��
�

��
�
�

�
��

�  
#
�

� 

�
�
�
�%
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��




�



�
��
��
�
�
��
��
%
�
�
��
�

�
�
&
�
��
��
�


�
�
��
��

�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

•
�

%
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�

�

��
�
�


�
��

�
��

��
�

��
�

�
�
��

��
��

�
�
��

�
�


�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��

•
�

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��
�>
�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

�


�

�
�


�
�

�
�

$�
��



�



�
�
�

�

�

�

�

�
�

�


�
�

�
��

�
��

��
��
��


�


�
��
��



�

��
�

�
��

��
�

��
�
��

��
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

��
��

�
�


�
�

�
��

�
�
�


�
��

�
�

��
�


�
�

��
�

��
�
��

� � �

�

•
�

�
�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

��
�
��

�
�3

��
�
��

��
�



�

�
��

��
�

�C
�

��
�

��
�

�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
�
��

�
�
�

��
��
�
�

��
��

�
��

�
��

��
��

�
�

��
>�

��
��

�
�
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
��
�

��
�

�
�

��


�

�
�

��
�


�
�
��

�
�

�
��

��
��

��
�
�

��
��
�
�

��
��

�
3
�

��
�

�
�

�
�
��

�
�

�
��

��
�
��

��


�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�

�

��
�
��
�

�
�

�

��
�

�
��

>�
�
��

��
�

��
�

�
�
�


�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�
�

��
�
��

��
�
��

�
��

�
�
�

�
3
�

��
�

��
�


�
�
�

��
��



�

�
�
��

�
��

•
�

�
��

��
��

�
��

��
�
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
��
�

��
��

�
�



��
�


�


�

��
�

��
�

�
�


�
�
�

�
�
��

�
�3

��
�
��

�
�

��
�

�

�

��
��
�

�

�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�


�
 �

�
�
�

�


��



�
��

�
�

�
�

��
��
�

�%
&

'
��

•
�

;
�
�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�
�
��


�
��
�

�
��

�
��

�
��
��

��
�



��
�

�3
��

��
�



�

�
��

��
�

�
C

�
��

�
��
�

��
��

�
��

��
��
�
�

�

�
�



�

��
�

�
��

��
��

��
�
��

��
�
��

�
��

��
�



��

��
�

��
�
��

�
�

��
��
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�



�
�

�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��
�
��

�


�

�
�

�
�


��

�


�

�
�

��
�

•
�

2�
��

��
�
�

��
��
�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�


��



�
��

�


�

�
�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�
��

�
��
��

��
�



�
�

�
�

��
��

��
�
�

�

�
�



�

��
�

��
�

��
��

��
��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�
�

�
��

�
��

�


�

�
��

��
�

�


��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

��
�

� �

Page 97



�

�
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��




�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��

�
�


�
�
�


�
��

��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��


��
�
�3
�
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
�
�

�%
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�


�4
�
�
2
5�

�  
'
�

2
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

��
�

�
��
��
�
��


��
�
�
�

�
�
�


�

��
�
��


�
�
�
�
��
�

�

•
�

J
�

�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�
�



��
�


��
�
�
�

�
��

��
�
�

�
�

�


�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�

�

��
��
�

�
%

&
'

��
�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�


�
�

�
��

��
�



�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�
�

��
�
�

��
�

��
��

��
�

�

��

�
��

��

•
�

�
�
�

��
��
�
��

�

�

�


�

��
��
�

�
��
��

��
��

�


�

�
�

�
�

�
��
�

��
�

�
��

�
��

�


��

�
�
�

��


�

�
�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
��

�


�

�

�
�

��
�
�

�
�
�

��
�

�
�
�

�
��

�
�
��

��
�
�

��
�

•
�

�
�

��
��

�
�
�

��
�
��

�
��

��
�



�
�

�
�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�

�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�

�

�
�
�

��
��

�

�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�


��

�
�3

�
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

��
�

��

�
��

�
��
�



�
��

�
�



��

�
��

��
�

�0
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

�E
�
�

�
�
�

�
�1

�


��
�
�3

�
�

�
�

��
�

•
�

2�
��

�
�

��
�
�

��
��

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
>�

��


�

�
�

�
�

��
�
�

��
�

�


��

�
��

�
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
��

�


��

�
��

�
3
�

�
��
�

��
�

3
�

��
�


�
�

��
��

�
��
�
�

��
�

��
�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�
�

�
��

�
�

��
�


�
�
��

�
�

��
�

�


�


�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�
��

�
��

��
�
��

�
�

��

•
�

-
�

�
�


�
�

�
�
�

�
��
�

��
�

��
��

��
�


��
�

��
��

�
��

�
�

��
�



��
�

��
�



�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

��

�

�
�

�
�
��

��
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
�

��
��

�
��
�

�
��

��
�



��
�

�
�

��
�



�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��
�
�


�
�
�
��

��
�

�


�

��
��

��
�
�

��
�

�
�


�
�
��
�

�
�

��
��

�
��
��

�
��
��

�
�
�

�
��

�


��

�
��

�
��
�

•
�

'
�

�
��

�
�
�
��

��
�

�

��

�
��
�

�
��

�
�
��
�

#
�%

&
'

��
��

�
�
�

�
��

��
��

�


�

�
��
�
�

�


�

��
�

��
�
��

=
�


�
��

�
��
�

��
��

�
��

��
��

�
��

��
�
=
��

��
�

�
�
��

�

��

�


��

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
��

A
�

�

��

�
��

�
�
��

�
��

�

�

�
�
��

��
�

��
�

�

��

�
��

��

�  
(
�

6
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��



��
�
�
��


��
��
��
�
�4
�



5�



�
�
�
�
�
��




�




�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
.
�

�

•
�

0
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�


�
��

�
�

�
��
�

�
�
��

��
��

�
�

��
��

�

�

�

�

�
�
��

�
��
�

�
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�

�
�

��
��
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�
�

�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�



�
�

�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�

�
��

�

�

•
�

�
�

��
��
�
��


�
�

�
�

�
��


�
�
�

�
�

 �
��

�
�


�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�



��
�

��
�

�
�


�
�

��
�

�
�
�H

�
��

�
��
�

�
��

�
��

��
��

�
�



��


�
�
�

�
��

(�
:

$�
�

)�
��

��
�



�

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

��
�
��

��
�
��

��
�

�
�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�
��

��
�



�


�
�
�

��
�

��
��
�

��
�

�
��

��
�

�
�

��
��

��
�



�

��
��
�
��

�
�

�
�
�

��
�

�
��
��

�
�


�
�

�

•
�

�
�

��
��

�


��


�
�

��
�




�

�
�
��

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

��
�
��

�
��

��
��

��
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�


�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��
�
�

��
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
��
�

��
��
�
�

�
��

��
�
�

�
�

�
��

��
�
�



�

��
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

��
�

��
�

 �
�

�
�

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
�

��
��
�

�
�
��

�


��

�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

��
�

��
2�

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
�
�
��


�
��

�
��

��
�

��
�

��
�
��

�
��


�
�

�
��

��
��

�
��

�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�



�

�

Page 98



�

�
9
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��




�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��

�
�


�
�
�


�
��

��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�

•
�

�
�
�

��
�

��
�


�
��

�


��


�
�

��
�

��
=
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
�

�
��

�
�

��
�
��
�

��
��

��
�

�
�

�
�
�

��
�

�

�
3
�

�
��

��
�

��


�
�
�

��
�

��
�
�

��
�

��
�


�
��

�
��

��
�

�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

3
�
��

��
�

�
�

��
�

��
��

�
�

�
��
��

�
��

��
�

��
��
�

�
��

��
�

��
��

�
��



�

�
�


�

�  
	
�

7
�
��
�
��
�




�




�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
%
�

�
��
�
)
��
�

��
�
�


�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�


�

•
�

�
�

��
��

�
�
�

�
��
�

��
��
��
�

�
��
�
�

��
��

�
�


�
�

�
�

�
�

��
�



�


�

�
�
��

�
�


�
�

�

�

�
�

��
��
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
��
��

�
�
�


�

�

•
�

%
�

�
��


�
�

�0
�
�



�

��
��

�
�

�  
*
�

7
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
)
��
��
�
�

�
%
�
��
�
�




��
�
�
�

��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��

)
�


��
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�

•
�

%
�

�
�

��
�

�
�


�
��

�
�

��
�


�
��

��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��
�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�

�

��
��
�

�%
&

'
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
�

�
��

�
�
�


�
�

�

�

�
�
��

�
��

�


�

�
�
�

�
�

��
�
��

�
�
�

�

�

�
�
��

�
�

•
�

%
�

�
��


�
�

�

�
�



�

��
�
��

�
�,

��
:

��

�

�  
+
�

6
�
��
��
�
�


�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�%
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

��
��
��

��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�


�

•
�

/
�

�
�

�
��

�
�
�


�
��

��
�
�

��
�
�


�
��

�
��

��
�

�


�

�
�
�


�
�

��
�

�
��
�
��

�
�

�
��

�

�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
�

�
�



��

��
�

��
�

�
��


�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

•
�

�
�
�

�
��

�
�


�
�

�3

�
��

�
��

�
��
�

�
�


�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

��
��

��
�
�

��
��



�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

��
��

�
�
�



�

�
��

�
�

��
��
�

�
��
��

��
�

�
��

�
�

��
��


�
�

��
�

�

�
�



�

��
�
�

��
�

�

�
�

�
�

•
�

�
�

��
��

�
�


�
��

�
��

�




�
�

�
�

��
-

��
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
��

�

�

��
��
�

��
�

�
�

.
�

�
�

�
�/

�
�

��
�0

�
�
�



�
�

�
�
��

�
��

��
��

��
�

�

�
�

�
�


�
�

��
�

�
��

-
�

��
��

�
��

��
��

��
�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�
�

��
��

�
��

�
�
�


�
�
�

�
�

�
��

�
�
��

�
�

�
��
�

3
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

�


��

�
��

��
�

�
��

�
�
��

�
��

�
�

�
��

�
��
�

�
��

�


��

��
�
��

�
��
�

�
��
�

��
��

�
�

�
3
�
��

�
��

��
�
�

��
�


�
�
��

�
�
��

�
�

�
��

�
�

�
��
�

�
��

��
�



��
�

�
�


�
��

�
�
�

�
��

��
�
�

�
�

�


�
��

�
�

��
�

�
�


�
�

�
�
�

�
��

��
��
�

�

�

�
�
�

��
�

��
�

�
�
�.

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

��
��

��
��

�
��

�
��
�

�
�


�
�
�

�
��

��
�

�

��

�
�
�

��
�

�
�
�

��

�

�
�

��
A
�

�
�
��

�
��

��
�

�
��
�

�
��

�

Page 99



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



� ��
�
�

��
��

�
	



��



��

�
�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�
��

�
��

�
�
��

	
��

��
�
	

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��
�

��
�

��
��

��
�

�
�

	
��

��
	

��
�

�
��

�
�
�



�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
��
��

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
�

�
�
�

�
�	

��
�

�	
�

��
�	

�
�

��
�

�
�
��

��
��

�
�
�

 �
!

�

"
��



��

�
��

#
�	

$�
�
��

�
�

"
%

��
%

��
��

�
�
�
�

 �
�

�

�
�
�%

�
��

"
%

��
%

��
��

�
�
�
�

 �
�

�

�



��
�
�

�
&

%
�



�
��

�
�
�
�

 �
!

�

#
�	

$�
�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

 �
!

�
��

�
�
�
��

��
��

�
�
!

 �
'

�
#

�	
$�

�
��

�
�

(
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
!

 �
'

�

��
�

�
�
��

��
�

�
�
�
'

 �
�

�

#
�	

$�
�
��

�
�

(
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
'

 �
�

�

�
��

��
��
��
)
�

�
)
�

�
)
�

�
)
�

�
��

)
�

�
��

)
�

�

�
��
��
��
��
�

	
�

�
�
��


�
	
�

�
�
�

�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
	
�

�
�
	
	


��

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�


��
�
�
�

�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
	
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
	
	


��

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
� 
!
�

�
�
��
�


��

�
�
�

�
�

�
��
��
��

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��

�
�

�
��
�


�

�
� 
!
�

�
��
��
��
��
�

�
"
#
�

� �
�

�
��
�


�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�


�

�
��
$

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�


��
��
%
�
�
&
'
�


�
��
!
(�
)
�*
��
�
	
�%
)
�)
)
	
	
�

�
�

�
�
(�
!
+�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�


	
�
�
�
��
��
�


��
,
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

��
�
	
�

�
�


�


�
�


�
��
��
�
�


��

��
�

�

�
�
�

)
�-
&
�

)
�)
)
�

!
��
�
�

!
��
-
�

�
�
���

	
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
�
�

�
�


�

�
��
��
�


��

��
�

�

�
�
�

!
�)
�
�

.
�
/�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
	
�

��
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
�


�
�
	


�
��

�
��
�
"
#
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�




�
�
�

�
��
&
�

��
�
��
�


�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
��

��


��


0
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

��
�
��
�


�
��
�
��
��


�
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�


0
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
�

1
�
�
'


�
��
��


��

�
�

��
�

�
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

2


�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�,
�
�
�


��
�
�
0
�

�
��
$

�
�

�
�

�
��
&
�
!
(�
)
�

� 3
�


��
�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�


�
�
	


�
��

�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��




�
��
�
��
�

��
4

�
��
�
�
��
�


��
��
��
�
�

�
�!
&
�

�
�!
�
�

�
�-
&
�

�
�&
&
�
�	

�
�

	


�
��
�

�
�
��
��

��
�
��
�
�
��
��


��



��

�



�
�



�
�

�
��
-
�

.
�
/�
�

�
�
�


	
�
�

	


�
��
�

�

�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��


��



��

�



�
�



�
�

�
�&
&
�

3

�
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
 
��
"
#
�

#
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�

�
� 
&
�

�
��
-
�

�
�&
5
�

�
�)
)
�

�
 
/�
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�


�
�

&
�5
�
�

6
�
�
��


�
,
�

��
��

�


��
�
�
�
�
�


�
�

,
�
�
�


��
��
��
�
���

	


�
�
�
/�


�
�

�
�

�
��
�


�
��
�


�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�

&
��
-
�

��
�
��
�


�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
	
�

�
��


��
�
�

�


�	



��
�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�

�

�
�
��


��

�


�
�

�
5
/�
-
��


�
��
�
��
�
�/


�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

	


�
�
�
��


�
�

�
�

�
�
�
��


��
��
�


��
�
�
�
��

,
�
�
�


��

3

�
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
 
�

	
�

�
�
��


�
	
�

#
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�

�
�!
 
�

�
�!
�
�

&
�-
�
�

�
�!
 
�

#
�
��
�
�
�
�


��
�
��



4

�
�

�
�
��
��
�


�
��

)
�

&
��
&
�
�
���
�
�
�

��
�0

��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
)
�

&
��
 
�

#


0
��
��
�


�
��
�0

��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�)
�

Page 101



� �

�
�
�

�
�	

��
�

�	
�

��
�	

�
�

��
�

�
�
��

��
��

�
�
�

 �
!

�

"
��



��

�
��

#
�	

$�
�
��

�
�

"
%

��
%

��
��

�
�
�
�

 �
�

�

�
�
�%

�
��

"
%

��
%

��
��

�
�
�
�

 �
�

�

�



��
�
�

�
&

%
�



�
��

�
�
�
�

 �
!

�

#
�	

$�
�
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�

 �
!

�
��

�
�
�
��

��
��

�
�
!

 �
'

�
#

�	
$�

�
��

�
�

(
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
!

 �
'

�

��
�

�
�
��

��
�

�
�
�
'

 �
�

�

#
�	

$�
�
��

�
�

(
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
'

 �
�

�

� �

3

�
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�

��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�

&
��
&
�

&
��
&
�

&
�!
!
�

&
��
&
�

#
�
��
�
�
�
�


��
�
��



4

�
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
�

&
�-
�
�
�
���
�
�
�

��
�0

��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
)
�

&
��
�
�

#


0
��
�
�

��
�0

��
��
�
�
�

��
�

�
�)
�

3

�
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��


�

�


�
�

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�

&
��
-
�

&
��
-
�

&
��
-
�

&
��
-
�

#
�
��
�
�
�
�


��
�
��



4

�
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
�

&
��
�
�
�
���
�
�
�

��
�0

��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
)
�

&
�&
!
�

#


0
��
�
�

��
�0

��
��
�
�
�

��
�

�
�)
�

��
�


�


�
�


�
��

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
�

*7


��
�
+�
�

�
�
�

#
�
��
�
�
�
�


�

!
��
&
�

!
��
&
�

!
��
&
�

!
��
&
�
�

!
��
&
�
�

!
��
&
�

� (
%

�
*�

	
��

��
��

�
�
+�

�
�

�
�
+,

!
�

�
�
+�

!
�

�
'
+!

-
�

��
�
�
+,

'
�

��
.
+�

!
�

��
8
�
�
�


��
�
�

�
�
�
�

�

�
��
&
�
!
(�
)
�

��
��
�
"
#
��
��
�

�

�
�
�

��
��

��
&
��
�
�

��
��

��
��

� �
	

��
��

��
�
�
+�

�
�

�
�
+,

!
�

�
�
+�

!
�

�
�
+�

!
�

��
�
�
+,

'
�

��
.
+�

!
�

� #
�
�

��
�
�
�

�
�0

��
�

�
�
,
�

��
�
�

�
��
9�
�
�

��
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��


�
�
�

��
�
��
��
�
�

��


�
�

�


��
��
�
��
��


�

	
�


�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
��
�
�
�,
�
�
�


��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
��

#
�
�

��
�
�
���
�


0
�:
�
�
��
�
 
��
"
#
��
��
�


�
��
�

�
��
&
�
)
/�
-
�0

��
��


�



�


��
�


�	



�
�
�
/�


�
�

�
��


��
�
�
�
��
,
�
�
�


��
�
��
,


��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

��

#
�
�

�!
�
�
���
�


0
�:
�
�
��
�
 
��
"
#
��
��
�


�
��
�

�
��
&
�
)
/�
-
�0

��
��


�



�


��
�


�	



�
�
�
/�


�
�

�
��


��
�
�
�
��
,
�
�
�


��
�
��
,


��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

��

#
�
�

�)
�
6
�
�
�


�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
9�
�

�
�

�


�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�


��
�
�	

�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�0

��
�,


��
�
�

��
,
�

��
��
�
�
�0

�
�
�,
�
�
��
�


��
��
��
��

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
�

/�
�

�
��

�
'


��
��
�
�
�7



��
�
;�
��
�

/�
�

�
��

�
'


��

�
�
�
�
�
�:
��
�
�7



��
�
6
�
��
��
��


�

�
�
��
�
�
	


�


�
�<



�
��
=
�
�'
�
�

�


�,
�
�
��
��
�


��
�
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�%
5
��
-
��


��
0




'
��
��
%
!
)
�&
&
��


��
	
�
�
��
��

� #
�8
��
�
�


��

�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�


��
�
,
�

��
,
�
�


��
�

�,
�
�


�
��
�
��
�


��
�

�

�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
$

�
�

�
�

4
�


�
�

�
�
�

��
��

)
�
�
+�

�
�
�

�
��
&
�
!
(�
)
��
�
�


��
��
$

�
�

�
�

4
�


�
�

�
�
�

(�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�

��
�
�
0
�
�,
�
�


�
�

�
�
��
�


��


�
�
	
	


�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
���
�
�
�
�
�


�
��
�

��
�
�
�


�
�

�
��
�


��
�
�	


�

	
�
	
��


�

�
�
��
��
�
��


�
��
�

Page 102



 

 

Report of  Jane Held, Independent Chair Leeds Safeguarding Children Board 

Report to Children and Families Scrutiny Board 

Date:   25 July 2013 

Subject:  Draft LSCB Annual Report on the Effectiveness of Safeguarding 

                      Arrangements for Children and Young people in Leeds (July 2013) 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. This cover report introduces the attached draft LSCB Annual Report prior to its 
consideration by the LSCB on 19 July 2013. The final version will be presented to 
the Council’s Chief Executive, the Leader of the Council, the Police & Crime 
Commissioner and the Health and wellbeing Board. It will be published on the 
LSCB website at the end of August. 

 
2. The draft LSCB Annual Report includes a summary of progress made to ensure 

that the safeguarding needs are met of children and young people who are privately 
fostered in Leeds. 

 
 

Recommendations 

The Scrutiny Board is asked to: 
 

1. Receive and comment on the content of the draft LSCB Annual Report. 
  
2. Note the challenges for 2013/14, including those accepted by the Children’s Trust 

Board. 
 

 Report author:  Bryan Gocke / 
Jane Held 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 103



 

 

3. Consider the progress being made to safeguard children and young people who are 
privately fostered. 

 

Purpose of this report 

To update Children and Families Scrutiny Board on the progress being made by and 
through the Leeds Safeguarding Children Board to improve safeguarding children practice 
in Leeds. 

Background information 

It is a statutory requirement under the Apprenticeships, Skills, Children and Learning Act 
2009 for the LSCB to publish an annual report evaluating the effectiveness of safeguarding 
arrangements for children and young people (C&YP) in the local area. 

The LSCB Annual Performance Report, including challenges for 2013/14, was received 
and accepted by the Children’s Trust Board (CTB) on 27.06.13. The Annual Report will be 
presented to the CTB on 05.09.13. 

The CTB must take account of the report in preparing and refreshing the Children & Young 
people’s Plan.  

Main issues 

Effectiveness of the LSCB:  

The report indicates that the LSCB has made good progress in addressing the challenges 
it set for itself in 2012/13. 

The over-arching challenge it is setting itself for 2013/14 is to ‘step up a gear’; to build on 
progress made in 2012/13 in order to more fully understand the effectiveness of the 
safeguarding system in Leeds and better lead the partnership in developing services and 
multi-agency working in order to improve outcomes for C&YP. 
 
 

Private Fostering 
 
The Scrutiny Inquiry Report on Private Fostering published on 17.01.13. recommended 
‘that the LSCB advises the Scrutiny Board in July 2013 of the progress made by Children’s 
Services against the updated action plan’. 
 
The LSCB, at its meeting on 28 June 2013 received the Annual Private Fostering Report 
from Children’s Services. A summary of its contents is included in the LSCB Annual 
Report at (8.2.5). 
 
The Private Fostering Report identifies that progress is being made in: 
 

• Raising professional awareness about the need to identify and respond to private 
fostering arrangements 

• Updating the Communications Strategy 

Page 104



 

 

• Establishing a private fostering service to support the work of social workers, 
undertake assessments and provide training / advice across the partnership. 

 
An audit of case files was undertaken in January 2013 indicating that although progress 
had been made in ensuring that statutory visits were undertaken, improvements were still 
required in the timely completion of assessments and undertaking police checks. 
 
A further audit will take place in November 2013. This will provide a more comprehensive 
picture of the impact that current developments are having on responding to children and 
young people who are privately fostered. 
 
 

Performance against challenges to CTB for 2012/13:  

The overarching challenge to the CTB remained to ‘rebalance the safeguarding system’ to 
reduce the need for statutory intervention to safeguard C&YP.  

Evidence of progress made in the year is provided by: 

• The gradual reduction in the number of children and young people who need to 
be looked after 

• The establishment of a CSWS Duty and Advice Team and revised 
arrangements for responding to contacts and referrals from partner agencies 

• The continued investment in Early Help Services. 

 

Summary of the Effectiveness of Safeguarding arrangements: 

Ensuring that risk is being managed appropriately and safely is a crucial factor at all times; 
but particularly so during a period of ‘whole system re-orientation’ as is currently the 
circumstances in Leeds. It is important that the LSCB is able to be satisfied that risk is 
being managed safely and appropriately in individual cases. 

The evidence that will be considered by the LSCB on 19.07.13.includes: 

• The reduction in the number of looked after children and young people is gradual and 
is being actively managed. The reduction is due to a combination of fewer receptions 
into care (with alternative, more appropriate, options being rigorously explored) and 
improved permanency planning. 

• Although the number and make-up of the cohort of children and young people who are 
subject to child protection plans requires further investigation and improvements are 
required in the effectiveness of plans, it is notable that the LSCB audit confirmed the 
Ofsted findings of 2011 that children and young people are not being left in unsafe 
situations. 

• Concerns remain about the high rate of re-referral to Children’s Social Work Services 
with the implication that some children and young people may not be receiving a timely 
and effective response. Nevertheless, the introduction of the new Duty and Advice 

Page 105



 

 

Team has impacted positively on these figures and the trend is expected to continue in 
2013/14 as the new arrangements bed in. 

• Considerable audit and review activity is being undertaken to better understand the 
working of the safeguarding system as a whole and the performance of its component 
parts. 

Challenges for 2013/14:  

The LSCB, in response to changes in guidance (Working Together 2013), will need to 
evidence it has increased the rigour of its challenge to partners and more explicitly driven 
(and understood) improvements in outcomes for C&YP.  

At the same time it needs to seek to work more collaboratively with the Safeguarding Adult 
Board and the Community Safety Partnership to identify things we can do better together 
and support each other with. 

Challenges accepted by the CTB for 2012/13 include the following: 

• To continue to progress the ‘rebalancing’ of the safeguarding system in Leeds in order 
to promote a more preventative approach (C&YP receiving ‘the right service at the 
right time’) and reduce the need for statutory intervention. Key components of this 
approach are: 

To reduce the number of C&YP who need to be ‘looked after.’ 
 
To support more effective multi-agency engagement in the oversight and 
implementation of child protection plans. 
 
To develop and extend the comprehensive, multi-agency, Early Help offer, 
supported and facilitated by a common approach to assessment. 

 

• To ensure that during this period of transition within the system, risk is managed 
appropriately and safely in individual cases. 

•  To ensure that the rebalancing of the system is supported by the development of a 
partnership approach to shared professional values, attitudes and behaviours and 
common principles of supervision. 

• To continue to promote a restorative approach to working with C&YP and their families 
that will more consistently result in ‘the voice of the child’ being included in all 
interventions and which promotes the principles established by the CTB: 

The default behaviour of Children’s Trust and Local Government partners in all their 
dealings with local citizens/partners/organisations should be a restorative one - high 
support with high challenge. 

Children’s Trust and Local Government partners should ensure that families, whose 
children might otherwise be removed from their homes, are supported to meet and 
develop a safe alternative plan before such action is taken. 

Page 106



 

 

For all other families where a plan or decision needs to be made to help safeguard 
and promote the welfare of a child or children the family should be supported to 
help decide what needs to happen.  Children’s Trust and Local Government 
partners must create the conditions where families can be helped to help 
themselves - this would represent a fundamental renegotiation of the relationship 
between Local Government and local citizens - from doing things to and for families 
to doing things with them. 

Children’s Trust and Local government partners must see all local schools as 
community assets and have a clear role in holding those institutions - no matter 
what the governance arrangements - to account for the contribution they make to 
the well-being of the local population. 

• To work with partners who commission services for C&YP to: 

Build into their commissioning processes a requirement of compliance with s(11) of 
the Children Act 2004 / s(175) Education Act 2002 

Establish a common performance management framework which is compatible with 
the LSCB framework. 

•  To review access and availability of services for families who have suffered a child / 
young person bereavement. 

•  In the light of work being undertaken by the LSCB, LSAB & SL, to review the provision 
of services to address situations where C&YP are living in the context of compromised 
parenting (domestic violence, parental substance mis-use, parental mental ill health). 

• As a better understanding of the scale of CSE is established, to review the provision of 
services to (i) reduce the number of Young People at risk / suffering from sexual 
exploitation and (ii) respond to young people who have become victims. 

• To develop and co-ordinate improved services for vulnerable 16 – 21 year olds. 

Corporate Considerations 

Consultation and Engagement  

Active interest from CLT and Corporate Leaders in the work of the LSCB has made 
a significant contribution to the improvement journey. There is a shared expectation 
within the Council that a Child Friendly City also has to be a Safe City. This enables 
the LSCB to take some assurance about the direction of travel.  

Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

The work of the Board contributes to improved community cohesion. Over the next 
year part of the public engagement work the Board plans will be to use the new 
LSCB website to increase community engagement with the work of the Board.   

Council Policies and City Priorities 

Page 107



 

 

The work of the LSCB is central to the Council’s priorities and policies for children 
and young people. 

Resources and Value for Money  

A Funding and Value for Money Review identified the need to maintain the current 
level of Base Budget expenditure for the LSCB and requested partners to increase 
their contributions to ensure ‘in year’ financial viability and maintain an appropriate 
level of strategic reserve. A revised funding formula was agreed amongst existing 
contributing partners to ensure that the agreed expenditure for the Base Budget of 
£521,000 was fully funded for 2013/14 and that a small commissioning budget 
would be available to be used to address emerging themes and challenges. 

Out-turn figures at the end of March 2013 indicated that an in year shortfall in 
funding of £21,000 was mitigated by an underspend of £32,000. This enabled a 
strategic reserve of £50,000 to be carried forward into 2013/14 and a 
commissioning budget to be established of £35,000. 

Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

No specific implications 

Risk Management 

The Board is currently completing its Annual Review focusing on how well we work 
together to improve outcomes for vulnerable C&YP. The ‘Effective Governance’ 
scorecard in the Performance Management System indicates that progress 
continues to be made to tighten governance and system wide processes.  

Conclusions 

The draft Annual Report of the LSCB concludes that considerable progress is being 
made to make the necessary changes to improve multi-agency working, services 
and outcomes for children and young people. It identifies where more progress 
needs to be made and where we need to better understand problems and issues 
faced by children and young people in Leeds. 

Challenges are set for the LSCB and the Children’s Trust Board to address in 
2013/14 which  promote a direction of travel which encompasses an increasing 
focus on: 

 The quality of services rather than on the timeliness of processes 

        The LSCB operating more like an ‘Improvement Board’ 

 The frontline and community engagement 

 The voice of children and young people 

 The use of research and evidence based practice. 

 

Page 108



 

 

Recommendations 

The Scrutiny Board is asked to: 
 

1) Receive and comment on the content of the draft LSCB Annual Report. 
 

2) Note the challenges for 2013/14, including those accepted by the Children’s Trust 
Board.  
 
3) Consider the progress being made to safeguard children and young people who 

are privately fostered. 
 

 
Background documents  

 Leeds Safeguarding Children Board draft Annual Report (2012/13) 

 

Page 109



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 DRAFT (2) 11.07.13. 

 
Report of Jane Held, Independent Chair 
 
Report originator Bryan Gocke, LSCB Manager 
 
 
               LSCB  Annual Report  2012/13  

 
 
This draft of the report to be received by the LSCB at its Annual Review Meeting on 19 July 2013. 
 
The LSCB Executive will receive the final draft at its meeting on 16.08.13. 
 
An introduction from the LSCB Chair will be added to the final version. 
 
The final version will be published on the LSCB website at the end of August 2013. 

 
1.0 Executive Summary 

 
  
 This Annual Report of the Leeds Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) evaluates the effectiveness of safeguarding arrangements for 

children and young people in Leeds in 2012/13 and sets out how the Board’s work will be developed and strengthened in 2013/14. It is 
drawn from a wide range of sources from across the children’s partnership and reflects the continuation of an ‘improvement journey’ 
that has involved a high degree of multi-agency co-operation and collaboration. 

P
age 111



  

 We are seeking to improve outcomes for vulnerable children and young people in Leeds by ensuring that they receive ‘the right 
services at the right time’ in order to address emerging issues and problems quickly and effectively. This has required a commitment by 
the children’s partnership  to develop preventative early help family support services that will, over time reduce the number of children 
and young people whose problems have developed to the point where statutory intervention (through a child protection plan or 
becoming ‘looked after’ by the Local Authority) has become necessary. 

  

 Context 

  

 The report notes the considerable impact of policy developments from Central Government and sets the work of the partnership and 
individual agencies within the Leeds context. 

  

 The Effectiveness of Safeguarding Arrangements in Leeds 

  

 A comprehensive review of performance, quality assurance and audit findings clearly outlines the breadth and depth of work being 
undertaken to safeguard and promote the wellbeing of children and young people in Leeds. Engaging children and young people about 
safeguarding matters and their own care is being progressed and good use is being made of external expertise to shape the planning 
and development of services. Significant service restructuring has and is taking place to respond to the changing circumstances of the 
public sector and to promote more effective ways of working with children, young people and their families. More quantitative and 
qualitative information is being collated to help analyse: 
 

• Where progress is being made 

• What outcomes are being achieved 

• What difference this is making 

•  Where more improvement is required 

• What requires further investigation and understanding. 

  

 There are positive indications that the improvement journey has sound foundations: 
 

• There is a clear, coherent strategic direction which is focused on increasing the availability and effectiveness of Early Help 
preventative services and reducing the need for statutory intervention. This is formalised in the Children and Young People’s 
Plan and supported through the challenges from the LSCB to ‘rebalance the safeguarding system’. 
 

• A shared partnership culture is developing underpinned by a restorative approach to working with children, young people and 

P
age 112



their families that seeks to ‘never do nothing’ and to provide the right service at the right time with ‘high support and high 
challenge’. 

  

 There is evidence of good progress being made in the aims and objectives set by the partnership: 
 

• The reduction in the number of children and young people who need to be looked after 

• The quality of services being provided for children and young people in the care of the Local Authority 

• The establishment of revised Children’s Services ‘Front Door’ arrangements which have supported: 
o An increase in conversations between partners about how best to respond to children and young people about whom 

concerns have been raised 
o A reduction in the number of referrals accepted by Children’s Social Work Service 
o An improved understanding of the nature and scale of patterns of domestic violence across the city 

• Continuing the investment in and co-ordination of Early Help services. 

  

 Emerging challenges are identified which have contributed to those set for the LSCB and Children’s Trust Board in 2013/14: 
 

o A greater understanding is required of: 
 

• The trends and composition of the number of children and young people who are subject to child protection plans 

• The full nature and extent of multi-agency Early Help and preventative activity being undertaken 

• How the development of a single assessment framework across the partnership and the continuum of ‘risk’ and ‘need’ can 
enhance the planning of Early Help interventions 

 
o Areas identified for improvement include: 

 

• The timeliness of child protection processes 

• The effectiveness of child protection plans 

• The provision of services for children and young people at risk of or suffering sexual exploitation 
 

o Areas identified for development include: 
 

• The agreement to a single assessment framework and process which is robust and straightforward to use 

• The updating of the Leeds ‘Think family Protocol’ to improve multi-agency responses to children and young people living in 
the context of ‘compromised parenting’. 

P
age 113



• The exploration of a partnership approach to establishing a Young People’s Service (16 – 25 yrs) that would cater for 
vulnerable young people, including care leavers. 

  

 During a period of ‘whole system re-orientation’ it is particularly important that the Board has that risk in individual cases is being 
managed appropriately and safely. The report provides the following information to inform that judgment: 
 
 

• The reduction in the number of looked after children and young people is gradual and is being actively managed. The reduction 
is due to a combination of fewer receptions into care (with alternative, more appropriate, options being rigorously explored) and 
improved permanency planning. 

• Although the number and make-up of the cohort of children and young people who are subject to child protection plans 
requires further investigation and improvements are required in the effectiveness of plans, it is notable that the LSCB audit 
confirmed the Ofsted findings of 2011 that children and young people are not being left in unsafe situations. 

• Concerns remain about the high rate of re-referral to Children’s Social Work Services with the implication that some children 
and young people may not be receiving a timely and effective response. Nevertheless, the introduction of the new Duty and 
Advice Team has impacted positively on these figures and the trend is expected to continue in 2013/14 as the new 
arrangements bed in. 

• Considerable audit and review activity is being undertaken to better understand the working of the safeguarding system as a 
whole and the performance of its component parts. 

  

 The Effectiveness of the LSCB 

  

 Through its annual review process the LSCB evaluates the work it has undertaken through the previous year, identifying progress 
made, emerging challenges and the impact it has had on the work to improve safeguarding services and outcomes for children and 
young people. 
 
Good progress was made on all the tasks set in the Business plan for 2012/13 and outstanding actions have been included in the 
Business Plan for 2013/14. 
 
Within the framework of the Strategic Plan progress has been made in the following areas: 
 

o Lead, Listen and Advise 
o The production of an Annual Report evaluating the effectiveness of safeguarding in Leeds and identifying challenges for 

the coming year 

P
age 114



o Improved dissemination of safeguarding messages across the partnership 
o Establishing Lay Member and children and young people’s input to the Board 

 
o Know the Story; Challenge the Practice 

o The development and expansion of the LSCB Performance Management System 
o Learning lessons from Local and Single Agency Reviews 
o Undertaking safeguarding seminars with cluster leaders 

 
o Learn and Improve 

o The establishment of a Framework for Learning and Improvement to promote a culture of continuous improvement 
o Improved dissemination of lessons from Reviews 
o Continued co-ordination and development of the LSCB Training programme 

 
More progress needs to be made in: 
 

o Increasing community engagement through the development of the LSCB website, the role of the Lay Members and input from 
the Voice and Influence sub group 

o Receiving performance and audit information from across the partnership 
o Increasing our understanding of the quality of practice delivered at the front-line and contributing to its improvement. 

  

 Challenges for the LSCB to address in 2013/14 have been identified: 
 

o To maintain and increase the momentum of the current work programme to support continuing improvement in services for 
children and young people 

o To continue to monitor the management of risk within the safeguarding system 
o To lead the partnership in addressing issues posed by children and young people living in the context of ‘compromised 

parenting’ 
o To build on progress being made to collaborate more effectively with other strategic bodies 
o To further implement the LSCB Communications strategy using the new website  
o To encourage all partners to more fully engage in the work of the LSCB through its sub group structure. 

  

 The LSCB is having an impact on the work of the wider partnership through: 
 

o The development and revision of policies and procedures which impact directly on how frontline work is undertaken. In 2012/13 
this has supported work with children and young people who are missing / at risk of sexual exploitation / exhibiting self harm 

P
age 115



and suicidal behaviours. 
o Raising awareness across the partnership of key safeguarding issues, lessons from Reviews and findings from audits 
o Participants on training courses subsequently indicating that there had been an impact on their practice 
o Findings from multi-agency audits being used to inform partners’ in house audit programmes and the development of action 

plans to implement improvements in services 
o Regular Performance reporting has identified issues that need further investigation (eg the child protection system) and have 

contributed to decisions made to undertake specific audits. 
o Lessons from Serious Case Reviews and Local Learning Lessons Reviews informing the development of new initiatives (eg 

exploration of a Young People’s Service) and the updating of existing arrangements (eg the Leeds Think Family Protocol). 
o Improved understanding of the circumstances of child deaths has resulted in support for a number of public health campaigns 

(eg the dangers of co-sleeping) 
 

  

 Conclusions 

  

 The report concludes that considerable progress that is being made to make the necessary changes to improve multi-agency working, 
services and outcomes for children and young people. It identifies where more progress needs to be made and where we need to 
better understand problems and issues faced by children and young people in Leeds. 

  

 Challenges are set for the LSCB and the Children’s Trust Board to address in 2013/14 which  promote a direction of travel which 
encompasses an increasing focus on: 
 

o The quality of services rather than on the timeliness of processes 
o The LSCB operating more like an ‘Improvement Board’ 
o The frontline and community engagement 
o The voice of children and young people 
o The use of research and evidence based practice. 

  

2.0 Introduction 
 

  
 This report reflects work undertaken in 2012/13 by organisations and agencies in Leeds to safeguard and promote the welfare of 

children and young people and sets out how this will be developed and strengthened in 2013/14. It is the continuation of an 
‘improvement journey’ that was begun in 2009 and has involved a high degree of multi-agency co-operation and collaboration 

P
age 116



(partnership working) in order to: 
 

• Identify problems in the way the safeguarding system was operating 
• Develop a coherent and sustainable strategic plan to address the issues identified 
• Restructure key services to meet new aims and objectives 
• Implement changes in how services are delivered and how agencies work together and with children, young people and their 

families.  

  
 The underlying driver in this work has been to improve outcomes for vulnerable children and young people in Leeds by ensuring that 

they receive ‘the right services at the right time’ in order to address emerging issues and problems quickly and effectively. This has 
required a commitment by the children’s partnership  to develop preventative early help family support services that will, over time 
reduce the number of children and young people whose problems have developed to the point where statutory intervention (through a 
child protection plan or becoming ‘looked after’ by the Local Authority) has become necessary.  

  

 This report charts the considerable progress that is being made to make the necessary changes to improve multi-agency working, 
services and outcomes for children and young people. It identifies where more progress needs to be made and where we need to 
better understand problems and issues faced by children and young people in Leeds. It sets out how plans are being taken forward to 
ensure that the gains of the improvement journey are consolidated and embedded and that the pace of change is maintained and 
enhanced. 

  

 In producing this report the LSCB is asking three main questions: 
 

• How effectively are children and young people being safeguarded in Leeds? 
• How well is the LSCB and the Children’s Trust Board undertaking their roles? 
• What plans are in place for 2013/14 to ensure that the improvement journey continues? 

 
 
The report also includes information about the context in which safeguarding work is undertaken and the work of the  LSCB and of the 
Children’s Trust Board, which is the strategic partnership body leading  the development of services for children and young people in 
Leeds. 

 
 
 
 

 

P
age 117



3.0 Contents of the Report 
  

 1.0 Executive Summary 
 
2.0 Introduction 
 
3.0 Contents of the report 
 
4.0 The LSCB and its statutory responsibilities 
 
5.0 LSCB Vision, Values and Principles 
 
6.0 The national safeguarding context 
 
7.0 The local safeguarding context 
 
8.0 The effectiveness of safeguarding arrangements in Leeds 
 
9.0 The work of the Children’s Trust Board 
 
10.0 Assessment of the extent to which LSCB functions are being effectively discharged 
 
11.0 Challenges for 2013/14 
 

  

4.0 The LSCB and its Statutory Responsibilities 
 

  
 Leeds Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) is a statutory body established under the Children Act 2004. It is independently chaired 

and consists of senior representatives of all the principle stakeholders working together to safeguard children and young people in the 
City. The Board’s membership for 2012/13 is set out in Appendix 1. 

  
 Its statutory objectives are to: 

• Co-ordinate local work to safeguard and promote the welfare of children 

P
age 118



• To ensure the effectiveness of that work 

  
 The full Board currently meets bi-monthly and an Executive Group meets on the alternate months in order to maintain the momentum 

that completion of the Board’s significant workload requires. The Board has a series of sub-groups, each with its own business plan, 
focused on key elements of the Board’s work. The Board Manager is supported by a Business Unit which supports the varied elements 
of the Board’s work. (See Appendix 2, Structure of the LSCB) 

  
 Working Together (2013) requires each Local Safeguarding Children Board to produce and publish an Annual Report evaluating the 

effectiveness of safeguarding in the local area. The report should be submitted to the Chief Executive and Leader of the Local 
Authority, reflecting that accountability for the safety and welfare of children and young people must be led by them. It should also be 
sent to the local Police and Crime Commissioner and the Chair of the Health and Well Being Board. There is also a local agreement to 
submit it to Leeds City Council Scrutiny Board for Children and Families and to the governance bodies of all partner organisations to 
support their governance of safeguarding practice in Leeds. 

  
 The guidance states that the Annual Report ‘should provide a rigorous and transparent assessment of the performance and 

effectiveness of local services. It should identify areas of weakness, the causes of those weaknesses and the action being taken to 
address them as well as other proposals for action’. The Report should: 
 

• Recognise achievements and progress made as well as identifying challenges 

• Demonstrate the extent to which the functions of the LSCB are being effectively discharged 

• Include an account of progress made in implementing actions from Serious Case Reviews 

• Provide robust challenge to the work of the Children’s Trust Board (CTB). 

 
 The LSCB works closely with the Children’s Trust Board which is specifically accountable in Leeds for overseeing the development and 

delivery of the Children & Young People’s Plan (CYPP). This Report identifies challenges for both the LSCB and the Children’s Trust 
Board. The Children’s Trust Board considers the report in preparing and refreshing the Children & Young People’s Plan. The Health 
and Well-being Board considers the report in completing the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.  

  
5.0 LSCB Vision, Values and Principles 

 
  
 Children, their welfare, protection and the promotion of their best interests are at the heart of everything the LSCB does. The existence 

and continued prominence of what the Board stands for and the commitment to how it carries out its work remains crucial and Leeds, 
as a Child Friendly City, values the Board’s work and supports it strongly. 

P
age 119



  
 The following was agreed by the LSCB members working together at development sessions as part of the creation of the LSCB 

Strategic Plan 2011-15 and is refreshed annually. 

 
 Our Vision 

 
Is for Leeds to be a child friendly city in which children and young people are safe from harm in their families, their communities and 
their neighbourhoods. 

  
 Our Values 

 
We will promote these values in order to influence our behaviours jointly with the Children’s Trust Board  
 

• Celebrating diversity 

• Engaging citizens locally 

• Being open and honest 

• Working as a team for Leeds 

• Spending money wisely 

  
 Our principles 

 
We are as a Board:  
 

• Committed to putting the child / young person at the centre of all that we do 

• Focused on getting safeguarding right for children, young people and their families 

• Clear about what we expect of safeguarding services 

• Informed about how well protected children and young people are in Leeds 

• Open about what we do and why 

• Co-operative and collaborative with each other 

• Challenging of each other and of the safeguarding services each partner provides 

• Effective and providing value for money 

• Accountable to the people of Leeds for how we invest our resources  

• Accessible to and informed by children, young people and their families, the communities they live in, the staff in our 
organisations that serve them, and the priorities of the Children’s Trust 

P
age 120



• Learning from everything we do and changing as a result 

• Improving practice and outcomes for children and young people 

 
 All our work is underpinned by an agreed set of approaches, shared with the Children’s Trust Board, so that we all work together to 

deliver improved outcomes for children and young people –  
 

• The child IS the client 

• Talking a common language 

• Using ‘outcomes based accountability’ to improve outcomes in each locality across Leeds 

• Doing things WITH children and families, not TO or FOR them 

• Doing the simple things better – never doing nothing 

• Supporting strong schools, settings, families and communities 

• Involving everyone who has a part to play – a whole city approach 

• Improving assessment and intervention 

• Targeting resources to make the biggest impact on our priorities 

  
 The vision of the LSCB is translated into action through the Strategic Plan (2011 – 15) and a more detailed business plan, both of 

which are also refreshed annually. The Strategic Plan is based on three priorities: 
 
Strategic Priority 1: Lead, Listen, Advise 
 

• Exercise strategic leadership across all stakeholders: to support a child friendly city 

• Support the professional community to keep children and young people safe 

• Engage with and influence the wider community to keep children and young people safe 

• Ensure transparency and public accountability 
 
Strategic Priority 2: Know the Story; Challenge the Practice 
 

• How do we know how efficient and effective the local safeguarding system is? 

• How do we know the quality of interventions with children and young people? 

• How are we learning and implementing lessons from child deaths, serious child care incidents and examples of good practice? 
 
Strategic Priority 3: Learn and Improve; using what we learn to change practice 
 

P
age 121



• Develop a culture of continuous learning and improvement 

• Promote effective multi-agency working and professional practice. 

  
 Each year’s business plan sets out objectives and tasks within the three strategic priorities, identifying which sub groups will take the 

lead and timescales for completion.  The business plan is reviewed regularly to ensure that emerging issues and themes can be 
included and to monitor the progress being made. See appendix 3  for the completed plan for 2012/13.  

  
4.0 The National Safeguarding Context 
  
 Agencies working together in Leeds to safeguard and promote the welfare of children do so in the context of national legislation, 

guidance and reviews of emerging issues and concerns. These need to be taken account of when evaluating local services and 
arrangements and planning changes and improvements. The LSCB is responding to a number of national developments from 2012/13. 

  
 In November 2012 the interim report of The Office of the Children’s Commissioner’s Inquiry into Child Sexual Exploitation in Gangs and 

Groups was published, identifying this organized abuse as a significant national problem. A number of high profile court appearances 
and convictions have occurred across the country alongside reviews of the multi-agency responses to the needs of children and young 
people at risk or suffering sexual exploitation. The report highlighted the need to raise professional awareness about the issues and 
challenges to be addressed to ensure a better understanding of the scale and nature of the abuse in all areas and to improve the 
identification responses to victims and those at risk. In June 2013 the House of Commons Home Affairs Committee published its 
second report on Child sexual exploitation and the response to localised grooming. This area of work has received significant attention 
in Leeds in the last year and is a priority area for sustained activity. 

  
 A review of services and outcomes for children living in the context of parental mental health and / or substance mis-use problems was 

published by Ofsted in March 2013 (‘What about the Children?’). It requires LSCBs to audit the quality of joint working between Adult 
and Children’s Services and put in place structures for joint training and supervision in order to drive improvements in services and 
outcomes for this vulnerable group. The LSCB has identified as a priority for 2013/14 the need to review and revise the Leeds ‘Think 
Family Protocol’ in conjunction with the Leeds Adult Safeguarding Board and the Community Safety Partnership to respond to children 
and young people living in the context of compromised parenting. 

  
4.1 Central Government had long made it clear that it intended to simplify the guidance to professionals working with vulnerable children 

and young people and held a consultation exercise on its outline proposals during 2012/13. In March 2013 new guidance was issued; 
Working Together to Safeguard Children which introduces a much less prescriptive approach to multi-agency working with vulnerable 
children and young people. Its philosophy promotes the ‘child’s voice and experience’ as central to working to improve outcomes for 
children and young people and challenges professionals to ask themselves whether ‘this action or work is going to have a positive 

P
age 122



impact on the life of this child … and what is going to happen if nothing changes.’ The changes incorporate a new definition of 
safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and young people which makes it clear action needs to be taken to ensure all 
children have the best outcomes across the whole system; thus underlining the importance of effective Early Help Services as well as 
Family Support, Child in Needs and Child Protection services. As well as the specific implications for Local Safeguarding Children 
Boards, the consideration and implementation of this guidance will be central to the work of the LSCB in 2013/14 and beyond as it 
leads the development of a new professional culture and new systems and protocols on behalf of the partnership. 

  
4.2 At the same time the Government published the Accountability and Assurance Framework for the NHS which provides clear guidance 

on the responsibilities of each of the key players for safeguarding in the new NHS arrangements. It is complementary to the Working 
Together guidance and re-iterates the requirement to work in partnership to safeguard children and young people at risk of abuse at 
both strategic and operational levels. It requires each NHS organization to have appropriate governance and assurance systems in 
place. 

  
4.5 Earlier in the year (August 2012) Local Safeguarding Children Boards  developed a national profile through the establishment of  the 

Association of Independent LSCB Chairs, with a remit of improving the effectiveness of Local Safeguarding Children Boards in England 
through: 
 

• Shared learning 

• Professional development 

• Responding to consultations and policy proposals 

• Working in partnership with other bodies committed to safeguarding children and young people 

• Securing and strengthening the identity of Local Safeguarding Children Boards 

• Enhancing the contribution of independence in the Chairing of Local safeguarding Children Boards. 
 
An immediate benefit of the Association has been the setting up of a peer review process for decision making by chairs as to whether 
the circumstances surrounding serious child care incidents meet the criteria for undertaking Serious Case Reviews. This will support 
more consistent decision making about the types of reviews that are undertaken at a time when national guidance has changed 
significantly in this area. 

  
5.0 The Local Safeguarding Context 

 
  

 The most immediate context for work to safeguard and promote the welfare of children and young people in Leeds is to be found in the 
city itself (the makeup of its population, the degree of deprivation experienced, levels of crime etc) and the strategic response to the 

P
age 123



issues and themes identified. This section provides a brief overview of the circumstances in which children and young people live in 
Leeds, the response of the partnership through the Children and Young People’s Plan and the particular challenges and developments 
for the individual agencies which collectively make up the children’s partnership. 

  

5.1 The City of Leeds 

  

 Leeds is the second largest city council in England. The population of the city has increased rapidly in recent years. The latest 
population estimate is 798,800 representing a 12% increase over the last 10 years, which is higher than the average regionally and 
nationally. The population of children and young people aged 0-19 is just over 180,000. Within this, the number of very young children 
(0-4 year olds) has increased faster with over 10,000 children born in Leeds in 2009/10. Leeds has a significantly higher proportion of 
15–25 year olds compared to both the regional and national averages, with a total population of 289,000 0-25 year olds living in the 
city. 

  

 Leeds is a very diverse city, with over 130 nationalities included in a minority ethnic population of just less than 17.4%. The proportion 
of pupils in Leeds schools that are of minority ethnic heritage has increased by more than six percentage points since 2005 to 22.5% of 
pupils in 2011. A higher proportion of primary than secondary pupils are of minority ethnic heritage. Some 14% of pupils have English 
as an additional language and over 170 languages are recorded as spoken in Leeds schools. The largest minority ethnic groups in the 
city are the Indian and Pakistani communities but more recently there has also been a significant increase in economic migration, 
mainly from Eastern Europe. 

  

 The local authority area includes some rural communities, as well as densely populated inner city areas where people can face multiple 
challenges. The Indices of Multiple Deprivation indicate that 19%, or over 150,000 people in Leeds, live in areas that are ranked 
amongst the most deprived 10% nationally. Around 30,000 children and young people, 23% of all those aged 0-16, live in poverty. 

  

 Leeds is a large, urban city with many features associated with traditionally high levels of crime. Whilst the re-offending rate for children 
and young people in Leeds is higher than that in England and Wales as a whole, two of the core cities have substantially higher rates. 
The number of young people re-offending in Leeds has reduced by 61% over the last five years compared with 49% nationally. 

  

5.2 The Children and Young People’s Plan 

  

 In consultation with stakeholders (including the LSCB) the Children’s Trust Board has developed The Children and Young People’s 
Plan (2011-15) which is designed to provide an over-arching strategic direction to the development of services across the city. This is 
made up of five outcomes, one of which is co-sponsored by the LSCB Chair:  
 

P
age 124



• That Children and Young People are safe from harm, which involves 
o Helping children and young people to live in safe and supportive families 
o Ensuring that the most vulnerable are protected. 

  

 In order to provide a focus on key issues three ‘obsessions’ have been agreed. One is to reduce the number of children and young 
people who need to be ‘looked after’, which reflects the partnership commitment to reducing the need for statutory intervention by 
providing children and young people with ‘the right service at the right time’ through the development of effective Early Help 
preventative services. This approach has been supported by the LSCB, through its Annual Reports in 2011 and 2012, challenging the 
Children’s Trust Board to ‘rebalance the safeguarding system’ accordingly. 

  

5.3 Issues and developments for Partner Agencies 
 

 The scale and pace of change in, and re-organisation of, public sector services are factors that are increasingly having to be taken into 
account when planning services for children and young people and in ensuring that they are effective and safe. In their contributions to 
this annual report partner agencies have identified the key challenges and changes that they are facing and the steps that they are 
taking to respond. 

  

 Children’s Services: 
 
During 2011/12 a new Directorate within Leeds City Council was created for services to children and young people. This created a 
structure based on two service areas; Learning, Skills and Universal Services and Safeguarding, Specialist and Targeted Services; 
complemented by Partnership Development and Business Support; and Strategy, Performance and Commissioning. 
 

 During 2012/13 changes to the way in which services for children and young people are delivered have been progressed and 
embedded based on a move to locality working on a ‘cluster model’ and the creation of a specialist approach to children and young 
people who are ‘looked after’ and ‘care leavers.’ The implementation of revised Children’ Services ‘Front Door’ arrangements is having 
a significant impact on patterns of requests for services and referrals accepted. 

  

 The Learning Skills and Universal Services Directorate faces continuing challenge to maintain its commitment to support all Leeds 
children and young people in learning in the context of schools receiving an increasing budget share and being made responsible for 
functions and activities which were previously the remit of the local authority. Maintaining a focus on safeguarding is a priority in this 
period of change. 

 
 

 

P
age 125



 Children and Family Court Advisory and Support Service: 
 
Cafcass is a non-departmental public body accountable to the Secretary of State for Education and operates in the region on a West 
Yorkshire basis. In line with the changing focus of Local Authorities in the region it experienced a reduction in public law applications 
over 2012/13 (in comparison with an increasing trend nationally) but an increase in private law applications (against a reducing rate 
nationally). A key challenge for 2013/14 is implementation of the revised Public Law Outline and delivery against the key 
recommendations of the Family Justice Review. 

  

 NHS: 
 
The national restructuring of the NHS has culminated in the establishment of three Clinical Commissioning Groups in Leeds at the 
beginning of 2013/14. Using the NHS Accountability and Assurance Framework work is ongoing to draw up a memorandum of 
understanding between the groups and the LSCB and to ensure that appropriate measures are in place to oversee safeguarding 
activity across the whole of the NHS structure in Leeds. 

  

 Leeds Community Healthcare has raised the profile and priority given to safeguarding during the year. It has integrated its 
Safeguarding Children and Looked After Children Teams resulting in pooled knowledge and experiences, the streamlining of systems 
and processes and more efficient use of resources. The introduction of a new electronic recording system has improved awareness 
within the unit when a child or young person is subject to a child protection plan. The Looked After Children Health Team achieved the  
GP Clinical Team of the Year Award in 2012 for their innovative approach to practice. 

  

 In February 2012 Leeds Partnership NHS Foundation Trust merged with mental health and learning disability services from NHS North 
Yorkshire and York, becoming Leeds and York Partnership NHS Foundation Trust. The Trust has direct involvement with Children and 
young people through the Leeds perinatal / mother and baby unit, the Leeds Addiction Unit pregnancy and parenting team and the 
Child and adolescent mental health service in York. 

  

 Leeds Teaching Hospital Trust:  
 
In addition to the normal business of the Trust, there have been a number of issues that have required an additional focus, namely the 
Savile Inquiry, the National Safe and Sustainable Review of Paediatric Cardiac Services and the Francis Report. 
 
Savile Inquiry : 
 
Following the allegations of abuse committed by the late Sir Jimmy Savile, the Secretary of State for Health launched an investigation 
involving the NHS sites where abuse by the celebrity had been cited, Leeds Teaching Hospitals was one of those. 

P
age 126



 
An independent investigation team led by Professor Sue Proctor, Diocesan Secretary for the Diocese of Ripon and Leeds (former SHA 
Chief Nurse), was established and investigations commenced under the oversight of Kate Lampard, appointed by the Secretary of 
State for Health to oversee the 3 NHS investigations. 
 
In addition to the historical investigation, the work has focussed on ensuring that similar incidences could not happen today; therefore 
audits have been conducted of a number of Trust policies including the Safeguarding and Human Resources policies, these are being 
strengthened where required.   
 
A “Speaking Out” month facilitated by the investigation team was run in February 2013 to encourage staff and patients to come 
forward. 
 
The independent investigation team are expected to report their findings during 2013. 
 
Paediatric Cardiac Service : 
 
The Secretary of State for Health had launched a review into Paediatric Cardiac Surgery with a view to reducing the number of centres 
that provided this service nationally. The aim being to ensure there were sufficient numbers of surgeons in each centre with enough 
children being treated in each to enable the surgeons to treat the wide variety of complex defects in numbers that would maintain their 
competence. 
 
This review reported in 2012 and suggested that Leeds was one of the centres to close. This decision was challenged in a number of 
arenas and the outcome judged unlawful. Therefore NHS England have been asked by the Secretary of State for Health to develop a 
fair mechanism for achieving the desired outcome. 
 
During the period of the challenge Leeds Teaching Hospitals temporarily suspended Paediatric Cardiac Surgery amid allegations that 
the mortality data was showing higher death rates than its’ peer hospitals. This was found not to be the case and surgery resumed after 
a week and continues to provide a full service to the population of Yorkshire and the Humber. 
 
The service underwent a thorough review from independent teams and a number of recommendations relating to governance and the 
handling of complaints have been made. 
 
The Francis Report : 
 
The public inquiry, chaired by Sir Robert Francis into the failings in care that occurred in the Mid Staffordshire NHS Trust reported in 
February 2013 with a long list of recommendations for a number of national organisations, health professions and Hospital Trusts. 

P
age 127



 
The Leeds Teaching Hospitals is developing a plan to address the themes of the report. This will be implemented through 2013. 
 
 

  

 Public Health: 

Following the publication of “Healthy Lives, Healthy People”, the Government’s Strategy for Public Health (Nov 2011), a new national 

public health system has been established. At national level, Public Health England has been established, whilst at local level, public 

health responsibilities transferred to Local Authorities on 1
st
 April 2013.  Local Authorities have now taken on a leadership role in: 

tackling the causes of ill health and reducing health inequalities; promoting and protecting health; and promoting social justice and safer 

communities. Under the Health and Social Care Act 2012, Health and Wellbeing Boards were established as a forum where key 

leaders from the health and care system work together to improve the health and wellbeing of their local population and reduce health 

inequalities. The Leeds Health and Wellbeing Board, chaired by the Lead Executive Member for Health and Wellbeing, has been 

meeting formally since April 2013. Under the Act, a range of mandatory services (which must be commissioned or provided), may be 

prescribed by the Secretary of State. In 2013-14, these mandatory services are: 

• appropriate access to sexual health services; 

• a duty to ensure that there are plans in place to protect the health of the population; 

•  provision of public health advice to NHS commissioners; 

•  delivery of the National Child Measurement Programme; 

•  and delivery of the NHS Health Check.  

In addition, a range of commissioning responsibilities have transferred to Local Authorities from 1
st
 April 2013, funded through the 

Public Health grant. These responsibilities included the commissioning of the School Nursing Service, a core universal health service 

contributing to the safeguarding of children and young people. Responsibility for the commissioning of Health Visiting Services and the 

Family Nurse Partnership transferred to NHS England for a period of 2 years, pending transfer of these commissioning responsibilities 

to Local Authorities in April 2015. 

P
age 128



  

 West Yorkshire Police: 
 
In April 2012, West Yorkshire police combined the Leeds Child and Public Protection Unit with the three area based Safeguarding 
Teams in the City. The creation of one District Safeguarding Unit co-located resources under one management structure, bringing all 
victim centred non investigative functions together with an enhanced ability to investigate all child abuse, sexual exploitation, domestic 
abuse, forced marriage and honour based violence allegations. 

  
 

 At the same time a regional safeguarding Governance Unit was established to ensure local compliance with national and West 
Yorkshire safeguarding policies. 

  

 Leeds Youth Offending Service: 
 
The significant reduction in the rate of re-offending in Leeds means that the service now works with young people who are more likely 
to re-offend. The change in legislation that gave young people who were remanded in custody the status of ‘looked after’ children has 
resulted in a joint protocol with Children’s Social work Service to ensure that this results in the appropriate entitlements for this 
vulnerable group. The introduction of a new case management system will enable performance data to be used to monitor compliance 
with national standards. 
 
The Service is working with the newly elected Police and Crime Commissioner to remodel and improve services in alignment with the 
Police and Crime Plan for West Yorkshire and to provide more targeted support to young people at risk of involvement in crime, 
substance mis-use and poor educational outcomes. This remodeling will be taking place in the context of changing national policy 
agendas and reduced income from partners over the coming years. 

  

 Leeds City College: 
 
The College, which delivers courses to around 10,000 young people (16 – 18 yr old)  has appointed a Governor who champions 
safeguarding and chairs a safeguarding strategy group once a term. Around 50 child protection / designated officers are available 
across the campuses to respond to safeguarding concerns from staff or students. Communication between the College and schools 
has improved following a request to Head Teachers (supported by the LSCB chair) to share safeguarding information when students 
transfer from school to college. 

 
 

 

P
age 129



 HMP & Young Offender Institution Wetherby: 
 
A new safeguarding team with a wider monitoring remit has been established and will be developing its role during 2013/14. 
 
In 2012/13 the catchment area of the Institution increased following the closure of Carstington in the North East. Two of Wetherby’s 
wings are national resources and thus accept young people from across the country. The identified challenge for 2013/14 will be to 
maintain current standards in the light of a national benchmarking process and proposed financial cuts to the service. 
 

  

 The Third Sector: 
 
There are currently 903 Third Sector agencies in Leeds who are registered with the Charities Commission (which estimates that this 
represents approximately a quarter of all agencies). Around 400 are linked into Young Lives Leeds and 31 engaged directly with the 
LSCB in 2012/13 in order to complete their audit of compliance with statutory safeguarding requirements. Fuller engagement across 
the sector remains a priority for the LSCB and will be supported by the new website which will be introduced in 2013/14. 

  

8.0 Effectiveness of Safeguarding Arrangements 
 

  
 This section addresses one of the key questions posed in the introduction to this report: ‘How effectively are children and young people 

being safeguarded in Leeds?’ It provides an overall picture of the progress being made to improve services and outcomes for children 
and young people across the whole safeguarding system (from universal services through early help to statutory intervention)  and 
identifies where more needs to be done.  
 

  

 In order to evaluate the effectiveness of safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and young people in Leeds evidence is 
drawn from a wide range of sources and is arranged in the following format: 
 

• Engagement with and involvement of children and young people 
o The views and experience of children and young people 
o Listening to children and young people 

 

• Monitoring and Reviewing 
o Inspections and Reviews 

P
age 130



o Serious case reviews and Local Learning Lessons Reviews 
o Allegations against professionals 
o Private Fostering provision 
o Safeguarding in secure settings 

 

• Performance Management and Quality Assurance of safeguarding services 
o Partner compliance with required safeguarding arrangements 
o Performance data 
o Quality Assurance and Audit 

 

• External input to the development of services 
 

• Summary and Whole System analysis 
 

  
8.1 The Engagement and Involvement of Children and Young People 
  
8.1.1* The Views of and Experience of Children and Young People 

  

 One of the key commitments made by the LSCB and the Children’s Trust Board is to put the ‘voice of the child’ at the centre of all we 
do; an aspiration which is underlined in the new Working Together (2013) guidance. Engaging with children and young people is well 
established in Leeds and has been given further impetus in recent years by the establishment of the Child Friendly City initiative. The 
LSCB is seeking to particularly understand the views of children and young people in relation to safeguarding issues. This section 
summarises feedback received and ongoing initiatives to work with children and young people. 

  

 Growing in up in Leeds survey 2011-12 
 

 The survey, based on the Every Child Matters outcomes, was presented to the Children’ Trust Board in May 2013 and  is drawn from 
responses from a sample of primary and secondary pupils. Findings in the ‘Stay Safe’ section include: 
 

 The extent to which children and young people feel safe: 
 

• The vast majority felt safest at home, followed by at school during lessons 

• 39% did not feel safe where they live after dark 

P
age 131



• 21% did not feel safe in their local park 

  

 Experiences of  bullying: 
 

• 35% thought that bullying was a problem in their school and 60% felt that their school was good at dealing with it. 

• 28% said they had been bullied a few times during the year 

• 6% said they were bullied most days or every day. 
 
These figures for bullying are similar to those presented for the previous year. 

  

 Partner engagement with children and young people 

  

 The Youth and Skills Service in liaison with the Youth Council uses a range of evaluation, questionnaires and direct feedback from 
users to inform programme development. Youth Engagement and Peer Inspection groups are being developed in the cluster localities. 
Schools and Leeds City College promote ‘pupil voice’ as a vital component of their own quality assurance processes (and contribution 
to inspection preparation). There are student representatives on Leeds City College committees and involvement in staff recruitment. 

  

 In Wetherby Young Offender Institution, systems are well embedded for young people to voice complaints and receive feedback. These 
contribute to improvements in practice and the development of services. 

  

 Through a partnership with User Voice, the Leeds Youth Offending Service regularly engages in consultation exercises with service 
users to ensure that young people are engaged in shaping services for their local communities. 

  

 The Cafcass Family Justice Children & Young People’s Board has been involved locally in open days, recruitment and selection, the 
development of focus groups and office inspections. 

  

 LSCB Voice & Influence Group 
 
The LSCB, in conjunction with Leeds City College, has identified and is working with a group of young people to implement the LSCB 
Voice and Influence Strategy. To date the group have been involved in supporting the LSCB Annual Conference ‘Let me speak – will 
you Listen?’ and in interviewing for the post  of the LSCB chair. The group is developing proposals for how it links into the main Board 
and progresses its status as a formal reference group. 

  

P
age 132



 Work planned for 2013/14 includes contributing to the development of the new LSCB website and providing consultation to partners 
who are working to engage children and young people in the planning and development of their services as part of their s(11) action 
plan. 

  

8.1.2 Listening to Children and how their Views are Influencing Practice 

  

 Alongside incorporating the views of children and young people in the design and planning of services is the need to take more account 
of their views and experiences when working with them to improve outcomes; a point that is emphatically made in the revised Working 
Together (2013) guidance. There is evidence of good progress being made in Leeds in the context of a partnership commitment to a 
restorative approach to working with children, young people and their families, rather than providing services for them or to them. 

  

 More than 80% of children and young people who are looked after participate in their statutory reviews and a toolkit is being developed 
to improve the quality of this input. The Care Planning, Placement and Case Review Regulations 2010 introduced a new requirement 
for Independent Reviewing Officers to speak with children and young people separately as part of the reviewing process and this has 
resulted in an increasing number of such consultations and observations completed (65% in 2011/12, 79% in 2012/13). 

  

 A survey has been commissioned from the Barnardo’s Children’s Rights Service to consider the impact of these pre review visits and 
the extent to which they facilitate the building of a relationship that enables children and young people to participate more fully in their 
reviews. 

  

 The adoption of the Strengthening Families Framework is intended to increase family member and children and young people’s 
participation in child protection conferences, which has been historically low in Leeds. Whilst being clear that ‘attendance’ does not 
necessarily equal ‘participation’ , all children over the age of 10 are invited to conferences where this is felt to be appropriate. On 
average children and young people attend 10% of conferences and the response from professionals has been positive. Recording of 
children and young people’s views has improved, both within conferences and in the minutes. 

  

 A multi-agency audit of the effectiveness of child protection processes co-ordinated by the LSCB (see below) reiterated that the voice 
of the child  needs to be more clearly included and evidenced in conferences and core group meetings.. 

  

 A pilot project was undertaken between December 2012 and April 2013 looking specifically at the efficacy of child protection 
conference chairs having contact with children and young people prior to a conference. This is being evaluated by the Children’s 
Service Voice and Influence Team and the outcome and recommendations will be reported in 2013/14. 

  

 The Leeds Children’s Rights and Advocacy Service is being re-commissioned with the intention that the current service being provided 

P
age 133



for looked after children and young people and care leavers will be broadened to include those within child protection processes, family 
group conferencing, child in need meetings and complaints. Funding has been agreed to provide a pilot advocacy service for children 
aged 10 years and older who are the subject of initial child protection conferences. This service will be initially offered to 15 families. 

  

8.2 Monitoring and Reviewing 
  

 Many key processes and  specific services are subject to independent monitoring and reviewing which provides a useful external 
measure of how well safeguarding is being carried out in Leeds.. This section considers the evidence provided from a number of 
sources. 

  

8.2.1 External Inspection 

  
 External inspections and reviews give a crucial objective view of the quality of services being provided, the impact on children and 

young people, and where improvements need to be made. Although there was no ‘whole system’ inspection in 2012/13, the findings of 
previous Ofsted inspections of multi-agency safeguarding arrangements have proved crucial in (i) initiating the current Leeds 
Improvement Journey, and (ii) providing assurance that progress is being made. 

  
 Ofsted Inspections of multi-agency arrangements 

  
 In 2009 an announced Ofsted  inspection judged safeguarding services in Leeds to be ‘inadequate’ and the authority was subsequently 

made the subject of a statutory improvement notice. Since this point the partnership has viewed itself as being on an ‘improvement 
journey’ based on political and professional co-operation and generating a coherent and sustainable strategic plan to improve multi-
agency working and services and to improve outcomes for children and young people. 

  
 In October 2011 Ofsted published its report of the outcome of their announced re-inspection of Safeguarding in Leeds.  The Report 

recognised significant improvements made across the city. Overall, five of the nine categories that Ofsted assessed were rated as 
‘good’ and four were rated as ‘adequate’ - there were no categories rated as inadequate. The key judgments of ‘overall effectiveness’ of 
Safeguarding in the City were rated as ‘adequate’ and the ‘capacity to improve’ was rated as ‘good’. Taken together with their 
unannounced inspection of contact, referral and assessment arrangements in January 2011 - when Ofsted noted ‘remarkable and 
impressive improvements’ - this provided strong endorsement of the progress being made in Leeds. 

  
 The report supported the view that developments in Safeguarding were making a significant difference to the well-being and safety of 

children in Leeds. The inspection found that ‘arrangements to ensure children are safeguarded are now secure’ and highlighted 
‘significant progress in improving outcomes’. The inspectors did not identify any children left at potential risk of harm, and none of the 

P
age 134



cases reviewed were deemed to be inadequate. 
  
  Amongst the other areas that the inspectors highlighted were:  

 

• The development of more child centred approaches, for example through the way that children are increasingly involved in 
child protection conferences so that their wishes and views are fully taken into account. 

• Improvements in the way partnership between different services to safeguard children works, especially in terms of shared 
responsibility, vision and priorities, and the overall understanding that in Leeds, ‘safeguarding is everyone’s business’. 

• That the Leeds Safeguarding Children Board is much improved. 
 

  
 The Report noted areas in which further development needs to take place: 

  

• To improve the electronic social care record system (ESCR) – used by the Children’s Social Work Service. 
• To continue to improve the timescales for initial children protection conferences. 
• To Improve the quality of assessments to help achieve a consistent standard across the service. 
• To support information sharing between partner agencies in relation to domestic violence. 

 
  
 As a result of the significant amount of progress made the Government removed the Improvement Notice. 
  

 Inspections of Partners 

  
 Many partners have been the subject of inspections by their regulatory bodies in 2012/13 which either focused on safeguarding or 

included it in a wider remit. The findings highlight much that is positive in the development of services and provide a further degree of 
assurance that good progress is being made. 

  
 Children’s services: 

 
Three inspections have taken place in relation to Looked After Children’s Services: 
 

• An Ofsted thematic inspection of Independent Reviewing Officer services in January 2013 provided very positive feedback 
including that: 

o The service is independent of the Children’s Social Work Service but has a strong link 
o Dispute resolution and quality assurance processes are well understood 

P
age 135



o The service is child focused and engages well with young people 
o Independent reviewing Officers are involved in quality assurance and case auditing, which is used to inform practice 

development 
o There was evidence of good communication between Reviewing Officers and Social Workers 
o There were good links with Cafcass. 
o The approach to peer and management observation of practice was an example of good practice. 

 

• In February 2013 Ofsted tested their proposed methodology for the inspection of Looked After Children’s services. Headline 
messages were that: 

o No cases were found where a child was unsafe or where there were concerns about practice 
o Services for looked after children and care leavers were improving 
o Front line practitioners knew and understood the strategic direction and objectives of the service 
o There was a clear emphasis on supporting children to achieve permanence 
o Leeds demonstrated high ambitions for looked after children and care leavers and for services to support them 

 
o Areas identified for improvement included: 

§ Care Plans were not always Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic and Timely 
§ Many Pathway Plans and Personal Education Plans did not evidence involvement of children and young people 
§ Not all plans had a contingency plan 
§ Some inconsistencies evident in the way supervision was used challenge practice and drive care planning 

 

• Also in February a LILAC inspection took place (Leading Improvements for Looked After Children), undertaken by young people 
with experience of being in care. Leeds was felt to have met all seven standards of the inspection and comments from the team 
were very positive about the commitment to involve children and young people in improving their care and lives. Specific comments 
included: 

o ‘I was happy to see the council realizing their role as the parent, often something forgotten about in other Local Authorities’. 
o ‘Overall I was confident Leeds was moving in the correct direction with a lot of progress made’. 
o ‘We feel that Leeds were deserving of all 7 Standards with some very enthusiastic members of staff which was 

encouraging’. 
 

• Inspections carried out by Ofsted over the year of Local Authority Children’s Homes revealed that no Leeds children’s home is 
rated as ‘inadequate’. Five of the twelve (42%) are rated ‘good’ or better, with the remaining seven (58%) rated ‘satisfactory / 
adequate’. Recent interim inspection reports suggest that eight homes (67%) are currently making good or better progress. 

 
 

 

P
age 136



 Early Start Service: 
 
No Ofsted inspection judgments of Children’s Centres in 2012/13 questioned safeguarding practice and the vast majority make very 
positive reference to the effectiveness of policy and practice. Of 57 Children’s Centres across the city Ofsted judged 82% to be ‘good’ 
or ‘outstanding’. 

  
 NHS: 

 
In February 2013 Leeds Community Healthcare took part in a pilot with Ofsted and CQC inspectors to test their methodology for 
implementing proposed Looked After and Care Leavers inspection standards. Whilst no judgment was given, positive feedback from 
the inspectors indicated that the health needs of looked after children and young people are viewed as a priority and that individual 
Health Needs assessments are of a very high standard. 

  
 Ofsted inspections of Eastmoor Secure Children’s Centre highlighted health delivery as a strength, with the appointment of a Nurse 

Manager as being instrumental in key quality improvements. 

  
 Leeds and York Partnership Foundation Trust were judged by Ofsted as being ‘satisfactory with good capacity to improve.’ 

  
 West Yorkshire Police: 

 
In July 2012 Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary conducted a review of the Force’s recording of serious sexual offences, 
identifying. Some inconsistencies were identified in the rationales provided for deciding whether a crime should be recorded, which 
resulted in a streamlining of processes and the introduction of additional supervisory checks., 

  
 The Secure Estate: 

 
Although Wetherby Young Offender Institution was not formally inspected in 2012/13 it was reviewed  and received IMB and Advocacy 
Annual Reports which highlighted areas of good practice and good interaction between staff and young people. Scrutiny visits by the 
Youth Justice Board and Young People’s Group highlighted themes that are currently being addressed, including: violence reduction, 
searches at reception and responding to young people shouting out of cell windows. 

 
 
 
 

 

P
age 137



8.2.3 Serious Case Reviews and Learning Lessons Reviews 
 

  

 One of the key functions of the LSCB is to ensure that lessons are learnt from the circumstances of serious child care incidents  that 
will improve future practice and reduce the risk of such incidents re-occurring. 

  

 The LSCB is responsible for initiating a Serious Case Review (SCR) in circumstances where there has been a death of a child and 
abuse or neglect is known or suspected, or where there has been a serious injury and there are concerns about interagency working.  
The purpose of such a review is to: 
 

• Establish whether there are any lessons to be learnt from the case and from the way in which local professionals and 
organisations worked together to safeguard and promote the welfare of children.  

• Identify clearly what those lessons are, how they will be acted on, what is expected to change as a result and within what 
timescale and 

• as a consequence, improve inter-agency working to better safeguard and promote the welfare of children 

 
  
 During 2012/13 the standing SCR sub-committee received 3 completed Local Learning Lessons Reviews (LLLRs) and 2 Single Agency 

Reviews. These generated 12 recommendations for action by the LSCB, 5 of which have been completely implemented and the 

remainder are on-going and being monitored. Key learning themes from these Reviews include: 

• The importance of early intervention and preventative service provision underpinned by use of the Common Assessment 

Framework 

• Keeping the child at the centre of practice;  

• The need for effective intra-agency and interagency communication 

• To improve professional recognition and response to disguised compliance 

• Adult mental health assessments to consider the safeguarding implications for children 

• The need for health visitors to be aware of safeguarding issues through good record keeping and its transfer when children 

change areas 

• Greater rigour required around analysis of ‘risk’ and ‘need’ within a more child focused approach. 

• There should be less reliance on adult self-reporting and the adoption of a ‘respectful uncertainty’ approach to assessment.  

• Greater management oversight and scrutiny of assessments. 

P
age 138



• The need for robust and consistent system of quality assurance of assessments 

• To ensure the continued safety and well-being of children who are ‘de-escalated’ from a Child Protection Plan and made the 

subject of a Child in Need Plan. 

• To ensure that CSWS staff are aware of their statutory obligations in relation to housing and safeguarding when working with 

16 to 17 year old young people. 

• The LCC Environment and Neighbourhoods Directorate to ensure the timely completion of the comprehensive review of 

services for sixteen to twenty two year old young people “Children and Young Person’s Housing Plan”. 

 

As well as generating recommendations for the LSCB these themes reflect recommendations for action for the individual agencies 

involved and have been incorporated into business planning for 2013/14 (eg the review and revision of the Think Family Protocol’ to 

underpin multi-agency working with children and young people living in the context of compromised parenting and the developing 

proposals for a Young Person’s Service (16 – 25 yr old). 

  

 No Serious Case Reviews were initiated in 2012/13 but 2 Local Learning Lessons Reviews were commissioned and are on-going. 

  
 In addition, the Leeds Youth Offending Service undertook and shared with the LSCB a review of 6 serious incidents in 2012/13 

identifying and progressing the following lessons: 
 

• Learning together with partners, particularly regarding information sharing and professional challenge 

• Learning about best practice regarding domestic violence 

• Learning about the needs of looked after children and young people in out of area placements 

• Learning about managing vulnerability 

• Recognising excellent practice. 

  

8.2.4 Managing Allegations Against Professionals 

  

 One of the LSCB’s functions is to ensure that there are appropriate policies and procedures in place to investigate and respond to 
allegations of abusive behavior made by children and young people against professionals. The Board receives an annual report from 
the Local Authority Designated officer summarising the allegations that have been made over the year and how they have been 
managed. 

  

 Dealing with allegations made against professionals is the role of an employing agency. However, the Local Authority is required to 

P
age 139



provide a coordinating role through the provision of a Local Authority Designated Officer, or ‘LADO’. Individual agencies are required to 
notify the LADO of any allegations made. The role of the LADO is to provide advice and guidance to employers, to liaise with the police 
and other agencies and to monitor the progress of cases to ensure that they are dealt with as quickly as possible, consistent with a 
thorough and fair process. 

  

 An annual report has been provided to the LSCB on activity by the LADO during 2012/13. This report provides statistical information for 
the period, development work this year and plans for future development for the year 2013/14.  

  

 There were 267 referrals to the LADO in 2012/13 (179 about specific children and young people and 87 about concerns about 
professionals arising out of the work place eg within their families). Since a full time officer has been in post the average annual referral 
rate is around 300. A breakdown of these referrals indicates a similar pattern to previous years: 
 

• 33% from Education 

• 20% about foster carers 

• A small but significant number from the Secure Estate (Regional Secure Children’s Centre and Wetherby Young Offender 
Institution) 

  

 The largest group of allegations involved physical abuse, although a significant number involved emotional abuse by professionals 
(bullying or derogatory comments).  Half of all referrals resulted in holding inter-agency allegations management strategy meetings, 
which alongside considering the risk posed by the professional also considers the impact on the child or young person.  37% of 
allegations about specific children involved those who were ‘looked after’ and 13% of allegations resulted in Police investigations. 

  

 With the recent appointment of a second full time LADO it will be possible in 2013/14 to develop the service further: 
 

• To provide a more consistently timely response to allegations and effect the quicker completion of processes. 

• To develop information leaflets and feedback forms for children and young people 

• To better understand the pattern of referrals and to test out whether all agencies are dealing with allegations appropriately 

• To deliver a one day national conference exploring the links between the LADO role and the Secure Estate 

• To provide in the annual report for 2013/14 information about outcomes of investigations and a consideration of the wellbeing of all 
involved when allegations are made. 

 
 
 
 

 

P
age 140



8.2.5 Private Fostering 

  
 Children and young people who go to live with adults outside of their immediate family are ‘privately fostered’ and are viewed as being 

potentially vulnerable. Working Together to Safeguard Children 2010 set out a policy and procedural function for the LSCB in relation to 
private fostering. The LSCB role includes monitoring and quality assurance, and to ensure that public awareness is raised about private 
fostering. 

  

 It is the duty of local authorities to promote public awareness of the requirement for those considering undertaking private fostering 
arrangements to notify the local authority. The local authority has a duty to satisfy itself that the welfare of children or young people who 
may be privately fostered within their area will be satisfactorily safeguarded and promoted. It is a requirement of the Private Fostering 
Regulations, 2005 that an annual report is presented to the LSCB. 

  

 Private fostering arrangements in Leeds were inspected in September 2008 and were judged to be inadequate. In January 2011, the 
service was independently reviewed and a further action plan developed. Some progress was made in all aspects of the plan. 
However, further internal auditing of the service indicated a significant lack of compliance with requirements. There was also a 
continuation of a low rate of reporting of private fostering arrangements albeit with year on year increase. 

  

 Following the Annual Report to the LSCB in June 2012 privately fostered children and young people were identified as an LSCB priority 
vulnerable group for 2012/13. A Leeds City Council Scrutiny Board Inquiry also took place in 2012/13 and has asked for an update on 
progress in July 2013. 

  

 The LSCB received the Annual Private Fostering Report in June 2013 which indicated: 
 

• There has been a modest increase over the past 3 years in the number of children and young people known to be privately 
fostered in Leeds (12 at the end of 2012/13). The number of children and young people who have moved out of such arrangements 
or reached their 16

th
 birthday (32) has been offset by a significant increase in notifications received (28 in 2012/13). This indicates 

that efforts over the past 3 years to increase professional awareness about the need to identify and respond to private fostering 
arrangements are bearing fruit. 

• The Private Fostering Communications Strategy has been revised and updated for 2013/14. 

• An internal audit of files in January 2013 indicated that progress was being made in ensuring that statutory visits to privately 
fostered children and young people were taking place, although improvements were still required in the completion of assessments 
within the required timescales and the timely obtaining of police checks. 

• Since January 2013 changes to staffing arrangements have been consolidated, with temporary posts made permanent and the 
appointment of a worker with considerable knowledge and experience of the requirements of private fostering. 

P
age 141



• The next audit of files is to take place in November 2013. 

  

8.2.6 Safeguarding in Secure Settings 

  

 Another group of children and young people who are particularly vulnerable are those who have been remanded or sentenced to a 
secure residential setting for criminal activity. 

  

 Leeds has two secure establishments for children and young people; Wetherby Young Offender Institution (16 – 17 yrs) and East Moor 
Secure Children’s Centre (10 – 17 yrs, with an average age of 15). With the exception of a small number of ‘welfare beds’ at East Moor, 
the population is made up of those remanded or sentenced for criminal matters. 

  

 The LSCB is required to report annually to the Youth Justice Board on the use of ‘restraint’ in secure units its area and has chosen to 
commission an independent specialist in youth justice and looked after children to undertake this task. Findings from the 2012/13 report 
are: 
 

• That both units are to be commended for a continuing trend of less use of restraint. Whilst it is acknowledged that this is in the 
context of reduced occupancy rates, there is a consensus that the complexity of the needs and challenging behaviour of the 
children and young people in their care has increased. 

• That changes in policy, practice and data recording of restraint in both parts of the secure estate in recent years have made it 
difficult to progress recommendations from reports in previous years; which proposed that common definitions about restraint, 
injuries, length of incidents etc be developed so as to provide a basis for comparison and a common approach to minimization. 

• Wetherby is currently in the process of undertaking an extensive programme to train staff in a new package ‘Minimising and 
Managing Physical Restraint’. 

• Eastmoor’s scheduled external review of its Restraint Minimization Strategy has been delayed and will now take place later in 
2013/14. 

 
The report concludes that with the changes to the methodologies of restraint due to be completed this year it should be possible to 
generate a consistent shared data base to monitor incidents, their duration and their impact in 2014/15. 

  

8.2.7 Safeguarding in Education Establishments 

  

 Schools and colleges have contact with the vast majority of children and young people in the city and provide support for many who are 
vulnerable. Education establishments play a key role in safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and young people and are 
closely monitored and regulated.  

P
age 142



  

 There was a 98% response rate from Education establishments to the annual self audit of safeguarding arrangements (s175 /157 
Education Act 2002). This involved 211 schools and the Leeds City College. In response to the findings the following actions have been 
taken by the Integrated Safeguarding Unit: 
 

• Where gaps have been identified the Chair of Governors for each establishment has been notified. 

• All designated staff that are due to undertake 2 yearly refresher training have been sent a letter reminding them 

• All schools that are due to undertake whole staff refresher training have been contacted and reminded. 

  

 Ofsted inspections undertaken between September 2011 – March 2012 found 17% of Leeds schools to be ‘Outstanding’ and 64% to be 
‘Good’ for safeguarding standards, which compares well with the national average. No school received an inadequate judgment for 
safeguarding standards. 

  

 Leeds City College was inspected in May 2012 and received Grade 1 (Outstanding) across all campuses and sites in the City for: 
o How well the college promotes and ensures safeguarding arrangements 
o How safe students feel 

  

 Managing and responding to school non attendance is now predominantly the responsibility of locality clusters. This has resulted in a 
50% increase in referrals for children and young people missing education and prompted the development of revised procedures for 
schools and training for staff responsible for attendance and child protection matters. 

  

 Performance monitoring in 2010/11 had identified that a significant number of Initial Child Protection Conferences were delayed during 
school holiday periods due to the lack of availability of education staff. This issue was raised with the Head Teacher’s Forum and more 
consistent arrangements were put in place with the LCC Integrated Safeguarding Unit. This has resulted in a significant improvement in 
the increase of education staff representation to 78% during the 2012 summer holiday period, with no conferences being cancelled due 
to lack of education representation. 

  

 The LSCB will be increasing its engagement with education establishments in 2013/14 through the newly formed Education 
Safeguarding Forum. This LSCB reference group will facilitate two way communication between the Board and the sector, ensuring 
that key safeguarding messages are disseminated and that feedback about issues and concerns is received. 

 
 
 

 

P
age 143



8.3 Performance Management and Quality Assurance of Safeguarding Services 
  

 Ensuring the effectiveness of multi-agency working to safeguard and promote the welfare of C&YP is the second of the LSCB core 
functions. This requires the LSCB to develop its own comprehensive overview of the quality, timeliness and effectiveness of multi-
agency practice which is facilitated through the LSCB Performance Management System and is made up of three components: 
 

1) Monitoring partner compliance with the statutory requirement to have effective safeguarding arrangements in place 
2) A Performance Management Framework based on the strategic priorities of the Board and including measures from the 

national Children’s Safeguarding Performance Information Framework. 
3) A multi-agency Quality Assurance and Audit Programme 

 
This system complements and feeds into the Leeds Framework for Learning and Improvement which helps to promote a culture of 
continuous improvement across the partnership. 

  

8.3.1 ‘Section 11 Duty to Safeguard’ Compliance 

  
 The Annual Partner Audit of compliance with the statutory requirements of s(11) of the Children Act 2004 indicates that safeguarding 

arrangements remain strong across the nine standards. The main areas identified as requiring review or improvement by organisations 
include: 
 

• A clear statement of the organisations responsibilities towards children is available for staff and volunteers 

• A clear line of accountability within the organisation for work on the safeguarding of children 

• Developments within the organization to take account of the need to safeguard children and to be informed, where 
appropriate, by the views of children and families 

• Training on the safeguarding of children for staff and volunteers working with or, depending on the organisation’s 
responsibilities, in contact with children and families 

• Staff are aware of the information sharing procedure for their organisation 

• Ensuring that children are made aware of their right to be safe from abuse. 
 
Progress on action plans by partners to address the improvements required will be monitored in 2013/14 along with the introduction of 
a range of audit and peer challenge processes to cross check standards. Information about the extent of partnership engagement in the 
process is provided in 10.2.6 (below). 

  
 In 2013/14 the LSCB programme to ensure compliance with s(11) responsibilities will take account of the extended scope to include all 

P
age 144



private, voluntary and independent sector agencies  as set out in Working together 2013. 

  

8.3.2 The LSCB Performance Management Framework 

  

 A key component of the LSCB Performance Management System is the ‘Performance Management Framework’ which collates data 
from across the partnership about safeguarding activity. Established in 2011 and refreshed to include measures from the national 
Children’s Safeguarding Information Performance Framework, it is based on an ‘Outcomes Based Accountability’ approach, asking 
three questions: How much did we do?; How well did we do it?; Did it make a difference? 

  

 Within the framework are 4 scorecards which collate performance information about operational processes and the safeguarding of 
priority vulnerable groups of children and young people: 

  

 The child’s journey through the safeguarding system 
 
This reviews information about how the safeguarding system responds when concerns are identified and raised about vulnerable 
children and young people. It throws light on how children and young people become the subject of statutory intervention and the 
extent to which Early Help, preventative services are employed to reduce that need. 

  

 The restructured Children’s Social Work Service Duty and Advice Team  has had a significant impact on the nature and patterns of 
referrals from across the partnership. 2012/13 saw: 
 

• A 6% increase in the number of requests for service (31,000 to 33,000), indicating that more conversations are taking place 
between agencies about how best to respond to children and young people about whom there are concerns 

• Referrals accepted by Children’s Social Work Service for consideration of statutory intervention has fallen from 14,000 in 2011/12 
to 11,000 in 2012/13 and as a percentage of request for service made (46% to 34%), indicating that the conversations are resulting 
in improvements in the quality of referrals received and a refocusing on alternative, preventative approaches where appropriate. 

• A reduction in the number of children and young people who are re-referred to Children’s Social Work Service within a 12 month 
period (which may reflect the extent to which services were not provided ‘at the right time’) from 36% at the beginning of the year to 
30% at its end. Although this latter figure remains high, and a cause for concern, the trend is clearly positive and expected to 
improve further in 2013/14. The Duty and Advice Team has demonstrated increasing consistency in decision making through a 
weekly multi-agency review meeting which considers contacts from partners which did not result in referrals being accepted. 

  

 Of the 11,000 referrals accepted by Children’s Social Work Service, 1682 resulted in child abuse investigations and, following 
assessments, 1458 initial child protection conferences were held. Reviewing performance data about the efficiency of the this process 

P
age 145



identifies that: 
 

• The timeliness of core assessments within statutory guidance fluctuated throughout the year between 64 – 90%, representing an 
overall fall in performance compared with 2011/12. 

• The timeliness of initial child protection conferences within statutory guidance also fluctuated throughout the year between 34 – 
88%, although overall there was a significant improvement compared with 2011/12. A marked dip in performance occurred 
between December 2012  and January 2013 which coincided with a high level of staff sickness and a focus on the pilot to more 
fully engage children and young people in the conference process (above). 

  

 The number of Common Assessments initiated in 2012/13 (867) remains relatively low, albeit representing  an 11% increase on the 
previous year. Conversations between partners and the Duty and Advice Team include consideration of when a Common Assessment 
may be appropriate. Between December 2012 and March 2013 advice was given that 471 children and young people (from 246 
families) should be considered for a CAF, of which 52% have been progressed. 

  

 The provision and effectiveness of Early Help 

  

 The development of Early Help services is an essential part of the aspiration to reduce the need for statutory intervention by providing 
the ‘right service at the right time and the partnership continues to make a significant investment in this approach. The Children’s 
Services Early Intervention and Prevention Strategy underpins this commitment to tackle emerging problems as soon as possible by 
working with children, young people and their families in a restorative way that is supportive and empowering.  

  

 There are a number of components to the strategy: 
 

• The embedding and further development of locality cluster working 

• Maintaining Children’s Centres in Leeds 

• The establishment of Early Start Teams which bring Health Visitors and Children’s Centre staff together (working closely with 
the Family Nurse Partnership) to provide joined up services for families from pre-birth to 5 years old. It is planned to create 
4,500 places for 2 year olds by 2014. 

• The implementation of a Top 100 methodology to identify children and families in localities who are vulnerable, have multiple 
needs and who require additional support from partners. Each family will have a shared assessment, a team with a shared 
intervention plan and a lead practitioner. 

• De-escalation support from specialist intervention to less intensive based cluster care and support is being developed to 
reduce dependency on specialist services and  avoid vulnerable children and young people failing to maintain the gains that 
such intervention can provide once it is withdrawn. 

P
age 146



• The expansion of the Family Group Conferencing Service that allows families to consider the difficulties experienced by 
vulnerable children and be supported in finding ways to manage and improve the situation in a safe and appropriate manner 
before statutory intervention is considered. 

• Increasing the number of ‘conversations’ between the Children Social Work Service Duty and Advice Team and professionals 
who have concerns about children and young people with a view to exploring, where safe and appropriate, preventative early 
help options. 

  

 The Leeds Youth Offending Services provides a good example of collaboration with partners to support Early Help Services: 
 

• Working with young people at risk of offending who are referred from Children’s Services, West Yorkshire Police and other 
partners. Between April and December 2012 the first time entry figure for the Youth Justice System in Leeds was 665 per 
10,000 of the 10 – 17 year old population, which represents a 14% reduction on the previous year. 

• Working closely with the Families First programme in the city, linking with Targeted service Leaders in each cluster and 
supporting the use of the Top 100 Methodology. Youth Offending staff operate as lead practitioners for families in a significant 
number of cases. 

  

 It is evident that much preventative multi-agency work is being undertaken through these services but it remains difficult to establish the 
full scale and scope of such work. Despite assurances given by Dr Mark Peel at the LSCB Annual Review Meeting in July 2012 that 
Leeds compared favourably with other cities, it is concerning that the number of multi-agency Common Assessments undertaken has 
not increased significantly over the year, particularly given the simplification of the process undertaken in 2011/12,. In December 2012 
the LSCB hosted a series of safeguarding seminars for cluster leaders to consider the use of CAF in the City; which identified a number 
of factors: 
 

• Barriers to progressing and embedding CAF: 
o Lack of staff confidence / competence across the partnership 
o Capacity in partner agencies 
o Inconsistent agency ownership / cluster engagement 
o Professional / Cultural attitudes which maintain a ‘silo’ approach 
o Tension between adult / family / child focused approaches 

 

• Opportunities / Areas for Improvement: 
o To more effectively promote the benefits of CAF and the need for professional / cultural change 
o To ensure that strategic sign up by partners results in operational progress at practitioner and 1st line manager levels 
o To ensure that commissioning processes embed the requirement to engage, and lead, CAF processes 
o To provide a more sophisticated analysis of the ‘CAF gap’ to identify the likely number of CAFs that should be 

P
age 147



undertaken 
o For Clusters to develop ‘CAF Forums’ 
o To launch the newly developed ‘Family CAF’ with appropriate training 

  

 A clear challenge for 2013/14 is to capture and evaluate all the multi-agency Early Help activity being undertaken across the City; a 
task that will be helped by the introduction in the Autumn of a new Children’s Services Electronic Recording System. The development 
and introduction of the single multi-agency assessment framework, protocols and processes across the whole safeguarding system 
(Working Together 2013) will provide an opportunity to review the continued centrality of CAF in these processes and to explore further 
the current uneven commitment to it at an operational level across the partnership. 

  

 Children and young people subject to a child protection plan 

  

 Children and young people are made subject to a child protection plan when it is assessed at a child protection conference that they 
have suffered or are likely to suffer ‘significant harm.’  Whilst the circumstances of each case is dealt with carefully and 
comprehensively, the overall number of children subject to a plan and a comparison with statistical neighbours can give an indication of 
the effectiveness of the safeguarding system as a whole (and in particular the efficacy of Early Help preventative services). 

  

 Following the Ofsted inspection in 2009, when concerns were raised that Leeds was not initiating a sufficient number of statutory child 
protection interventions, the number of children and young people subject to a child protection rose steadily from 511 to a peak in 
August 2011 of 1171. The introduction of the Strengthening Families approach helped to stabilize this rise and manage a gradual 
reduction in overall numbers to 870 in April 2012. During 2012/13 the numbers have steadily increased to 993 at the year end. This 
represents a rate of 59 per 10,000, which is a third higher than for statistical neighbours in 2011/12 (39 / 10,000) but is slightly less than 
for ‘core cities’ (64 / 10,000). 

  

 Work is being undertaken by the Children’s Social Work Service and the Children’s Services Integrated Safeguarding Unit to better 
understand the reasons for these trends. This includes reviewing de-escalation processes ( from child protection plans to children in 
need plans) and the development of the new assessment process to include a second review point to consider whether safe 
alternatives to an initial child protection conference could be pursued. 

  

 Within the cohort of children and young people subject to plans are two groups requiring further investigation: 
 

• The number who have been subject to plans for more than 2 years. This has fluctuated over the first 7 months of 2012/13 but has 
then risen from 29 to 56 by the year end and raises questions about the effectiveness of the plans in reducing the risks identified 
and whether alternative approaches should be considered.  

P
age 148



• The number who have become the subject of a plan for a second or subsequent time. This has risen steadily over 2012/13 from 
153 in April 2012 to 217 in March 2013, a 42% increase. This raises questions not only about the effectiveness of the previous child 
protection plan and the sustainability of progress made but also about the decision to remove the child or young person from the 
previous plan. 

 
The cases identified are being audited by the Integrated Safeguarding Unit to gain a better understanding of the issues involved and 
the implications for the system as a whole. It is already clear that many of them involve long term ‘neglect’ and children and young 
people living in the context of ‘compromised parenting’ (domestic violence, parental substance mis-use and parental mental health 
problems). 

  

 Children and Young People who are Looked After 
 

 The number of looked after children in Leeds had been steadily increasing since 2005, with the most significant rise coming between 
November 2009 and November 2010 when the numbers rose from 1370 to 1434.  This placed significant pressure on the budgets of 
agencies working with looked after children. In addition there is a significant body of research highlighting that looked after children 
have poorer outcomes that other children and young people in the community and that reducing the numbers of looked after children 
and improving their outcomes requires a coordinated effort from agencies working with children, young people and families.  
 
For these reasons, safely and appropriately reducing the numbers of children and young people who need to be ‘looked after’ is a 
priority for the partnership. Reducing the number of looked after children in Leeds have been accepted as one of the three ‘obsessions’ 
by the Children’s Trust Board. 

  

 There has been a steady reduction in the number of children becoming looked after over the year. In March 2013 there were 1377 
looked after which is a reduction of 98 children from the same period last year. This is an encouraging trend, although there is more 
progress to make as the current rate of 88.9 per 10,000 remains significantly higher than for statutory neighbours (74 / 10,000). 

  

 This progress has been made by a combination of: 
 

• A 10% reduction in the number of receptions into care (the result of a more rigorous approach to exploring safe alternative options), 
with the average age of this group falling significantly (suggesting that for individual children 0 – 5 years old, intervention is being 
offered in a more timely and potentially effective manner). 

• A 16% increase in the number leaving care (the result of improved permanency planning, with more children and young people 
being returned to their families and an increase in adoption and special guardianship orders). 

  

P
age 149



 Alongside these headline figures is evidence of that this group of vulnerable children and young people are being provided with high 
quality services: 
 

• Improving placement stability. The proportion experiencing 3 or more moves in 2012/13 has reduced from 10% (151) to 7% (103). 

• All have statutory reviews, with 98% being within statutory timescales and, on average 85% participate in those reviews. 

• All have an allocated social worker. 

• 94% have a health needs assessment (85% within statutory timescales) and a health plan 

• 96% are up to date with their schedule of imunisations 

• 80% under 1yr old and 92% over 1 yr old have had a dental check within the last year 

  

 An important area for development in 2013/14 will be to engage with the full range of private and voluntary children’s homes and foster 
care agencies in Leeds to seek assurance that the children and young people in their care are appropriately safeguarded. 

  

 Children and Young People who go ‘Missing’ / at risk of Sexual Exploitation 

  

 In recent years there has been an increased appreciation of the vulnerability of young people who go missing from home or care and 
the link between this and the risk of becoming sexually exploited. The LSCB has identified these young people as a priority vulnerable 
group requiring a concerted and co-ordinated multi-agency response. 

  

 The term ‘missing’ refers to children and young people up to the age of 18 who have run away from their home or care placement or 
whose whereabouts is unknown. Many of these young people stay with friends or family members, but there are some who do not have 
access to these networks of support and end up in harmful situations such as sleeping rough or at risk of child sexual exploitation. The 
LSCB, in conjunction with partners in West Yorkshire has developed a protocol that applies to all children and young people that go 
absent without permission from their parents, carers, residential carers or foster carers. It defines the roles and responsibilities of the 
Police, Children's Social Care, and carers and sets out how return home interviews should be conducted. 

  

 During 2012/13 there were 1133 missing episodes in Leeds  involving 455 children and young people. 54% of these were 11 – 15 yrs 
old and 40% were 16 – 18 yrs old. 

  

 Child sexual exploitation involves exploitative situations, contexts and relationships where young people (or a third person or persons) 
receive ‘something’ (e.g. food, accommodation, drugs, alcohol, cigarettes, affection, gifts, money) as a result of them performing, 
and/or another or others performing on them, sexual activities. Child sexual exploitation can occur through the use of technology 
without the child’s immediate recognition; for example being persuaded to post sexual images on the Internet/mobile phones without 
immediate payment or gain. In all cases, those exploiting the child/young person have power over them by virtue of their age, gender, 

P
age 150



intellect, physical strength and/or economic or other resources. Violence, coercion and intimidation are common, involvement in 
exploitative relationships being characterised in the main by the child or young person’s limited availability of choice resulting from their 
social/economic and/or emotional vulnerability. 

  

 Ascertaining the prevalence of child sexual exploitation has been identified nationally as a challenge. In Leeds systems are being 
developed to more accurately capture the scale of the problem locally. The data for the city which is currently available indicates that in 
2012/13 103 children and young people were identified as being at risk of sexual exploitation and that this cohort was made up of: 
 

• 14 looked after by the Local Authority 

• 83% female, 17% male 

• 67% were between the ages of 15 – 16 yrs old , with 12% under 10 years old 

• 55% were White British, 13% White Other, 8% Dual Heritage, 5% Asian British.  

  

 The LSCB is developing a multi-agency strategy to tackle the issue of CSE in Leeds. A new post was developed through Leeds 
Children’s Services to lead on CSE and Missing children and a lead officer was appointed in January 2013. West Yorkshire Protocols 
and Guidance for professionals were updated in March 2013. In order to better lead and co-ordinate a strategic approach a new LSCB 
sub group has been established, with links to various operational groups and partners.  
 
Developments so far include:  
 

• Raising awareness through training amongst professionals to help in the early identification of CSE. 

• The development of a practitioner forum. 

• Improving understanding by developing a comprehensive data-base to map the scale of the issue within Leeds. 

• Piloting a new Risk Assessment Matrix  

• Developing closer links with the Safer Leeds Partnership and Third Sector organisations. 

• Considering how the victims of exploitation can be appropriately supported. 

• Developing a Perpetrator Risk Assessment tool 

• Planning the delivery of ‘Missing’ briefing sessions  

• Ensuring all children and young people that go missing will have ‘return to home’ interview carried out. 

  

8.3.3 Evidence from Single and Multi-agency Auditing Activity. 

  

 Having established a performance framework in 2011 which collates and enables the analysis of quantitative information about 
safeguarding activity (how many / how much / in what timescale did we complete safeguarding tasks etc) the LSCB initiated a Quality 

P
age 151



Assurance and Audit programme in 2012 designed to provide much more information about the quality of the work being undertaken 
and its impact on outcomes for individual children and young people.  

  

 The LSCB multi-agency Quality Assurance and Audit Programme progressed 5 strands of work in 2012/13. Of these one was 
completed and two reported findings at the yearend: 

  

 Strand (1): The Effectiveness of Child Protection Plans 
 
25  cases were audited by a pool of multi-agency auditors during 2012/13. From these 1 (4%) case was judged as good, 15 (60%) 
adequate and 9 (36%) inadequate. No child or young person was judged to be suffering or at risk of suffering immediate significant 
harm.  
 
Areas of good practice identified include the following: 
 

o Good attendance by agencies at conferences and core groups 
o High level of support available 
o Good professional communication 
o High quality of reports provided for conferences 
o Evidence of parents / carers being engaged in the process. 

 
Nevertheless, the audit identified inconsistency in the overall quality in the planning, implementation and reviewing of child protection 
plans. Areas identified for improvement focus on the operation of multi-agency core groups and include:  
 

• Child Protection Plans need to be SMART (Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Realistic, Timely) in order to reduce the potential 
for drift and delay. 

• Children, young people and families need to know exactly what is expected of them 

• Members to be more effective in challenging the work and progress made by core groups 

• Core groups to be more responsive to changing circumstances / insufficient progress in addressing identified risks and amend 
child protection plans accordingly 

• The voice of the child to be more clearly included and evidenced. 
 
The findings have been disseminated across the partnership and a process put in place for all core groups to review their practice in 
the light of them. 
 
In response to emerging findings earlier in the year Leeds Community Healthcare set a target of 100% attendance at child protection 

P
age 152



conferences for Health Visitors and School Nurses. In 2012/13 attendance was recorded at 97.5%. 
 
The audit continues in 2013/14. 

  

 Strand 2: To receive the views of professionals involved in multi-agency child protection plans 
 
In order to gain a greater understanding of the emerging findings of the Strand (1) audit, a pilot survey was carried out engaging a small 
number of professionals involved in the core groups audited. Practitioners stated that: 
 
• Sufficient time was given to read and take in written reports provided for conferences 
• Decisions and recommendations from the conferences are sent out within timescales 
• Core groups meet at least every six weeks, or as agreed if sooner 
• Core group minutes were not always recorded and sent out in a timely manner. 
 
This survey will be repeated in 2013/14 following work undertaken by core groups to consider the findings of the Strand (1) audit. 

  

 Strand 5: To evaluate the effectiveness of revised care and control policies in Specialist Inclusion Learning Centres 
 
This audit set out to evaluate the implementation of an action in response to a recommendation in a Serious case Review which had 
been completed in June 2010. The actions had included: 
 

• Reviewing and revising the existing care and control policy 

• Issuing a revised model policy (following consultation) to the Specialist Inclusion Learning Centres. 
 
The Audit found that although a revised model policy had been produced and issued it did not meet statutory guidance. 
 
Subsequently the model policy was further revised in order to fully meet statutory guidance and the 5 Specialist Inclusion Learning 
Centres required to adapt their own procedures accordingly. A follow up audit is to take place in 2013/14 to ensure that procedures are 
now fully compliant. 
 
Although the circumstances of this case involved one agency, which is no longer in existence, the audit raised more general concerns 
about the robustness of processes used to ensure that agreed actions from Serious Case Reviews were completely implemented. All 
Partners were required to review their processes and provide assurance to the LSCB chair that they were fit for purpose and effective. 
 

  

P
age 153



 LSCB Chair Audit Activity 

  

 Over the course of 2012/13 the LSCB Chair has visited six partner agencies in order to review case files and discuss issues with staff. 

  

 Partner Agency Audits 
 
The LSCB Quality Assurance and Audit Programme complements extensive auditing by partner agencies. For example: 

  

 Cafcass: 
 
A national audit programme of closed cases found 83% to have met the required standards / good and none with any safeguarding 
concerns. 

  

 Early Start Service: 
 
The Service has established an ongoing audit of case files undertaken by managers from different children’s centres to provide 
assurance that recording meets the required standard. 

  

 NHS: 
 
Leeds Community Healthcare have undertaken the following safeguarding related audits in 2012/13: 

• Analysis of enquiries to the Safeguarding Team 

• Quality of child protection supervision (which indicated 94% compliance with standards). 

• SUDIC process 2008 – 20012 

• Ongoing audit of assessments for statutory looked after reviews (35 per month) 

  

 Leeds and York Partnership Foundation Trust have undertaken an audit of cases where service users transfer between services and 
will be monitoring standards of record keeping in 2013/14. 

  

 Leeds Youth Offending Service: 
 
The Service operates to Quality Assurance processes: a sample audit of cases is undertaken by managers on a quarterly basis and a 
questionnaire is completed on a sample of cases facilitating 360 degree feedback on from all involved, including the young person and 
their parent / carer. 

P
age 154



  

 Through the further development of the Leeds Framework for Learning and Improvement, the LSCB will be requesting partners to 
provide summaries of their audit findings and actions taken in 2013/14  in order to contribute to the overall understanding of the quality 
of safeguarding services across the partnership. 

  

8.4 Implementing Learning from Research into Practice 
  

 An important part of the Leeds Improvement Journey is the harnessing of expertise, research findings and external challenge  in order 
to ensure that services are designed and planned on a solid evidence base. There are a number of initiatives currently being facilitated 
through Children’s Services. 

  

 In 2011 the LSCB and Children’s Services jointly commissioned an updated review of processes and decisions made in response to 
requests for service and referrals made to the ‘front door’ duty system for children and young people and their families. Professor 
Thorpe’s research identified a significant increase in investigative and assessment work undertaken by, the then, Children and Young 
People’s Social Care in response to ‘requests for service’ and referrals from across the partnership. However, this increase in workload 
was not matched by a proportionate increase in the level of support services provided to children and young people and their families. 
Moreover, the research identified a number of procedural and professional issues in the operation of the Council’s Contact Centre and 
Children’s Services Duty Room. 

  

 In April 2012 a restructured Children’s Social Work Service Duty and Advice Team was established which, during the course of the 
year, has already had a significant impact on patterns and quality of referrals. Further research is being commissioned in 2013/14 for 
Professor Thorpe to review the patterns and outcomes of domestic violence referrals. 

  

 In August 2011 a ‘Strengthening Family’ approach was introduced to child protection conferences with a focus on risk analysis, shared 
responsibility for the child protection planning process and timely improvement in outcomes for children and young people. Further 
investigation of aspects of child protection processes is being undertaken in 2013/14 and the approach is being considered for statutory 
reviews of children and young people who are looked after. 

  
 Work has been undertaken with Mark Friedman to embed his Outcomes Based Accountability approach to understanding and using 

performance data to plan service development and assess its impact on outcomes for children and young people. This has 
underpinned the production of the Children and Young People’s Plan and the LSCB’s own Performance Management System. 

  

 In May 2012 a more flexible and streamlined Common assessment framework was introduced following work with Dr Mark Peel of the 
University of Leicester. This allows partner agencies to fit elements of the assessment into their own ‘in house’ processes. 

P
age 155



  

 Professors Mike Stein and Nina Biehal (University of York) are working with the Children’s Social Work Service to review the quality of 
care planning for children and young people who are ‘looked after’. From this four ongoing work strands have been identified: 
 

• Quality of assessment 

• Kinship care and special guardianship 

• Young people leaving care 

• Permanence. 

  

 Complementing this work is a research project being undertaken by Emily Munro (Institute of Education) which is reviewing practice in 
regard to care leavers and will report in September 2013. This work links with issues identified through Local Lessons Reviews 
undertaken by the LSCB and the challenge accepted by the Children’s Trust Board ‘to develop and co-ordinate improved services for 
vulnerable 16 – 21 year olds’. 

  

 In addition to academic input Children’s services have engaged leading practitioners from the UK and abroad to advise, support and 
challenge the development of the following: 
 

• Family Group Conferencing Service 

• Children’s Services ‘Front Door’ arrangements 

• Fostering policies and procedures 

• Performance management and Quality Assurance functions. 

  

8.5 Summary and Whole System Analysis 
 

 Section (8) of this report clearly outlines the breadth and depth of work and initiatives being undertaken to safeguard and promote the 
wellbeing of children and young people in Leeds. Engaging children and young people about safeguarding matters and their own care 
is being progressed and good use is being made of external expertise to shape the planning and development of services. Significant 
service restructuring has and is taking place to respond to the changing circumstances of the public sector and to promote  more 
effective ways of working with children, young people and their families. More quantitative and qualitative information is being collated 
to help analyse: 
 

• Where progress is being made 

• What outcomes are being acheived 

• What difference is this making 

P
age 156



• Where more improvement is required  

• What requires further investigation and understanding. 

  

 For the LSCB,  in discharging its responsibility to evaluate the effectiveness of safeguarding activity in the city, a series of questions 
must be answered: 

  

 1) Are we doing the right things? 
 
Whilst the answer to this rests ultimately on whether outcomes for children and young people improve consistently over time, there are 
positive indications in the development of: 
 

• A clear, coherent strategic direction since 2009 which is focused on increasing the availability and effectiveness of Early Help 
preventative services and reducing the need for statutory intervention. This is formalized in the Children and Young People’s 
Plan and supported through the challenges from the LSCB to ‘rebalance the safeguarding system’. 
 

• A shared partnership culture underpinned by a restorative approach to working with children, young people and their families 
that seeks to ‘never do nothing’ and to provide the right service at the right time with ‘high support and high challenge’. 

  

 2) Are we making sufficient progress? 
 
There is evidence of good progress being made in the aims and objectives we have set ourselves in: 
 

• The reduction in the number of children and young people who need to be looked after 

• The quality of services being provided for children and young people in the care of the Local Authority 

• The establishment of revised Children’s Services ‘Front Door’ arrangements which have supported: 
o An increase in conversations between partners about how best to respond to children and young people about whom 

concerns have been raised 
o A reduction in the number of referrals accepted by Children’s Social Work Service 
o An improved understanding of the nature and scale of patterns of domestic violence across the city 

• Continuing the investment in and co-ordination of Early Help services. 

  

 3) What are the emerging challenges? 
 
A greater understanding is required of: 

P
age 157



 

• The trends and composition of the number of children and young people who are subject to child protection plans 

• The full nature and extent of multi-agency Early Help and preventative activity being undertaken 

• How the development of a single assessment framework across the partnership and the continuum of ‘risk’ and ‘need’ can 
enhance the planning of Early Help interventions 

 
Areas identified for improvement include: 
 

• The timeliness of child protection processes 

• The effectiveness of child protection plans 

• The provision of services for children and young people at risk of or suffering sexual exploitation 
 

Areas identified for development include: 
 

• The agreement to a single assessment framework and process which is robust and straightforward to use 

• The updating of the Leeds ‘Think family Protocol’ to improve multi-agency responses to children and young people living in 
the context of ‘compromised parenting’. 

• The exploration of a partnership approach to establishing a Young People’s Service (16 – 25 yrs) that would cater for 
vulnerable young people, including care leavers. 

  

 The issues identified in this sub section have contributed to the development of challenges for the LSCB and Children’s Trust Board for 
2013/14. 

  

 4) Are we managing risk appropriately and safely? 
 
This is a crucial factor at all times; but particularly so during a period of  ‘whole system re-orientation’ as is currently the circumstances 
in Leeds. It is important that the LSCB is able to be satisfied that risk is being managed safely and appropriately in individual cases. 
 
The evidence includes: 
 

• The reduction in the number of looked after children and young people is gradual and is being actively managed. The reduction 
is due to a combination of fewer receptions into care (with  alternative, more appropriate, options being rigorously explored) 
and improved permanency planning enabling more to leave. 

• Although the number and make-up of the cohort of children and young people who are subject to child protection plans 
requires further investigation and improvements are required in the effectiveness of plans, it is notable that the LSCB audit 

P
age 158



confirmed the Ofsted findings of 2011 that children and young people are not being left in unsafe situations. 

• Concerns remain about the high rate of re-referral to Children’s Social Work Services with the implication that some children 
and young people may not be receiving a timely and effective response. Nevertheless, the introduction of the new Duty and 
Advice Team has impacted positively on these figures and the trend is expected to continue in 2013/14 as the new 
arrangements bed in. 

• Considerable audit and review activity is being undertaken to better understand the working of the safeguarding system as a 
whole and the performance of its component parts. 

  

9.0 Review of Challenges to the Children’s Trust Board for 2012/13 
  

 In the  presentation of the Annual Report in June 2012 the LSCB set a series of challenges to the Children’s Trust Board for 2012/13. 
Progress against these challenges is considered here: 

  

 (1)To embed changes being implemented to the safeguarding system and be able to evidence the development of a more 
‘balanced’ system (towards earlier intervention) with improving outcomes for vulnerable children and young people. 
 

 The Children’s Trust Board wants to ensure that any vulnerable child in Leeds receives the right support at the right time in the right 
way. The Board has maintained a focus on develop a range of services that enable interventions to take place early in the life of a 
problem.  
 
The Board has supported the roll out of Targeted Service Leaders in all clusters. As a result more vulnerable children and families are 
having their needs met through joined up local services. Referrals to social care are reducing.  Local services are becoming more 
confident and able to meet needs locally. Support through the Common Assessment Framework meets the majority of needs.  
Feedback from parents and carers is very positive. 
 
Children’s Centres and health visiting services have merged to create the ‘Early Start’ service to create a more joined up support for 
families. The Early Start Centres provide strong support for young children and their families. 82% of Leeds’ Children’s Centres are 
rated as good or outstanding.   
 
The Board has continued to support improvements to the Children’s Social Work Service ‘Front Door’. The development of a dedicated 
phone line for professionals, which is answered by a qualified and experienced social worker has resulted in a better referral processes 
and better referrals. As a result the number of ‘contacts’ that is conversations between professionals about children have increased. 
However the number of these conversations that require a referral to the Children’s Social Work Service has decreased. The number of 
referrals receiving an initial assessment and the number of children receiving a service following an initial assessment have increased. 
This indicates that the service is now more focused on those children who require the support of a social work practitioner.  All referrals 

P
age 159



are quality assured weekly by a multi-agency group of senior officers. External academic researchers and local partners have provided 
positive feedback on our new arrangements for managing referrals to social work services. Decision-making is improved, supported by 
clearer referrals, with more referrals progressing to assessments.  
 

  

 (2) To ensure that high quality services are provided to C&YP within the statutory system (C&YP subject to CP Plans and 
LAC) 
 

 Looked after children are one of the Children’s Trust Boards three obsessions. The Board receives regular reports from the Children’s 
Social Work Service on progress on safely and appropriately reducing the number of looked after children. The report provides an 
overview of the actions taken by the Children’s Social Work Service and key partners to reduce the need for children to become looked 
after through early intervention and effective safeguarding services and the quality of care provided to children looked after by Leeds 
City Council. 
 
The Board received the last report in May 2013. This highlighted that all looked after children and children subject to a child protection 
plan are allocated to a qualified social worker and that robust arrangements are in place through the Integrated Safeguarding Unit to 
provide robust challenge and support on plans for these children.  
 
The Board receives regular performance reports on safeguarding and looked after children’s services. These reports are presented to 
the Board by the Director and Deputy Director of Children’s Services who are questioned about the story behind the figures.  
 
In February Children’s Services Independent Reviewing Officer Service was subject to an external review by Ofsted.  The feedback 
from inspectors was positive and no cases were referred back to the service. Positive feedback was also received from inspectors who 
piloted some of the tools for the new inspection framework for looked after children. 

  

 (3)To ensure that risk is appropriately considered as services delivery is developed in response to the Munro Review of Child 
Protection, so that children’s safety is not jeopardised as a result. 
 

 The Board receives regular reports from the Director of Children’s Services. The Board has been informed of the work being 
undertaken with Professors Mike Stein and Nina Beihal from York University to improve the quality of assessment and care planning. 
This work will support the implementation of the new social work recording system frameworki. The implementation of the system is 
also being monitored by the Board. 
 

  

 (4) To lead the development within partner agencies of complementary quality assurance frameworks consistent with the ‘The 

P
age 160



Children’s Safeguarding Performance Information Framework’ published by the Government in June 2012.  
 

  

 The Board receives regular performance information. This has been informed by the The Children’s Safeguarding Performance 
Information Framework’. 

  

 (5) To ensure that the potential risks to safe practice, such as changes to how Health Services are provided are implemented, 
are kept under consideration. 

  

 The CTB has responded to the changes in health services by reviewing the membership of the Boards.  A representative from the 

CCGs has been attending CTB since Nov 2012 and the CTB formally agreed two places for CCG representative at the meeting on 10 

May 2013. The representatives are Jane Mischenko and Dr Helen Hayward.   

Public Health colleagues are now co-located with Children’s Services colleagues in Merrion House.  This arrangement will enhance 

current partnership working relationships and enable new relationships to be developed. 

In December 2012 the Health and Wellbeing Board Chair attended the CTB to present the draft H&WB Strategy for information and 

comment and a report outlining the engagement process. The Strategy was formally adopted by the Health and Wellbeing Board in 

May 2013.  The Chair of the CTB and the Director of Children’s Services are members of the Health and Wellbeing Board.  We are 

currently planning a joint event of both Boards to be held in the Autumn 2013. 

Partners are willing to make changes together and explore new ways of working. This has been demonstrated by the new ‘front door’ 
arrangements at social care offices, where health and police professionals work alongside social care officers and are available to give 
advice and support to service users and professionals 

  

10.0 Assessment of the Extent to which LSCB Functions are being Effectively Discharged 
 
This section of the Report reviews the way in which the LSCB has carried out its functions and responsibilities during the year and met 
its statutory requirements. It begins with a summary of the outcomes from the Annual Review Meeting held in July 2012 before 
considering: 
 

• How the LSCB has undertaken its work 

• How it has promoted a shared culture of continuous improvement 

• How effective it has been 

P
age 161



  
10.1 LSCB Annual Review July 2012 
  
 The Annual Review  offers an opportunity for the Board to step outside of its busy schedule of business meetings in order to consider 

the findings of the Annual Report Evaluating the Effectiveness of Safeguarding in Leeds for the previous year and to reflect on how well  
it is working to provide strategic leadership for the partnership.The LSCB Annual Review undertaken in July 2012 included: 

  
 A self-assessment exercise  

 
This considered: 
 

• Governance and Mandate, with a  consensus that there is clarity in this area through documentation and on-going discussion. 
 

• Infrastructure and Capacity: 
• The Business Support Unit and sub group structure viewed as working effectively. 
• There is a positive attitude to implementation of the implications of the revised ‘Working Together’ framework 
• Issues raised re admin support to the Child death Overview Panel have been included in current business planning. 
• Concerns were raised about sustaining LSCB budget contributions in the future. 
• Recognition was given of the progress made in further developing the Quality assurance framework, and the 
       importance of continuing to  prioritise this. 

 

• Delivery and Outputs: 
• The positive performance of the Training Programme. 
• There are high aspirations for the different components of the communications strategy (includes engagement of  
             children and appointment of lay members). 
• Recognition was given of improved Serious case Review processes. 
• There is an emphasis on the importance of progressing the Audit strategy in order to provide evidence of quality of 
             services 
 

• Outcomes: 

o Acknowledgement was given of major changes in processes but a continuing lack of evidence of the impact on individual 

children. This needs to be seen as a priority. 

  

P
age 162



 A 360˚ Review of the LSCB Chair: 

 

o There was a unanimous view that the Chair carries out the role responsibilities effectively. 

o Members appreciate the Chair’s experience, her clear leadership and inclusivity. 

o Board members are positive about the Chair’s style of leadership. 

o All felt the Chair is approachable and that 1-1 meetings arranged when she took up her post had been very helpful in 

securing engagement and there would be value in repeating these at intervals. 

o It was suggested that an area for increased attention was the time and focus that the business of the LSCB gets at the 

CTB and other strategic forums. 

  
 A review of the functioning of the Board identified: 

 

• Successes: 

• The development of the Performance Management System (processes, structure and framework) 

• The Board is becoming more closely connected to practice, but needs further extending to include the ‘front line’, 

children, young people and families. 

• The Business Unit is better resourced 

• The sub group structure is more effective. 

 

• Challenges: 

• The development of the Communications Strategy for a wider variety of audiences. 

• Promoting wider ownership of the CAF process. 

• Ensuring we are focusing on the right ‘vulnerable groups’ of C&YP. 

• Participation and engagement of C&YP. 

• Promoting a professional culture across the partnership of ‘high support and high challenge.’ 

• Clarity about our expectations of Lay Members. 

• Ensuring the right balance of quality / quantity of paperwork received by the Board. 

• The adequate representation of all sectors across the partnership. 

• Maintaining timely progress against Business Plan objectives and tasks. 

• Reviewing funding arrangements for 2013/14 and beyond. 

P
age 163



  
10.1.4 Following the LSCB Annual Review in July 2012  the following actions were implemented: 

 
o The LSCB Chair has held an additional round of 1:1 appraisal meetings with Board Members 
o A funding and Value for Money Review was undertaken to inform future financial planning, from which the need to review 

Business Unit admin arrangements was identified  
o A programme of reporting to strategic forums has been initiated 
o Amendments and additions to the LSCB Business Plan 2012/13 were made 
o Planning was undertaken to establish an ‘Education Forum’ which will be fully operational in 2013/14 
o A tracker system has been introduced to ensure the timely progression of actions agreed at Board meetings. 

  

10.2 How the LSCB has undertaken its work 
  

 The LSCB, in meeting its statutory requirements and progressing an ambitious business plan needs to be well organised and the 
efforts of its members effectively co-ordinated. This section considers how this has been undertaken in 2012/13. 

  

10.2.1 Membership and Meetings 

  
 During 2012/13 there have been 6 Board meetings and 6 meetings of the Executive Group. The LSCB Annual Review Meeting took 

place in July 2012 in order to sign off the Annual Report and review the effectiveness of LSCB structures and ways of working. A 
workshop was held in December 2012 to consider and develop proposals for the LSCB Voice and Influence Strategy as part of the 
Board improving its links with the wider community. 

  

 Attendance at LSCB Board meetings has averaged at 77% which is an increase from the 2011/12 average of 71%. 
 

  

 New members to the Board have an induction session and all members undergo an annual appraisal session with the LSCB Chair. 
During 2012/13 a process was undertaken to recruit and select two Lay Members, who subsequently took up post at the Board meeting 
on 17 May 2013. 

  

 The work of the LSCB is largely undertaken through the sub / reference / task group structure. Sub, reference and task groups have 
met on a regular basis throughout the year to monitor and progress their components of the Business Plan. Summaries of work 
undertaken and decisions made are provided for each Board meeting. A decision was made in the Autumn 2012 to consolidate the 
strategic overview of work to address Child Sexual Exploitation by creating a formal sub group of the LSCB. 

P
age 164



  

 In order to directly evaluate the effectiveness of the sub / task / reference group structure and the support provided to it from the 
Business Support Unit, chairs and vice chairs were asked to complete a short questionnaire evaluating the support the groups 
received. Returns provided a picture across all of the LSCB constituent groups indicating that the support was viewed in very positive 
light. Overall the Business Unit was viewed as providing value for money. 

  

10.2.2 Supporting the work of the Board 

  

 Progressing the work plan of the LSCB is heavily reliant on the input of staff from all partner agencies through sub groups, the training 
pool, undertaking Serious Case Reviews and Local Learning Lessons Reviews and engagement in the Quality assurance and Audit 
programme. The commitment shown by agencies and their staff is testament to the seriousness with which the LSCB is viewed and the 
shared intent across the partnership to improve multi-agency working, services and outcomes for children and young people. 

  

 A Funding and Value for Money Review identified the need to maintain the current level of Base Budget expenditure for the LSCB and 
requested partners to increase their contributions to ensure ‘in year’ financial viability and maintain an appropriate level of strategic 
reserve. A revised funding formula was agreed amongst existing contributing partners to ensure that the agreed expenditure for the 
Base Budget of £521,000 was fully funded for 2013/14 and that a small commissioning budget would be available to be used to 
address emerging themes and challenges. Out-turn figures at the end of March 2013 indicated that an in year shortfall in funding of 
£21,000 was mitigated by an underspend of £32,000. This enabled a strategic reserve of £50,000 to be carried forward into 2013/14 
and a commissioning budget to be established of £35,000. A financial statement is provided in appendix 4. 

  

 An outline review of Business Unit administration identified the need for increased flexibility within a clearer management structure. A 
subsequent detailed review has been initiated and will report in 2013/14. 

  

10.2.3 Development of Effective partnership working: 

  

 Progress on the challenges set for 2011/12 and emerging Challenges for 2012/13 from the LSCB Annual Review Process were 
presented to and accepted by the Children’s Trust Board in June 2012, with the final Annual Report being received in September. The 
LSCB Chair or her representative has attended all CTB meetings in 2012/13, ensuring an input into the monitoring of the progress of 
the Children and Young People’s Plan and the refreshing of the Plan for 2013/14. The Annual Report was presented to: 
 

• The LA Chief Executive through the LA Corporate Leadership Team 

• The Children and Families Scrutiny Board. 

• The Assistant Chief Constable, West Yorkshire Police. 

P
age 165



  

 Liaison during 2012/13 with the Adult Safeguarding Board and the Community Safety Partnership (Safer Leeds) culminated in a joint 
Board development session in June 2013 from which common work streams have been identified to be progressed in 2013/14. 

  

 In addition to work undertaken in Leeds, the Board has been involved with regional initiatives through Regional LSCB Chairs and 
Managers meetings. A particular focus in 2012/13 has been to ensure consistency in approach to addressing children and young 
people who are at risk, or suffering, Sexual Exploitation. All five LSCBs in West Yorkshire are supporting a community campaign led by 
West Yorkshire Police in the summer of 2013 to raise awareness of Child Sexual Exploitation. 

  

 Leeds LSCB continues to be an active member of the West Yorkshire Consortium, which ensures a common set of overarching multi-
agency safeguarding procedures is available for practitioners and managers across the region. A particular challenge for 2013/14 will 
be ensuring regional consistency in the response to Working Together 2013. 

  

 Examples of partnership working between partner agencies 

  

 Leeds Community Health Care and Children’s Services (Education) have collaborated to develop a supervision pathway for the Early 
Start Service. 

  

 Looked After Children Nurses are collaborating with Children’s Rights Workers to establish the health information young people want to 
receive within their Leaving Care Health Needs Assessment. 

  

 Leeds and York Partnership Foundation Trust has delivered briefings to staff on their engagement with revised Common Assessment 
processes and ratified the MARAC information sharing agreement. 

  

 Wetherby Young Offender Institution operates a multi-agency approach to provide interventions for young people to address offending 
behaviour. 

  

 Leeds Youth Offending Service’s comprehensive set of safeguarding arrangements is based on working in partnership with other 
statutory and non-statutory bodies. Central to these are: 

• Multi-agency risk management panels to review young people assessed as highly vulnerable or posing a serious risk of harm 
to others and to ensure appropriate interventions are in place. 

• An early intervention project involving the co-location of staff in a single police custody suite at Stainbeck Police Station for 
young people arrested in Leeds. This allows for joint decision making regarding bail, charge and diversion, liaison with 

P
age 166



appropriate agencies regarding immediate welfare needs and the sharing of information around risk or safeguarding concerns. 

• The integration of services at a neighbourhood level to contribute to the Children and Young People’s Plan obsessions of 
reducing the number requiring to be ‘looked after’, those not in education, employment or training and improving attendance at 
school. 

• Collaboration with the Probation Trust to improve the transition process for young people moving from child to adult services. 
  

 Development of multi-agency Front Door Arrangements. 
 
Representatives from Health and West Yorkshire Police are engaged in a pilot to explore the potential for co-location of staff within the 
Children’s Social Work Service Duty and Advice Team. Representatives are involved in the weekly meetings to review referrals and 
decisions made about the most appropriate response (Statutory Intervention / Early Help Services). 

  

 Multi-Agency Looked After Partnership 
 
The Multi-Agency Looked After Partnership was re-established in January 2013 in order to provide a clear strategic overview of 
services to this vulnerable group to ensure they contribute to reducing vulnerability, improving outcomes and respond flexibly to the 
changing needs of looked after children and young people and care leavers. Five sub groups are being established: 
 

• Education, Employment and Training 

• Children 0 -5 entering care 

• Looked after children and young people and offending 

• Care Leavers 

• Health Commissioning  

  

 LSCB multi-agency training pool 
 
The LSCB continues to have a substantial and well resourced multi-agency training pool to support the delivery of its safeguarding 
training programme. At the end of 2012/13 there were 92 regular trainers in the pool. 

  

10.2.4 Maintaining focus on the Strategic Plan and Carrying Out the Annual Business Plan 

  
  Progress on the objectives and tasks within the LSCB Business Plan are monitored through Executive Group meetings and reported on 

a regular basis to the Board. At year end 82% of tasks had been completed or were being progressed within timescale and 18%, whilst 
subject to delays, were being progressed. A significant contributory factor to delays incurred was the late publication of updated 

P
age 167



guidance in Working Together in March 2013. A review of progress against the Business Plan was conducted at the end of 2012/13  
with consideration given to which outstanding / on-going tasks should be included in work planning for 2013/14. Work continued on on-
going tasks and identified priorities during the first quarter of 2013/14 while the Business Plan for the year was developed to be 
accepted and signed off at the Annual Review Meeting. 

  

10.2.5 Development of Effective Inter-Agency Procedures 

  

 An important contribution to the first of the LSCB’s objectives; to co-ordinate local work to safeguard and promote the welfare of 
children and young people, is made through the development of policies and procedures for use by professionals across the 
partnership. The Policy and Procedures sub group leads this work, in collaboration with the West Yorkshire Consortium, which ensures 
that a set of consistent regional procedures are maintained. This is particularly important for partners who work across the region and 
for working with vulnerable children and young people who move from area to area. 

  

 The following policies and procedures have been developed during 2012/13: 
 

• Dispute resolution procedure 

• Updating procedures for responding to children and young people who go missing / are at risk of sexual exploitation 

• Policy for out of hours forensic medical examinations 

• Protocol for police attendance at child protection conferences 

• Suicide Prevention Strategy – including a  Self Harm and Suicide booklet for professionals. 

  

 Work has been undertaken with the Children’s Trust Board Workforce Reform sub group to develop 

• A common set of professional values, attitudes and behaviours to support a restorative approach to working with children, young 
people and their families 

• Common principles for supervision across the partnership  

  

 Challenges for 2013/14 include: 
 

• Developing local procedures in the light of Working Together 2013 that are consistent with regional procedures. 

• Revising and re-launching the Think Family Protocol. 

 
 
 

 

P
age 168



10.2.6 Holding partners to account for safeguarding arrangements and practice 

  

 Ensuring the effectiveness of multi-agency working to safeguard and promote the welfare of C&YP is the second of the LSCB core 
functions. This requires the LSCB to have a comprehensive overview of the quality, timeliness and effectiveness of multi-agency 
practice. This is provided through the LSCB Performance Management System, which is made up of three components: 
 

1)  A Performance Management Framework based on the strategic priorities of the Board and including measures from the national 
     Children’s Safeguarding Performance Information Framework. 
2)  A Quality Assurance and Audit Programme 
3)  Monitoring partner compliance with the statutory requirement to have effective safeguarding arrangements in place.  

  

 The Performance Management sub group receives and collates performance information on a quarterly basis, providing a report to the 
LSCB which identifies trends, analyses progress and highlights areas that require further investigation. Findings from audits are 
presented to the LSCB as they are completed, or annually for those which are on-going. 

  

 An Annual Performance Report, collating and analysing information from all three components of the Performance Management 
System is presented to the LSCB and Children’s Trust Board in June of each year, forming the basis for the Annual Report and 
identifying emerging challenges for both boards. 

  

 The Performance Management Framework, established in 2011 and refreshed for 2012/13 comprises 8 score cards: 3 LSCB Strategic 

Priorities, 1 Business priority, 1 tracking the journey of a child through the safeguarding system and 3 monitoring performance and 

outcomes for 3 priority vulnerable groups (children & young people who are subject to child protection plans / ‘looked after’ / missing / 

at risk of sexual exploitation). 

  

 The LSCB multi-agency Quality Assurance and Audit programme has 6 strands of work. In 2012/13 five were initiated and 1 has been 
completed: 

 
o Strand 1- To quality assure and audit the impact and outcomes for children and young people subject to child protection plans 
o Strand 2 – To receive the views of professionals involved in child protection plan processes. 
o Strand 3 - To quality assure and audit the impact and outcomes of Child Care Plans for Looked After Children, including the 

quality of participation in LAC Reviews. 
o Strand 4 - To audit the effectiveness of the practice against policy on safeguarding outcomes for the children of teenage 

parents who have been referred to the Leeds Teenage and Pregnancy Pathway.  

P
age 169



o Stand 5 - The effectiveness of revised care and control policies in Special Inclusion Learning Centres (SILCs)  
o Strand 6 -To audit the extent to which the views of children and families inform agencies’ service development regarding the 

safeguarding and promotion of children and young people’s welfare. 

  

 A programme of self-assessment audits involving 21 Statutory, 31 Third Sector partners and 211 schools and the Leeds City College 
has been undertaken to evaluate compliance with s(11) and s(175) safeguarding requirements. A total of 65 agencies were asked to 
complete s(11) audits. There was a 100% return from statutory agencies and 78% from those in the Third sector. Ensuring that all 
agencies have appropriate safeguarding arrangements in place is an important requirement of Working Together 2013 and will 
underline the LSCB’s work in this area in 2013/14. 

  

 The development and further implementation of the LSCB Performance Management System has provided a more comprehensive and 
informed overview of multi-agency safeguarding arrangements, processes and practice through 2012/13. This has enabled monitoring 
of the implementation of the ‘Children and Young People are safe from harm outcome of the CYPP and the Children’s Trust Board’s 
‘obsession’ to reduce the number of C&YP who need to be in care. Overall assurance has been received that effective safeguarding 
arrangements are in place across the partnership and success is evident in the plan to ‘rebalance’ the safeguarding system away from 
a focus on statutory intervention to a more preventative, Early Help approach. 

  

 The LSCB has agreed to broaden and increase the pace of its Quality Assurance and Audit Programme in 2013/14, whilst continuing to 
increase the contributions of data from partners to further enhance the Performance Management Framework. 

  

10.3 Promoting a shared culture of Continuous Improvement 
  
 The Vision, Values and Principles set out in section 5 (above) require the LSCB to actively lead the partnership in identifying areas of 

safeguarding working and practice that need to be improved and to ensure that action is taken as a result. 

  
 Following the consultation exercise for the revision of Working Together, the LSCB developed an outline Framework for Learning and 

Improvement in November 2012 (see appendix 5). It is designed to underpin and facilitate the development of a culture of continuous 
improvement involving the whole partnership. Its key elements are: 
 

• A partnership approach to learning and improving 

• Transparency and public accountability 

• Responsibilities of partners 

• Learning methodologies 

• Planning and implementing improvements 

P
age 170



• Disseminating lessons learnt and changes required 

• Monitoring the impact of changes made. 
 
The framework is being used to identify how learning is being used and the impact it is having on improving multi-agency working, 
services and outcomes for children and young people. 
 
The development of a clear understanding of partner responsibilities will be undertaken at the Annual Review Meeting in July 2013 as 
part of the strategy for the LSCB to ‘step up a gear’ in 2013/14. 

  

10.3.1 Responding to Child Deaths  

  

 The death of any child is tragic with far reaching consequences for families and friends. The LSCB has a responsibility to ensure that 
the circumstances of all deaths are carefully considered in order to identify any lessons that may contribute to reducing similar deaths 
occurring in the future. 

  

 The Child Death Overview Panel 
 
The Panel reviews the deaths of all Leeds Children. Its Annual Report (2012/13) is attached as appendix 6. 

  

 Since its implementation in April 2008 the Panel has reviewed 228 child deaths (74% of the total number of deaths). This compares 
favourably with the national rate of 71% for this period. 
 
Themes emerging from 2012/13 include: 
 

• Two thirds of deaths involve babies under 1 year old 

• Babies of African and Asian ethnicity are more vulnerable to early deaths (in line with national findings) 

• For young babies the majority of deaths relate to complications of pregnancy and child birth and the data highlights known risk 
factors (eg smoking in pregnancy and the higher risk for twin pregnancies). 

• 11 babies died unexpectedly in their sleep, 8 of whom were sharing beds / sofas with an adult. Frequently smoking, alcohol or 
drugs were also present. 

• Among the older age range, children of Pakistani origin are significantly over represented, with the biggest single category being 
‘chromosomal, genetic and congenital anomalies.’ The report highlights the importance of ‘cousin marriage’ which contributes to 
around 8% of child deaths in Leeds. 

• 13 children and young people died in road traffic accidents. 

P
age 171



  

 The Annual Report also reviewed progress against recommendations made in previous years. Of 16 recommendations, 11 have been 

implemented with significant progress made in the remaining 5. Further recommendations are made in the current report including 

addressing: 

• Co-sleeping 

• Support for evolving national policy on minimum alcohol pricing 

• Reducing smoking in pregnancy 

• Raising awareness of the relationship between cousin marriage and genetic disorders 

  

 Responding to deaths which are unexpected 

Where the death of a child is unexpected (not anticipated as a significant possibility 24 hours earlier) a multi-agency response is co-

ordinated by a team in Leeds Community Health to investigate the circumstances of the death and to provide support to the bereaved 

family.The Sudden Unexpected Death In Childhood Annual Report (June 2011 – May 2012) highlighted that: 

• 74% of cases received a home visit from the rapid response team 

• 52% of these visits were within 24 hours (the current contract does not cover weekends) 

• 31% of the cases were concluded within the 12 week recommended time frame. Delays are often experienced in receiving the 

final post mortem report. 

 

A number of recommendations for action were made: 

 

• To ensure the team is provided with adequate support through supervision 

• To review the protocol and establish a steering group 

• To ensure that the final post mortem report is available before the assessment is undertaken at 12 weeks 

• To explore the possibility of extending the availability of the team to weekends and Bank Holidays 

• To consult with professionals involved in the process to determine their views and to consider a similar piece of work with 

families. 

  

P
age 172



 

 An Independent Review of Sudden Unexpected Death In Childhood arrangements was undertaken in 2012/13, identifying a number of 

areas for improvement, including: 

 

• Operational Practice 

• Profiling and networking 

• Policies, Procedures and Protocols 

• Partnership working and LSCB leadership 

• Involvement and support of parents (including signposting bereavement services) 

• Monitoring performance and effectiveness 

  

 Recommendations from the Review have been accepted and actions included in work planning for the LSCB in 2013/4. 

  

10.3.2 Undertaking Serious Case Reviews 

 
 Serious child care incidents where abuse or neglect is known or suspected or where there are concerns about the way in which 

agencies worked together require careful consideration to ensure accountability for practice and to identify lessons that could help 
improve services for children and young people in the future.  

  

 In 2012/13 the Executive Group, sitting as the standing SCR subcommittee, has considered and made recommendations to the LSCB 
chair as to whether the circumstances of 6 Serious Child Care Incidents that were notified to Ofsted met the criteria for undertaking a 
Serious Case Review. In the light of these recommendations the Chair made the following decisions: 
 

• 3 Local Learning Lessons Reviews were initiated 

• 1 Single Agency Review was commissioned 

• 1 resulted in no further action being taken 

• 1 remains outstanding; awaiting further action. 

  

 During 2012/13 3 Local Learning Lessons and 2 Single Agency Reviews were monitored to completion, generating recommendations 
for the agencies involved and the partnership as a whole. The subsequent action plans are being monitored through the Business 
Support Unit and updates on progress are provided regularly to the subcommittee.  

P
age 173



  

 Three previously completed Serious Case Reviews have been published on the LSCB website. 

  

 As the revised Working Together was not published until March 2013 it was not possible to amend local Serious Case Review 
processes and procedures within 2012/13, although piloting different methodologies through Local Learning Lessons Reviews ensured 
that planning for changes commenced. Revising these processes is a priority in the Business Plan for 2013/14. 

  

 The subcommittee has refined its decision making processes to ensure that proportionate responses are made to serious child care 
incidents which seeks to capture key learning in a timely and effective way. A better ‘grip’ has been established on monitoring the 
progress of reviews and on the implementation of action plans. The sub group has requested that the Performance Management sub 
group follow up its audit of the embedding of action plans from a previous Serious case review with the inclusion of an annual such 
audit as part of the Quality Assurance and Audit programme. 

  

10.3.3 Communicating and Raising Awareness 

 
 A central part of the leadership role of the LSCB is to ensure that key safeguarding messages and emerging lessons from its activity is 

disseminated quickly and effectively across the partnership so that front-line staff can act on them and develop their practice 
accordingly. 

  

 The newly established Communications and Engagement task group has implemented and progressed the LSCB Communications 
Strategy through: 
 

• The publication of 3 Serious case reviews on the LSCB website and the development of a media handling strategy for the 
partnership for each of them. 

• Supporting the LSCB Chair in developing media handling strategies for serious child care incidents. 

• The introduction of an e-bulletin as a method of disseminating messages from the LSCB quickly and efficiently across the 
partnership. 

• Progressing the agreement of a Voice and Influence Strategy for the LSCB and then liaising with the Leeds City Council Voice and 
Influence Team and Leeds City College. 

• Providing feedback to West Yorkshire Police in their development of a public campaign for 2013/14 to raise awareness of child 
sexual exploitation. 

  

 There have been unforeseen delays in procuring a new, more interactive website for the LSCB. These have now been resolved and the 
process is going ahead in 2013/14. The new website is viewed as crucial in enabling the LSCB to be a more effective communicator of 

P
age 174



key safeguarding messages across the partnership and the wider community. 

  

 Regular Third Sector reference group meetings and the link with the Young Lives Leeds Forum have helped to maintain engagement 
and support of agencies across the sector around safeguarding issues. The group supports: 
 

• The contribution the sector makes to the LSCB Trainers Pool and the delivery of the multi-agency training programme. 

• Agencies undertaking s(11) ‘duty to safeguard’ audits 

• Developing relationships with sports organisations 

• Input into the work of other LSCB sub groups (Policy and Procedure sub group and the Front Door Reference Group) 

  

 There is a recognition that the reference group only engages with a small fraction of the Third Sector agencies in Leeds and a review of 
functioning is being undertaken in 2013/14 to address how this can be more effectively undertaken. Factors already identified include: 
 

• The commissioning of the new LSCB website 

• Work with a local university to identify umbrella organisations that will facilitate improved access to faith groups. 

  

10.3.4 Assessment of Single and Multi-Agency Training 

 
 Ensuring that the workforce and volunteers across the partnership are suitably knowledgeable and competent in undertaking 

safeguarding tasks is a significant contributory factor in children and young people receiving timely, high quality effective services that 
keep them safe and improve outcomes for them. Learning and Development / training events are central to developing skills, ensuring 
up to date knowledge of policies, procedures and guidance, and incorporating lessons learnt from reviews and audits into practice. 

 
 

 

 The Learning and Development sub group presented its Annual Review to the LSCB in May 2013. It highlighted that in 2012/13: 
 

• The LSCB safeguarding training programme had delivered 
o  118 training sessions with 2302 participants 
o A series of city wide and regional events: 

§ Safeguarding seminars for cluster leaders 
§ City wide Conference 
§ Yorkshire and Humberside regional conference 
§ Two West Yorkshire master classes 

 

P
age 175



• Evaluations of the training continued to be positive: 
o 90% of responses received at the end of sessions indicated that the training had been a positive and useful experience 
o Post course impact evaluations (3 months after the event), although with a lower response rate, indicated that 76% felt that 

there had been a positive impact on their practice. 

  
 Alongside evaluations from participants, quality assurance is maintained by reviewing the content of partner agency level 1 

safeguarding training and will be augmented in 2013/14 by a pilot of direct observation of the delivery of sessions within the LSCB 
programme. 

  
 Examples of safeguarding training delivered by partner agencies 

  
 Early Start Sector: 

 
An evaluation of 569 responses from the children’s centre workforce indicated a significant impact on practice from attending 
safeguarding training, identifying improved confidence in the recognition of abuse and neglect and highlighting the need for further 
training on parental substance mis-use and mental health problems. 

  

 Education: 
 
5,232 education staff from 179 establishments and 415 staff from children’s centres accessed safeguarding training from the Education 
and Early Start Team. Leeds City College uses a matrix to set out mandatory and recommended training for all staff and governors. 

  

 NHS: 
 
Leeds Community Healthcare has developed a safeguarding training strategy to identify mandatory training for staff in contact with 
adults / children at risk. Compliance with a requirement for attending multi-agency safeguarding training (Level 1 & 2) is currently 87% 
(with a target set for 90% in 2013/14). 

  

 Leeds and York Partnership Foundation Trust are promoting basic safeguarding training for staff to improve upon the current uptake of 
69%. 

  

 Leeds Youth Offending Service: 
 
The Service currently has Investors in People status and is committed to an in house training programme. It commissions a small 

P
age 176



number of specialist courses (in 2012/13 this included Family Group Conferencing, adolescent to parent violence, young women 
affected by sexual exploitation and gangs). 

  

 West Yorkshire Police: 
 
The newly formed Safeguarding Central Governance Unit is responsible for ensuring that there is an adequate number of appropriately 
trained and accredited personnel in the area of child abuse investigation and management of registered sexual offenders. 
 
All police officers receive basis child safeguarding training aimed at recognizing signs of abuse, vulnerability and awareness of 
interventions available to support children and young people. 

  

 Cafcass: 
 
The Service has a mandatory core training programme supplemented by themed local area workshops. Uptake of LSCB multi-agency 
training is identified as a priority for 2013/14. 

  

10.3.5 Summary of lessons learnt, actions taken and impact on outcomes 

  

 Lessons that may help to improve the quality of response to, and practice with, children and young people arise from across the whole 
of the work undertaken by the LSCB.  In recent years there has been a recognition that identifying lessons learnt is only the start of a 
process that should result in improvements to practice and outcomes for children and young people. This typically involves the 
production of action plans, whose implementation must be monitored, followed by checks to ensure that changes have been embedded 
into practice and then an evaluation undertaken of the impact on children and young people. 

  

 The LSCB is developing its Framework for Learning and Improvement to capture key learning and summarise the impact that this has 
had on services for children and young people to ensure that a focus is maintained on ‘making a difference’. The Summary Framework 
is attached (as appendix 7) and asks 3 questions: 
 

o What lessons have we learnt? 
o What responses / actions did we take? 
o What impact did these have on: 

o Practice 
o Multi-agency working 
o Outcomes for children and young people. 

P
age 177



  

 Examples lessons identified and progressed in 2012/13 include: 

  

 What have we learnt? What have we done? What impact did this have? 

   

‘Disguised compliance’ by parents / carers 
when engaging with professionals  not 
addressed within procedures 

o Leeds policies updated 
o Amendments being made to West 

Yorkshire Procedures 

Training courses updated 

   

Lessons from Serious Case Reviews not 
being effectively disseminated across the 
partnership 

Format for city wide briefing sessions 
changed to be more interactive 

Feedback from participants is that the 
approach facilitates dissemination at team 
meetings.  

   

Restraint policies and procedures in  had 
not been updated in line with national 
guidance 

o Model procedures developed 
o Review of implementation set up for 

2013/14 

Governing Bodies requested to implement 
new procedures 

   

An action from a Serious Case review was 
not fully implemented 

o Action taken to fully implement 
recommendation 

o Partners requested to provide 
assurance that their monitoring of 
action plans was appropriate. 

o Partners are reviewing the robustness 
of their governance arrangements re 
SCR action plans 

o LSCB Audit Programme to include a 
dip sample of implementation in 
2013/14 

   

   

Child Protection Plans are not consistently 
effective in reducing risk and improving 
outcomes  

o Disseminated the findings of the audit 
across the partnership 

o Planning a programme that will 
support core groups discussing the 
implications for their practice 

Impact to be judged through the 
continuing child protection plan audit in 
2013/14 

   
 

  

 
 

 

P
age 178



10.4 Summary: the Effectiveness of the LSCB 
 

  
10.4.1 Review of progress against challenges the LSCB set itself for 2012/13 

  
 The LSCB set itself 27 specific challenges within the framework of its Strategic Plan for 2012/13. A full summary of the progress made 

can be found in appendix 8. 

  

 Progress has been made against all the challenges set, with some ongoing work being included in business planning for 2013/14. 
Notable achievements include: 
 

o The development of the LSCB Voice and Influence Strategy 
o The appointment of Lay Members to the Board 
o The establishment of new LSCB groups: 

o The Education Forum 
o The Child Sexual Exploitation strategic sub group 
o The Front Door reference group 

o The development of the LSCB Quality Assurance and Audit Programme  
o The increased input of partners into the Annual Review process 
o Holding a successful city wide conference ‘Seeing the world through children’s lives’ in May 2012. 

  

10.4.2 Overall Effectiveness 

  
 Section 10 of this report has detailed the considerable amount of work undertaken by the LSCB, its constituent groups and partners 

during 2012/13 to lead and support the safeguarding of children and young people in Leeds and to hold agencies to account for their 
performance and practice. 

  

 In order to evaluate its effectiveness in discharging its statutory responsibilities and undertaking its core functions three questions need 
to be asked: 
 

  

 
 

1) Are we making sufficient progress? 
 

P
age 179



Good progress was made on all the tasks set in the Business plan for 2012/13. Many of the delays were the result of factors outside of 
the control of the LSCB and all outstanding actions have been included in the Business Plan for 2013/13. 
 
Within the framework of the Strategic Plan progress has been made in the following areas: 
 

o Lead, Listen and Advise 
o The production of an Annual Report evaluating the effectiveness of safeguarding in Leeds and identifying challenges for 

the coming year 
o Improved dissemination of safeguarding messages across the partnership 
o Establishing Lay Member and children and young people’s input 

 
o Know the Story; Challenge the Practice 

o The development and expansion of the LSCB Performance Management System 
o Learning lessons from Local and Single Agency Reviews 
o Undertaking safeguarding seminars with cluster leaders 

 
o Learn and Improve 

o The establishment of a Framework for Learning and Improvement 
o Improved dissemination of lessons from Reviews 
o Continued co-ordination and development of the LSCB Training programme 

 
More progress needs to be made in: 
 

o Increasing community engagement through the development of the LSCB website, the role of the Lay Members and input from 
the Voice and Influence sub group 

o Receiving performance and audit information from across the partnership 
o Increasing our understanding of the quality of practice delivered at the front-line and contributing to its improvement. 

  

 2) What are the emerging challenges? 

  

 Challenges for the LSCB have been identified through the annual review process and are formalised in section 11 (below). Key themes 
indentified are: 
 

o To maintain and increase the momentum of the current work programme to support continuing improvement in services for 
children and young people 

P
age 180



o To continue to monitor the management of risk within the safeguarding system 
o To lead the partnership in addressing issues posed by children and young people living in the context of ‘compromised 

parenting’ 
o To build on progress being made to collaborate more effectively with other strategic bodies 
o To further implement the LSCB Communications strategy using the new website  
o To encourage all partners to more fully engage in the work of the LSCB through its sub group structure. 

  
 3) What impact is the LSCB having? 

 
 
Currently, indications of impact can be seen in: 
 

o The development and revision of policies and procedures which impact directly on how frontline work is undertaken. In 2012/13 
this has supported work with children and young people who are missing / at risk of sexual exploitation / exhibiting self harm 
and suicidal behaviours. 

o Raising awareness across the partnership of key safeguarding issues, lessons from Reviews and findings from audits 
o Participants on training courses subsequently indicating that there had been an impact on their practice 
o Findings from multi-agency audits being used to inform partners’ in house audit programmes and the development of action 

plans to implement improvements in services 
o Regular Performance reporting has identified issues that need further investigation (eg the child protection system) and have 

contributed to decisions made to undertake specific audits. 
o Lessons from Serious Case Reviews and Local Learning Lessons Reviews informing the development of new initiatives (eg 

exploration of a Young People’s Service) and the updating of existing arrangements (eg the Leeds Think Family Protocol). 
o Improved understanding of the circumstances of child deaths has resulted in support for a number of public health campaigns 

(eg the dangers of co-sleeping) 
 
Now that an established work plan is being delivered which addresses the full range of LSCB strategic priorities it will be important to 
evaluate the impact that this work is having on the safeguarding system as a whole, the work of partners within it and the drive to 
improve outcomes for children and young people.  

  
11.0 Challenges for 2013/14 
  
 From the Annual Review Process and the Annual Performance Report the LSCB has identified a series of challenges for itself and for 

the Children’s Trust Board to be addressed in 2013/14. These are designed to maintain and increase the momentum for positive 
change in the development and delivery of services to safeguard and promote the wellbeing of children and young people. 

P
age 181



  
11.1 Challenges to the CTB for 2013/14 

 
 The following challenges for 2013/14  were presented to and accepted by the Children’s Trust Board on 27 June 2013: 

  

 1.To continue to progress the ‘rebalancing’ of the safeguarding system in Leeds in order to promote a more preventative approach 
(C&YP receiving ‘the right service at the right time’) and reduce the need for statutory intervention. Key components of this approach 
are: 
 

•To reduce the number of C&YP who need to be ‘looked after.’ 
•To support more effective multi-agency engagement in the oversight and implementation of child protection plans. 
•To develop and extend the comprehensive, multi-agency, Early Help offer, supported and facilitated by a common  
  approach to assessment. 

 
2. To ensure that during this period of transition within the system, risk is managed appropriately and safely in individual cases. 
 
3. To ensure that the rebalancing of the system is supported by the development of a partnership approach to shared professional 
values, attitudes and behaviours and common principles of supervision. 
 
4.To continue to promote a restorative approach to working with C&YP and their families that will more consistently result in ‘the voice 
of the child’ being included in all interventions and which promotes the principles established by the CTB: 
 

•The default behaviour of Children’s Trust and Local Government partners in all their dealings with local 
citizens/partners/organisations should be a restorative one - high support with high challenge. 
•Children’s Trust and Local Government partners should ensure that families, whose children might otherwise be removed from 
their homes, are supported to meet and develop a safe alternative plan before such action is taken. 
•For all other families where a plan or decision needs to be made to help safeguard and promote the welfare of a child or 
children the family should be supported to help decide what needs to happen.  Children’s Trust and Local Government partners 
must create the conditions where families can be helped to help themselves - this would represent a fundamental renegotiation 
of the relationship between Local Government and local citizens - from doing things to and for families to doing things with 
them. 
•Children’s Trust and Local government partners must see all local schools as community assets and have a clear role in 
holding those institutions - no matter what the governance arrangements - to account for the contribution they make to the well-
being of the local population. 

 

P
age 182



 
5.To work with partners who commission services for C&YP to: 

•Build into their commissioning processes a requirement of compliance with s(11) of the Children Act 2004 / s(175) Education 
Act 2002 
•Establish a common performance management framework which is compatible with the LSCB framework. 
 

6. To review access and availability of services for families who have suffered a child / young person bereavement. 
 
7. In the light of work being undertaken by the LSCB, LSAB & SL, to review the provision of services to address situations where C&YP 
are living in the context of compromised parenting (domestic violence, parental substance mis-use, parental mental ill health). 
 
8.As a better understanding of the scale of CSE is established, to review the provision of services to (i) reduce the number of Young 
People at risk / suffering from sexual exploitation and (ii) respond to young people who have become victims. 
 
9. To develop and co-ordinate improved services for vulnerable 16 – 21 year olds. 

  

11.2 Challenges the LSCB is setting itself for 2013/14 

 
  

 Emerging challenges for 2013/14 were identified by the LSCB on 28.06.13. for discussion at the Annual Review meeting on 19.07.13. 

  

 OVERALL 
  
To ‘step up a gear’ in 2013/14; to build on progress made in 2012/13 in order to more fully understand the effectiveness of the 
safeguarding system in Leeds and better lead the partnership in developing services and multi-agency working in order to improve 
outcomes for C&YP. 
 
 
1.0 STRATEGIC PRIORITY (1): LEAD, LISTEN & ADVISE 
  
1.1 To fully implement the Learning & Improvement Framework to ensure clarity about partner responsibilities in contributing to a 

 culture of continuous improvement. 
  
1.2 To co-ordinate a partnership approach to the implementation of Working Together 2013 which is consistent with the overall 

 approach being undertaken across West Yorkshire. 

P
age 183



  
1.3 To continue to support the embedding of effective Children’s Services ‘Front Door’ arrangements and monitor the management 

 of risk. 
  
1.4 To collaborate with other strategic bodies to revise and relaunch the ‘Think Family Protocol’ – to support multi-agency working 

 with C&YP who are living in the context of compromised parenting. 
  
1.5 To use the redesigned LSCB website to: 

• Engage more fully with: 
§ Faith Groups 
§ Community (and non-commissioned) groups 
§ GPs 

•Increase understanding of compliance across the partnership with s(11) requirements. 
  
1.6 To further develop the relationship with the education sector (through the LSCB Education Forum) 
  
1.7 To ensure that the LSCB is sufficiently resourced to discharge its statutory responsibilities and progress the agreed Business 
              plan. 
 
  
2.0 KNOW THE STORY; CHALLENGE THE PRACTICE 
  
2.1 To more fully understand the effectiveness of practice at the ‘front line’ through the development of a broader range of  
             monitoring methods and the implementation of the enhanced QA & Audit Programme. 
  
2.2 To continue to monitor the effectiveness of services provided for priority vulnerable groups; in particular C&YP who are at risk /  
             suffering Sexual Exploitation. 
  
3.0 LEARN & IMPROVE 
  
3.1 To broaden the LSCB Learning & Development / Training offer across the partnership and to monitor the impact of this on  
             practice. 
 

 
 

 

P
age 184



  Appendices 
  
 1) LSCB Membership 2012/13 

 2) Structure of the LSCB 

 3) Business Plan 2012/13 

 4) Financial Statement 

 5) Framework for Learning & Improvement 

 6) Annual Report of the Child Death Overview  Panel 

 7) Learning & Improvement Summary 

 8) Progress against challenges 2012/13 

P
age 185



P
age 186

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Director of Children’s Services 

Report to Children’s Services Scrutiny Board 

Date: 25th July 2013 

Subject: Response to Scrutiny Inquiry Report – Private Fostering 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

 

  

1.0   Purpose of this report 
 
1.1  This report provides an update to the Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) on the 

actions taken to strengthen local arrangements as a result of their inquiry into 
Private Fostering, published on the 17th of January 2013. 
 

2  Background information 
 
2.1 The Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) identified Private Fostering 

arrangements as an area for scrutiny at its programme planning meeting on the 20th 
of June 2012.  
 

2.2 The Board was concerned that long term private foster care arrangements could be 
in place without the knowledge of the Local Authority; and that this could mean that 
some children and carers did not have access to adequate support. The Board was 
also concerned that unregulated arrangements could place children at risk 
exploitation. 

 

2.3 The Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) inquiry on 23rd August 2012 gathered 
and evaluated a wide range of evidence including written reports and verbal 
evidence from external experts. The inquiry considered:  

• Communication about private fostering arrangements  

• Regulation of private foster carers  

• Safeguarding vulnerable children and young people  

 
Report author:  Steve Walker 

Tel: 76898  

Agenda Item 9

Page 187



and made three recommendations to the Director of Children’s Services to 
strengthen these arrangements.  

 
2.4 The Director of Children’s Services welcomed the report and accepted the 

recommendations of the Board that relates to Children’s Services on the 14th 
March 2013. 
 

2.5 This report provides an update to the Board on key actions. 
 

 3  Main issues 
 
3.1 At the meeting of the Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) on the 17th January   

2013 the Board asked for an update on actions taken in relation to three key 
recommendations: 
 

3.2 That the Director of Children’s Services commissions and implements a more 
extensive Private Fostering communication, training and education plan 
aimed at statutory, voluntary and commissioned services who come into 
contact with children. This should aim to deliver the necessary skills required 
to identify a private fostering arrangement, provide knowledge about their 
statutory responsibilities and referral routes in order to report a private 
fostering arrangement. An update of progress is required by the Scrutiny 
Board at the July 2013 meeting.  
 

3.3 The Private Fostering communications strategy 2013/14 has been completed jointly 
by the Service, Corporate Communications and with assistance from the LSCB 
Communications Team.  A copy is attached with this report (Appendix 1).  This is a 
comprehensive document drawing together aims and objectives, key messages, 
stakeholders and communication channels. The Strategy is supported by a detailed 
Marketing and Communications Plan as well as a detailed Communications Action 
Plan to address the scrutiny board enquiry and recommendations. (see attached 
Strategy for full details). The plan is a rolling programme of training and publicity 
events as well as rebranding all the publicity materials and more specific one off 
actions. 

 
3.4 New leaflets and posters are being prepared, which will be made available to a wide 

range of organisations as well as on line, posted on the web page dedicated to 
Private Fostering. The Child Friendly City Leeds logo and “Somebody Else’s Child” 
strap line are being used as key messages. 
 

3.5 As under reporting continues to be a concern for the local authority the 
strengthened communications strategy identifies a wide range of key stakeholders 
who will be targeted and advice and training for these key groups will be provided. 
The development of a multi-agency approach to private fostering and improved 
communication with professional groups will facilitate improved recognition and 
reporting of private fostering arrangements. 
 

3.6 It has recently been Private Fostering week and as part of this week, the service 
has used the Council’s Insite carousel to publicise Private Fostering; a press 
release was sent out using an example of a successful private fostering placement 

Page 188



to illustrate what private fostering is. This involved the young person directly along 
with his carer. The story was posted on the Foster4Leeds Website face book and 
Twitter account, which in turn was picked up by BAAF and shared with all their 
followers.  A question and answer forum was set up using the Twitter account and 
this in turn was tweeted to an estimated 30,000 followers.  
 
 

3.7 That the Director of Children’s Services investigates how the information 
regarding private fostering can be disseminated effectively to young people 
in Leeds. This information should also advise them who they can speak to if 
they need help and support. An update of progress is required by the 
Scrutiny Board at the July 2013 meeting.  
 

3.8 The Private fostering worker has been working directly with one young person who 
is privately fostered in order to get ideas of how best to communicate with young 
people who are privately fostered. (see above for details). His story may be also be 
used by the Breeze website as well as the  LSCB communications team in order to 
access a much wider network linked directly to young people. A meeting is being 
arranged with the Children’s Voice and Influence team to develop further how we 
can best communicate directly with children who are privately fostered.  

 
3.9 That the Director of Children’s Services strengthen networks and lines of 

communication with religious leaders and community representatives in order 
to raise awareness about private fostering and the statutory requirement to 
notify the Local Authority. An update of progress is required by the Scrutiny 
Board at the July 2013 meeting. 
 

3.10 The Service has been working closely with the department’s Consultation 
Involvement officer to ensure the new publicity leaflets on private fostering are 
circulated to a wide range of community organisations and faith groups. Community 
organisations have been identified who do not have links to the internet and the new 
publicity leaflets have been sent out to 90 such organisations and a further 100 
organisations have received the leaflets electronically through the Leeds Community 
Forum.  Work will continue in this area and follow up meetings and briefings will be 
offered by the service as part of the communications plan.  

 
3.11 The Private fostering communication plan will be regularly monitored and with an 

additional member of staff to be recruited imminently to work on private fostering it is 
anticipated that Private Fostering will achieve much greater visibility in Leeds so that 
all children who are privately fostered in Leeds are brought to the attention of the 
Leeds Social Work Service.  
 

4  Corporate considerations 
 
4.1  Consultation and engagement 
 
4.1.1  The Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) consulted widely as part of their review. 

 
 
 

Page 189



4.2  Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration 
 
4.2.1  Equality and diversity screening was not required as a response to the 

recommendations of the Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) 
recommendations. These issues will be considered in the report to the Scrutiny 
Board (Children and Families) at their meeting in July 2013. 
 

4.3  Council policies and city priorities 
 
4.3.1  There are no immediate implications for council policy and governance. 
 
4.4  Resources and value for money 
 
4.4.1  The recommendations will be resourced from within existing Children’s Services 

staffing and budgets. 
 
4.5  Legal implications, access to information and call in 
 
4.5.1  None 
 
4.6  Risk management 
 
4.6.1  The risks associated with the recommendations are managed by the Looked 

After Children Programme Group which is chaired by the Deputy Director 
(Safeguarding, Specialist and Targeted Services) 

 
5  Conclusions 
 
5.1  The Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) inquiry into Private Fostering has 

identified some significant issues in relation to how the welfare of children in these 
arrangements can be safeguarded and promoted. This report provides an update to 
the Board on the actions taken to strengthen local arrangements.  

 
6  Recommendations 
 
6.1  Members are requested to approve the proposed responses as outlined in this 

report. 
 
7  Background documents 
 
7.1  Report of the Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) inquiry into  

Private Fostering   
 

Page 190



 

 

 

                       

 

Internal 

Communications 
Strategy 

Environment and Neighbourhoods 

Photograph poses by models 

Page 191



 - 2 -E&N Communications Strategy  

 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\4\5\2\AI00044254\$4juhchss.docx 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Directorate Children’s Services/Corporate Communications  

Authors: Isobel Smith/Val Hales 

Date: January 2013 

Project Title: Private Fostering Communication Strategy 

Document Version: Version 4 

Current Status: DRAFT 

Page 192



Private Fostering Communication Strategy – Version 1.0 

 

 

 3 

 

1 DOCUMENT CONTROL 

1.1 Revision History 

Version Status Revision Date Summary of Changes Author 

1.0 DRAFT   
Isobel 

Smith/Val 
Hales 

2.0 DRAFT  
Val Hales Comments and 
Action Plan updates  

Sara Hyman 

3.0 Draft  Val/Sara amends Sara/Val 

4.0 Draft  Steve Walker’s amends Sara 

     

1.2 Approvals 

This document requires the following approvals:  

Name Signature 
Title Date of 

Issue 

Valerie Hales   Private Fostering Manager  

Leeds Safeguarding 
Children’s Board  

  
 

Steve Walker  
Deputy Director, 
Safeguarding 

 

    

    

    

1.3 Distribution 

This document has been distributed to: 

Name Title Date of Issue Version 

Val Hales  January Draft 

Brenda Dring  May Draft 

Susan Collier  January Draft 

    

    

    

    

    

    

Page 193



 

 

CONTENTS: 

1.  DOCUMENT CONTROL  

  1.1 Revision History  

  1.2 Approvals  

  1.3 Distribution 

 

2.  INTRODUCTION  

 

3.  PURPOSE  

 

4.  AIMS AND OBJECTIVES 

 

5. INTERESTED PARTIES  

 

6.  KEY MESSAGES   

 

7. MONITORING AND EVALUATION  

 

8.  COMMUNICATION DELIVERY PLAN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 194



 

 

COMMUNICATION STRATEGY 

2 INTRODUCTION  

The Children Act 1989 places a requirement on local authorities to record and monitor details 

of private fostering arrangements. The Children (Private arrangements for Fostering) 

Regulations came into force in 2005. 

 

Many private fostering arrangements are not known by the council, often because parents, 

prospective private foster carers, professionals working with children and anyone else aware 

of or involved in arranging for a child to be privately fostered are not aware of their 

responsibility to notify the local authority.  

 

Private fostering is very different from the care provided by the council through approved 

foster carers. It occurs when a child under 16 (under 18 if disabled) is looked after for more 

than 28 days by an adult that is not a close relative and is a private arrangement between the 

parent and carer. 

 

People become private foster carers for a variety of reasons. This arrangement could be due 

to factors such as children living with a friend’s family after a separation, divorce or arguments 

at home, children coming from abroad to access education and health systems or teenagers 

living with the family of a boyfriend or girlfriend. Children on weekend or holiday visits with 

family and friends are not privately fostered unless the arrangement lasts more than 28 days .  

 

The children and young people in private fostering arrangements are a diverse and potentially 

vulnerable group and often there is no one to safeguard them.  

 

The current situation in Leeds 

The table below shows that since 2009 there has been a small increase in the number of 

known private fostering arrangements.  We recognise that there are likely to be far more 

children who are currently privately fostered in Leeds and that we need to do more work to 

raise awareness of the issue and help identify children who are currently in private 

arrangements. 

 

 

 

 

Page 195



 

 

Date Number of private fostering 
arrangements 

    National              Leeds 

31-03-2008 1330 7 
31-03-2009 1530 7 

31-03-2010 1590 10 
31-03-2011 1649 10 

31-03-2012 1780 14 

3. PURPOSE   

The purpose of the private fostering communication strategy is to illustrate how we will 

undertake a planned, consistent and sustained approach to ensure that private 

fostering is positively and publicly promoted across our target audience with a specific 

emphasis on targeting professionals working or coming into contact with children.  

 

The foundation of the strategy is to capture key developmental areas for improving 

communications, awareness raising and will provide a platform for future communication 

activity.  

 

The most effective awareness raising initiatives are on-going and provide a steady stream of 

information to professionals working with children, particularly those in children’s social care. 

The strategy will develop an approach that engages people so they recognise private fostering 

situations and why it is important to notify the local authority of such arrangements. 

 

It is acknowledged that the term private fostering often causes confusion and there is a 

general lack of understanding of the legal requirements surrounding private fostering.  

 
The strategy will set out the aims, objectives, key messages, audiences and the channels 

used to deliver the messages to all interested parties.  

 

For successful implementation, the strategy must be endorsed by the Leeds Safeguarding 

Children’s Board, with an explicit dedication from these members/agencies in order to make it 

work.  

 

A delivery action plan is attached as Appendix A and will be used to implement the strategy 

over the next two years. The action plan will also consider how we will conduct testing in order 

to minimise risk and measure the success of any communication activity.   

 

Page 196



 

 

The communications strategy will ensure that all interested parties recognise the importance 

of notifying the LA about private fostering situations and respond in line with regulations, 

guidance and procedures. It will also provide an opportunity for those involved to develop 

closer and more effective working relationships.  

 

The initial focus of the campaign is to raise awareness of private fostering. It is essential that 

our key messages are communicated successfully and appropriately with the various groups.  

Well executed marketing and communications are paramount in ensuring the messages are 

received and understood.  

3 AIMS AND OBJECTIVES  

AIMS 

• To identify effective methods to raise awareness of private fostering.  

• To implement processes amongst practitioners to ensure they recognise private 

fostering situations and respond in line with regulations, guidance and procedures. 

• To encourage carers, parents and professionals involved in private fostering 

arrangements to contact the LA and register their details.  

• To communicate the legal duty to notify the LA of a private fostering arrangement. 

• Communicate to children and young people in private fostering arrangements the 

support available to them. 

• To ensure everyone who works for LCC Children’s Services are aware of the private 

fostering notification requirements and how to handle enquiries. 

• Safeguard our children and young people who are privately fostered, from harm. 

• Establish links with all key partners and pro-actively manage 

communications/messages about private fostering.  

• To educate and build a positive image of private fostering amongst our target 

audience.  

• Using existing, or where necessary, creating new marketing and communication 

mechanisms to deliver/impart our key messages to all interested parties. 

 

OBJECTIVES  

• To raise awareness of the regulations among professionals to increase the number of 

new notifications by 25% in 2013/2014 and by 50% in 2014/15. This will be monitored 

through the annual return to Central Government. 

Page 197



 

 

• To provide advice and support to private foster carers when required, balancing the 

need for minimal state interference into what is essentially a private arrangement and 

the need to safeguard and support children who are privately fostered. 

•  To improve the notifications received through education. This will be monitored by 

ensuring all new referrals for private fostering include a referral location. 

 

4   STAKEHOLDERS/TARGET AUDIENCE/MESSAGES  

 

• Professionals working with children 

o Social care staff 

o Housing officers 

o Education staff - teachers, admissions and support staff – receptionists 

o Language schools  

o Health services - GPs, surgeries, health centres, hospitals 

o Police and probation services 

o Refugee and asylum services/organisations 

o Citizen’s Advice Bureau 

o LCC staff 

o Children and community centres 

o Youth offending teams/ASBU 

o Local voluntary and community organisations 

o One stops shops and centres 

o Faith groups – churches, places of worship  

o Drug and alcohol projects 

o Youth centres and groups 

o Sports academies  

 

• Private foster carers 

o Recognition they are in a private fostering situation and the help, support and 

advice available to them and how to access it from universal or targeted 

services  

• Parents of children being privately fostered 

o To understand their responsibilities’ to their child/children and their legal 

responsibilities to financially maintain their children and to ensure contact is 

maintained with their child wherever possible  

• Children and young people living in a private fostering arrangement 

Page 198



 

 

o That they are safeguarded and know how to access advice and support 

available to them and to understand what it means to be privately fostered 

5 KEY MESSAGES 

• Don’t place your child at risk – notifying the local authority of a private fostering 

arrangement helps keep children safe. 

• Private foster carers may be eligible for free advice and support – don’t miss out. 

• Did you know - if you are looking after someone else’s child, for 28 days or more you 

could be a private foster carer and you need to notify the local authority.  

• Remember it’s an offence not to notify the local authority of a private fostering 

arrangement, failure to do so is an offence - don’t risk a fine?. 

• You must keep your local authority informed of any significant changes in your 

circumstances and inform them if you plan to move house or another adult moves into 

to live in your house. 

• We want to ensure our children and young people are safe, remain in education and 

receive any support they need. 

• If you suspect a private fostering arrangement – contact us on the kinship foster care 

telephone number 0113 2474654. 

 

7.  COMMUNICATION CHANNELS/RECOMMENDATIONS  

 

See also, supporting marketing and communication delivery plan.  

 

The awareness raising campaign will include a mix of direct marketing, advertising and 

promotion.  

 

Branding  

Consistent use of the branding, look and feel for anything that refers to private fostering. This 

will be important in developing a recognisable link to the service and LCC. We must develop a 

strong and positive reputation through consistent use of the brand, attract positive attention to 

promote the work taking place and the positive changes/impact this is having. It is essential 

that when our target audience sees the branding they make the links to the service we offer 

and confirms our credibility, only achieved through them having a positive experience when 

dealing with our service. The child friendly Leeds logo will be used at all times.  

 

Page 199



 

 

• Recommendation – Agree the branding/identity.  It is recommended that the child 

friendly Leeds branding is applied throughout our communication tactics and 

supported by the “are you looking after someone else’s child” strapline. The branding 

should be applied consistently across all internal and external communications.  

 

Direct E-Mail  

Direct e-mail is one of the most flexible, quickest and cost effective ways to promote private 

fostering; we can also tailor our messages through relevant well targeted e-mails. Blanket e-

mails with lots of irrelevant, jargon filled, lengthy content will be ignored and it is essential that 

we move away from this approach.  

 

• Recommendation – Develop a database of key contacts which indicates a preferred 

communication route. Ensure the e-mail is structured and provides a clear call to 

action or outlines the benefits to the recipient; otherwise the messages will be ignored. 

Most recipients will have someone to filter their e-mails so it is essential that the e-mail 

does not bombard them with confusing and lengthy messages. The e-mail could be an 

invitation to attend an event, session or workshop.  

• Consider using the strapline ‘Caring for somebody else’s child’ on all e-mail 

correspondence from the Kinship Team, in order to highlight private fostering to other 

professionals we communicate with in our daily work.  

 

Direct Engagement 

Using this tactic will give us the opportunity to engage with individuals face to face and to 

inform in more depth what private fostering is and the requirements around it. Direct 

engagement has a high impact but is heavily resource dependant. Private fostering however 

needs some really strong face to face engagement and visibility.  

 

• Recommendation – Ensure the private fostering service representatives have a 

presence at as many scheduled forums, briefings, and meetings as appropriate. 

Working closely with communications colleagues to identify opportunities as they arise 

and develop a schedule of planned activity. Holding surgeries and having a presence 

at road shows, head teacher forums, meetings, briefings to do some really good 

engagement with users.  

 

• In conjunction with the communications team linked to the LSCB, develop a 

programme of stakeholder awareness raising sessions  

Page 200



 

 

 

 

LSCB Engagement  

Using all our stakeholders to inform their organisation of the requirements and duties in 

relation to private fostering  

 

• Recommendation – Develop a stakeholder programme of contact. In particular, 

establish links with key stakeholders that are in a position to disseminate our key 

messages. Develop a programme of stakeholder awareness raising, prioritising face-

to-face briefings with those teams and colleagues who regularly engage with our target 

groups.  

 

• Use LSCB to cascade training to other professional groups so that the responsibility for 

training and educating is shared 

 

Internal Communications 

• Recommendation – use of Insite Carousel, Essentials message, automatic e-mail 

message from CS staff. 

  

Induction and Training  

Introducing private fostering within the induction arrangements (for new staff or professionals 

moving into new roles) will ensure that we capture individuals when they are receptive to 

receiving new information and are open to training.  

 

• Recommendation – Incorporate private fostering messages into existing 

arrangements/induction programmes for new staff and staff moving roles. If these do 

not exist then ensure steps are taken to implement them.  

 

• Embed within the appraisal process as a key training/awareness objective for internal 

staff and use existing networks (namely LSCB)  to encourage the same process is 

applied for all professionals  

 

• Training programme to be developed to support the appraisal process.  

 

Website Presence 

Page 201



 

 

Use the website as an active and interactive means of communicating the message about 

private fostering. 

 

• Recommendation – refresh the website information and upload new information. 

Ensure pages signpost interested parties to relevant information sources, useful 

information (FAQs) and other websites such as the BAAF website on Private 

Fostering. Allow visitors to download targeted literature about Private Fostering. 

Include  

o Leaflets as downloads  

o Case Studies  

o Links to useful sites 

o Contact Info  

o How to register 

o Information on notification requirements  

o Checklists 

o Fact sheets 

o Safeguarding  

 

Social Media  

 

• Recommendation - Impart messages through the child friendly Leeds twitter account.  

 

• Blogs/case studies from children that are in a private fostering situation that we can 

share – aimed specifically at young people. 

 

Newsletters/Newspaper  

 

• Recommendation – work with the communications team to ensure printed media is 

utilised effectively. 

 

• Place adverts in  

o Governors Newsletter 

o Essentials  

o Council Tenant Newsletters 

o Community Newsletters 

o About Leeds (all Leeds residents) 

Page 202



 

 

 

 

 

Printed Material  

 

• Recommendation – Create a suite of simple but factual leaflets targeted the different 

audiences (parents/carers and professionals) and distributed through our own 

channels and partners existing communication channels. The leaflets can also be 

downloaded from LCC and partner websites.  

 

Create posters that can be displayed in LCC buildings and public buildings that are visited by 

young people, parents, carers (children’s centres, leisure facilities, libraries, housing offices, 

one stop centres, community centres etc) providing basic awareness raising, factual 

information and promoting website for further information. Consider wider circulation budget 

dependant.  

 

Consider the creation of information packs for professionals working with young people 

providing basic facts and information about PF.  

 

Electronic resource pack of key messages for different groups 

 

8. MONITORING AND EVALUATION  

 

Number of private foster carers and privately fostered children in Leeds 

Number of new notifications received  

Number and nature of enquiries received 

Number of assessments undertaken 

Details of outcomes of assessments and any further action 

Page 203



Private Fostering Communication Strategy – Version 1.0 

 

 

 14 

MARKETING AND COMMUNICATION TEAM DELIVERY PLAN  

Recommendations as outlined above for more detail – supported by the Private Fostering Team work programme 

Activity/Action 
Timescale Intended Outcome Intended 

Audience 
Responsibility Work Needed/Progress to date  

Production of 
Communications 
Strategy and supporting 
delivery plan 

January 2013  The strategy will ensure that 
all interested parties 
recognise the importance 
and benefits of PF and what 
this means to them. 

Internal  Corporate 
Communications 
Team and Private 
Fostering 
Colleagues 

Completed: Strategy produced, circulated 
and shared with PF colleagues.  NB - the 
strategy and delivery plan is a working 
document and will be regularly reviewed and 
updated by the PF and comms team.) 

Production of 
Communications 
Delivery Plan 

Feb – March 
– for 
comment 
from service  

The plan will define the 
planned communication 
activities, how 
communications will be 
managed and by who and 
will advise on progress 
made. 

Internal  Corporate 
Communications 
Team and Private 
Fostering 
Colleagues 

Completed: Workshop style meeting to be 
arranged to populate the plan, assign 
responsibilities and timetable future activity. 
NB - the strategy and delivery plan is a 
working document and will be regularly 
reviewed and updated by the PF and comms 
team. 

General communication 
to all internal 
colleagues using the 
appropriate 
communication 
channels 

July (on-
going) 

To inform colleagues and 
raise awareness of the legal 
requirements and to ensure 
they impart messages 
through their own 
communication 
forums/meetings to support 
PF  

All internal 
Colleagues  

Corporate 
Communications 
Team and Private 
Fostering 
Colleagues 

Essentials/Need to Know Messages to key 
contacts throughout the service.  Focus on 
Private Fostering Awareness week, 8

th
 

July: Insite and Leeds.gov carousel adverts, 
staff e-mail, Steve Walker’s message, press 
release for local media. 

Create a suite of simple 
but factual leaflets 
targeted to the different 
audiences 

Leaflets 
already 
prepared. CC 
comment and 
for service 
approval  

Will provide easy, clear, 
consistent and reliable 
information on PF  

Parents/Carer
s 

Professionals  

Corporate 
Communications 
Team and Private 
Fostering 
Colleagues 

Completed: Leaflets have been shared with 
the service for comment, availabile end of 
June/July. 

Create posters that can July  Providing basic awareness Buildings Corporate Agreement on the messages and images  

P
age 204



 

 

Activity/Action 
Timescale Intended Outcome Intended 

Audience 
Responsibility Work Needed/Progress to date  

be displayed in LCC 
buildings and public 
buildings  

raising, factual information 
and promoting website for 
further information.  

(children’s 
centres, 
leisure 
facilities, 
libraries, 
housing 
offices, one 
stop centres, 
community 
centres etc 

Communications 
Team and Private 
Fostering 
Colleagues – this 
will need 
programming into 
our creative 
services work 
schedule. 

Create a web presence 
to support PF  

January To signpost interested 
parties to relevant 
information sources, useful 
information and other 
websites (i.e. BAAF). Visitors 
can also download targeted 
literature about PF. 

ALL  Private Fostering 
Team for 
publication – 
support for copy 
from CC  

Completed 

Induction and Training  On going  That staff receive factual 
information as they take 
new/move jobs  

Professionals 
within  all 
children’s 
services  

 Develop a training programme that enables 
us to tap into existing arrangements and 
allows us to disseminate information through 
to other organisations that recruit 
professionals that are likely to come into 
contact with PF arrangements.  

Social Media  On-going  Raise awareness with 
professionals , young people 
and parents and carers to 
recognise a PF situation, 
understand the importance 
and legalities and what to do 
to report it.  

ALL   Liaise with Voice and Influence team and 
Child Friendly Leeds to investigate potential 
use of twitter and website presence and 
obtain advice on how best to reach young 
people. 

Stakeholder Analysis to 
be developed 

July/August 
2013 

Determine who is involved 
and how we can establish 

 Corporate 
Communications 

Stakeholder Analysis Template developed 
and to be an item on the agenda at the next 

P
age 205



 

 

Activity/Action 
Timescale Intended Outcome Intended 

Audience 
Responsibility Work Needed/Progress to date  

key links in order to 
disseminate information and 
impart key messages. 

Team and Private 
Fostering 
Colleagues 

private fostering communications meeting. 

P
age 206



Private Fostering Communication Strategy – Version 1.0 

 

 

 17 

SCRUTINY BOARD ENQUIRY AND RECOMMENDATIONS: 

Private Fostering - Scrutiny Board Enquiry and Recommendations 

Communication Action Plan 4
th

 Feb 2013 

Development  Specific Action  Who  Timescale  Comments  

Recommendation1 The LSCB advises the Scrutiny board in July 2013 of the progress made by Children’s Social work Services against the 

updated action plan  

 

Recommendation 2 Commission and 

Implement a more extensive 

Communication, training and education 

plan aimed at organisations who come 

into contact with children. 

    

Update and rebrand all publicity materials in 

line with the "Child friendly Leeds” logo and 

BAAF’s "Somebody Else's Child" logo. 

Corporate Communications team 

(CCT) and LSCB Communications 

sub group to take forward the 

rebrand and updates. 

Sarah Hyman (SH) 

comms team) Lucy 

Chadwick  (LC) LSCB 

Sub Team 

 Completed: June 

2013 

 

Update website in line with rebrand and with 

Focus on both Child / Adult. Accessibility to 

information.  

Comms team to discuss 

requirements with web design 

team. Kinship Care team to 

provide the text. 

SH to arrange with 

Web team. Brenda 

Dring (BH) to provide 

text 

Completed: Apr-13   

P
age 207



 

 

Training opportunities to be explored in the 

following new areas:  

 

1. Annual safeguarding training 
programme  

 

2. Cluster training programme  
 

 

3. Leeds Children Hospital training 
programme  

 

4. Sports academies  
 

 

 

5. School Nurses and Health visitors  
 

6. Housing  
 

 

7. Travellers' workers team  
 

8. Provide information posters to GP 
surgeries 

Check with Safeguarding training 

service for dates to be included in 

the calendar, twice yearly. 

 

BD to discuss with CSDM for 

implementation twice yearly.  

BD to discuss with CSDM for 

implementation twice yearly. 

 

 

To offer benefits and publicity 

materials to Leeds United / Leeds 

Rugby 

 

This may be accessed through 

safeguarding training 

 

Arrange briefings / send literature 

to the teams 

Posters and leaflets to be made 

available once publicity materials 

updated 

LC, BD / Sue 

Collier(SC)   

 

 

 

 

A/A  

 

 

A/A  

 

 

A/A  

 

 

 

 

 

 

BD/SC  

 

 

DP  

 

LC & SH LSBC and 

Comms team 

Ongoing 

  

 

A/A 

 

 

A/A  

 

 

A/A  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

July/Aug 13  

 

July/Aug-13 

  

P
age 208



 

 

Build on existing Communication strategy to 

include:  

 

1. Children Centres and Early Years 
 

2. Regular briefings for the Duty and 
Advice Team and S/W teams 

 

3. School Nurses and Health Visitors  
 

4. UK Border Agency  
 

5. Roll out audit of all schools for any 
private fostering arrangements 

6. Youth Service 

 

  

 

 

Arrange annual training / briefing 

slot on the managers city wide 

meetings 

Provide dates to area teams each 

new year to ensure new starerst 

receive PF information 

Access either by Safeguarding 

training or own programme  

Annual meeting to discuss specific 

problems  

Plan audit with Education 

information team  

  

  

 

 

BD/SC 

 

 

 

BD/SC 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BD 

 

Education Information 

team BD/VH 

  

  

 

 

Annually 

 

 

 

Annually 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Nov-13 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Recommendation 3 Effectively 

disseminate information about private 

fostering to young people in Leeds 

Ensure website is tested with 

young people before going live.  

Ensure publicity materials are 

tested with young people 

LC & SH 

 

 

DP 

August    

Use of Facebook and Twitter to spread 

information to young people who are 

Discuss arrangements with Ben 

Whitehead, recruitment manager  

DP/SC  Ongoing   

P
age 209



 

 

privately fostered and FOX communications, for 

advice on the website 

Recommendation 4 Strengthen networks 

of line of communication with religious 

leaders and community representatives to 

raise awareness of PF and need for 

reporting 

Obtain information from ESCR 

reporting on most common groups 

of ethnic minorities  

Discuss with Equality officers and 

local cluster groups to identify 

outreach workers who  provide 

support to relevant groups.  

Inform community leaders and 

representative from mosques, 

temples, synagogues and 

churches. 

SC 

 

SC/BD 

 

 

 

 

 July/Aug 2013   

Launch presentation at Civic Hall  BD September 2013   

Revise Procedures to ensure compliant with 

current practice 

  VH Completed: March 

2013  

  

          

P
age 210



Private Fostering Communication Strategy – Version 1.0 

 

 

 21 

PRIVATE FOSTERING TEAM WORK PROGRAMME - Promotion of the awareness of Private Fostering 2013/2014  

Activity/Action Timescale Intended outcome Intended Audience Responsibility 
Work needed and 
progress to date 

Nominate a designated manager 
and worker who have a key function 
in promoting private fostering 

Apr-13 
Kinship Care Team restructure will 
identify these roles. 

Point of reference for 
all child care 
professionals and 
potential private 
foster carers. 

Val Hales 

Completed: Brenda Dring - 
Team Manager and Sue 
Collier Supervising Social 
Worker are the identified 
leads regarding the 
promotion of Private 
Fostering. 

Attend and present a Private 
Fostering awareness stall at EPIC 
road show event at Elland Road  

Mar-13 

Monitor the level of awareness that 
other child care professionals have of 
the concept of Private Fostering.  

Child Care 
Professionals, 
Parents, Carers 

Sue Collier and 
Debra Panwar 

Completed March 2013 Offer advice and promotional leaflets 
regarding Private Fostering  

Target audience is childcare 
professionals and parent/carer 
members of the public 

Publicise PF to all East Social Work 
Teams 

Oct-13 
Monitor how many PF referrals are 
received from East area of the city. 
Posters in all area team offices. 

Children's Social 
Work colleagues 

Sue Collier + 
identified PF 
colleague when 
appointed 

  
 
 

Publicise PF to all WNW Social Dec-13 Monitor how many PF referrals are Children's Social Sue Collier +   

P
age 211



 

 

Work Teams received from WNW area of the city. 
Posters in all area team offices. 

Work colleagues identified PF 
colleague when 
appointed 

Publicise PF to all South Social 
Work Teams 

Mar-14 
Monitor how many PF referrals are 
received from South area of the city. 
Posters in all area team offices. 

Children's Social 
Work colleagues 

Sue Collier + 
identified PF 
colleague when 
appointed 

 

Publicise PF to UK Border Agency - 
Waterside Court 

Oct-13 

Attend Management Team Meeting to 
ensure information is cascaded to all 
staff working with members of the 
public. Poster to be displayed at 
Waterside Court. 

UK Border Agency 
staff who work 
directly with members 
of the public 
regarding immigration 
issues. 

Sue Collier 
 

Publicise PF to all Day Nurseries in 
Leeds 

Nov-13 

Attend Management Team Meeting to 
ensure information is cascaded to all 
staff working with members of the 
public. 

Nursery staff working 
directly with members 
of the public. 

Sue Collier   

Publicise PF to all GP 
surgeries/Health Centres in Leeds 

Oct-13 

Send posters for display in all GP 
surgeries/Health Centres plus 
professional leaflets and offer to 
attend management meeting for 
dissemination of  information. 

GPs and health care 
staff. Members of the 
public. 

Sue Collier   

P
age 212



 

 

Publicise PF to the Health Visiting 
Service 

Sep-13 

Attend Management Team Meeting to 
ensure information is cascaded to all 
staff working with members of the 
public. Offer information leaflets for 
professionals and carers. 

Health visitors Sue Collier   

Publicise PF to School Nursing 
Teams 

  Sep-13 

Attend Management Team Meeting to 
ensure information is cascaded to all 
staff working with members of the 
public. 

School Nursing Team Sue Collier   

Publicise PF to Leeds Metropolitan 
University  

Nov-13 

Attend Management Team Meeting to 
ensure information is cascaded to all 
staff working with members of the 
public. Offer workshop. Poster to be 
displayed in Social Work Department 
and student union. 

Staff/students who 
may be private foster 
carers or privately 
fostered children 

Sue Collier and 
Brenda Dring 

  

P
age 213



 

 

Liaise with local social work courses 
with the aim of ensuring that newly 
qualified social workers are equipped 
with knowledge of private fostering 

Publicise PF to representatives of 
the Jewish community in Leeds. 

Nov-13 
Meet with influential members of the 
community with request for them to 
cascade information re. PF. 

Members of the 
Jewish community 

Sue Collier   

Publicise PF to representatives of 
the Asian communities in Leeds. 

Dec-13 
Meet with influential members of the 
community with request for them to 
cascade information re. PF. 

Members of the 
various Asian 
communities 

Sue Collier   

Publicise PF to representatives 
of the top three identified cultural 
communities in Leeds. 

  Dec-13 
Meet with influential members of the 
community with request for them to 
cascade information re. PF. 

Members of the 
identified 
communities 

Sue Collier + 
identified PF 
colleague when 
appointed 

  

Publicise PF to Education and 
complete schools audi tin 
November  to identify any private 
fostering arrangements  

June and 
November 
/2013 

 Offer workshops to schools. Posters 
in all schools. Identify any individual 
private fostering arrangements 

All staff in Leeds 
Schools who work 
directly with members 
of the community. 

Sue Collier and 
Brenda Dring 

  

P
age 214



 

 

Publicise PF to Park Lane College 
Sites 

Jun-13 
Send posters and leaflets for display. 
Offer to attend management meeting 
for dissemination of  information. 

Staff/students who 
may be private foster 
carers or privately 
fostered children 

Sue Collier   

Publicise PF to Child Minders  Jul-13 

Attend Management Team Meeting to 
ensure information is cascaded to all 
staff working with members of the 
public.  

Child Minders Sue Collier   

Ensure PF information is available 
to the public via the internet 
Kinshipcareadmin@leeds.gov.uk  

W/C 1 July 
2013 

Posters, leaflets for Professionals, 
Carers and parents to be available. 
Access to PF Procedures. 

Members of the 
public. 

Communications 
Team 

The ability to effect this 
awaits the completion of the 
publicity materials by the 
Communications Team 

Take part in Private Fostering 
Awareness Week 

W/C 8 July 
2013 

Email to all Leeds city council staff 
with links to website and publicity 
materials 

 LCC staff 
Sue Collier and 
Brenda Dring 

The ability to effect this 
awaits the completion of the 
publicity materials by the 
Communications Team 

Promote PF at the Celebrating 
Social Work Conference 2013 

28-Nov-13 

Attend Celebrating Social Work 
Conference. Promotional Table with 
leaflets and 'Someone Else's Child' 
DVD playing. Offer advice and 
information. 

Social Work 
colleagues 

Sue Collier  + 
designated 
colleague 

  

P
age 215



 

 

Promote PF on the Family 
Information Service Website 

Jan-14 
Posters, leaflets for Professionals, 
Carers and parents to be available. 
Access to PF Procedures. 

Members of the 
public. 

Communications 
Team 

The ability to effect this 
awaits the completion of the 
publicity materials by the 
Communications Team 

Promote PF to the CAF team Jan-14 

Attend Management Team Meeting to 
ensure information is cascaded to all 
staff working with members of the 
public. 

Members of the CAF 
team who have direct 
access with members 
of the public. 

Sue Collier 

  

Engage a privately fostered young 
person to assist in developing a 
meaningful and informative  leaflet 
for privately fostered children so 
that they recognise their PF status 
and know where to access means 
of support 

Aug-13 

Young person to help identify what 
information and advice would be most 
helpful to a privately fostered child. 
What images would be most 
appealing on the leaflet. 

Privately fostered 
children 

Sue Collier  Ruth 
Carr + identified 
young person 

  

Use of a Private Fostering Strap 
line with link to the website at base 
of emails by everyone in the 
Fostering Service/CSWS? 

Feb-14 
Design strap line message. Obtain 
permission for use by all staff in the 
fostering service/other CSWS staff? 

Email recipients. 

Val Hales Brenda 
Dring Sue Collier 
Communications 
Team 

  

Publicity re. PF to all job centres Mar-14 

Poster and leaflets for parents, carers 
and professionals to be displayed. 
Offer to attend staff meeting to 
promote greater awareness of 
responsibility to notify LA of a PF 
arrangement. 

Job Centre staff and 
members of the 
public. 

Sue Collier + 
identified PF 
colleague when 
appointed + admin 
support 

  

P
age 216



 

 

Publicity re. PF to all One Stop 
Shops 

Mar-14 

Poster and leaflets for parents, carers 
and professionals to be displayed. 
Offer to attend staff meeting to 
promote greater awareness of 
responsibility to notify LA of a PF 
arrangement. 

One Stop Shop staff 
and members of the 
public. 

Sue Collier + 
identified PF 
colleague when 
appointed + admin 
support 

  

Publicity re. PF to all Housing 
Offices 

Mar-14 

Poster and leaflets for parents, carers 
and professionals to be displayed. 
Offer to attend staff meeting to 
promote greater awareness of 
responsibility to notify LA of a PF 
arrangement. 

Housing staff and 
members of the 
public. 

Sue Collier + 
identified PF 
colleague when 
appointed + admin 
support 

  

 

P
age 217



Page 218

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of Director of Children’s Services 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) 

Date: 25th July 2013 

Subject: Directors Response – Scrutiny Inquiry into Increasing the Number of 
Young People in Employment, Education or Training 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

1. The Children and Families Scrutiny Board conducted an investigation into the support 
available in Leeds in order to reduce the risk of young people not accessing 
appropriate employment, education or training, also referred to as NEET. 

2. NEET was selected as one of the obsessions and consequently the subject of the 
inquiry as the failure of young people to make a successful transition from school to 
further learning or employment is likely to have major consequences for economic 
wellbeing in their adult life. 

3. The Board conducted its inquiry over three sessions involving a range of key 
stakeholders and two visits to speak to young people undertaking courses provided by 
igen and Leeds City College. 

4. Members of the Board hope that the findings will contribute to providing better 
outcomes for young people and to achieve the aspiration of becoming a NEET free 
city. 

Recommendations 

5. The Board are requested to note the responses to the recommendations, based on 
their findings. 

 Report author:  Gary Milner 

Tel:  2474979 

Agenda Item 10

Page 219



 

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 This report sets out the formal response of the Director of Children’s Services to 
the recommendations of the Children and Families Scrutiny Board inquiry into 
increasing the number of young people in employment, education or training. 

2 Background information 

2.1 The Scrutiny Board was tasked with carrying out a piece of work on each of the 
three Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) obsessions. The third of these 
related to reducing the number of young people not in employment, education of 
Training (NEET). 

2.2 The focus of the inquiry was on the support available in Leeds in order to reduce 
the risk of young people aged 16 to 19 years old becoming NEET and help them 
access appropriate employment, education or training. 

2.3 During the course of the three sessions the inquiry received written and verbal 
evidence from a range of key stakeholders involved in supporting young people 
including council services, schools, FE colleges and igen. This was supported by 
two visits to speak to young people undertaking courses provided by igen and 
Leeds City College. 

3 Main issues 

3.1 The response to each of the recommendations of the Board is set out below. 

3.2 Recommendation 1 – That the Director of Children’s Services incorporates 
destination measure information for Leeds as part of the performance 
monitoring information. This information to be provided to the Scrutiny 
Board (Children and Families) on an annual basis. 

3.3 This recommendation is accepted by the Director of Children’s Services. 
Destination measures will be incorporated into the annual standards reports and 
progress against the destinations measures will be closely monitored by the 11-19 
(25) Learning and Support partnership sub-group of the Children’s Trust Board. 
The Department for Education (DfE) has recently released destination data for 
2010-11 that shows Leeds slightly below the national average for destinations of 
16 year olds, but above the national average for destinations of 19 Year olds. We 
are expecting more recent data in due course. 

3.4 Recommendation 2 – That the Director of Children’s Services defines and 
implements a clear cross sector city wide strategy for tracking the 
destinations of young people and engaging with those who fall into the ‘Not 
Known’ category to ensure that appropriate support can be provided. A 
progress report to the Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) is required in 
October 2013. 

3.5 This recommendation is accepted by the Director of Children’s Services. There 
has been considerable progress in recent months in bringing down the level of 
‘Not Known’ and it now stands at an all time low of 5.9% (May 2013). The 

Page 220



 

 

reduction of ‘Not Known’ has been incorporated as a key element of the Targeted 
Information Advice and Guidance contract that igen were successful in securing.  
The contract includes an element of payment by results based on reducing the 
level of ‘Not Known’. igen are taking a lead role in coordinating activity across a 
wide range of partners and have introduced a number of initiatives that should 
continue to bring down ‘Not Known’ levels. Progress on reducing the ‘Not Known’ 
level will be presented to Scrutiny Board in October 2013. 

3.6 Recommendation 3 – That the Director of Children’s Services provides a 
report to the Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) in October 2013 which 
explains how Youth Contract funding has been utilised and the direct 
impact this funding has had on creating EET opportunities for young 
people. 

3.7 This recommendation is accepted by the Director of Children’s Services. The 
Youth Contract in Leeds has got off to an excellent start with 342 young people 
starting on the programme (between September 2012 and March 2013) and 228 
progressing to employment, education or training, giving a progression rate of 
67%. This compares very favourably to the national average progression rate of 
only 27%. A detailed report on the success of the first year of the Youth Contract 
will be presented to Scrutiny Board in October 2013. 

3.8 That the Director of Children’s Services works in partnership with the 
Clusters to ensure that area based NEET data is analysed to identify those 
that are at risk of being NEET and sustained NEET to facilitate efficient 
targeting of  resources.  Progress should be reported to the Scrutiny Board 
(Children and Families) in October 2013. 

3.9 This recommendation is accepted by the Director of Children’s Services. Reports 
showing NEET data at a local level are now regularly distributed to Cluster and 
Areas. This data is central to informing the use of Youth Contract Cluster 
Innovation Funding and Area NEET plans. A detailed report will be presented to 
Scrutiny Board in October 2013. 

3.10 Recommendation 5 – That the Director of Children’s Services undertakes a 
review of the IAG support provided by Schools since September 2012 and 
reports the outcomes to the Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) in 
October 2013. 

3.11 This recommendation is accepted by the Director of Children’s Services. A 
preliminary survey was undertaken earlier in the year with schools (including 
Academies, Specialist Inclusive Learning Centres and Pupil Referral Units) to 
establish what arrangements they are putting into place to meet their new 
statutory duties. A number of different approaches are emerging including, 
purchasing services from careers guidance suppliers through the list developed 
by the Council and internal arrangements where schools are either employing a 
trained careers/personal advisers or retaining an existing member of staff to 
deliver careers guidance.  

3.12 We did not receive a response from a number of schools and we also know that 
the majority of schools are currently reviewing their arrangements now the new 

Page 221



 

 

centrally commissioned Targeted Information, Advice and Guidance service are 
up and running. We have therefore decided to support schools to complete a 
detailed self assessment in the Autumn that we will use to produce a clear 
position statement with regard to IAG arrangements in all schools. We will report 
on progress around this area of work to Scrutiny Board in October 2013. 

3.13 Recommendation 6 – That the Director of Children’s Services works with 
Clusters across the City to share good practice and establish programmes 
in primary schools which reduce the risk of NEET, such as the concept of 
‘World of work Wednesdays’. Such programmes should also be adapted to 
suit the needs of young people in secondary education. The Director is 
required to provide a progress report to the Scrutiny Board (Children and 
Families) in October 2013. 

3.14 This recommendation is accepted by the Director of Children’s Services. The 
Council’s Education Business Partnership are currently reviewing and enhancing 
their offer to both primary and secondary schools. Details of the new offer to 
schools will be presented to Scrutiny Board in October 2013. 

3.15 Recommendation 7 – That the Director of Children’s Services investigates 
with secondary schools and employers how the curriculum/education 
system in Leeds can be enhanced in order to better prepare and equip 
young people with the skills they need for the work opportunities that are 
here today and will exist in the future. A progress update is required by the 
Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) in October 2013. 

3.16 This recommendation is accepted by the Director of Children’s Services.  We are 
addressing this matter in a number of ways. One of these is to ensure schools 
and colleges have easy access to the latest labour market information around 
future employment opportunities to inform their development of the curriculum. 
We have approached this through a significant investment in the information that 
is available through Leeds Pathways. It is also central to the review of the 
Education Business Partnership offer to schools. 

3.17 Other ways we are addressing the issue include; as part of the detailed 
discussions we are currently having with schools and colleges around the future 
of post 16 provision in the city and through the menu of activities available through 
the Apprenticeship School Engagement Programme. A progress report on all 
these areas of activity will be presented to Scrutiny Board in October 2013 

3.18 Recommendation 8 – That the Director of Children’s Services investigates 
how opportunities can be brokered between all schools and businesses to 
provide opportunities for young people to meet inspirational role models, 
raise awareness about career prospects and raise aspirations. A progress 
update is required by the Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) in October 
2013. 

3.19 This recommendation is accepted by the Director of Children’s Services.  The 
Education Business Partnership (EBP) current offers an extensive range of 
opportunities for young people to engage with people from businesses. These 
includes presentations by business leaders to raise aspirations and understanding 

Page 222



 

 

of particular career opportunities, structured visits to local businesses,  and staff 
from business undertaking mock interview of pupils and acting as mentors to 
young people. One of the limiting factors is around the engagement of some 
schools with the offer. This is partly due to the fact that through necessity these 
opportunities are offered as a traded service. To assist with this issue of cost we 
are using Leeds Pathways as a vehicle to support the free transfer of knowledge 
and information from business people to young people. Local business people 
have also been very generous with their time to be involved with video interviews 
that are now included on Leeds Pathways. Details around the take up of the EBP 
offer by schools will be presented to Scrutiny Board in October 2013 

3.20 Recommendation 9 – That the Director of Children’s Services reports back 
to the Scrutiny Board in October 2013 on the success of the Learning for 
Parents pilot and the future provision of this support across the city. 

3.21 This recommendation is accepted by the Director of Children’s Services.  The 
Learning for Parents pilot has proved a success and is likely to be repeated 
subject to the outcome of the current commissioning round. A report on the pilot 
will be presented to Scrutiny Board in October 2013 as requested. 

3.22 Recommendation 10 –That the Director of Children’s Services investigates 
how support can be expanded to raise the aspirations of parents and equip 
them with the skills to support their children to achieve from foundation 
years onwards.  A progress report is required in October 2013. 

3.23 This recommendation is accepted by the Director of Children’s Services.  There is 
a need to obtain a clear picture of what work is already taking place through 
Children’s Centres and Schools and look at how this good practice can be 
disseminated across the city and investigate what further support can be given to 
parents. A report on progress around this area of work will be presented to 
Scrutiny Board in October 2013. 

3.24 Recommendation 11 –That the Director of Children’s Services investigates 
how improvements can be made to ensure  parents/carers are equipped 
with sufficient information to help their young people to make the right 
education, employment or training choices. A progress update is required 
by the Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) in October 2013. 

3.25 This recommendation is accepted by the Director of Children’s Services.  The 
approach taken to this issue has been to develop a parents and careers section 
on Leeds Pathways - www.leedspathways.org.uk . This provides information to 
support parents/carers in helping their son/daughter to make informed career 
choices. It has been visited by around 700 parents/carers since 1 September 
2012. We are currently working on plans to promote this resource and increase its 
use by parents/carers. A progress report will be presented to Scrutiny Board in 
October 2013. 

3.26 Recommendation 12 –That the Director of Children’s Services works in 
partnership with other Council departments, schools, voluntary 
organisations, businesses and partners to determine a model and strategy 
which will mobilise the city to reduce the number of young people who are 

Page 223



 

 

NEET or at risk of becoming NEET. A progress update is required by the 
Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) in October 2013. 

3.27 This recommendation is accepted by the Director of Children’s Services.  Work is 
underway to capture on one side of A3 a clear picture of all the work that is taking 
place across the city to reduce NEET and show how it all links together. We will 
use this to inform discussions with partners to ensure we have a comprehensive, 
clear and coherent model and strategy to reduce NEET across Leeds. A progress 
report on this area of work will be presented to Scrutiny Board in October 2013. 

3.28 Recommendation 13 – That the Director of Children’s Services facilitates the 
provision of data and information for organisations to rapidly identify those 
whose NEET status is ‘not known’ or those who are at risk of becoming 
NEET in order to secure appropriate education employment or training 
destinations for young people. A progress update is required by the 
Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) in October 2013. 

3.29 This recommendation is accepted by the Director of Children’s Services. A NEET 
Data Board has been established between the council and key strategic partners 
to progress this area of work. There has been some progress with regard to the 
collection of participation data from partners, but ensuring the efficient and timely 
collection, uploading and dissemination of NEET data remains a priority and work 
will continue to further improve these processes during the coming year. 

3.30 We have also included the reduction of the ‘Not Known’ as a key element of the 
Targeted Information, Advice and Guidance contract secured by igen and linked it 
to payment by results. A progress report around the collection and sharing of 
NEET/’Not Known’ data will be presented to Scrutiny Board in October 2013. 

4 Corporate Considerations 

4.1 Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 The scrutiny process underpinning this report meant that members were able to 
have face to face consultation with schools, FE colleges, IAG providers, council 
services and young people. The recommendations are based on their 
engagement in this process.  

4.2 Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 Some young people are statistically more likely to be NEET such as those with 
learning difficulties and disabilities, care leavers, young offenders, poor school 
attenders, those attending the BESD SILC, PRUs or off-site learning, young 
parents, young carers, pregnant young women, homeless young people and 
those living away from their family. NEET rates vary significantly in different areas 
of the city, with the areas of highest NEET levels closely correlating with the areas 
of greatest deprivation.  The purpose of all the strategic and operational activity 
associated with increasing participation in employment, education or training is to 
reduce the inequalities that prevent young people from making a successful 
transition from school. 

Page 224



 

 

4.3 Council policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 NEET is one of the three Children’s Services obsessions. It is a multi-faceted 
issue that in some way links to almost every aspect of partnership activity across 
the city including the work of all five high level boards of the Leeds Initiative, not 
least the Sustainable Economy and Culture Board.  It also relates directly to the 
partnership work at a Leeds City Region level, particularly around employment 
and skills, and business development and innovation. 

4.4 Resources and value for money  

4.4.1 The investment on increasing the number of young people in employment, 
education and training is partly a spend to save model, as it will lead to a 
reduction in future welfare spending. It will also have a positive impact on the 
economy leading to a consequent increase in council income. 

4.5 Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 There are no relevant legal implications to this response to the inquiry. 

4.6 Risk Management 

4.6.1 Increasing participation employment, education and training is vital to the 
economic and social success of the city. Failure to delivery on this priority would 
have serious consequences for the economic prosperity and social fabric of the 
city. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 Increasing the number of young people in Education, Employment or Training is 
the most powerful indicator of our overall success in educating and supporting 
young people. If young people fail to make a successful transition to further 
learning, employment and adult life, it is likely to have major consequences for 
their future economic wellbeing. To successfully address NEET and achieve our 
ambition to become a child friendly NEET free city we must tackle a range of 
complex inter-related issues affecting the most vulnerable. Our work with young 
people around the development of the Child Friendly City, our review of post-16 
provision, the development of the Leeds Youth Offer and the major programmes 
that are now underway around the Youth Contract and Families First initiatives 
are coming together to provide a once in a lifetime opportunity to achieve our 
ambition for all young people aged 16-19 to be productively engaged in education, 
employment or training. 

5.2 There is clear evidence that we have started to turn the curve with regard to 
increasing participation/reducing NEET, but there is still a long way to go if we are 
to deliver on our ambition to become a NEET free city. The scrutiny process has 
been useful in bringing a fresh perspective to the issues we face and has 
highlighted the need for further work around a number of key areas of activity. 

5.3 We look forward to reporting on the success of the wide range of initiatives and 
activity to increase participation in employment, education and training to Scrutiny 
Board in October 2013. 

Page 225



 

 

 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 Board are requested to note the responses to the recommendations, based on 
their findings 

7 Background documents1  

7.1 None 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 

Page 226



 

 

Report of Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) 

Date: 25th July 2013 

Subject: Financial Health Monitoring Children’s Services- Budget Update Quarter 1 
2013/14 and Outturn summary for 2012/13 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

Summary of main issues  

 
1. The Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) resolved to consider the budget of 

Children’s Services at appropriate intervals. This is reflected in the work programme of 
the Scrutiny Board 2013/14. The purpose of this report is to provide Board Members 
with information with regard to the financial health of Children’s Services for the first 
quarter of the financial year 2013/14 (appendix A). 
 

2. Also attached for the information of the Scrutiny Board is an outturn summary for the 
financial year 2012/13 which provides information relating to the budget provision and 
actual spend during 2012/13. (appendix B) 

 
3. The directorate’s Head of Finance have been invited to present the attached 

information and address any further questions from the Board.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Report author:  Sandra Pentelow 

Tel:  24 74792 

Agenda Item 11

Page 227



 

 

Recommendations 
 
4. Members are asked to: 

 
(a) note the quarter 1 financial report for Children’s for the financial year 2013/14. 
(b) note the outturn summary for the financial year 2012/13.  
(c) make recommendations as deemed appropriate.  

 

Background documents  

5.   None1 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information. The list of background documents does not include 
published works.  
 

Page 228



PROJECTED VARIANCES

Expenditure 

Budget Income Budget Latest Estimate Staffing Premises

Supplies & 

Services Transport Internal Charges External Providers Transfer Payments Income

Total (under) / 

overspend

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Quarter 1 291,594 (156,423) 135,171 (3,246) (227) 25 48 67 904 181 3,398 1,150

Expenditure 

Budget Income Budget

Latest Estimate

Quarter 1 Month 4 Month 5 Month 6 Month 7 Month 8 Month 9 Month 10 Month 11 Month 12 Outturn

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Partnership, Development & Business 

Support
15,814 (15,989) (175) (260)

Learning, Skills & Universal Services 79,055 (55,562) 23,493 141

Safeguarding, Targeted & Specialist 

Services
127,664 (31,127) 96,537 1,299

Strategy, Performance & Commissioning 69,061 (53,745) 15,316 (30)

Total 291,594 (156,423) 135,171 1,150 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

(2,248)

Total Expenditure

£'000

CHILDREN'S SERVICES DIRECTORATE

FINANCIAL DASHBOARD - 2013/14 FINANCIAL YEAR

Appendix A                                                                                  First Quarter (April to June 2013)

Budget Management - net variations against the approved budget

Overall, the first quarter forecast variation for the Children’s Services Directorate is an overspend 
of £1.15m [0.8%] against the net managed budget of £135m. 

Looked After Children - the 2013/14 budget strategy recognised the strategic obsession around 
reducing the need for children to be in care with budget action plans totally £8m around safely 
reducing placement numbers [-£6m], increasing funding from partners [-£1m] and negotiating 
procurement savings [-£1.1m].  At this stage in the financial year, the forecast is that these 
significant budget savings will largely be achieved, but with some potential slippage. In terms of 
placement numbers, at the end of May 2013, there were 81 children & young people in externally 
provided residential placements [+5 compared to the financial model] and 293 children & young 
people in placements with Independent Fostering Agencies [+19 compared with the financial 
model].  Overall, these placement numbers translate into a potential pressure of £0.3m, with 
detailed work is continuing around permanency and transitional planning. In addition, negotiations 
are continuing with providers to secure the budgeted procurement savings from the implementation 
of the new regional framework contracts and also with partners around achieving the right balance 
of funding for the most complex placements. The projection also recognise some emerging demand 
pressures around alternatives to care, including adoptions and special guardianship orders [£0.6m], 
care leavers [£0.1m] and direct payments [£0.2m]. Staffing - overall, the staffing budgets are 
forecast to underspend by £3.2m across the combined general fund, grant funded and central 
schools budget functions.  These projections recognise the number of vacant posts across the 
Directorate and also the impact of the predominantly internal recruitment market. Other costs - the 
first quarter projections reflect that there are continuing demand pressures [£0.8m] around the 
provision of home to school transport for children and young people with special needs with 
mitigating savings[£0.5m] anticipated in respect of the transport provision for children in care.
Income - the forecast £3.4m variation across the income budgets is due in the main to forecast 
underspends across the services/functions which are funded by the Central Schools Budget 
[£1.7m] in addition to a forecast variation [£0.2m] in respect of nursery fee income together with a 
potential shortfall on the partner funding in respect of externally provided placements [£0.6m].

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

A
p
ri
l 
'1
1

J
u
n
e

A
u
g
u
s
t

O
c
to
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

F
e
b
ru
a
ry

A
p
ri
l 
'1
2

J
u
n
e

A
u
g
u
s
t

O
c
to
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

F
e
b
ru
a
ry

A
p
ri
l 
'1
3

J
u
n
e

A
u
g
u
s
t

O
c
to
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r

F
e
b
ru
a
ry

N
u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
P
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

Month/Year

Actual/Forecast Number of External Placements

Actual Original Trend TtC Model 2013

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

374PLACEMENTS AS AT 2/6/13
350 PLACEMENTS 

+24 PLACEMENTS

W/E 2/6/2013

293 IFA  81 ER
274 IFA  76 ER

+19 IFA +5 ER

ACTUAL
TTC MODEL

VARIATION 

P
age 229



P
age 230

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Appendix B              CHILDREN’S SERVICES: 2012/13 OUTTURN  
 

1. 2012/13 Outturn v 2012/13 Budget 
 
1.1 Overall - the outturn variation for the Children’s Services Directorate was an 

underspend of £2.3m against the net managed budget of £132m.   The £2.3m 
underspend is gross of proposals to carry-forward £0.6m via earmarked reserves in 
respect of funding to support the in-house residential provision and other funding in 
relation to essential premises works.   

 
1.2 Looked after Children - the 2012/13 budget strategy recognised the strategic 

obsession around reducing the need for children to be in care.  At outturn, the 
Directorate has over-achieved against the turning the curve financial model with the 
externally provided placement budgets (including residential, fostering and secure 
placements) underspending by £2m, or 7% on the £28m budget.   The £2m 
underspend on the externally provided placement numbers was mitigated in part by an 
overspend of £0.7m for the in-house fostering service which reflected the sustained in-
house placement numbers as well as increases in the 0-4 allowances (from April 2012) 
and level 2 fees (from January 2013).  In addition, there were cost pressures across 
the budgets that support Care Leavers [£57k], Adoptions and Special Guardianships 
[£920k] and Direct Payments [£167k].   

 
1.3 Staffing - overall, there was an underspend of £4.06m across the employee budgets 

which was spread across the general fund, grant funded and central schools budgets.  
The underspend on the £97m basic staffing budget was £9.8m which reflected the 
number of vacant posts across the Directorate throughout the year.  The final spend on 
agency staffing was £7.5m, which represented a £5.7m overspend with the majority of 
the agency staff deployed in the social care fieldwork teams, the complex need teams 
and across children’s centre provision.  The spend on overtime was £1.4m which was 
£0.3m above the budget and was due in the main to the need to maintain 24/7 cover 
for vacancies and sickness across the residential and secure settings.   

 
1.4 Home to School Transport – in 2012/13 there was an overspend of £1.1m on the 

internal charges is due in the main to additional costs around SEN home to school 
transport [+£1.3m] and SEN home to college transport [+£0.1m] which were due to 
both increasing journey numbers and journey prices.  These pressures were mitigated 
by savings on the transport for looked after children [-£0.1m] and savings on 
mainstream  transport provision [-£0.2m]. 

 
1.5  Income – overall, there was a £0.7m adverse variation across the income and grant 

funding budgets which related in the main to the proposal to carry-forward Troubled 
Families funding.  This is in line with the strategy and spending plan for the Families 
First (Leeds) programme and also the grant funding criteria.  This is mitigated by 
reduced dedicated schools grant funding which reflects underspends across the 
central school functions.  The income from nursery fees was £4.4m which was £0.24m 
less than the budget although this was offset by additional nursery education grant 
funding for targeted 2, 3 and 4 year old early learning/childcare places.   

 
1.6 Appropriations - in line with the funding criteria, £2.8m of grant-funding was carried-

forward from 2012/13 to 2013/14 relating to the Families First (Leeds) programme 
[£1.9m], Social Worker Improvement Funding [£0.7m] and the Youth Contract 
[£0.24m]. 

Page 231



 
2. 2012/13 Outturn v 2011/12 Outturn 
 
2.1 Employees – overall £2.3m reduction in staffing budgets mainly due to reduced 

agency costs [-£1.3m], reduced severance payments [-£0.7m] and funded pension 
adjustments [-£0.3m].  At £72m, spend on basic pay in 2012/13 was more or less in 
line with the spend in 2011/12.  Spend on overtime in 2012/13 was £1.4m which was in 
line with the spend in the previous year. 

 
2.2 Supplies – overall £2.1m reduction in spend from previous year due in the main to 

coding changes in respect of the provision of short-breaks for disabled children [-
£0.51m] and charges from schools [-£1.8m].  

 
2.3 Recharges – overall £2.1m increase in spend from previous year due in the main to 

changes in coding for charges from schools [+£1.8m] and equal pay & assets 
borrowing [+£0.9m].  In addition, there was a reduction in legal costs (both in-house 
and disbursements) totalling £0.4m. 

 
2.4 Agency Payments – overall minor increase in spend from 2011/12 [+£70k].  Due to 

the work on the LAC strategic obsession, this includes reduced spend on externally 
provided residential placements [-£1.4m] and also reduced spend [£2.1m] on other 
externally provided placements (secure welfare, family assessment, etc).  Offsetting 
these reductions are increased spend on Independent Fostering Agencies [+£1.5m], 
supported lodgings for Care Leavers [+£0.3m], Special Guardianship Orders [+£0.3m] 
and adoption allowances and inter-agency adoption fees [+£0.6m].  The spend on the 
in-house fostering agency remained more or less in line with the previous year. 

 
2.5 Income – overall £3.3m additional income.  Mainly due to funding increase in respect 

of Troubled Families (Families First Leeds) programme [+£2.7m] of which £1.9m is to 
be carried-forward to 2013/14.  In addition, new funding stream for the Youth Contract 
for which Leeds is the lead authority (working with Bradford and Wakefield).  No overall 
effect on income but changing income streams [£0.7m] from internal income from 
schools to income from academies.  Nursery fee income to Children’s Centres 
remained stable at £4.4m and there was additional health transformation income of 
£1m which was in-line with the budget strategy.  Reduction in income from Education 
Leeds [£1.9m] which reflected the one-off repayment of surplus in 2011/12. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Neil Warren 
Head of Finance (Children’s Services 
14th June 2013 

Page 232



 

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) 

Date: 25th July 2013 

Subject: Work Schedule 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: 

Appendix number: 

 
1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider the Scrutiny Board’s work schedule for the 
forthcoming municipal year. 

 
2 Main Issues 
   
2.1 A draft work schedule is attached as appendix 1.  The work programme has been 

provisionally completed pending on going discussions with the Board.  The work 
schedule will be subject to change throughout the municipal year. 

 
2.2 Also attached as appendix 2 is the minutes of Executive Board for 19th June 2013. 
 
3. Recommendations 
 
3.1 Members are asked to: 
 

a) Consider the draft work schedule and make amendments as appropriate.  
b) Note the Executive Board minutes 

 
4.  Background papers1  - None used 

                                            
1
 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the Council’s website, 
unless they contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include 
published works. 
 

 Report author:  S Pentelow 

Tel:  24 74792 

Agenda Item 12

Page 233



Page 234

This page is intentionally left blank



Draft Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

  Schedule of meetings/visits during 2013/14 

Area of review June July August 
 

Inquiries   

Directors Response 
NEET Inquiry  
  

 
 
 

Annual work programme 
setting - Board initiated pieces 
of Scrutiny work (if applicable) 

Consider potential 
areas of review  

  

 
Budget  
 

  
Budget Update 2013/14   
 

 

Exec Board Request for 
Scrutiny – Youth Offer 

 
 

 
Working group  - With Scrutiny Board, 
Sustainable Economy and Culture 

 

Policy Review    
Public request for Scrutiny Transport Policy 
 

 
 

 
Recommendation Tracking 

  
Comprehensive Progress Report – Private 
Fostering  Inquiry, LSCB and Director of  CS 

 
 

 
Performance Monitoring 

 
Quarter 4 Performance 
Report 

 
Leeds Safeguarding Children – Draft Annual 
Report 
 

 

 
Working Groups 
 

 
 

 
Youth Offer Working Group 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5)SEN/SILC working group (including TOR) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

P
age 235



Draft Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 

Schedule of meetings/visits during 2013/14 

Area of review September October November 
 

Inquiries Agree scope of review for 
*∗
 

1) Cluster Inquiry 
2) Free School Meals  
3) Staying Safe - Bullying 
Board Agree Reports* 
• The Best Start – providing  good 
foundations in early life for children to 
succeed.  

• Supporting Children to achieve in 
Maths and English 

CTB Response 
Partnership Inquiry  

Evidence Gathering 
2) Free School  Meals  
 
 

Evidence Gathering  
1) Cluster Inquiry  
 
Directors Response 

• The Best Start – providing good foundations in 
early life for children to succeed.  

• Supporting Children to achieve in Maths and 
English 

 

 

 
Recommendation Tracking 
 

• Private Care Homes Inquiry – 
Recommendation  including report 
on the Residential Home Charter. 

 

Comprehensive Progress 
Report – NEET Inquiry 

 

 

Policy Review   
Basic Need – (Exec Board July) 

 

 
FSM Inquiry - (Child 
Poverty Update and 
Recommendation 
Tracking) 

 

• Developing the Leeds Offer for Kinship Carers 

• New Government requirements for 
Education ( Academies, Free Schools….) 
Ref resolution meeting Dec 12 

 
Performance Monitoring 

  Progress on Supporting Children and Families, 
Strengthening  Social Care,  9 point plan including  
Social Services Care System update and impact 
report. 

Working Groups 
 
 

 
 

 
2) FSM – 
Visits/meeting young 
people  

 
3) Staying Safe - Bullying 

 
                                            
∗ Prepared by S Pentelow 
 

P
age 236



Draft Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2013/14 

Area of review December January February 

Inquiries Evidence Gathering  
1) Cluster Inquiry 
 

Agree scope of review for *∗ 
4) Voice and Influence 
 
 
 

Evidence Gathering  
1) Cluster Inquiry 
Board Agree Reports* 
2) Free School Meals 

Evidence Gathering  
4) Voice and Influence – Single 
item agenda  
 
 

Budget Initial Budget Proposals 2014/15  and 
Budget Update  
 

  

Exec Board Request for 
Scrutiny – Youth Offer 
 

   

Recommendation Tracking • Attendance Inquiry 
• Young Carers 

 

• External Placement Inquiry 
• Service Redesign Inquiry 

 
 

 

Performance Monitoring  
Quarter 2 performance report 
 
 
 

  
 

Working Groups 
 

 
 Youth Offer Working Group 

 
3) Staying Safe - Bullying 

 
3) Staying Safe – Bullying – 
meeting young people. 

 

                                            
∗ Prepared by S Pentelow 
 

P
age 237



Draft Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Work Schedule for 2012/2013 Municipal Year 
 

Key: SB  – Scrutiny Board (Children and Families) Meeting  WG – Working Group Meeting 

 
 
 

 Schedule of meetings/visits during 2013/14 

Area of review March April May 

Inquiries Evidence Gathering  
4) Voice and Influence 
 
 
 

Board Agree Reports*  
3) Staying Safe – Bullying   
 
Directors Response 
2) Free School Meals  

 

Partnership Review - Children’s 
Trust Board  
 

 
Partnership  Review  - To 
review the performance of 
the Children’s Trust Board 

  

Budget and Policy Framework?  
 

 
 
 

  

Recommendation Tracking  
 
 

  

Performance Monitoring Quarter 3 performance 
report 
 
 

  

Working Groups 
 
 

 
4) Voice and Influence – 
meeting young people 
 

  

Need to schedule any Ofsted inspection information                                                   Last Updated  -16th July 2013 
 
 

P
age 238



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY, 19TH JUNE, 2013 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillor K Wakefield in the Chair 

 Councillors A Carter, S Golton, J Blake, 
M Dobson, P Gruen, R Lewis, L Mulherin, 
A Ogilvie and L Yeadon 

 
1 Exempt Information - Possible Exclusion of the Press and Public  

RESOLVED – That, in accordance with Regulation 4 of The Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012, the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the agenda designated as exempt on 
the grounds that it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if members of the public 
were present there would be disclosure to them of exempt information so 
designated as follows:- 
 
(a) Appendices B, C and E of the report entitled, ‘Support to the Leeds Rail 

Growth Package – Agreement of Terms and Conditions” referred to in 
Minute No. 18 is exempt in accordance with paragraph 10.4(3) of 
Schedule 12A(3) of the Local Government Act 1972 on the grounds that 
they contain information relating to the financial or business affairs of 
the Council and its partners in the scheme. It is considered that the 
release of such information would or would be likely to prejudice the 
Council’s commercial interests, as well as those of its partners, in 
relation to the development of the proposals and consequently the 
public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing this information at this point in time.  It is therefore 
considered that these elements of the report should be treated as 
exempt under Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3). 

(b) Appendix 1 of the report entitled, ‘St George House, 42 Great George 
Street, Leeds LS1’ referred to in Minute No. 22 is exempt in accordance 
with paragraph 10.4(3) of Schedule 12A(3) of the Local Government Act 
1972 on the grounds that it contains information relating to the financial 
or business affairs of a particular company and of the Council. Such 
information is not publicly available from the statutory registers of 
information kept in respect of certain companies. It is considered that 
since this information relates to a financial offer that the Council has 
submitted to purchase the property in a competitive best and final bid 
process, then it is not in the public interest to disclose this information at 
this point in time. Also, the release of such information would or would 
be likely to prejudice the Council’s commercial interests in relation to 
any similar future transactions. Consequently the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing 
this information at this point in time.  It is therefore considered that this 
element of the report should be treated as exempt under Access to 
Information Procedure Rule 10.4 (3). 

Page 239



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 

 

 
With regard to (b) above, as it had not been possible to make available 28 
clear days ahead of the meeting a notice detailing the intention to consider the 
exempt part of the report in private, then in line with Regulation 5 of The Local 
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) 
(England) Regulations 2012, prior agreement had been obtained from the 
relevant Scrutiny Board Chair that the consideration of the matter was urgent 
and could not reasonably be deferred to the next meeting). 
 

2 Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
There were no Disclosable Pecuniary Interests declared at the meeting 
however the Board noted the following relevant statements which Members 
felt were in the public interest 
Councillor Yeadon – in respect of the item entitled “Support to Leeds Rail 
Growth Package”, Councillor Yeadon highlighted her role as Chair of the 
Kirkstall Forge Liaison Group, which had acted as liaison between the 
developer and local community in the past (minutes 18 refers) 
Councillor A Carter – in respect of the item entitled “NGT : Deputation from 
the A660 Joint Council” Councillor Carter reported his membership of the 
Integrated Transport Authority Board (minute 5 refers) 
 

3 Minutes  
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 9th May 2013 be 
approved as a correct record 
 
DEVELOPMENT AND THE ECONOMY 
 

4 West Park Centre Options Appraisal and Response to West Park Centre 
Campaign Group Deputation to Full Council  
RESOLVED – That this item be deferred and be presented to the Board 
meeting scheduled for 17th July 2013 
 

5 New Generation Transport (NGT) : Deputation from the A660 Joint 
Council  
The Director of City Development submitted a report in response to the 
deputation presented to Council on 8th May 2013 by the A660 Joint Council 
regarding the New Generation Transport (NGT) proposals. The report set out 
the background to the NGT proposals, noting that the Department for 
Transport (DfT) awarded Programme Entry status to NGT in July 2012. The 
submission of a Transport and Works Act Order (TWAO) application 
scheduled for September 2013, followed by a Public Inquiry into the scheme 
in Spring 2014 were anticipated as the next major milestones in the 
development of the scheme. 
 
A copy of the verbatim speech presented to Council by the A660 Joint Council 
was included within the report. 
 
The Board commented upon the significant amount of public engagement and 
consultation which had already taken place, concentrating on those 

Page 240



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 

 

communities directly along the entire route in order to mitigate concerns 
wherever possible and inform the ongoing design process.  
 
Members were keen to ensure that dialogue continued with residents, 
particularly recognising the concerns raised by residents of Holt Park over the 
loss of connectivity with the city centre.  
RESOLVED – That the responses to the key points made by the deputation 
from the A660 Joint Council be noted 
 
CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
 
 

6 Annual Reports of the Fostering and Adoption Service and annual 
updates of the respective Statements of Purpose  
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report providing the Board 
with the Annual Reports of the Fostering and Adoption Services and the 
Statements of Purpose in respect of each Service. The report highlighted that 
the presentation and approval of the Report and Statements were required as 
part of the national minimum standard in order to be able to provide those 
services. 
 
In response to a query regarding support for foster carers returning to the 
employ of the Council, the Board was provided with information on the 
streamlined and proportionate approach taken by the Department. A comment 
in respect of the increased number of children requiring local authority care, 
particularly children under the age of two; was noted and it was agreed that a 
report be presented in due course seeking to identify the causes of the 
increase. Finally, Members expressed their thanks to officers for the work 
undertaken to improve the service provision and support offered to young 
people and their carers which was reflected in the Annual Reports 
RESOLVED –  

a) That approval be given to the Statements of Purpose for both the 
Fostering and Adoption Services for Leeds City Council.  

b) That, having reviewed the Annual Fostering and Adoption report, 
Executive Board confirms that it continues to support the work of the 
Adoption and Fostering Service to ensure children receive the best 
possible support. 

c) That a further report examining the causes of the increase in the 
number of looked after children be presented to the Executive Board in 
due course 

 
7 School Easter Holiday Consultation  

The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report outlining the recent 
consultation on the Leeds school Easter break, and setting out the proposed  
Easter holiday pattern to be adopted from 2014-15 onwards for approval 
 
In response to a query in respect of the consultation undertaken with faith 
schools the Board received assurance that no contentious issues had been 
raised. Officers undertook to provide the detail of the responses directly to the 
Member in question. 

Page 241



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 

 

RESOLVED –  
a) That the outcome of the school Easter holiday consultation carried out 

from January to April 2013 be noted 
b) That, having regard to the preferred option of the Children’s Services 

Leadership Team in making a decision regarding the Leeds Easter 
break for schools, approval be given for the Easter break to continue to 
be fixed as the first two weeks of April regardless of when the Easter 
bank holidays fall. 

c) That approval be given to the proposed school calendar for the 2014-
15 academic year as set out in appendix 1 of the submitted report 

 
8 Design and Cost Report for Allerton Church of England Primary and 

Beeston Primary (Phase 2) Basic Need Projects : New Build 
Accommodation to facilitate School Expansion  
The Director of Children’s Services submitted a report setting out the 
background and detail on proposals to expand both Beeston Primary School 
and Allerton Church of England Primary School. In recognition of the need to 
increase the admission limit at both schools due to the rapidly increasing birth 
rate in Leeds, both schools will be expanded under the Basic Need 
Programme, which aims to ensure the Council meets its statutory duty to 
provide a school place for every child in the city with the projects being 
delivered by Children’s Services in partnership with NPS Leeds. 
 
Authority was sought to spend £829,600 and to tender work to provide 
additional teaching spaces at Beeston Primary School and to spend £550,700 
and authority to tender work to provide additional accommodation at Allerton 
CofE Primary School. 
RESOLVED -  

a) That Executive Board authorise expenditure of £829,600 from capital 
scheme number 16505/BEE/000 and approve authority to tender for 
the construction of a new two storey extension at Beeston Primary. 

b) That Executive Board authorise expenditure of £550,700 from capital 
scheme number 16505/ALP and approve authority to tender for the 
construction of a single storey, two classroom extension at Allerton 
CofE Primary. 

 
LEADER OF COUNCIL’S PORTFOLIO 
 
 

9 Financial Performance - Outturn Financial Year Ended 31st March 2013  
The Board considered the report of the Director of Resources setting out the 
Council’s financial outturn position for 2012/13 for both revenue and capital 
and including the Housing Revenue Account. In addition, the report 
addressed major variations on the revenue account and reported on the final 
position in respect of Schools and the ALMOs. Finally, the report highlighted 
the position regarding other key financial health indicators including Council 
Tax and NNDR collection statistics, Sundry income and prompt payments. 
RESOLVED – That the Executive Board note the outturn position and 
approve the creation and delegated release of earmarked reserves as 
detailed in paragraph 2.5 of the submitted report  

Page 242



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 

 

 
10 Welfare, Benefits and Poverty  

The Assistant Chief Executive (Customers and Communities) and the Director 
of City Development submitted a joint report providing an update on the 
proposals being developed to help deal with poverty and deprivation in the 
city and providing information on the impact of the reforms on families with 
dependent children. The report contained specific proposals for a significant 
programme of work required to prepare for the roll out of Universal Credit 
along with a set of proposals for a campaign to tackle high cost lenders in the 
most deprived areas of the city.   
 
Finally, the report included the response of the Council to the issues raised by 
the deputation to full Council on 14th November 2012 regarding Payday Loan 
Companies. 
 
The Board discussed the increasing pressures on the city having regard to the 
impact of the national welfare reform programme and current economic 
climate and noted the growing prevalence of high cost money lenders in the 
City. Members broadly welcomed the moves to re-organise and reconfigure 
services in order to meet the demand from residents for support and advice.  
Additionally, the Executive Member, Health and Wellbeing, highlighted that 
the proposals tied into the Health and Wellbeing priorities for the city and the 
opportunities to work with health partners should be explored. 
RESOLVED –  

a) That the proposals contained within the submitted report which aim to 
provide a new focus on the welfare, benefits and poverty agenda be 
endorsed. 

b) That the contents of Appendix 1 on the activities of the Illegal Money 
Lending Team be noted. 

c) That the proposals to prepare for Universal Credit as set out in the 
submitted report and in Appendix 4 of the report be endorsed 

d) That the proposals and initiatives developed in conjunction with 
members of the deputation to tackle high cost lenders as set out in the 
report and summarised in Appendix 5 of the submitted report be 
endorsed  

e) That the continuing support and promotion of Leeds City Credit Union 
(LCCU) be noted and that the proposal for officers to explore further 
ways to help build extra credit union capacity and the expansion of 
services be endorsed. 

f) To note that Headrow Money Line, the newly established Community 
Development Finance Institution (CDFI) has commenced trading and is 
providing services to financially excluded residents as outlined in the 
report. 

g) That a further report be requested to be presented in Autumn 2013 with 
a particular focus on service accessibility and integration; improved 
access to financial advice and support and employment and training 
opportunities; and, the development of an anti-poverty strategy 

 
11 Best Council Plan 2013-17  

Page 243



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 

 

The Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report presenting a new Best Council 
Plan 2013-17 to replace the current Council Business Plan 2011- 15, for 
approval prior to going to Full Council. The report highlighted the need for the 
Council’s strategic plans to remain up-to-date and fit for purpose; relevant to 
the changing financial context and continued to reflect the main challenges. In 
light of this, the strategic plans must also include the right level of ambition for 
the people of Leeds.  
 
A copy of the draft Best Council Plan was included as Appendix 1 of the 
report. The Board noted the involvement of the Scrutiny process in the 
development of the document and considered whether all Scrutiny Boards 
should receive and consider the Plan. Members noted the response which 
highlighted the key priorities against the backdrop of changing local 
government finance and service provision; and the need to meet the 
challenges as soon as possible.  
RESOLVED – 

a) That the Best Council Plan 2013-17 be approved and be 
recommended to Full Council for approval at the meeting on 1st July 
2013; 

b) That Members of Full Council be recommended to authorise Executive 
Board to make “in-year” amendments to these plans as may be 
required; 

c) That the revisions to the Equality Improvement Priorities, as set out in 
Appendix 3 of the submitted report be approved; and 

d) That the Deputy Chief Executive be authorised to complete the plans 
with any outstanding information prior to their submission for approval 
to Full Council on 1st July 2013. 

 
(The resolutions referred to within this minute were not eligible for Call In, as 
the Council Business Plan 2011-15 (now Best Council Plan) forms part of the 
Budgetary and Policy Framework and the provisions of Executive and 
Decision Making Procedure Rule 5.1.2 state that the power to Call In 
decisions does not extend to those decisions made in accordance with the 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules) 
 

12 2012/13 Quarter 4 Performance Report  
The Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report presenting a summary of the 
year end performance data for 2012/13 which provides an update on progress 
in delivering the Council Business Plan 2011-15 and City Priority Plan 2011-
15.  In addition, the report highlighted key performance issues. 
RESOLVED – That the progress made in delivering the Council’s priorities as 
well as the on-going performance issues identified be noted 
 

13 Design and Cost Report for the City Region Revolving Investment Fund  
The Chief Officer, Public Private Partnerships and Procurement Unit 
submitted a report seeking approval to enter into a limited partnership with 
partner local authorities to establish a Leeds City Region Revolving 
Investment Fund (RIF), and seeking authority to invest £6,440,000 in 
accordance with capital scheme number 16500RIF, as the Leeds City Council 
agreed contribution to the setup of the Fund. 

Page 244



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 

 

 
The Board noted the report set out the following key issues: 

• The strategic context for the RIF 
• The First Phase Launch 
• How the Fund will operate 
• The requirements of Founder Member Authorities 
• Capital Investment from Leeds City Council 
 
The Board noted comments highlighting the need to ensure the RIF included 
clear governance arrangements with a strong decision making model which 
included continued monitoring of decisions. The Board was advised that, with 
the establishment of the West Yorkshire Combined Authority (which appeared 
as a separate item later on the agenda) the RIF would fit into the governance 
model being developed for the WYCA which had the support of all relevant 
authorities  
RESOLVED – 

a) That authority be given to invest the £6.440m in the RIF, in accordance 
with capital scheme number 16500 RIF 

b)  That the Director of Resources be authorised to take any necessary 
further action to establish a Leeds City Region Revolving Investment 
Fund including the approval of any necessary agreements (in 
accordance with the Principles as defined in paragraph 3.1 of the 
report), and any necessary decision making arrangements in relation to 
the making of investments by the RIF, to enable Leeds City Council to 
become a Founder Member of the Fund 

c)  That authority be given for Leeds City Council to act as administrator 
of the RIF (including, if necessary, the establishment of a “General 
Partner” for the RIF).  

 
ENVIRONMENT 
 
 

14 Response to Deputation  to Council - Wyke Beck Valley Community 
Forum Regarding The Post Of Wyke Beck Valley Ranger And 5 Local 
Nature Reserves In Wyke Beck Valley  
The Chief Officer (Parks and Countryside) submitted a report responding to 
the matters arising from the deputation to Council on the 8th May 2013 by the 
Wyke Beck Valley Community Forum.  In particular the report considered the 
role of the Wyke Beck Valley Ranger and the potential to designate identified 
sites in the valley as Local Nature Reserves. A copy of the verbatim speech 
presented to Council was appended to the report. 
 
The Executive Member for Environment reported receipt of a representation 
from the Group and on the progress of the Arthur’s Rein and Halton Moor 
Beck sites, noting that several issues still required further work with Natural 
England, however the Board was reassured that these outstanding issues 
could be addressed and the designation of all the sites progressed 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the report in response to the Deputation 
be noted and that Executive Board support the view stated in paragraph 3.3.3 

Page 245



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 

 

of the report on Local Nature Reserve designation for the sites referred to in 
the delegation -  those being: 
· Wykebeck Woods.  
· Arthur’s Rein 
· Killingbeck Fields.  
· Primrose Valley (Halton Dene)  
· Halton Moor Beck Fields.  
 

15 Mercury Abatement - Cottingley Crematorium  
Further to minute 68 of the meeting held 25th August 2010, the Director of 
Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report advising of the current 
position with regard to achieving the statutory 50% abatement of mercury 
emissions from the authority’s crematoria and seeking approval for the 
installation of cremators with mercury filtration equipment at Cottingley 
crematorium. In addition, the report advised of the expenditure of fees up to 
£90,000 to allow the tendering of the works contract on a design and build 
basis, and management of the subsequent contract, to be funded from 
existing budget provision.  
RESOLVED – 

a) That the works planned for Cottingley Crematorium be noted and 
approved 

b) That the expenditure of up to £90,000 on fees for the design and 
development of the specification for Cottingley and management of the 
subsequent design and build contract to be funded from the £2.9m 
injected into the capital scheme in August 2010 and paid for from 
prudential borrowing and a continuing surcharge on cremations be 
noted 

c) That Executive Board request that a Design and Cost Report be 
brought back to the Board once a more detailed cost estimate for the 
Cottingley works has been developed  

 
16 Review of City Centre Car Parking  

Further to minute 75 of the meeting held 5th September 2012, the Director of 
Environment and Neighbourhoods and the Director of City Development 
submitted a further report providing an update on various issues relating to 
city centre car parking. The report referred to a consultation exercise 
undertaken in relation to Sunday and evening charges which brought forward 
a recommendation that charges be introduced. Information was also provided 
in respect of Woodhouse Lane multi storey car park, the on-going 
development of both retail and leisure opportunities within the city centre and 
the intention to continue to monitor car parking pricing and provision. 
 
In presenting the report, the Executive Member for Environment outlined the 
comparable level of charging proposed, which was less than private parking 
provision; and was intended to promote a greater turnover of parking in the 
city centre thus making more spaces available for use and encouraging 
visitors to take up the increased city centre offer.  
 

Page 246



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 

 

The Board noted the concerns expressed in respect of future charges which 
could be levied, the impact of the proposals on city centre evening business 
and the draw to out-of-town shopping facilities with free parking. 
RESOLVED -  

a) That approval to the introduction of a £5 tariff for parking in Woodhouse 
Lane for Arena events 

b) That approval be given to the introduction of 24hr car parking at 
Woodhouse, with the availability of longer term tariffs. 

c) That approval be given to the introduction of a £2 evening charge from 
6-10 for on street parking 

d) That approval be given to the introduction of £1 charge for up to 4 
hours and £4 for all day between 10am and 6pm on a Sunday for on 
street parking. 

 
Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillors A Carter 
and Golton required it to be recorded that they voted against the matters 
included within this minute 
 
DEVELOPMENT AND THE ECONOMY 
 
 

17 Parking Permit Charges  
The Director of City Development submitted a report outlining the work 
undertaken to develop proposals for the introduction of a charge for Residents 
Parking Permits as identified in the annual budget report. The report also 
detailed the basis under which a charge could be made, should permission be 
given to proceed with such a proposal 
 
The report outlined the findings of a Scrutiny Board review into Resident 
Permit Parking, conducted in 2008, which recommended that the introduction 
of a charge be considered further, although this was not pursued at that time. 
However, with increasing pressure on Council budgets an external review of 
City Development Directorate funding and budgets was conducted which 
included considering the potential to offset the cost of some of its services by 
raising additional income. The study identified the potential for charges for 
RPP to contribute towards budget pressures. A review of comparable 
authorities had also been undertaken which revealed that the majority of the 
Core Cities make some form of charge for RPPS tailored to local 
circumstances. A list of charges from Core and other cities was included at 
Appendix 1 of the report. 
  
Members commented on the possible impact of the proposals on those permit 
schemes already in operation. Having regard to residents’ ability to pay for 
permits, discussions also covered the likely drop-out rate from the scheme 
and subsequent impact on the resources supporting the scheme 
RESOLVED -   

a) That the content of the report and work undertaken to prepare 
proposals and consult on the introduction of a charge for Residents 
Parking Permits as included within the annual budget report be noted; 

Page 247



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 

 

b) That the initial proposals for establishing a charge for Residents 
Parking Permits as the basis for consultation be agreed; 

c) That authority be given to the further development of detailed 
proposals for charging for Residents Parking Permits as contained 
within the Council’s approved 2013 -14 revenue budget; and 

d) That Executive Board receive a report setting out the final proposals in 
due course. 

 
Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5, Councillors A Carter 
and Golton required it to be recorded that they voted against the matters 
included within this minute 
 

18 Support to the Leeds Rail Growth Package - Agreement of Terms and 
Conditions  
Further to minute 92 of the meeting held 17th October 2012, the Director of 
City Development and the Director of Resources submitted a joint report 
providing an update on the progress of the establishment of the Leeds Rail 
Growth Package, including information on the proposed terms and conditions 
of financial support and security that would be provided by the Council and, 
subject to finalisation of legal contracts, the report recommending that 
financial support is provided. 
  
The report updated the Board on the discussions held with a variety of 
stakeholders to maintain and secure support. It was reported that the Growing 
Places Fund, administered by the Leeds Local Enterprise Partnership, had 
agreed to provide support to the construction of the rail halts within the 
package, but in order for the scheme to be progressed it was proposed that 
the Council undertake the associated highway infrastructure works. 
 
The Board recognised the opportunities encompassed in the development of 
the former Kirkstall Forge site, with the delivery of the two rail stations being 
key to regeneration and employment in the area. 
 
Following consideration of Appendices B, C and E of the report, designated 
as exempt under the provisions of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4 
(3), which were considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was 
RESOLVED –  

a) That approval be given to the Council assisting GMV Twelve, on the 
terms and conditions detailed in exempt Appendix C, subject to the 
finalisation of legal documentation between the various parties, with 
approval of the terms of those documents being delegated to the 
Directors of City Development and of Resources and the City Solicitor. 

b) That approval be given to the Council committing to invest and expend 
a total of £9.993m for the highway infrastructure works required for the 
development and professional costs to be met by borrowing and to 
delegate the formal authority to spend to the Director of City 
Development. 

c) That approval be given for any changes to the costs of the highway 
works to be updated in the capital programme, to be fully funded by 
GMV Twelve over the period of the agreement. 

Page 248



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 

 

 
19 Energy Saving Measures for Street Lighting - Consultation Outcome and 

Further Proposals  
The Director of City Development submitted a report summarising the 
outcome of consultation on the proposal to implement a selective part-night 
switch-off of street lights and to seeking approval to inject £376,643 into the 
capital programme to proceed with the design and installation of a selective 
part-night street lighting scheme 
 
In presenting the report, the Executive Member for Development and the 
Economy highlighted the complex responses received to the consultation on 
the proposals (and included in Section 4.1 of the report) which broadly 
demonstrated support for the proposals. Discussion followed on issues 
related to public safety and crime. In response; Members were informed that 
representatives of West Yorkshire Police and West Yorkshire Fire and 
Rescue Service had contributed to the work to draw up the scheme and that 
following implementation; the scheme would continue to be monitored. 
RESOLVED –  

a) That the outcome of consultation on the proposal to implement 
selective part-night switching of street lights be noted and; 

b) That approval be given for the injection of £376,643 into the capital 
programme to proceed with the design and installation of selective 
part-night street lighting in accordance with the criteria set out within 
the submitted report. 

 
Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillors A Carter and 
Golton required it to be recorded that they abstained from voting on the 
matters included within this minute 
 

20 West Yorkshire Combined Authority  
Further to minute 90 of the meeting held 12th October 2012, the Director of 
City Development submitted a report on the outcome of the consultation 
undertaken in respect of the review of governance arrangements in West 
Yorkshire. The report invited the Board to recommend to full Council that 
consideration be given to becoming a member of a Combined Authority for 
the area of West Yorkshire.  
 
The proposed Scheme for the Combined Authority, which would form the 
basis for the creation of the new body was presented as part of the 
considerations with a request that a recommendation is made to full Council 
that the Scheme be submitted to Government by July 2013, with a view to 
creating a Combined Authority for the area of West Yorkshire by April 2014, in 
line with Leeds City Deal Implementation Plan. 
RESOLVED – That the following be recommended to full Council on 1st July 
2013: 
 

a) The findings of the Review of governance arrangements relating to 
transport, economic development and regeneration, pursuant to 
Section 108 of the Local Democracy Economic Development and 
Construction Act 2009 and Section 82 of the Local Transport Act 2008 

Page 249



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 

 

(as set out at in Appendix A of the submitted report) together with the 
results of the consultation exercise conducted (included within Section 
4.1 of the report) 

b) For the reasons set out in the Review document, to agree that the  
 establishment of a Combined Authority for the area of West Yorkshire 
 would be likely to improve: 

• the exercise of statutory functions relating to economic development, 
regeneration and transport in the area; 

• the effectiveness and efficiency of transport in the area; and 
• the economic conditions in the area.  

c) To endorse the Final Scheme (in the form set out at Annex B to this 
report) including the proposal that the West Yorkshire ITA is dissolved, 
and that the West Yorkshire PTE is also dissolved and that all their 
individual functions, property, rights, liabilities and staff are transferred 
to the Combined Authority. 

d) To agree to publish the Scheme pursuant to section 109(2) of the Local 
 Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009. 

e) To consent to the inclusion of Leeds City Council in the area of the 
Combined Authority. 

f) To agree that the City of York Council and the Leeds City Region Local 
 Enterprise Partnership should be invited to join the Combined Authority 
 for the area of West Yorkshire as non-constituent members. 

g) To authorise the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader and 
with the other West Yorkshire Authorities to undertake such steps as 
are necessary to facilitate the submission of the Scheme and the 
preparation of the draft Order. 

 
The resolutions detailed within this minute were exempted from the Call In 
process under the provisions of paragraph 5.1.3 of the Executive and 
Decision Making Procedure Rules due to the urgency for the Council to 
consider submitting a Final Combined Authority Scheme to the Secretary of 
State by July 2013 

21 Roundhay Road, Highway Improvements  
The Director of City Development submitted a report seeking authority to 
proceed with the preparation of the detailed design and construction of the 
works as proposed. Additionally, authority was required for the revocation of 
the relevant items currently in force in an existing Waiting Restriction Traffic 
Regulation Order together with the provision of both a new Waiting/Loading 
Restriction Order and a Movement Restriction Order. The total estimated cost 
of the proposed scheme is £550,000. 
RESOLVED -  

a) That, subject to Traffic Regulation Orders, the proposed highway works 
as outlined in Section 3.1 of the submitted report and indicated on 
drawing referenced: HDC-716738-TRO-03, at an estimated cost of 
£550,000 be noted and approved 

b) That authority be given to incur expenditure of £458,000 works costs, 
£90,000 staff costs and £2,000 Legal costs, to be funded from the LTP 
Transport Policy Capital Programme. 

c) That the City Solicitor be instructed to revoke relevant items currently in 
force in an existing waiting restriction Traffic Regulation Order and to 

Page 250



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 

 

advertise draft Traffic Regulation Orders in relation to various waiting 
and loading restrictions, Movement Restriction Order for the three 
proposed one-way streets; and a peak time outbound bus/cycle/taxi 
lane, as indicated on drawings referenced HDC-716738-TRO-03 & 
Oakwood/TRO/002 and, if no valid objections are received then make, 
seal and implement the orders. 

 
22 St George House, 42 Great George Street, Leeds, LS1  

The Director of City Development submitted a report seeking approval for the 
Council to purchase the head tenant’s leasehold interest in the St George 
House property, on the terms set out in the exempt appendix.  The report also 
sought approval to a formal Deed of Surrender of this Lease. 
  
Acquisition of the head tenants leasehold interest would be financially 
beneficial and give the Council outright ownership, thus providing greater 
flexibility in respect of the future management of, and plans for, the building.  
 
Following consideration of Appendix 1 of the report, designated as exempt 
under the provisions of Access to Information Procedure Rule 10.4(3), which 
was considered in private at the conclusion of the meeting, it was 
 
RESOLVED -  

a) That the terms to the purchase of the head tenants leasehold interest 
be approved 

b) That approval be given to the completion of a formal “Deed of 
Surrender” of the existing leasehold interest on the terms outlined in 
the exempt appendix;  

c) That approval be given to the injection of the sum identified in the 
exempt appendix into the capital programme and give authority to 
spend the monies required 

 
The resolutions referred to within this minute were exempted from the Call In 
process under the provisions of paragraph 5.1.3 of the Executive and 
Decision Making Procedure Rules due to the fact that any delay would 
prejudice this transaction which may not then proceed to completion 
 
NEIGHBOURHOODS, PLANNING AND SUPPORT SERVICES 
 
 

23 Draft Safer Leeds Strategy 2013-2014  
The Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods submitted a report seeking 
consideration of; and support for the draft Safer Leeds Strategy 2013/14; prior 
to submission of the Strategy to full Council in July 2013 for approval.  
 
The report outlined the statutory requirement for the Safer Leeds Executive, 
as the city’s Community Safety Partnership, to prepare and implement a local 
Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy, referred to locally as the ‘Safer Leeds 
Strategy’ a copy of which was included within the report at Appendix 1. The 
strategy formed part of the council’s budget and policy framework, and would 
be submitted to full Council on 1st July 2013. 

Page 251



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 

 

 
In presenting the report, the Executive Member for Neighbourhoods Planning 
and Support Services, indicated that the version of the Strategy to be 
presented to full Council contained a number of revisions in respect of 
terminology. Discussion followed on the priorities contained within the 
Strategy and a comment in respect of the measurement of the priority for 
tackling child exploitation was noted. The Board noted the response that the 
Children’s Safeguarding Board included a sub group established to tackle 
child exploitation having regard to the Strategy and would develop targets for 
the future.  
 
Finally, noting additional comments in respect of the Families First 
programme, the Executive Member for Children’s Service’s indicated that a 
further report could be presented to the Board to provide detail on the issues 
and relevant criteria  
RESOLVED – That Executive Board support the draft Safer Leeds Strategy, 
as the city’s Crime and Disorder Strategy for 2013-14, prior to its submission 
to full Council for approval on 1st July 2013. 
 
(The resolution referred to within this minute was not eligible for Call In, as the 
Safer Leeds Strategy forms part of the Budgetary and Policy Framework and 
Executive and Decision Making Procedure Rule 5.1.2 states that the power to 
Call In decisions does not extend to those decisions made in accordance with 
the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules) 
 

24 Review of ALMOs and Housing Management Arrangements  
Further to minute 155 of the meeting held January 2013, the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Customers and Communities) and the Director of Environment and 
Neighbourhoods submitted a joint report detailing the outcome of the review 
of housing management services in Leeds. The report presented 
recommendations on the future delivery of housing management in the city, 
whilst also setting out implementation arrangements. 
 
In January 2013, following a recommendation from the housing management 
review team, Executive Board approved a period of consultation with tenants 
and other key stakeholders, on two options for the future of council housing 
management in Leeds: 

1. Move to a single company model (e.g. a single ALMO) with a retained 
locality delivery structure and strengthened governance arrangements; 
or 

2. Move to all services being integrated within direct council management 
with a retained locality delivery structure and strengthened governance 
arrangements to include tenants and independent members. 

 
In presenting the report the Executive Member for Planning, Neighbourhoods 
and Support Services, highlighted the outcome of the consultation undertaken 
on the options, with 61% of tenants stating a preference for council housing to 
be managed by Leeds City Council, compared 21% stating a preference for a 
single ALMO and 18% stating no preference. Taking this outcome into 

Page 252



Draft minutes to be approved at the meeting  
to be held on Wednesday, 17th July, 2013 

 

consideration, along with performance, financial and other issues, the review 
team were recommending implementation of Option 2. 
RESOLVED –  

a) That the results of the consultation exercise be noted 
b) That the recommendation to progress with option 2, as outlined 

above, be supported 
c) To agree to receive a further paper at the July meeting detailing 

implementation and governance arrangements. 
d) That approval be given to the commencement of the winding up 

process for the existing companies as noted in section 10.5 of the 
submitted report 

e) That approval be given to the renaming of the Environment and 
Neighbourhoods Directorate to ‘Environment and Housing’. 

 
Under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.5 Councillor A Carter 
required it to be recorded that he abstained from voting on the matters 
included within this minute. 
 
 
DATE OF PUBLICATION  21ST JUNE 2013 
 
LAST DATE FOR CALL IN   
OF ELIGIBLE DECISIONS  28TH JUNE 2013 (5.00PM) 
 
(Scrutiny Support will notify Directors of any items called in by 12.00 noon on 
1ST JULY 2013) 
 
 

Page 253



Page 254

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Minutes - 28th June 2013
	7 Request for Scrutiny - Transport consultation and the proposed changes to the Children's Services Transport Policy
	Request for Scrutiny - Appendix A
	Request for Scrutiny - Appendix B
	Request for Scrutiny - Appendix 1b
	Request for Scrutiny - Appendix 2b
	Request for Scrutiny - Appendix 3b
	Request for Scrutiny - Appendix 4b(1)
	Request for Scrutiny - Appendix 4b(2)
	Request for Scrutiny - Appendix 5b
	Request for Scrutiny - Appendix 6b

	8 Draft LSCB Annual Report on the Effectiveness of Safeguarding Arrangements for Children and Young people in Leeds (July 2013)
	Draft LSCB Annual Report (July 2013)

	9 Response to Scrutiny Inquiry Report - Private Fostering
	Response to Scrutiny Inquiry Report - Private Fostering - Appendix 1

	10 Director's Response - Scrutiny Inquiry into Increasing the Number of Young People in Employment, Education or Training
	11 Financial Health Monitoring Children's Services- Budget Update Quarter 1 2013/14 and Outturn summary for 2012/13
	Financial Health Monitoring (Children's Services) - Appendix A
	Financial Health Monitoring (Children's Services) - Appendix B

	12 Work Schedule
	Work Schedule - Appendix 1
	Work Schedule - Appendix 2


